
City of Prosser, WA 
601 7th Street 

Prosser, WA 99350 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

7:00 P.M. 
TUESDAY, APRIL 8, 2014 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 
 
5. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Approve Payment of Payroll Checks Nos. 600032 through 600041 in the Amount of 
$16,639.29, and Direct Deposits in the Amount of $93,585.82, for the Period 
Ending April 8, 2014.............................................................................................................. Page 4 

 
b. Approve Payment of Claim Checks Nos. 10373 through 10385 and 10390 through 

10466, in the Amount of $258,687.23 and Electronic Payments in the Amount of 
$42,734.89, for the Period Ending April 8, 2014................................................................... Page 7 

 
c. Accept Monthly Report by Prosser Economic Development Association for the 

Month of March 2014 and Authorize Payment for those Services in the Amount of 
$2,166.66 and Authorize Payment in the Amount of $1,416.67 for Grant Writer 
Services ................................................................................................................................ Page 17 

 
d. Approve the USDA Outlay Report and Draw Request No. 29 in an Amount of 

$15,435.78, for Costs Associated with the Northwest Prosser Water and Sewer 
System Improvements Project (Contract Addendum No. 2) and authorize the Mayor 
to Sign the Documents ......................................................................................................... Page 23 

 
e. Approve Progress Estimate No. 1 in the amount of $1,423.50, for work performed 

by HLA, Inc., through February 28, 2014, for Preliminary Engineering and Design 
on the Old Inland Empire Highway Improvements Project and authorize the Mayor 
to Sign the Documents ......................................................................................................... Page 33 

 

The first Ordinance passed will be Ordinance 14-2882 
The first Resolution passed will be Resolution 14-1451 



f. Approve Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Invoice Voucher 
Request No. 11 in the Amount of $367,997.67, for the Disinfection, Filtration and 
Source Improvements Project and authorize the Mayor to Sign the Documents ................ Page 37 

 
g. Adopt Resolution 14-_____ Surplusing City of Prosser Property ....................................... Page 47 

 
h. Adopt Resolution 14-_____ Surplusing Three Radar Units to the Benton County 

Sheriff’s Office .................................................................................................................... Page 49 
 

i. Accept Monetary Donation in the Amount of $1,390.08 from Grace Inc., DBA 
Cottage Court ....................................................................................................................... Page 52 

 
j. Approve the February 25, 2014 Meeting Minutes ............................................................... Page 54 

 
 
7. COUNCIL ACTION 
 

a.) Approve Payment of Claim Check No. 10386 in the Amount of $59,966.70 for 
the Period Ending April 8, 2014 .................................................................................... Page 57 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Move to approve payment of claim check no. 10386 in 

the Amount of $59,966.70 for the Period Ending April 8, 2014. 
 
 

b.) Adopt RESOLUTION 14-_____ Approving all Bid Documents and Contract 
Provisions for the 2014 Bituminous Surface Treatment Project, Prepared by 
Benton County, and Accepting the Lowest Qualified Bidder Granite 
Construction Company and Authorizing the Mayor to Sign and Execute any 
Documents or Contracts ................................................................................................. Page 59 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Move to adopt RESOLUTION 14-_____ approving all 

specifications, plans, estimates, bid documents, contract provisions, prepared by 
Benton County pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement executed on January 14, 
2014, and accepting the lowest qualified bidder Granite Construction Company 
bid in the total amount of $1,172,000.00, of which the City’s portion is 
$74,312.00, and authorizing the Mayor to sign and execute any documents or 
contracts, if any, necessary for the 2014 Bituminous Surface Treatment Project. 

 
 
c.) Approve the 2013 Update to the Benton County Solid Waste Plan ........................... Page 67 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Move to approve the 2013 Update to the Benton 

County Solid Waste Plan and authorize the Mayor to submit a letter to Benton 
County Solid Waste informing it that the Prosser City Council has approved the 
2013 Solid Waste Update. 

 

The first Ordinance passed will be Ordinance 14-2882 
The first Resolution passed will be Resolution 14-1451 



 
d.) Review ORDINANCE 14-_____ Amending the 2014 Budget for Fund 606, 

Library Memorial Fund ............................................................................................... Page 251 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Review ORDINANCE 14-_____ amending the 2014 
Budget for Fund 606, Library Memorial Fund. 

 
e.) Adopt ORDINANCE 14-_____ Amending the 2014 Budget for Fund 001, 

General Fund ................................................................................................................. Page 258 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Move to adopt ORDINANCE 14-_____ amending the 
2014 Budget for Fund 001, General Fund. 

 
 

f.) Adopt ORDINANCE 14-_____ Amending PMC 2.16 Changing City Hall 
Office Hours .................................................................................................................. Page 264 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Move to adopt ORDINANCE 14-_____ amending 

PMC 2.16 changing City Hall Office hours. 
 
 

g.) Adopt ORDINANCE 14-_____ Amending Section 5 of Ordinance 14-2876 to 
Correct a Scriveners Error .......................................................................................... Page 269 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Move to adopt ORDINANCE 14-_____ amending 

Section 5 of Ordinance 14-2876 to correct a Scriveners error. 
 

 
 
8. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
9. ADD ON ITEMS 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

 

The first Ordinance passed will be Ordinance 14-2882 
The first Resolution passed will be Resolution 14-1451 



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL I 
Agenda Title: Approve payment of payroll Meeting Date: 

1 check nos. 600032 through 600041 in the April 8, 2014 I 
amount of $16,639.29 and direct deposits Regular Meeting 
in the amount of $93,585.82 for the period 
ending April 8, 2014 

De~rtment: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Finance Regina Mauras Toni Yost (509) 786-2332 

I 

I 
Cost of Prooosal: Account Number: 
$110,225.11 Various 

Amount Budgeted: 
Various amounts in salaries, wages, and benefits. Name and Fund# 

Various 

Reviewed b:t Finance DeQartment: 

CD~~µ~ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Payroll Check Register 

Summa!Y Statement: 
Payroll check nos. 600032 through 600041 in the amount of $16,639.29 and direct 
deposits in the amount of $93,585.82 for the period ending April 8, 2014. 

Consistent with or Com~rison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Approve payment payroll check nos. 600032 through 600041 in the amount of 
$16,639.29 and direct deposits in the amount of $93,585.82 for the period ending 
April 8, 2014 

Reviewed by De12artment Reviewed by City Attorney: App:ove~yor: 
Director: 

¥~ NIA /Vt U-~~~~ 
Date: 5\ 'i.l.Q \it Date: Date: L/-7~ /f 
Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: I File Name and Path: 

I March 26, 2014 I 

4



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Prosser Time: 16:05:40 Date: 03/25/2014 
MCAG#: 0205 03/31/2014 To: 03/31/2014 Page: l 

Trans Date Type Acct# Chk# Claiinant Amount Memo 

648 0313112014 Payroll l EFT Nick R Alsbury 2,084.02 March Payroll 
650 0313112014 Payroll l EFT Lindsay E Bardessono 1,226.62 March Payroll 
653 0313112014 Payroll I EFT Elia N Belmares 1,625.70 March Payroll 
654 0313112014 Payroll I EFT Edward Blackbum 3,500.16 March Payroll 
655 0313112014 Payroll l EFT Donald Allen Brown 2,228.69 March Payroll 
657 0313112014 Payroll 1 EFT Michael Lee Buck 2,125.57 March Payroll 
658 0313112014 Payroll l EFT Danny Joe Cavazos 3,189.54 March Payroll 
659 0313112014 Payroll 1 EFT MarkR Cole 3,171.51 March Payroll 
660 0313112014 Payroll l EFT Brian Cyphers 3,422.85 March Payroll 
661 03/3112014 Payroll l EFT Leon J Dacorsi 4,595.89 March Payroll 
662 0313112014 Payroll l EFT Bradley James Dennis 3,633.13 March Payroll 
663 0313112014 Payroll l EFT Robert C Elder 128.96 March Payroll 
665 0313112014 Payroll 1 EFT David Giles 4,964.63 March Payroll 
667 0313112014 Payroll 1 EFT Leroy Scott Hamilton 199 .57 March Payroll 
668 0313112014 Payroll 1 EFT Perry A Harris 2,555.69 March Payroll 
669 0313112014 Payroll I EFT Shane Hellyer 3,213.90 March Payroll 
671 0313112014 Payroll l EFT Brandon E Lum 2,105.83 March Payroll 
672 03/31/2014 Payroll 1 EFT John 1-1 Markns 3,713.13 March Payroll 
673 03/31/2014 Payroll l .EFT Kathya D Martinez 1,618.49 March Payroll 
674 03/3112014 Payroll l EFT Regina Mauras 5,330.40 March Payroll 
676 03/3112014 Payroll l EFT Christiana J Mendoza 2,293.93 March Payroll 
678 0313112014 Payroll 1 EFT Barry Dale Morrow 3,387.61 March Payroll 
679 03/3112014 Payroll l EFT Kendall J Murphey 278.17 March Payroll 
680 03/3112014 Payroll 1 EFT Brian M Ohler 2,703.23 March Payroll 
681 03/3112014 Payroll 1 EFT Arturo Perez 2,278.85 March Payroll 
682 03/31/2014 Payroll 1 EFT Trevor S Pottle 2,419.46 March Payroll 
683 03/3112014 Payroll l EFT Andrew D Robinson 2,390. 19 March Payroll 
684 03/3112014 Payroll 1 EFT Raul Sabalza 2,552.54 March Payroll 
686 03/31/2014 Payroll l EFT Matthew B Shanafelt 2,685 ,3 7 March Payroll 
687 03/3112014 Payroll l EFT Rachel M Shaw 1,925.53 March Payroll 
688 03/31/2014 Payroll 1 EFT William Spurgeon 1,065.73 March Payroll 
689 03/31/2014 Payroll l EFT Thomas E Stewart 1,559.19 March Payroll 
690 03/3112014 Payroll l EFT Steve R Veloz 3,388.60 March Payroll 
691 03/3112014 Payroll 1 EFT Paul Allen Warden 4,047.85 March Payroll 
692 03131/2014 Payroll 1 EFT Tonelle M Yost 3,213.87 March Payroll 
693 03/31/2014 Payroll 1 EFT Stephen M Zetz 2,761.42 March Payroll 
649 03/31/2014 Payroll 1 600032 Donald Aubrey 230.34 March Payroll 
651 03/31/2014 Payroll 1 600033 John A Beck 2,956.05 March Payroll 
652 0313112014 Payroll I 600034 Tracey Marie Bell 1,230.12 March Payroll 
656 03/3112014 Payroll 1 600035 Debra S Brumley 230.34 March Payroll 
664 03/31/2014 Payroll 1 600036 Morgan C Everett 224. 14 March Payroll 
666 03/3112014 Payroll 1 600037 Gregory John Gustafson 2,954.04 March Payroll 
670 03/31/2014 Payroll 1 600038 Eulalia Lopez Lopez 1,203 .05 March Payroll 
675 03/3112014 Payroll 1 600039 Timothy L Medley 2,149.75 March Payroll 
677 03/31/2014 Payroll 1 600040 Guadalupe J Montelongo 2,496.10 March Payroll 
685 03/31/2014 Payroll 1 600041 Raul Sanchez 2,965.36 March Payroll 

511 Legislative 6,509.67 
514 Financial, Recording & Elections 21,272.02 
518 Centralized Services 2,813.60 
521 Law Enforcement 63,788.71 
524 Protective Inspections 7,034.06 
558 Planning & Community Devel 4,039.80 
576 Park Facilities 5,206.59 
580 Non Expeditures -62,251.40 

001 General Fune! 4-8,413,05 

542 Streets - Maintenance 10.498.93 

5



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

( 

CHECK REGISTER 

03/31/2014 To: 03/31/2014 

Type Acct # Chk # Claimant 

543 Streets Admin & Overhead 

192~ireei R@<! 
534 Water Utilities 
539 Irrigation And Reclamation 

4Q3 "\W'aiert.@a · · 

535 Sewer 

4()1 Sewei:;f.tind 

537 Garbage & Solid Waste 

!\4'8,Qar1>ageJi.)in<l ··• 

Time: 16:05:40 Date: 03/25/2014 

Amount Memo 

1,446.42 

.ll,945.35 

19,731.64 
5,589.79 

25,321A3 

24,189.20 

2;;\,189.20 

356.08 

356:08 

Page: 2 

110,225.l l Payroll: 110,225.11 

7) /ZS i It.{ 

Date 

6



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approve payment of claim Meeting Date: 
check nos. 10373 through 10385 and April 8, 2014 

, 10390 through 10466, in the amount of Regular Meeting 
$258,687.23 and Electronic Payments in 
the amount of $42, 734.89 for the period 
ending April 8, 2014. 
DeQartment: Director: Contact Person: ! Phone Number: 

I Finance Regina Mauras Toni Yost I (509) 786-2332 
I 

Cost of ProQosal: Account Number: 
$301,422.12 See Attached 

' I Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
See 2014 budget for each item listed. See Attached 

I Reviewed bM Finance Degartment: 

I (\Jt-, 
) Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

I 
1. Check Register# 10373 through 10385 and 10390 through 10466 

, 
Summa!}' Statement: 

'Amount 
$54,492.64 
$204,14.59 

I Amount 
IRS Federal Taxes $42,231.89 
Wa De t of Licensin -CPL $72.00 
v d en I $431 00 

i 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

I City's policy to pay bills in a timely manner. 
' 

Recommended Citv Council Action/Suggested Motion: 
Approve payment of 10373 through 10385 and 10390 through 10466, in the amount of 
$258,687.23 and Electronic Payments in the amount of $42,734.89 for the period ending 
April 8, 2014 

Reviewed by DeQartment Reviewed by Citv Attorney: AQQroved by Mayor: 
Director: 

f\O\_- N/A \\Lt-
Date: Date: Date: 
Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 
April 4, 2014 

7



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 03/31/2014 To: 03/31/2014 

Trans Date Type Acct# Cbk# Claimant 

694 03/31/2014 Payroll EFT IRS Federal Taxes 

695 03/31/2014 Payroll 10373 AFLAC 

696 03/31/2014 Payroll 10374 AWC Employment Ben Trust 

697 03/31/2014 Payroll 10375 Employment Security Department 

698 03/31/2014 Payroll 10376 ICMA Retirement Trust 

699 03/31/2014 Payroll 10377 Kansas Payment Center 

700 03/31/2014 Payroll 10378 OPEIU 

701 03/31/2014 Payroll 10379 Prosser, City of 

702 03/31/2014 Payroll 10380 Teamsters Legal Defense Fund 

703 03/31/2014 Payroll 10381 Teamsters Local Union No 839 

704 03/31/2014 Payroll 10382 WADeptL&I 

705 03/31/2014 Payroll 10383 WA Dept Retirement 

706 03/31/2014 Payroll 10384 WA Dept Social & Health Serv 

707 03/31/2014 Payroll 

511 Legislative 

10385 Western Conf. of Teamsters 
Pension Trust 

514 Financial, Recording & Elections 
518 Centralized Services 
521 Law Enforcement 
524 Protective Inspections 
558 Planning & Community Devel 
576 Park Facilities 
580 Non Expeditures 

66! Ge11er~L\Fuil4 · .. ·. 

542 Streets - Maintenance 
543 Streets Admin & Overhead 

:101..:street.F'untf .. 

534 Water Utilities 
539 Irrigation And Reclamation 

403 '\Yater Fl.!nd · 

535 Sewer 

4Q7 -Sewer'Funn 

53 7 Garbage & Solid Waste 

448 Garl;>age Fund 

Time: 16:45:06 Date: 03/25/2014 
Page: 1 

Amount Memo 

42,231.89 941 Deposit For 03/31/2014 -
03/31/2014 

1,519.59 03/31/2014 To 03/31/2014 -
AFLAC Pre-Tax; 03/31/2014 To 
03/31/2014 -AFLAC Post-Tax 

830.00 03/31/2014 To 03/31/2014 -
Vision 

5,231.54 1 ST Quarter 01/0112014 -
03/31/2014 

762.97 03/3112014 To 03/31/2014-
401(R) 

514.50 03/31/2014 To 03/31/2014-
Support Withholding 

557.13 03/31/2014 To 03/31/2014-
Union Dues - OPEIU 

102.00 03/31/2014 To 03/31/2014-
Vehicle Use 

79.64 03/3112014 To 03/31/2014 -
Legal Defense Fund 

1,252.00 03/31/2014 To 03/31/2014-
Union Dues - Teamsters 

14,331.27 1 ST Quarter 01/0l/2014 -
03/31/2014 

27,099 .44 03/3 l/2014 To 03/31/2014 -
PERS 2; 03/31/2014 To 
03/31/2014 -PERS 3; 
03/31/2014 To 03/31/2014 -
LEOFF 2; 03/31/2014 To 
03/31/2014 - DRS - DCP 

41.60 03/31/2014To03/31/2014-
DSHS 

2,170.96 03/3112014 To 03/31/2014 -TPT 

1,056.10 
4,780.66 

911.90 
15,539.86 
2,005.19 

838.43 
1,482.41 

52,679.72 

. 7£\,2<)ll;27 

2,836.38 
332.13 

~,1i68.S) 

5,822.78 
1,473.08 

],295.86 

6,884.90 

6;884.90 

80.99 

80:99 

96,724.53 Payroll; 96,724.53 

8



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

836 04/08/2014 

837 04/08/2014 

838 04/08/2014 

839 04/08/2014 

CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 14:59:17 Date: 04/04/2014 

04/08/2014 To: 04/08/2014 Page: 

Type Acct # Chk # Claimant 

Claims 1 EFT Vend 

001 - 518 88 35 001 - Small Tools & Minor Equipm 

Claims 1 EFT WA Dept Licensing-Cpl 

001 - 586 00 01 000 - Concealed Pistol Lie Disburse 
001 - 5 86 00 01 000 - Concealed Pistol Lie Disbum 
001 - 586 00 01 000 - Concealed Pistol Lie Disbum 

Claims 1 10390 ABC Fire Control 

001 - 576 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

Claims 1 10391 Ahadan Inc 

Amount Memo 

431.00 Pool Point Of Sale SoftlYare 

431.00 Pool Point Of Sale Software 

72.00 Cpl~ Bridges And Walker; 
Concealed Pistol License; 
Concealed Pistol License 

36.00 Cpl - Bridges And Walker 
18.00 Concealed Pistol License 
18.00 Concealed Pistol License 

189.53 Ansul Semi Annual Service 

189 .53 Ansul Semi Annual Service 

3,474.92 Maintenance 3/14-4/13 - Bizhib 
215; Biz Hub 215 
Printer/copier/scanner; 3/24-4/23 
Bh20p Maintenance Contract; 
Front Desk Copier M.aintenance; 
Police Copy Machine Maintenance 

001 - 514 23 48 000 -Repairs & Maintenance 16.25 3/24-4/23 Bh20p Maintenance Contract 
001 - 514 23 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 208.24 Front Desk Copier Maintenance 
001 - 514 23 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 34.31 Police Copy Machine Maintenance 
403 - 534 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 15 .69 Front Desk Copier Maintenance 
407 - 535 80 35 000 - Small Tools & Minor Equipm 3.)40.70 Biz Hub 215 Printer/copier/scanner 
407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 12.18 Maintenance 3/14-4/13 - Bizhib 215 
407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 15.69 Front Desk Copier Maintenance 
448 - 537 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 15.69 Front Desk Copier Maintenance 
403 - 539 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 15.69 Front Desk Copier Maintenance 
102 - 542 90 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 0.48 Front Desk Copier Maintenance 

840 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10392 Ace Hardware - Grandview 26.94 Ball Valve, Hex Bushing 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

841 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10393 Anchor Qea 

001 - 558 60 41 000 - Professional Services 

842 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10394 Aop Technologies 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

843 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10395 Arrow Construction 

102 -542 30 31 102-0ffice & Operating Supplies 
102 - 542 30 31 102 - Office & Operating Supplies 

844 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10396 Autozone 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

845 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10397 Badger Meter inc 

403 - 534 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

846 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10398 Bdi 

448 - 537 80 47 000 - Public Utility Services 

847 04/08/2014 Claims l 10399 Steven Becken 

001 - 511 60 43 000 - Travel 

26.94 Ball Valve. Hex Bushing 

690.00 Shoreline Master Program 

690.00 Shoreline Master Program 

24.92 0-ring, Nitril, 70 Durometer 

24.92 0-ring, Nitril. 70 Durometer 

11~387.48 Road Saver 211, Crack Seal 
Material 

545.70 Road Saver 211, Crack Seal Material 
10,841.78 Road Saver 211, Crack Seal Material 

35,24 Rotella 

35.24 Rotella 

974.70 Trimble Ranger W/Orion 

974.70 Trimble RangerW/Orion 

65,459.87 Garbage Billing-March 

65.459.87 Garbage Billing-March 

315.62 Council Travel 

315.62 Council Travel 

848 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10400 Benton Clean Air Authority 85.00 Special Burn Permit 

102 - 542 70 49 000 - Total Other Services & Charg 85.00 Special Burn Permit 

849 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10401 Benton Co Prosecutor's Off 266. 76 J{ids Haven-1st Qter 2014 

001 -5212051 000-Intergov'tProfessional Servic 266.76 Kids Haven-1st Qter 2014 

850 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10402 Benton Co Treas Office 4.433. 70 Benton Co Dist Court & Office Of 
, Public Defense 

9



CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 14:59:17 Date: 04/04/2014 City Of Prosser 

MCAG#: 0205 04/08/2014 To: 04/08/2014 Page: 2 

Trans Date Type Acct# Chk # Claimant 

001 - 512 40 51 000 -lntergov't Professional Servic 

851 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10403 Benton PUD 

102 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utility Services 

852 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10404 Benton Rea 

00 l - 518 88 41 000 - Professional Services 
403 - 534 80 42 000 - Communications 
403 - 534 80 47 000 - Public Utility Services 
102 - 542 63 47 000 -Public Utility Services 
001 - 576 20 42 000 - Communications 

853 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10405 Big D's Construction 

403 - 343 41 00 000 - Water Revenues 

854 04/08/2014 Claims l 10406 Blumenthal 

001 - 521 20 21 000 - Uniforms & Equipment 
001 - 521 20 21 000 - Uniforms & Equipment 
001 - 521 20 21 000 - Uniforms & Equipment 

855 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10407 Boys & Girls Clubs 

001 - 571 22 41 001 - Professional Services 

856 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10408 Burtis Butler 

403 - 343 41 00 000 - Water Revenues 
403 - 343 90 00 000 - Irrigation Fees & Charges 

857 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10409 Cascade Analytical 

407 - 535 80 41 000 Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 

407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 

Amount Memo 

4,433.70 Benton Co Dist Court & Office Of Public 
Defense- Jan 2014 

223.62 Electric Bill-6th St 

223.62 Electric Bill-6th St 

2,091.81 IT Professional Services; Meter 
Reading-Water Tower; Wireless 
Internet; Meter Reading-WCR 

1,190.41 IT Professional Services 
59.95 Wireless lntemet 
93.70 Meter Reading-Water Tower 

667.80 Meter Reading-WCR 
79.95 Wireless Internet 

39 .03 Utility Refund 

-39.03 Utility Refund 

639.08 Sew Emblem, Mens ,Jacket; Sgt. 
Chevron, Black 
Background-Markus; Men's 
Jacket-Spurgeon 

177.02 Sew Emblem, Mens Jacket 
31. 73 Sgt. Chevron, Black Background-Markus 

430.33 Men's Jacket-Spurgeon 

6,250.00 Boys And Girls Club 

6,250.00 Boys And Girls Club 

-3.83 
-7.50 

11.33 Refund inactive customer credit 
balance 

946.71 Fecal Coliform MPN; Fecal MPN 
A-1Media; Fecal MPN A-1 
Con\•ersion; Total Percent Solids, 
Fecal MPN A-1; Kjeldahl Tutal 
Nitrogen; Soluble Salts, Arsenic 
Solid, Cadmium, Lead, Mercury; 
Kjeldahl Total Nit 

84.24 Fecal Coliform MPN 
53.35 Fecal MPN A-lMedia 
53.35 Fecal MPN A-1 Conversion 
53.35 Total Percent Solids, Fecal MPN A-1 
46.29 Kjeldahl Total Nitrogen 

501.92 Soluble Salts, Arsenic Solid, Cadmium, 
Lead, Mercury 

69.97 Kjeldahl Total Nitrogen, Hardness Titration 
84.24 Fecal Coliform MPN Solid 

858 04/08/2014 Claims 1 l 0410 Centurylink Communications 
Inc 

155.82 Longdistance Telephone- Bill 

859 04/08/2014 

001 - 518 31 42 000 - Communications 
403 - 534 80 42 000 - Communications 
407 - 535 80 42 000 - Communications 
448 - 537 80 42 000 - Communications 
403 - 539 20 42 000 - Communications 
102 - 542 90 42 000 - Communications 
102 - 543 30 42 J 02 - Communication 

Claims 1 10411 Chervenell Construction 

448 - 343 71 00 000 - Garbage Service Charges 
448 - 343 72 00 000 - Refuse Tax Collection 

93.71 Longdistance Telephone Bill 
13.70 Longdistance Telephone Bill 
11.90 Longdistance Telephone Bill 
9.10 Longdistance Telephone Bill 
9. J 0 Longdistance Telephone Bill 
9 .21 Longdistance Telephone Bill 
9.10 Longdistance Telephone Bill 

58.83 Temp Dun1pster Utility Refund 

-49. 77 Temp Dumpster Utility Refund 
-2.85 Temp Dumpster Utility Refund 10



CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 14:59:17 Date: 04/04/2014 City Of Prosser 

MCAG#: 0205 04/08/2014 To: 04/08/2014 Page: 3 

Trans Date Type Acct # Chk # Claimant 

448 - 343 74 00 000 -Administrative Fee 

860 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10412 Code Publishing Co 

001 - 514 30 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 514 30 41 000- Professional Services 
403 - 534 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
403 - 534 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
448 - 537 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
448 - 537 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
403 - 539 20 41 000 - Professional Services 
403 - 539 20 41 000 - Professional Services 
102 - 542 90 41 000 - Professional Services 
102 - 542 90 41 000 - Professional Services 

861 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10413 Cook's True Value 

00 l - 518 31 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
00 l - 518 31 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 521 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
00 l - 521 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 539 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

403 - 539 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
102 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
102 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 558 60 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 5 5 8 60 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 20 31 000 -Office & Operating Supplies 

001 - 576 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 -576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

862 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10414 DB Secure Shred 

001 - 514 30 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 521 20 41 000 - Professional Services 

863 04/08/2014 Claims l 10415 Dell Marketing Lp 

001 - 518 88 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

Amonnt Memo 

-6.21 Temp Dumpster Utility Refund 

500. 78 PMC Supplement Updates; PMC: 
Electronic Update 

244.10 PMC Supplement Updates 
56.35 
32.55 PMC Supplement Updates 

7.52 
32.55 PMC Supplement Updates 

7.52 
32.53 PMC Supplement Updates 

7.52 
32.55 PMC Supplement Updates 

7.52 
32.55 PMC Supplement Updates 

7.52 

665. 70 Sand Roll, I\1.PT Adapter, Plumb 
Solder; CPVC Cen1ent, Coupling 
WO Stop, 90 Deg Elbow; Coupling, 
Full Union; 90 Deg Str Elbow; 
Fasteners; Key Cutting; Linesman 
Plier, Lap Joint Plier; Return Pipe 
Tap; Boi 

14.60 7PC MET HEX KEY SET- 2 
10.82 6V Floating Lantern 
4.65 I /4 Plug 

17.32 4pk 23W T2 SW Bulb 
1.61 Key Cutting 

-27.06 Return Pipe Tap 
75.16 Boil Drain, BRS Nipple, 90 Deg Elbow 

6.04 BRS Nipple, Blk Plug 
61.87 Concrete Mix, Hitch Ball, Receiver Pin/Clip 
56.29 Linesman Plier, Lap Joint Plier 
15 .14 Pere Drill Bit 
8.43 Aero Lock farnc, Lock Ease Fluid 

79.52 Pipe Wrench, Key Cutting 
55.49 Cop Tee, CMP Union, FPT Adapter, COP 

Tube 
8.11 5/8" CMPFULL UNION 
1.67 Fasteners 

19.48 MM 6PC SCREWDRIVER SET 
41.67 Engineer Hammer, Econ Safety Glasses 
19.48 Pigskin LTHR Gloves 
15. 78 Sand Roll, MPT Adapter, Plumb Solder 
16.61 CPVC Cement, Coupling WO Stop. 90 Deg 

Elbow 
21.81 Coupling, Full Union 

9 .19 90 Deg Str Elbow 
6.58 1/4 MPT Adapter, 1/4 FPT Bushing 
0.52 Fasteners - 4 

77.43 9V Alk Battery, Channel Lock Plier 
16.67 Solenoid Operator Kit 
30.82 PVC CMP Coupling, Elec In-Line Valve 

93.52 On Site Bin Service 

70 .14 On Site Bin Service 
23.38 On Site Bin Service 

11.90 Flash Storage Device 

11.90 Flash Storage Drive 11



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

CHECK REGISTER 

04/08/2014 To: 04/08/2014 

Acct# Chk # Claimant 

Time: 14:59:17 Date: 04/04/2014 
Page: 4 

A1nount Men10 

864 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10416 Denchel's Ford Country 174.04 Works Fuel Saver Package; Fuel 
Saver Package; Fuel Saver 
Package; Fuel Saver Package; Fuel 
Saver Package 

001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 34.32 Works Fuel Saver Package 
001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 35.09 Fuel Saver Package 
001 - 5212048 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 37.37 Fuel Saver Package 
001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 33.63 Fuel Saver Package 
001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 33.63 Fuel Saver Package 

865 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10417 Eastern Wa Finance Officers 240.00 EWFOADues, Spring Meeting; 

001 - 514 23 49 000 - Miscellaneous 
00 l - 514 23 49 000 - Miscellaneous 
001 - 514 23 49 000 - Miscellaneous 

866 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10418 Jillian Eichler 

001 - 342 11 00 000 - Fingerprinting Fees 

867 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10419 Robert Elder 

001-5116043000-Travel 

EWFOA Dues, Spring Meeting; 
EWFOA Dues, Spring Meeting 

80.00 EWFOA Dues, Spring Meeting 
80.00 EWFOA Dues, Spring Meeting 
80.00 EWFOA Dues, Spring Meeting 

30.00 Fingerprint Card Refund 

-30.00 Fingerprint Card Refund 

31.92 Mileage - SWAC 2126 

31.92 Mileage - SWAC 2/26 

868 04/08/2014 Claims 1 l 0420 Environment Resource Assoc 1,039.66 Coliforms, DMR-QA J\.1in)-Set#4 
QC Partner 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 1,039.66 Colifom1s, DMR-QA Mini-Setll4 QC 
Partner 

869 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10421 Galls, An Aramark Co LLC 74.40 Dynamed Mini Medic Bag 

001 - 5212031 000- Office & Operating Supplies 74.40 Dyuamed Mini Medic Bag 

870 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10422 Glock Professional Inc 195.00 Armorer's Course 

001 - 521 20 49 000 - Miscellaneous 195.00 Armorer's Course 

871 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10423 Grainger Inc 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
I 02 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

872 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10424 HD Fowler, Co 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

873 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10425 The Janitor's Closet 

309. 72 High Pressure Sodium Lamp; 
Disposable Gloves; Incadescent 
Light Bulbs 

88.04 Disposable Gloves 
199. 71 High Pressure Sodium Lamp 
21.97 incadescent Light Bulbs 

899.47 Chain Wheel Operator; Pressure 
Gauge 1/2 NPT Lower; 2 Pressure 
Gauge 1/2 NPT Lower 

417 .71 Chain Wheel Operator 
321.17 Pressure Gauge 1/2 NPT Lower 
160. 5 9 2 Pressure Gauge 112 NPT Lower 

639.60 Toilet Paper, Nitrile Glvoes, 
Hypiue Cleaner; Wave Urinal Scrn 
Orange 

001 - 576 80 3 l 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 584.69 Toilet Paper, Nitrile Glvoes, Hypine Cleaner 
001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 54.91 Wave Urinal Scm Orange 

874 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10426 Language Testing International 70.00 Bilingual Testing 

001 - 514 23 49 000 -Miscellaneous 70.00 Bilingual Testing 

875 04/08/2014 Claims l 10427 Leaf 

001 - 514 23 4 5 000 - Operating Rentals & Leases 13 6. 05 

876 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10428 Lourdes Occupational Health 

001 - 5212041 000 - Professional Services 258.00 

877 04/08/2014 Claims 10429 John Markus 

136.05 PD Copy Machine Lease 

258.00 Physical Exam-Spurgeon 

28.00 Criminal Justice Blue Courage 
Training 

001 - 5212043 000 -Travel 28.00 Criminal Justice Blue Courage Training 12



CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 14:59: 17 Date: City Of Prosser 

MCAG#: 0205 04/08/2014 To: 04/08/2014 Page: 
04/04/2014 

5 

Trans Date 

878 04/08/2014 

879 04/08/2014 

880 04/08/2014 

881 04/08/2014 

882 04/08/2014 

Type Acct # Chk # Claimant 

Claims l 10430 Regina Mauras 

001 - 514 23 49 000 - Miscellaneous 

Claims 1 10431 Mid-Columbia Library 

001 - 572 20 51 000 - Intergov't Professional Servic 

Claims 1 10432 Moon Security 

00 J - 52 J 20 41 000 - Professional Services 

Claims 1 10433 Motion Industries 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

Claims l 10434 Office Depot 

001 - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 5212031 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 521 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

883 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10435 Outwest Pet Rescue 

001 - 5212041 000 - Professional Services 

884 04/08/2014 Claims l 10436 Oxarc 

885 0410812014 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

Claims 1 10437 Platt Electric Company 

102 -542 63 31 000- Office & Operating Supplies 

An1ount Memo 

305.08 CPE-ALPCA 

305.08 CPE-ALPCA 

14,869.91 I\1.id-Columbia Library 

14,869.91 Mid-Columbia Library Services 

54.95 Basic Commercial Monitoring 

54.95 Basic Commercial Monitoring 

45.40 Rod Bearing Seal Viton 

45 .40 Rod Bearing Seal Viton 

971.93 6 Chairs Black Vinyl; Laminate 
Rcct Conference Table; Printer 
Ink, Envelope, USB Drive; Printer 
Ink 

64.4 7 Printer Ink, Envelope, USB Drive 
51.97 Printer Ink 

443.96 6 Chairs Black Vinyl 
411.53 Laminate Reel Conference Table 

400.00 Animal Control Services 

400.00 Animal Control Services 

1,846.62 OX)'gen; Sodium Hypocholrite 
12.5°/o Bulk 

1,824.85 Sodium Hypocholrite 12.5% Bulk 
21.77 Oxygen 

56.42 ADV 71a8J72-00ld 1-!Sw Quad 
lips Ballast 

56.42 ADV 7la8172-00ld l-15wQuad Bps 
Ballast 

886 0410812014 Claims 1 I 0438 Pocketinet Communications 398.00 Wide Are Network, Dedicated 3 
Mbps 

001 - 518 88 42 000 - Communications 398.00 

887 04108/2014 Claims I l 0439 Prosser Economic Development 
A 

3.583.33 Grant \Vriter Services, PEDA 
- Services 

001 - 558 70 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 558 70 41 000 - Professional Services 

888 04/08/2014 Claims l 10440 Prosser Fire Dist No 3 

001 - 522 10 51 000- lntergov't Professional Srvc-F 

889 0410812014 Claims l 10441 Prosser Napa 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 539 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 539 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

890 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10442 Prosser Rentals 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

891 0410812014 Claims I 10443 Prosser, City Of 

001 - 518 31 47 000 - Public Utility Services 
403 - 534 80 47 000 - Public Utility Services 
407 - 535 80 47 000 - Public Utility Services 
102 - 542 90 47 000 - Public Utiiity Services 
001 - 569 21 47 000 - Public Utility Services 

2,166.66 PEDA: Contract For Services 
1,416.67 Grant Wiiter Services 

26,600.00 !PS-March 2014 

26,600.00 Intergovernmental Professional Services 

85.41 Extractor 1/2 & 9/16; Spark 
Plug-Lawn & Garden; IND 
HI-PWR Ii V-BELT- 2 

2.62 Extractor 112 & 9/16 
2.63 Extractor 1/2 & 9/16 

77.63 IND Hl-PWR Ii V-BELT - 2 
2.53 Spark Plug-Lawn & Garden 

17 .06 Propane 

17. 06 Propane 

13,551.34 March Utility Statements - \VSGI 

504.72 March Utility Statements - WSGI 
1,015.77 March Utility Statements - WSGI 
8,222.61 March Utility Statements - WSGI 
1,315 .90 March Utility Statements - WSGI 

498.71 March Utility Statements - WSGl 

13



CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 14:59:17 Date: 04/04/2014 City Of Prosser 

MCAG#: 0205 04/08/2014 To: 04/08/20 J 4 Page: 6 

Trans Date Type Acct# Chk # Claimant 

892 

893 

894 

895 

896 

897 

898 

001 - 576 20 47 000 - Public Utility Services 
001 - 576 80 47 000 - Public Utility Services 

04/08/2014 Claims 1 10444 Rainwater Water Co 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

04/08/2014 Claims J 10445 City Of Richland 

001 - 5212051 000 - lntergov't Professional Servic 
001 - 522 21 51 000 - lntergovnmt Professional Sen 

04/08/2014 Claims l 10446 Safety Kleen Co 

403 - 534 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
403 - 539 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
102 - 542 90 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 576 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

04/08/2014 Claims 1 10447 Smartsign 

001 - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

04/08/2014 Claims 1 10448 Staples Advantage 

04/08/2014 

04/08/2014 

001 - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

Claims 1 10449 Tamara Stice 

403 - 343 41 00 000 - Water Revenues 
407 - 343 60 00 000 - Sewer Revenues 
448 - 343 71 00 000 - Garbage Service Charges 
448 - 343 72 00 000 - Refuse Tax Collection 
448 - 343 73 00 000 - B&O Tax Collection 
448 - 343 74 00 000 -Administrative Fee 
403 - 343 90 00 000 - Irrigation Fees & Charges 

Claims 1 10450 The Markets LLC 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

899 04/08/2014 Claims l 10451 The Print Guys Inc 

001 - 521 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

900 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10452 The Result Group 

001 - 521 20 49 000 - Miscellaneous 
001 - 52 l 20 49 000 - Miscellaneous 

901 04108/2014 Claims 1 10453 Tolman Electric 

403 - 534 80 41 000 - Professional Services 

Amount Memo 

1,192.30 March Utility Statements - WSG! 
801.33 March Utility Statements - WSGI 

24.00 \Vater; \\later 

18.00 Water 
6.00 Water 

27,992.75 33 Radios-10 800 MH.Z Usage Fee; 
2nd Quarterly Dispatch Servicei; 

4,677.75 33 Radios-10 800 MHZ Usage Fee 
23,315.00 2nd Quarterly Dispatch Services 

137 .60 Mdl 14 With Prm Solvent 

34.40 Mdl 14 With Prm Solvent 
34.40 Md! 14 With Prm Solvent 
34.40 Md! 14 With Prm Solvent 
34.40 Md! 14 With Prm Solvent 

393.87 

393.87 Metal Asset Tags 

79.38 .7mm Ink Pens; AAA Batteries; 
10/47 8 Multi Pkt Ridgid llulder 

79.38 .7mmlnkPens;AAABatteries; 10/47 8 
Multi Pkt Ridgid Holder 

16.86 Utility Refund 

-7.46 Utility Refund 
-5.23 Utility Refund 
-1. 84 Utility Refund 
-0.08 Utility Refund 
-0.02 Utility Refund 
-0.22 Utility Refund 
-2.01 Utility Refund 

26.41 Mountain Mist Water; Bleach 

16.68 Mountain Mist Water 
9.73 Bleach 

49.15 Business Cards~Police Dept 

49.15 Business Cards-Police Dept 

1,000.00 Sergeant~ Academy-.i\-iontelongo; 
Sergeants Academy~Markus 

500.00 Sergeants Academy-Montelongo 
500.00 Sergeants Academy-Markus 

341.15 Service Call To Well #6 

341.15 Service Call To Well #6 

902 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10454 Total Energy Management 831.09 Painted Hills Booster; Trouble 
Shoot Radio Comn1s; Installed New 
Antenna Coax 

403 - 534 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

903 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10455 Uline 

00 I - 521 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

904 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10456 Valley Pipe Co 

001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

831.09 Painted Hills Booster; Trouble Shoot Radio 
Comms; Installed New Antenna Coax 

61.99 Quadruple Wire Glove Dispenser 

61.99 Quadruple Wire Glove Dispenser 

1,018.51 PGP, RB Maxi Paw. RB!800 

1,018.51 PGP, RB Maxi Paw, RB1800 

14



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

CHECK REGISTER 

0410812014 To: 04/08/2014 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

Time: 14:59: 17 Date: 
Page: 

Amount Memo 

0410412014 
7 

905 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10457 Valley Publishing Co Inc 543.09 Ord Summaries 2874-2875; 
Summer Staff; Notice: 

00 l - 514 30 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 514 30 41 000-Professional Services 

001 - 514 30 41 000 -Professional Services 
001 - 514 30 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 576 20 41 001 - Professional Services 
001 - 576 20 41 001 - Professional Services 

RFP-Concession Pool; Public 
Hearing Notice-Nomadic Vendor 
Ordinance; Notice Of Complete 
Application-DNS; Notice 
Ordinance 14-2876-14-2878 

31.50 Ord Summaries 2874-2875 
33.00 Public Hearing Notice-Nomadic Vendor 

Ordinance 
87.00 Notice Of Complete Application-DNS 
51.00 Notice Ordinance 14-2876-14-2878 

202.59 Summer Staff 
l 38.00 Notice: RFP-Concession Pool 

906 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10458 WA Assoc Code Enforcement 40.00 2014 Membership Dues 

001 - 524 20 49 000 - Miscellaneous 40.00 2014 Membership Dues 

907 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10459 WA Dept Transportation Sc 845.22 Signal Maintenance WCR & North 
River; Signal Maintenance WCR 
& 6th St 

102 - 542 64 51 000 - lntergov't Professional Servic 255.72 Signal Maintenance WCR & North River 
102 - 542 64 51 000 - Intergov't Professional Servic 589.50 Signal Maintenance WCR & 6th St 

908 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10460 WA Municipal Clerks Assoc 75.00 2014 Membership 

001-51430 49 000 - Miscellaneous 75.00 2014 Membership 

909 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10461 WA Patrol Budget & Fiscal 
Srvc 

534.00 Access User Fee 

001 - 521 20 51 000 - Intergov't Professional Servic 534.00 Access User Fee 

910 04/08/2014 Claims 1 10462 WA State Leoffl Education 250.00 WSLEA20!4 Confrcncc 
As so 

001 - 5116049 000 -Miscellaneous 250.00 WSLEA 2014 Confrence 

911 04/08/2014 Claims l 10463 Washington State University 1,693.40 Medical C"'e-Bosco 

001 - 521 20 41 000 - Professional Services 1,693.40 Medical Care-Bosco 

912 04/08/2014 

913 04/08/2014 

Claims I 10464 Water Env Federation 

407 - 535 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 
407 - 535 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 

Claims 1 10465 The Wesley Group 

001 - 518 l 0 41 000 - Professional Services 

914 04/08/2014 Claims l 10466 Winn-911 Software 

403 - 534 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

340 Charges For Goods & Services 
511 Legislative 
512 Judical 
514 Financial, Recording & Elections 
518 Centralized Services 
52 l Law Enforcement 
522 Contracted Services 
524 Protective Inspections 
558 Planning & Community Devel 
569 Senior Center 
571 Education & Recreation 
572 Libraries 
576 Park Facilities 

382.00 WEA Membership Dues 2014; 
WEAMen1bership Dues 2014 

191.00 WEA Membership Dues 2014 
191.00 WEA Membership Dues 2014 

1,500.00 Labor Relations Consultation 

1.500 .00 Labor Relations Consultation 

395.00 Annual Renewal Of Software 
MaintAnd Support For \Vin-911 

395.00 Annual Renewal Of Software Maint And 
Support For Win-911 

30.00 
597.54 

4,433.70 
2,247.71 
4,155.16 

11.007.36 
49,915.00 

40.00 
4,334.48 

498.71 
6,250.00 

14,869.91 
4,516.12 

15



City Of Prosser 
MCAG #: 0205 

Trans Date 

CHECK REGISTER 

04/08/2014 To: 04/08/2014 

Type Acct # Chk # Claimant 

580 Non Expeditures 

@OJ"General :fund 

542 Streets - Maintenance 
543 Streets Admin & Overhead 

102'.Streetlfll!\d 

340 Charges For Goods & Services 
534 Water Utilities 
539 lrrigationAnd Reclamation 

403 Wafotifuncl 

340 Charges For Goods & Services 
535 Sewer 

40.7,:Sewer Eu11d 

340 Charges For Goods & Services 
53 7 Garbage & Solid Waste 

i148Garl>~geEund 

* Transaction Has Mixed Revenue And Expense Accounts 

Signature 

Time: 14:59: 17 Date: 

Amount Me1no 

noo 
'102,967:69 

l4,886A6 
9.10 

'14,:89556 

59.83 
6,728.70 

243.12 

7,Q3L(i5 

5.23 
14,211.76 

14;216'99 

60.99 
65,524.71 

. 65,;'?85.70 

Page: 

----- Claims: 
204,697.59 

Date 

04/04/2014 
8 

204,697.59 

16



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Accept Monthly Report by Meeting Date: 
Prosser Economic Development April 8, 2014 
Association for the month of March 2014 Regular Meeting 
and authorize payment for those services 
in the amount of $2, 166.66 and authorize 
payment in the amount of $1,416.67 for 
Grant Writer Services. 

I 

DeQartment: I Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Finance I Regina Mauras Toni Yost (509) 786-2332 

I 

Cost of ProQosal: Account Number: 
$3,583.33 001-558-519-70-41 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
$42,000.00 General Fund-

Professional 
Services 

Reviewed by Finance De~artment: 

NA-
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Invoice Number 2136 for March 2014 contracted service 
2 PEDAM thl R rtf F b 2014 on y epo or e ruary 

Summary Statement: 

Check has been reviewed and approved by department heads, the Finance Director, and 
Mayor as necessary. Check no. 10439 has been generated for Council approval. 

Consistent with or Com12arison to: 
City's policy to pay bills in a timely manner. 

Recommended Citv Council Action/Suggested Motion: 
Accept Monthly Report by Prosser Economic Development Association for the month of 
March 2014 and authorize payment for those services in the amount of $2, 166.66 and 
authorize payment in the amount of $1,416.67 for Grant Writer Services 

Reviewed by DeQartment [ Reviewed by Citv Attorney: AQ[!roved by Mayor: 
Director: 

fW--- I 
N/A 

I f\OL,-I 

Date: Date: Date: 
Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

I 

I Apnl 4, 2014 

17



Prosser EDA 
1230 Bennett Avenue 
PROSSER, WA 99350 

BILL TO 

CITY OF PROSSER 
601 7th Street 
PROSSER WA 99350 

DESCRIPTION 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES -Mareh 2014 
GRANT WRITER AGREEMENT- Mareh 2014 

I 

I 

Invoice 

DATE INVOICE# 

3/31/2014 2136 

AMOUNT 

2,166.66 
1,416.67 

Total $3,583.33 

18



Prosser Economic Development Association 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

February 13, 2014 

Attendees: Dyann Horton, Bill Jenkin, Bob Stevens, Deb Heintz, Dianne Torres, Deb Brumley, 
Jane Hagarty, Scott Pontin, Josh Mott, Tyson Jones - Not enough for a quorum. 

Absent: Dick Poteet, Michelle Moyer, Jennifer Ely, Shon Small, Brian Newhouse, Julie 
Petersen, Jeff Andrews, Troy Berglund, Jenny Sparks and Scott Wingert. 

Business: 
No approvals were made with only 9 present (of the 10 needed) to make a quorum. 
Members reviewed and signed up for Prosser EDA committees they would like to serve on. 
Board member's confidentiality agreements were signed, which Jane explained why they were a 
necessity. 

Introduction of New Board Members 

Approval of Minutes: Reviewed, no questions or corrections 

Financial Report: Reviewed, no questions or corrections 

Director Report: Deb anticipates being housed in the Clore Center by Friday, February 14, 
2014. All contracts and historical documents will be scanned so storage will not be an issue. 

Deb pointed out that Grant Writing in Prosser was supported by funding partners: Hospital, City 
and Port. This program has brought in $16.08 for every $1 invested. 

The annual meeting will be on April 7th this year, with more details coming from the organization 
committee in the near future. Desmond O'Rourke, an economist previously with Washington 
State University, currently with his own consulting firm, will be the speaker. 

Clore Center 

Caprtal campaign efforts were in full force for the Center. In January, there has been an 
estimated100 individuals scheduled for touring appointments and requested to donate. To date, 
$130,000 has been received towards the $300,000 goal. Several meetings with the Port of 
Benton were held to discuss final construction costs. Contacted Viking to order discounted wine 
cooler that was missing in the original construction bid. Working with WSDOT for 1-82 signage, 
filled out application, waiting further instructions. Acting as board president, while Bob Stevens. 
was out of the country, worked closely with Abbey on a variety of projects, as well as assisting 
with agenda and board packet items. Chamber awards banquet was held in the banquet space 
and was well received by the community. 

19



Benton PUD 

Prosser EDA was requested to participate in Benton PUD's Stakeholder Panel Workshops. 
These workshops flush out a variety of components that can impact rate strategy development 
and implementation. 

Grant Writer Program 

Year end review was held on January 15th with funding partners. The E-Civis program 
purchased for 2014 has been installed. Sue is providing employee training on each of the units. 
Contracted time vs. actual time was slightly less this year. This is only the second time in 8 
years this has happened. Six of the years, more hours were spent on grant writing than 
contracted time. Results for 2013 were $16.08 has been returned to the community for every 
$1 invested into the program. Thanks goes to funding partners: Port of Benton, PMH Medical 
Center and City of Prosser for their involvement and support. 

Prosser EDA Office Move 

Considerable amounts of time have been spent cleaning out years of paperwork and files in 
preparation of moving the Prosser EDA office to the Clore Center. The goal is to complete this 
move by the end of February. A meeting was held with Depot, Inc. to set the rents of Chamber, 
HDPA and Prosser Wine & Food, as well as relinquish Prosser EDA stocks back to Depot, Inc. 
The goal is to anticipate expenses while keeping rents low for the non-profits. 

Committee Reports: 
None were presented 

Board Reports: 
Scott - who is working on fundraising for the Clore Center, is planning a demo class presented 
by Reidel on glass making. 

Jane - Port will be doing some things for the Clore Center, such as a water softener, extra 
wall/divider, signage and split rails. Removal of the trees will be provided by the orchardists. 
The $10,000 landscaping planned for behind the building will be used for laying rock, rather 
than grass. A monument sign, similar to the Prosser signs, will be constructed and placed for 
signage. 
Revision of the irrigation system will wait due to some problems with SVID. 

Josh -some broken fire sprinkler heads caused damage to 8 rooms in the hotel. 

Tyson - Visited Chicago, which was very cold - he stated food processing is moving right along 
- in and out. 

Dyann - A wage and benefit survey was recently completed and will be available for Prosser 
EDA to review soon. 

20



Deb Brumley- new to the board, is very happy to be a Prosser EDA member representing the 
City. 

Bill - very glad that the school levy passed, 69.4 %, fantastic. Now the school board will start to 
work on the bond. The school board went to Olympia to talk with legislation about the McClary 
Act, regarding school funding. Legislation is now fighting with the courts claiming separation of 
power. The schools are asking the legislation for no more changes until they get caught up with 
the changes already implemented. Bill also mentioned the UGN Chair Drive is Dave Martin and 
the new UGN President is 
Pat Sullivan. 

Meeting Adjourned 

Program: 
Max Benitz, co-chair of the Yakima Basin Storage Alliance (YBSA), started off the program 
addressing the water storage issue and the importance of understanding the dynamics. YBSA's 
Integrated Plan Review has seven elements: 
Fish Passage 
Surface Storage 
Structural Operations 
Ground Water Storage 
Fish Habitat 
Water Conservation 
Water Marketing 
If we have no water storage in place, water will need to come from some place, most likely 
junior water rights districts. Max stated to ask for $5-6 billion and miss the mark on a long term 
water project would not be responsible; a thorough review is needed. Prosser EDA board 
agreed to write a letter of support 

David Giles, Prosser Police Chief was the next speaker. He started with the Prosser Police 
Department in March, 2013 and comes with 40 years of law enforcement background. 
The Prosser police department currently has 12 officers (3 sergeants and 8 officers), 1 FT clerk 
and 1 PT clerk. They keep 2 cars patrolling the street and sometimes a 3rd (but not often) to 
make their presence visible to the citizens. Of the 12 officers, specialty trained personnel 
consist of: 1 gang enforcement officer, 1 crime free rental officer and 1 canine officer. Prosser 
does not have a lot of gang activity compared with neighboring towns. If the officers see activity 
that warrants attention, they will address it Prosser citizens are great for keeping watch and 
reporting any unusual or suspicious activity. Each officer is required to obtain 20 hours of annual 
training. Prosser is listed as the 33rct safest city in Washington, Connell was number one. If 
officers spot graffiti, they have kits they'll use to try and remove the damage. If unsuccessful, the 
City will be called in to remove the remaining graffiti. The officers work with the schools to help 
prepare for various scenarios, like shootings or unwelcomed guest removals. The Benton 
County Sheriff officers also support the Prosser Police officers when needed. 

21



In the near future a Benton County Criminal Justice Sales Tax for .30 increase will be ran on the 
ballot. This will help at the local level to fund technology, a full time clerk and an officer for the 
schools. 

There was 226 burglar alarms activated in 2013 which takes 2 patrol cars to respond and all 
were false. 
The city is in the process of charging a fee for false alarms which would allow for 3 free 
responses in a 90 day period. 

The 51 units of the Catholic Charity housing project should not increase police activity based on 
the Sunnyside units and its management. 

The rest stop, which is under the jurisdiction of the Washington State Patrol, is being patrolled 
by the Prosser Police due to a lack of state patrol cars. 

22



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
. Agenda Title: Approve the USDA Outlay Meeting Date: 
I Report and Draw Request No. 29 in an 1· April 8, 2014 . 
i amount of $15,435.78, for costs Regular Meeting 
' associated with the Northwest Prosser 

Water and Sewer System 
, Improvements Project (Contract 
I Addendum No. 2) and authorize the 
I Mayor to siqn the documents. 

Department: I Director: Con_tact Person: 

I Public Works _J_L_.J_. __ D_a_C_or_s_i --~ __ L __ .J_._ Da Corsi 

Phone Number: 

I

. ~ost of Proposal: 
$15,435.78 

(509) 786-2332 
Account Number: 

! 
i Name and Fund# 
] Water403 

1. Letter from HLA to Mayor Warden, Re: USDA Draw Request No. 29, and dated 
March 24, 2014 

2. Outlay Report and Request for Reimbursement Draw Request Number 29 
3. USDA Form 1924-18 Partial Payment Estimate No. 3 for $8, 780.25 
4. Letter from HLA dated March 17, 2014 Re: Progress Estimate No.3 for $8, 780.25 
5. Itemized Quantities Sheet dated March 4, 2014 for Progress Estimate No. 3 
6. HLA Invoice Number 10024E-032, 3/01/2014 for $4,262.50 
7. HLA Invoice Number 10024C-039, 3/01/2014 for $2,393.03 

Summarv Statement: 

The billed costs or disbursements as shown on the form are in accordance with 
'• the terms of the project and the reimbursement amount of $15,435.78, represents 
I the Federal share due the city of Prosser for the Northwest Prosser Water and 

Sewer Systems Improvements and Reservoir Projects as per Contract 
Addendum No. 2. This project is approximately 92% complete. 

Contract Addendum No. 2 was approved by the City Council September 11, 
1 2012, for the addition of the telemetry system upgrade to the domestic water 
I system and later incorporated as part of the Northwest Prosser Water and Sewer 
! System Improvements Project. j 

ll By a motion and approval, the Council grants the Mayor the authority to sign the I 
documents and by doing so signifies Owner's approval of the USDA OutlayJ 

23



I Report and Request for Reimbursement - Number 29, Northwest Prosser Water I 

I 
and Sewer Systems Improvements and Reservoir Projects, for $15,435.78 from 
USDA Rural Development. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

I EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 
i 

Approve the USDA Outlay Report and Draw Request No. 29 in an amount of . 
$15,435.78, for costs associated with the Northwest Prosser Water and Sewer I 
System Improvements Project (Contract Addendum No. 2) and authorize the 
Mayor to sign the documents. 

Reviewed by Degartmen\ I Reviewed by City Attorney: Aggroved by Mayor: 

14J( ~ (JU~ ~ . 

I Date:b/31}/J' I Date: tf /tllfl Date: 'f-7-/'f 
] Today's Date: ' · Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

I March 31, 2014 
I 

i 
' i i 

24



LA 
Huibregtse, LownanAssociates, Inc. 

Clvil Engineering<· Land Surveying.,. Plannmg 

March 24, 2014 

City of Prosser 
601 Seventh St. 
Prosser, WA 99350 

Attn: Mayor Paul Warden 

Re: City of Prosser 
NORTHWEST PROSSER WATER 
AND SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
HLA Project No.: 10024 
USDA Draw Request No. 29 

Dear Mayor Warden: 

Jeffrey]'. Lournan, PE 
'Theodore '\!/. Pooler, PE 
Michael T'. Batde, PE 
Eric·1: Herzog, Pl.S 

Terry D. Alapewri, PE 
Gene If/. Soule.1, PE 
Timorhy D. Fries, PLS 
Justin L Bellamy, PE 

Srephanie J- R-<y, PE 
Dusrin L Posten, PE 
Srcphen S. Hazzard, PE 
Michael R. Heit, PE 

Enclosed, please find two (2) copies each of USDA Outlay Report Draw Request Number 29 for the 
amount of $15,435.78, which includes HLA costs associated with Contract Addendum No. 2 
(10024T), for your review and approval. 

Please keep the copies marked for the City, and return all remaining original executed copies to 
HLA for processing to USDA Rural Development. Upon USDA approval, USDA will return one 
executed set for your retention. USDA will create a letter to accompany this Outlay Report and send 
both items to Washington Trust Bank for processing the payment to the City of Prosser. 

Please advise if we may answer any questions or provide additional information. 

Ver\ yours, 

\ ·j~I\ 
Justin L.' Bellamy, PE 

JLB/crf 

Enclosures 

Copy: L.J. DaCorsi, City of Prosser 
Caroline Fitzsimmons, HLA 
Correspondence File 

G:\PROJECTS\2010\i0024E\USDA fNFORM.ATION\ORAW ROST 29 - MAR 2014\2014-03-24 CITY USDA DRAW ROST 29 LTR.DOC 

2803 River Road -:. Yakima, WA 98902 .;. (509) 966-7000 ·!< FA.X (509) 965-3800 .;. WW\."l'.hladviLcoin 

25



Cost Sununm-y 

OUT LAY REPORT AND REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT 

Draw Request Number: 
·--·-="'·-······-·· ···· -····-· ··-···'f'YL'~~~.: ............ -···'······ USDA •.&, 

~ fi.urai _,-~ 

29 

f-------· 

EH~~.qr_ 
fulsi~ Service:< 
l.n; ·on Services 

OmWur:tion wt !<ale$ tax 
Schedule A 

Initial Budget 

242,000,00 
_408_,6_09.00 

-!- _,, _______ _ 

Current Budget 29 Pllidt&Dl'l!c 

2.07% 

d1 Un'l'i<;pment I 

I Balance R~malning i % 

5,004.Si 31.44% o.ow.· 
90,0()(LOO o:oo% 
5,000.00 

Con tin 
Total 

_____ .:=l __ '_"_'_'·_'_'°_·'-'~-~~-~u::i~-PR0-Jt~;;~:
1

~~G JBRiAKD~:~~~~s 

USDA RD Loan 
USDA_ RD GJ"llllt 

Total 

··------···===:] 
FUNDS - DIFFERENCE 

J,930,00(1,!}(j 

Date ofOutb Re rt 3/24/2014 
APPROVAi, AND SIGNATURE SECTION 

O\VNER'S APPROVAL: 

DATE 

423,000.00 ---'~'~'~·'~"~"'~'±+-----.-_ .. __ :_±-----~~ 
=~·-·;-~~·-= 

f--'\--'""F""'"'f=1Jli"='T=:"';"'~r--Jlnwi=·..i!lbeoJ>l'l.:Worl"""lhcbom1w~llilOtl:rni1~=.ru.~J11lf(>pria\e,8Ildi;cl:JmfrtoiWlho~goJlle<:forOJ11urrt..,tt:.Thercvf!:wanda~ceQfproj<>:t<m(:!, 
induilinl', oomtruotioo poy e>ti;m,.te.<, by USDA Rw:IJ Devcl"!'W1'ilt do.,; uorn!:W:il. U. lhe=e:t!!c:;,; ufiliell!llQUI!~ tllt Q!l-.llici1ie; shl>Wl!. or ilia\ the ""1rlt bll.I OOeol ~t'd Wld<r 
\be\Clllsoflhea 

USDA RURAL Dl:-YELOPMENT 
~·-- CONCURRENCE: 

MiutiGana~ RDS ialistName DATE 

Psge J 3121/2014 

26



FomiRD 1924-18 

(rev. 6-97) UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGR1CU1TURE CONTRACT NO.: i0024T 

RURAL DEVELOPMENT PARTIAL PAYMENT ESTIWIATE NO. 

FARM SERVICE AGENCY 3 

PARTIAL PAYMENT ESTIMATE 
PAGE 1 of 1 

OWNER; CONTRACTOR: PERIOD OF ESTIMATE 

CITY OF PROSSER Total Ene,.,.,., Manaoement, Inc. FROM 12/02/13 TO 03/04/14 

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY EST!MA.TE 

Agency Approval Amount 1. Origilll.'lf Contract $86,698.37 
No. D•!a Additions Deductions 2. Change Orders $64,057.01 

Change Order No. 1 27-Dec-2013 $3,088.99 3. ReVlsod Con!raci (1+2) $150,755.38 
Change Order No. 2 30-Jan..2014 $67,146.00 

4. Wor\I: Completed $83,609.38 

5. Siored Materials $0.00 
5. Subtotal (4+5) $83,609.38 

7. Rata!nage* $3,860.08 

O. PreiVious Payments $70,969.05 

TOTALS $87,146.00 $3,088.99 9. Amount Due (6-7-8) $8,780.25 

NET CHANGE $67,145.00 S3088J)9 •0etal1ed breakdown attachad 

CONTRACT TIME 

Original (days) Ml 

Revised 5() On SchedUle Yesl-Ne Starting Date 10/07/13 

Remainlmi 13 Projected Complelion 12104113 ~suspended 

CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION ARCHITECT OR ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned certifies that the work has been carefully inspected 

The 1,mdersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of thelr and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the quanttl.ies shown in 

knowledge, information and belief the work covered by this payment thls estimate are correct and the work has been performed in 

estimate has been completed in accordance with the contract accordance with the contract dOC1.Jrnents. 

documents, that all amounts have been paid by the contractor for 
which previous payment estimates was issued and payments received ''\ 
from the owner, and that current payment shown herein ls now due. 

Htjibre0tsc, Louman M.soc .. ,A,rch!tect or Eng:\naer loc. 
Gen tractor Toi""""'"' '°" 

• " • j lb. fl---... By ~ -
.-

1,4 A/~~- ,)j\J \; I 3/a.1/1q By '-;' ·,," 
3- fi'-1'-i Date 

Date ' 

ACCEPTED BY AGENCY 

APPROVED BY OWNER The revlew and acceptance cf this estimate does not attest to the 
correctness of the quantities shown or that the work has been 
performed in accordance with the contract documents< 

°"'" C!;x of Prosser 

By 

By Till& 

Date Date 

j Accord/rig ro tlt11 Papenwrk Reduction Actof1995, no persons are required CO resp!lnd to a col/ectltm af lnformal:ian unt=lt displays a valid OMB Control number. The valid OMS control number 
. fartfils lnformotlona;/lections ls0515.{}f)4:Z. The time required tv complete this l;ifbrmatlon cal/ectlon is esHmated to average 30 minutes per rosponw, fnc/ud/ng the time ferrevlawltl[} 

i 

RD 1924-18 (Rev. 6-+97) 

27



tngmeermg <· Land Surveying<· Planning 

March 17, 2014 

City of Prosser 
601 ?'h Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 

Attn: Accounts Payable 

Re: City of Prosser 
TELEMETRY UPGRADES 
HLA Project No.: 10024T 
Progress Estimate No.: 3 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Jeffrey T. Louman, PE 
11icodorc W. Pookr, PE 
Michael T. 'Barde, PE 
Eric'r PLS 

Terry D. PE 
Gene W. PE 
Tilnorhy D. Fries, PLS 
Jusrln L Bellarny, PE 

Stephanie J. Ray, PE 
Dustin L Posten, PE 

S. F:Li.n:nnt PE 
R. Heir, PE 

Enclosed is Progress Estimate No. 3 for work performed by Total Energy Management, through 
March 4, 2014, in connection with their contract on the above referenced project. The amount 
due the Contractor of $8, 780.25 is net after retainage, as per the contract documents. We have 
received Certified Payrolls through February 28, 2014 from Total Energy Management. We 
recommend this Progress Estimate be considered and approved for payment by the City of 
Prosser. 

Please contact this office if you have questions or if we may furnish additional information. 

Vefyfr~ly yours, 

\ 
\ I ' 

ff ~ ,,A 
i vv \J '\ ,~\-

' ' Justin L/ Bellamy, PE 

JLB/crf 

Enclosures 

copy L.J. DaCorsi, City of Prosser 
Total Energy Management, Inc. 
Steven Sziebert, HLA 
Caroline Fitzsimmons, HLA 
Correspondence File 

G.IPROJECl'S\2010\1002~T-C PR TELEMETRY UPGRADES Total Energy Mogmt\PROGRESS ESTIMATES\PROG EST NO, 31.2013-03-17 PROGRESS EST NO 5 
lTR.rtl 

2803 River Road + Yakima, WA 98902 .... (509) 966-'7000 >!• FA.,X (509) 965-3800 {; w1vw.hlacivil.corn 

28



City of Prosser 
601 Seventh Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 

TO: 

Item 
No. 

1 

Total Energy Management 
i 975 Butler Loop 
Richland, WA 99354 

Oescrintion 

Telemetry Upgrades, Complete 

Unit 

LS 

TELEMETRY UPGRADES 

HLA Project No.: i0024T 

Progress Estimate No.: 3 

Date: March 4, 2014 

·contracc----unii · Estirnate 3 Quantity 
. Qua!:!~.!!l Price Quantity to Date Amount 

1 $52,808.82 6%-, 100%1 
' 

$52,808.82 I 

SUBTOTA:i._ $52,808.82 

ADDIT!VE ALTERNATE BID ITEMS 

2 Additive Alternate No. 1, Add Operator r·r:;r·-;--- $22 602 _0f 15% \ 100o/o $22,602.06 
lnterface to Remote Well Site Control ' 

Additive Alterna~e No. 2, Add Panel Meters to I ~.·-1--· -· $
4 643

_
01

, i00% 
-·-···· 

I 3 100'% $4,643.01 
Remote Wet[I Site Control Panels ' i I ----· 

SUBTOTAL $27,245.07 

CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 

New Radios at Water Plant and Well No. 2/3, : 

I 1-1 
46, 5, 6 and one spare 

LS 1 $7,403.76 100% 100o/o;. $7,403.76 
·····- ... .• 

1-2 Delete Wei! No. 4 Labor LS 1 ($2, 153.00) 100"/e 1000/o ($2.153.00) 

1-3 Delete Well No. 4 Operator Interface : LS 1 ($3.460.00) 100°A'. 100°..<i ($3,460.QO) 
-· 

1-4 Delete Additive Alternate No. 2 LS 1 ($4,643.01) 100°/o 1QQ0/o ($4,643.01 I 

CHANGE ORDER N0.1, SUBTOTAL (S2,852.25) 

CHANGE ORDER NO 2 
... 

Purchase and installation of new 300 HP VFD 1 
.. 

2-1 
at Well No.6. i 

LS 1 $61,500.00 QOfo 0% $0.00 
··---~-

2-2 Freight LS 1 
' 

$500.00 0% 0% $0.00 

CHANGE ORDER NO. 2, SUBTOTAL $0.00 

SUBTOTAL, WORK TO DATE $77,201.64 

PLUS MATERIALS ON HAND $0.00 

SUBTOTAL AMOUNTS $77,201.64 

8.3% STATE SALES TAX $6,407.74 

TOTAL $83,609.38 

LESS TOTAL RETAINAGE $3,860.08 

LESS AMOUNTS PREVIOUSLY PAID $70,969.05 

AMOUNT NOW DUE $8,780.25 

Progress Estimate No. 1 $ _..=:=="-'
Progress Estimate No 2 $ 42,442.94 

Progress Estimate No. 3 $ _,_,_§280.25 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct statement of the work performed under this Contract. 

Contrac:t 
Quanlitv 

100°/o 

100°/o 

100% 

100%1 

100o/o 

100% 

100% 

0% 

Oo/o 

29



L 

City of Prosser 
601 Seventh Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 

Payment is Due within 30 Days of the Date of this Invoice. 

FOR: 

Huibregtse, Louman Associates, Inc. 
2803 River Road 
Yakima, WA 98902 

Invoice number 
Date 

10024E-032 
0310112014 

Project 10024E Prosser - North Prosser 
Water System Improvements 

Professional Engineering Services in connection with design and final plans, specifications and estimate for the North Prosser 
Water System Improvements project, per your request, for services performed February 1 through February 28, 2014. 

Description Contract Percent Prior Total Current 
Amount Comelete Billed Billed Billed 

Phase 1 - Design and Final Plans, Specifications 426,250.00 98.00 413,462.50 417,725.00 4,262.50 

and Estimate (Per Addendum No. 2) 

Total 426,250.00 98.00 413,462.50 417,725.00 4,262.50 

Invoice total $4,262.50 

HUIBREGTSE, LOUMAN ASSOC. INC. 

President 

G: \Office\Bllll NGS\2014\1 0024E .xis 

30



City of Prosser 

601 Seventh St. 
Prosser, WA 99350 

Payment is Due within 30 Days of the Dale of this Invoice. 

FOR: 

Huibregtse, Louman Associates, Inc. 
2803 River Road 

Yakima, WA 98902 

lnvorce number 

Date 

10024C-039 

03/01/2014 

Project 10024C Prosser • North Prosser Water 
System Improvements ~Construction 
Servlt::es 

Professional Engineering Services in connection with the North Prosser Water System Improvements project, services during 
construction, per your rnquest, for services performed February 1 through February 28, 2014. 

Billed 
Hours Rate Amount 

Licensed Professional Engineer 1.50 145.00 217.50 

Senior Engineering Tech 3.00 99.00 297.00 

Engineering Technician 1.50 70.00 105.00 

Cost Billed 
Amount Multiplier Amount 

Conley Engineering, !nc. 1,657.50 1.07 1,773.53 

Phase subtotal 2,393.03 

1 nvoice total 2,393.03 

President 

!nvoice number 10024C-039 

31



10024C Prosser - North Prosser Water 

Contract Amount: 
Total Amount Billed to Date: 
Contract Balance Remaining: 

$458,693.53 
$440,401.40 
$ 28,292.13 

- Construction Services Date 03101/2014 

!nvoil~e number 10024C--039 

32



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approve Progress Meeting Date~ 
Estimate No.1 in the amount of April 8, 2014 
$1,423.50 for work performed by HLA, Regular Meeting 
Inc., through February 28, 2014, for 
preliminary engineering and design on 
the Old Inland Empire Highway 
Improvements Project and authorize 
the Mayor to sign the documents. 

Department: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 

Public Works L.J. Da Corsi L.J. Da Corsi 1509) 786-2332 ·---- ---
Cost of Proposal: Account Number: 

$284,700.00 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 

$285,700 #302 

$247,000 (STPUS) 
38,567 (Local Match) 

, Reviewed by Finance Department: 
! 
~ i 

~--------- ... ----- - -- --
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Local Programs Progress Billing Form - STPUS-B030(001) Progress . . 
Billing No. 1 

2. Invoice 13093E-001 from HLA, Inc., to the City of Prosser in the amount of 
$1423.50, dated March 1, 2014 

I 3. Project Costs To Date Sheet, dated March_1_1_,_2_0_1_4 ______ _ 

) Summary Statement: 

' I HLA, Inc., has performed work through February 28, 2014, in connection with 
' their contract for preliminary engineering and design of the Old Inland Empire 

Highway Improvements Project. The amount due, $1,423.50, must have Council 
approval prior to this invoice being sent to WSDOT for processing and payment 
to HLA, Inc. 

33



City of Prosser 
OLD INLAND EMPIRE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS 

Fed Project No.: STPUS-8030(001) 
HLA Project No.: 13093 

Invoice Project Costs To Date 
Date PE Other 

03/01114 $ 1,423.50 $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ " $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ . $ - $ 

,. $ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ - -"" $ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ 

Total $ 1,423.50 $ - $ 

HlA Contract 1$ 284,700.00 I $ - 1$ 
Contractor I I I 
Contracts Total 

STPUS • 86.5% I $ 246,235.00 I $ . 1$ 
CITY-13.5% 1$ 38,465.00 I $ . I $ 
Budget Total 

STPUS Eligible 
Costs - Design $ 1.423.50 $ - $ 
STPUS Eligible 
Costs - Const $ - $ - $ 

STPUS Fund Balance 

STPUS Fund Detail: 86.5% of $284,665.00 of Consultant Design. 

Contractor - 'Information updated at Bid Opening. 
Other-

CE 

G:IPRQJECTSl2013113093iSTPUS REIMS INFOISTP PROG BILL NO 112014·03·11 PRO.I COST BREAKDOWN 1,xls 

- $ 
- $ 
- $ 
- $ 

- $ 

- $ 
- $ 

- $ 
- $ 
- $ 
- $ 
- $ 

- $ 

- $ 

- $ 
- $ 
- $ 
- $ 
- $ 
- $ 
- $ 

- $ 

- $ 
- $ 
- $ 
- $ 
- $ 
- $ 
- $ 

- [$ 
J$ 

- IS 
- 1$ 

- $ 

- $ 

Contractor P.E. 

--
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-.. 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
--
-
-
-
-
-

-
-

-

-

3/11/2014 

Project Total 
$ 1,423.50 
$ -

$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -

$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ 1,423.50 

$ 284,700.00 
$ -
$ 284,700.00 

$ 246,235.00 
$ 38,465.00 
$ 284,700.00 

$ 1,231.33 

$ -
$ 245,003.67 

34



City of Prosser 

60 l 7th Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Fed Tax ID No.: 91-6001268 
-AgencY-US-e: 

TA-5331 
PE 

10 Consultant 

Total Prelilninary £'ngineering 

RW 

Total Right of Way 

CN 
30 Contract 

CE 
31 Consultant 

Total Construction 

TOT AL PROJECT 

Total 
Eligible 

This Period 

1,423.50 

1,423.50 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,423.50 

Local Programs Progress Billing 

Federal Aid Project: 
Agrce1nent Number: 
Last Supplement: 

STPUS-8030(00 I) 
LA-8286 

Project Title: ()Jd Inland Empire Highway Improve1nents 

2 3 4 5 

Total Pa1iicipation Amount Claimed A1nount 
Eligible Rate This Period Clai1ned 
To Date CollxCol3 Prior Periods 

0.00 
1,423.50 86.5000% 1,231 33 0.00 

1,423.50 1,231.33 0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 86.5000% 0.00 0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 86.5000% 0.00 0.00 
0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

1,423.50 1,231.33 0.00 . 

Progress Bill No: 1 
Final Progress BilPI No I 

Billing Period from: 2/1/2014 
through: 2/28/2014 

6 7 8 

Total Clairned Amount Remaining 
To Date Authorized Federal Funds 

Col 4 -f Col 5 Per Agreement Col 7 - Col 6 

0.00 0.00 
1,231.33 246,235.00 .· 245,003.67 

1,231.33 246,235.00 245,003.67 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 
. 

0.00 
0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

1,231.33 246,235,00 245,003.67 

Submission of this request for payment certifies that in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington and under the conditions of approval for the project identified above, actual costs claimed 
have been incurred and are eligible for the purposes specified; also, that no other claims have been presented to, or payment made by, the State of Washington for those costs clalmed for 
reimbursement 

Mayor 
Signee - Paul Warden Title Date Approved by Regional Local Programs Office Date 

Revised 09/2008 
Return to Regional Local Programs Office 

35



City of Prosser 
601 Seventh St. 
Prosser, WA 99350 

Payment is Due within 30 Days of the Date of this Invoice. 

FOR: 

Huibregtse, Louman Associates, Inc. 

2803 River Road 
Yakima, WA 98902 

Invoice number: 13093E-001 
0310112014 Date: 

Project: 13093E Prosser - Old Inland Empire Highway 
Improvements 

Professional Engineering and Land Surveying Services in connection with the Old Inland Empire Highway Improvements 
project, per your request, for services performed beginning February 1 through February 28, 2014. 

Description Contract Percent Prior Total Current 
Amount Complete Billed Billed Billed 

Design Plans, Specifications and Estimate 284,700.00 0.50 0.00 1,423.50 1,423.50 

Total: 284,700.00 0.50 0.00 1,423.50 1,423.50 

Invoice total 1,423.50 

HUIBREGTSE, LOUMAN ASSOCIATES, INC. 

President 

36



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
, Agenda Title: Approve Drinking Water I IVl-ee~t~in-g~D'-a"'C"te-:-----------1 
[ State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) I April 8, 2014 
! Invoice Voucher Request No, 11 in the 1 Regular Meeting 
Amount of $367,997.67 for the 
Disinfection, Filtration and Source 

] Improvements Project and Author'1ze j 

I the Mayor to Sign the Documents. 

, epartment: I Director: , I 
Public Works L.J. Da Corsi 

' Cost of Proposal: 

Contact Person: 

L.J. Da Corsi 

Estimated Total Project Cost $1,999,800.00 
Amount Due - Contractor $ 617,579.95 
Voucher No.11 Amount $ 367,997.67 

Amount Budgeted: Funding derived through an approved low
interest loan from the Washington State Department of 
Health - Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) 
Reviewed by Finance Department: 

I ~ f ttachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

! Phone Number: 

I 
509 786-2332 

Account Number: 

Name and Fund# I 

~~~r I 

~ 

I, 1. DWSRF Project Status Report 
, 2. WA State Dept. of Commerce Voucher Distribution Form 19-1A for 

I 
$367,997.67 

, 3. DWSRF Labor Standards Certification 
j 4. Letter from HLA to City of Prosser, recommending approval for payment 

by the City of Prosser, dated April 1, 2014 
5. Project Quantities Itemized Spreadsheet, March 21, 2014 
6. Project Costs To Date, April 1, 2014 

~ummarv Statement: 
[ **Please note, this request is for Progress Estimate No. 6 partial amount, due to 
, reaching 90% of the DWSRF Loan. DWSRF holds 10% for closeout of the loan. 

I 
The City will have to cover the remaining balance of the Progress Estimates until (' 

. DWSRF closeout is complete. 

This Agenda Bill is to approve DWSRF Invoice Voucher Request No.11 in the I 
amount of $367,997.67 for construction work to date on this project. Although I 

I 

this voucher is for $367,997.67 to DWSRF, the total amount owed the contractor [ 
for work performed to date is $617,579.95. DWSRF can only pay out j 

~ $367,997.67 because the loan amount has reached 90% and DWSRF holds out 

37



j10%for closeout of the loan. The City is obligated to cover the remaining I 
j balance. I 

'I The City of Prosser applied for and received 2011 Drinking Water State I 
. Revolving Fund (DWSRF) loan monies to make specific improvements to the 
j potable water system. The total amount of monies to be received is $1,999,800. I 
l The improvements include: I 

• Water Treatment Plant Disinfection System - Construct a new system to 
improve safety and performance. 

• Water Treatment Plant Green Sand Pressure Filters - Add two new 0.9 
MGD filters to increase capacity from 5.3 MGD to 7.1 MGD, and add new 
feed pumps to increase efficiency and performance. 

• Backup Power Supplies at Well #4-B and Well #6 - Add new power 
generators to each well in order to maintain water supply to the community 
in the event of a power failure. 

Construction began on September 30, 2013 and the project is approximately 
94% complete. The anticipated completion date is 10/31/14. 

As with standard procedures for other City utility projects funded by state and 
federal agencies, Council must approve the pay voucher requests before the 
funding agency can release any monies. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Approve Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Invoice Voucher 
. Request No. 11 in the Amount of $367,997.67 for the Disinfection, Filtration and i 
j Source Improvements Project and Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Documents. , 

I April 1, 2014 

38



Washington State 

Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

DWSRF PROJECT STATUS REPORT 

This form must be completed each time you submit a reimbursement request. Reimbursement I 
requests will not be processed unless accompanied by a current Project Status Report. __J 

Client Name: I CITY OF PROSSER 

Contract Number: DMll-952-030 

I Project Name: DISINFECTION, FILTRATION AND SOURCE IMPROVEMENTS 

Scheduled Project 
02/16/16 

. Completion Date: 

1) Project Progress 

I Please describe the progress you have made to date on your project's scope of work (see Attachment A 
I in your contract). 
, The City awarded the contract to Rotschy, Inc. Construction began on September 30, 2013 and is 
[ ongoing. Construction is anticipated to be complete by April 4, 2014. The disinfection building 
'! structure is complete and generator pads are prepped at both well sites. Interior piping and equipment 

installation is complete. Final startup and programming is ongoing. 

L ·~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-
94% 

I 
I 

I 

I 

~pproximately, y;hat percentage of the project is complete? L -----~ 

I When do you expe?t the project to be completed (month/day/year)? 10/31/14 

( If the anticipated completion date is different from the one above, what factors led to the change in the 
' completion date? 

Administrative services provided by tile Departn1ent of Commerce 

(360) 725-3150 Fax (360) 586-8440 

39



I 
I 

Washington State 

Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

2) Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) 

Did yoll award any DBE contracts this Quarter? NO 
Total DBE contracted out this Quaiier or Repo1ting Period: $0.0Q 

Type Contract Award Indicate Type of Contractor Name I 

Business Total Date Service I 
., construction 
• supplies 

Contractor Address I 

I 
I • services ' 

===d I Minority Owned Business 
-- • eauipment 

- I 
Women Owned Business I 

! ' 
Small Business in Rural Area i I Small Business Enterprise j 
(SBE) i 

1

- Historically Underutilized I 
Business (HUB) Zone Small 

, B_usiness Concerns 
' Labor Surplus Area Firms 

ILSAFl 
Other Entities Meeting EPA's 
DBE Rule Criteria 

~- -

3) Federal Funds Expenditures 

What is your jurisdiction's fiscal year? January to December 

During the fiscal year, how much has your system expended in (all sources) federal funds? $733.323.28 
(2014) 
(Fiscal year is your fiscal year as deten11ined by your organization) 

Note: Borrowers that expend $500,000 or more in foderal funds (all sources) in their fiscal year mllst 
have an audit conducted in accordance with Office of Management and Budget (OMB) revised Circular 
A-133. The audit must be conducted within nine months of the end of the fiscal year in which the audit 
was "triggered." The applicable federal category for the DWSRF is CFDA 66.468. 

4) Dedicated Repayment Account (Private Systems Only) 

Please enter the current account balance for the repayment account: $0.00 

Administrative services prov'1ded by the Department of Comrrierce 

(360) 725-3150 Fax (360) 586-8440 

i 

I 
! 

I 
! 

40



~ 
WASHINGTON STATE 

DEPAHTl\llENT OF COMMERCE 
A~eHCYNUMBE;R Short Code I, Commerce Contract Number 

VOUCHER DISTRIBUTION 1030 I DM11-952-030 Form 19-1A 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE mGTRLlCTIO~ TO VON(lQR OR CL.AIW.I'" 

CONTRACTS ADMINISTRATION UNIT (CAU) 

PO BOX 42525 Subml! this form lo claim paymool for male rial>, rn"r~han<li\;e or services 

OLYMPIA, WA 9S504·8300 Show complul" dalail for each Item 

VEN.OCR OR CLAIMANT (Warrant I• to be payable to:) 
Vendor'• Certifjeate: I hornby co1itfy under pefjury !11111 the il~rns and totals lisiud herein are 

City of Proi>ser pro par charges for materials, merchandise orsurvleos furnished to the Stale of Washington, ;md 
that all goods furnished and/orservlcos rnndernd have been provided Without dlscrtmina!lon 

601 Seventh Street baeause of "ll'" sex, mari1al s!Mus, rnce, creed, c<>lor, national 01lgln, handica?, ro1igion or 
Prosser · WA , 99350 IVJetnarnera or dis ab lad vaterano sla!Us, 

--
Contact Person Toni Yost By: 

Phone: (509)786-2332 !SIGN IN BLUE INK) 
Email· 1 csJf'"Cl(yOf'2[9,~~~C_()m 
Coniract Period: 03101/14- 04(0"/114 Mnyar 

VOUCHER NUMBER: " (TITLE) (DATE) 

I DESCRIPTION PREVIOUSLY 
AMOUNT THIS IN\IO!CE DATE 

I 
(refer to At1<>chm1mt t of your executed Contrnd) BUDGET 

REQU(STID AW ARO REMAINING 
BALANCE 

LOAN AMOUNT AT CONTRACT EXECUTION $1,999,800.00 
OWSRf Lo.>n Fee $19,800.00 

I 
$19,800.00 $0.00 $1,980,000.00 c--

$1,980,000.00 $1,412,022.33 $367,997.67 O.<i/01114 Servi<:e• During Con•tructlon, Proje~t Ad min. $199,980.00 

' 

-

TOTALSI $1,999,800.00 $1,431,822.33 $3&7,997,P? $199,980.00 

FOR COMMERCE USE ONLY 

Allowable Costs s Reimbursement ; s 

Advance: s Apply to Advance : s 

. · -. <: .-.• .·:·.:·'." };,", > ' ' """ .;:.·. ·< '<"."'.;{/•', 

Match; Year I Dollars J Coding PROGRAM APPROVAL 
DATE 

OOCOATf ! CURREN' OQC. NO r~EFliReNCf DOC NO. Vl:.~OOR Nll~!aOR '1•0 fillfflX 

ACCOU~l ttO_ ASONuMfiER VENDOR MESSAGE 

26000 

'"' TRANS MASTER SUBOSJ 

'"' °' SUSSID AMO\IITT JNVO!CE 

CODE , .... 
'" ACCT 

I I 1--· 
I 

- --
------· 

' I 

I 
sHWAlURI' OF ACCOUNT;N(:; PRl:PARER FOR l'AYMl'NT !°ATE 

WAR~"lANTTOTAL 

-
ACCO\l~TING APPROVAlfOR PA YME!JT IOAT~ 

Revised 214111 A 19-1 a basJc form With advance block 

41



Washington State Department of Commerce 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD 
DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND 

LABOR STANDARDS CERTIFICATION 

City of Prosser 
Legal Name 

DM11-952-030 
Contract Number 

11 ·------
Invoice Voucher Request# 

CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that all certified payrolls for the period supported by the attached invoice voucher 
have been rev·rewed to ensure that all laborers and mechanics are being paid at least the higher 
of the wage rates contained in the applicable federal or state wage decisions for the type of 
work performed. 

Borrowers Signature: --------------------

Print Name: Paul Warden 

Title: Ma or 

Date: 

42



HL 
Huibregtse, LoumanAssociates, !nc. 

Civil Engineering·:· Land Surveying·:· Planning 

April 1, 2014 

City of Prosser 
601 7th Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 

Attn: Accounts Payable 

Re: City of Prosser 

Jeffrey T. Louman, PE 
1heodore W. Pooler, l)E 
Michael T. Battle, PE 
Eric T. Herzog, PLS 

Terry D. AJapereri, PE 
Gene'W, Soules, PE 
Timothy D. Fries, PLS 
Justin L. Bellamy, PE 

DISINFECTION, FILTRATION AND SOURCE IMPROVEMENTS 
HLA Project No.: 1111 OC 
Progress Estimate No.: 6 

To Whom It May Concern: 

SrephanieJ. Ray, PE 
DU~tin L Posten, PE 
Stephen S. Hazzard, PE 
Michael R. Heit, PE 

Enclosed is Progress Estimate No. 6 for work performed by Rotschy, Inc., through March 21, 
2014, in connection with their contract on the above referenced project The amount due the 
Contractor of $617,579.95 is net after retainage, as per the contract documents. We have 
received Certified Payrolls through March 15, 2014 from Rotschy, Inc. We recommend this 
Progress Estimate be considered and approved for payment by the City of Prosser. 

Please contact this office if you have questions or if we may furnish additional information. 

Dustin L Posten, PE 

DLP/crf 

Enclosure 

copy: LJ. DaCorsi, City of Prosser 
Rotschy, Inc. 
Steven Sziebert, HLA 
Archie McPherson, HLA (Email) 
Caroline Fitzsimmons, HLA 
Correspondence File 

G:\PROJECTS\2011\11110C - PR DISINFECT FILT & SOURCE - ROTSCHY, INC\PROGRESS EST!MATES\PROG EST NO 6\2014·03 PROGRESS EST NO 6 L TR.rtf 

2803 River Road .;. Yakima, WA 98902 ·:· (509) 966-7000 •!· FAX (509) 965-3800 .;, VIW"vV.hlacivilco1n 

43



City of Prosser 
601 Seventh Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 

TO: 

Item 
No. 

Rotschy, Inc. 
921 O NE 62nd Avenue 
Vancouver, WA 98665 

Descrlotion 

NEW DISINFECTION BUILDING .. 
1 Mobilization 

2 Clearing and Grubbing 

3 Exlsting Disinfection Facillty Demolition 

4 Building Excavation and Backfill 

5 Site Grading and Drainage, Complete 

6 Crushed Surfacing Base Course 

7 Crushed Surfacing Top Course 

8 HMA Cl. 3/8 In., PG 64-28 

9 
Cement Concrete Sidewalk, 4 ln,, Incl. 
Aggregate Base_ 

10 Disinfection Building, Complete 

11 
Disl[!fection Building Equipment, Piping, 
Fittings, and Valves, Complete 

12 Heating and Ventilation System, Complete 

13 
Disinfection BuiJding Electrical and Control 
System, Complete 

14 Site Piping, Complete 

15 Shoring or Extra Excavation 

16 Chain Unk Security Fencing 

17 Bollard 

18 Record Drawing (Minimum Bid $3,000) 

19 O&M Manuals (Minimum Bid $2,000) 

20 Minor Change 

FILTER BUILDl1'1.G IMPROVEMENTS : _:-'._'' .; 

21 Existing Bulldlng Modifications 

22 
Elevated Access Platform for New Filter 
Unlts, Complete 

23 Raw Water Booster Pump And Motor 

24 Piping, Fitt!hgs, and Valves, Complete 

25 Vertical Pressure Filter Units, Complete 

26 
Filter Building Electrical and Control 
System, Complete 

WELL NO. 4B ENGINE GENERATOR 

27 Well No. 48 Engine Generator, Complete 

WELL NO. 6 ENGINE GENERATOR 

28 
Wei! No. 6 Engine Generator and Transfer 
Switch, Complete 

ADDITIVE BID ITEMS 

29 
Additive Bid Jtem No. t ~Replace_ Existing 
Raw Water Pump VFOs 

contract 
Unit Quantitv 

. 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

TON 130 

TON ' 80 

TON 30 

SY 125 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LF 150 

EA 4 

LS 1 

LS 1 

FA 1 
.. . · .. ·· 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

', 

·. 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

DISINFECTION, FILTRATION ANO SOURCE IMPROVEMENTS 

HLA Project No.; 11110C 

Progress Estimate No.: 6 

Date: March 21, 2014 

Un'it Estimate 6 Quantity Contract 
Price Quantitv to Date Amount Quantity 

$175,500.00 Oo/o 100°10 $175,500.00 100°/o 

$10,000.00 QO/o 100%1 $10,000.00 100o/o 

$10,000.00 iQQ0/n 100°10 $10,000.00 100°10 

$20,000.00 Oo/o 100°10 $20,000.00 100% 

$50,000.00 22% 100o/o $50,000.00 100°/o 

$35.00 0.00 173.19 $6,061.65 133°/o 

$35.00 109.49 109.49 $3,832.15 137% 

$245.00 38.40 38.40 $9,408.00 1'28,0/o 

$56.90 0.00 126.95 $7,223.46 102°10 

$194,014.00 2°/o 100°/o $194,014.00 100°/o 

$121,332.00 59o/o 99o/o $120,232.00 99°/o 

$13,285.00 0%) 89% $11,785.00 89o/o 

$75,000.00 21°/o 99%, $74,200.00 99% 

$100,000.00 27°/o 100o/o $100,000.00 100% 

$1,000.00 Oo/o 100o/o $1,000.00 100% 

$35.35 0.00 153.00 $5,408.55 102°10 

$377.00 4 4 $1,508.00 100o/o 

$3,000.00 0% Oo/o $0.00 oo/o 

$2,000,00 QO/o 0°/o $0.00 0'% 

$15,000.00 1,738.72 2,288.72 $2,288.72 15%, 

. 
$15,763,00 13% 100°/o $15,763.00 100% 

$9,300.00 100°/o 100% $9,300.00 100o/o 

$50,000.00 12°/o 100°/o $50,000.00 100°10 

$80,000.00 93°/o 100°/o $80,000.00 1 OOo/o 

$300,000.00 97°/n 100% $300,000.00 100%1 

$30,000,00 30% 95o/o $28,500.00 95% 

$105,000.00 3o/o 100°10 $105,000,00 100°/o 

. 

$124,000.00 4o/o 99% $123,000.00 99o/o 
' 

$38,700.00 20o/o 97o/o $37,700.00 97% 

G.\PROJOCTSli'D!!ll i f!OC ·PR DISINFECT FH S SOURCE - ROTSCh"Y, INC\l'ROGl'lf.SS ESTIMAlES\PROG EST NO Q'\:W14-0J FROG !:STN06,>js 

I 

' 

44



Item 
.Unit .. 

'Contract Uiiit Estimate 6 Quantity Conti-act 
No. . · ·oeScrintioii . 'oua'nti"·· Prfce Quantitv to Date Amount Quantitv 

30 
Additive Bid Item No. 2 - Replace Existing 

LS 1 $40,900.00 39°/o I 00°/o $40,900.00 100o/o Raw Water Pump Motors 

31 
1AQciitlve-@i4-ltem4l~FflGVe-aflG-

€A @ ~G (J,QQ (J,QQ $(),QQ ll% 
Re~n§fil!eF-MeElia 

32 Additive Bid !tern No. 4 - North Elevated 
LS 1 $18,500.00 95% 100°/o $18,500.00 iOOo/o Access P!atfonn, Complete 

;i;, AGdftfve-Bid-tt:em-Ne~tfl-lilevated-
bS 4 $26,llOO~Q ll% 0% $(),Q(l 0% A-Gress-P-laU:eFm, Goffif;}lete 

@4 
Add.jtive-849-l-tem~levatee-A-GGess-

bS 1 $.'\¥)tl!J,QQ ll% 0% ~ Gfl/o 
f'la~ffijOlete 

AdGl-tive-.!9iG-ltem-N0.,.+--.W-ateF-MafA-

"" G0fl·F<eGti0~- bS 4 $46,QO!J,GQ ll% 0% $Q,Q(l Q!V, 
.\ff$r-OVemeRts 

SUBTOTAL $1,611, 124.53 

SUBTOTAL, WORK TO DATE $1,611, 124.53 

PLUS MATERIALS ON HAND $0.00 

SUBTOTAL AMOUNTS $1,611, 124.53 

8.3% STATE SALES TAX $133,723.34 

TOTAL $1,744,847.87 

LESS TOTAL RETAINAGE $80,556.23 

LESS AMOUNTS PREVIOUSLY PAID $1,046,711.69 

AMOUNT NOW DUE $617,579.95 

Progress Estimate No. $ 217,987.64 Retalnage $ 10,551.19 

Progress Estimate No. 2 $ 231,351.97 Relainage $ 11,198.07 

Progress Estimate No. 3 $ 59,604.10 Retainage $ 2,885.00 

Progress Estimate No. 4 $ 223,097.01 Retainage $ 10,798.50 

Progress Estimate No. 5 $ 314,670.97 Retainage $ 15,230.92 

Progress Estimate No. 6 $ 617,579.95 Retainage $ 29 892.55 

! hereby certify that the foregoing is a t~ue and corr.eel stalemenl of the work performed under this Contract 

Dustin L. Posten, PE 

G \PROJECTSl;l011\11110C. FR OISINHCf FILT s SOURCE - ROTSCK'( INC\?ROGRESS i::snMATES\PRGG !'ST NO e1:m14.04.Q\ PROG~ST NO 6.>10 

45



lnvojce 
Date 

03101112 $ 
04101112 $ 
05101112 $ 
06/01112 $ 
07/01112 $ 
08/01112 $ 
09101/'12 $ 
10101112 $ 
11101/12 $ 
12101112 $ 
01101113 $ 
02101113 $ 
03101113 $ 
04101/13 $ 
05101/13 $ 
06101113 $ 
07101113 $ 
08/01113 $ 
09101113 $ 
10101113 $ 
11101113 $ 
11105/13 $ 
12101113 $ 
12102113 $ 
01101114 $ 
01108114 $ 
01131114 $ 
02101114 $ 
03101114 $ 
04/01114 $ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Total $ 

City of Prosser 
DISINFECTION, FILTRATION AND SOURCE IMPROVEMENTS 

DWSRF Project No.: DM11-952-030 
HLA Project No.11110 

Project Costs To Date 
PE Phase 1 PE Phase 2 PE Phase 3 PE Phase 4 CE Phase 5 CE Prog Est 

82.50 $ 660.00 $ - $ 3,680.00 $ - $ -
563.00 $ - $ 180.00 $ 3,680.00 $ - $ -
150.50 $ 412.50 $ 360.00 $ 920.00 $ - $ -

1,651.00 $ - $ 3,960.00 $ 6,440.00 $ - $ -
3,495.00 $ - s 900.00 $ 14,720.00 $ - $ -

- $ - $ 600.00 $ 16,560.00 $ - $ -
- $ - $ - $ 42,320.00 $ - $ -
- $ - $ - $ 14,720.00 $ - $ -. $ . $ . $ 11,040.00 $ . $ -

112.00 $ - $ . $ 23,920.00 $ - $ -
- $ - $ - $ 9,200.00 $ . $ -
- $ 240.00 $ - $ 3,680.00 $ - $ . 
- $ 1,130.44 $ - $ 5,520,00 $ - $ -. $ 240.00 $ - $ 6,440.00 $ - $ -
- $ 458.00 $ - $ 6,440.00 $ - $ -
. $ 144.00 $ - $ 5,520.00 $ - $ -
. $ 351.00 $ . $ 9,200.00 $ . $ . 
- $ 1,433.00 $ - $ - $ - $ -
- $ - $ - $ - $ 2,951.35 $ -
- $ 288.00 $ - $ - $ 10,223.52 $ -
- $ 214.00 $ - $ - $ 46,288.03 $ -
- $ . $ $ - $ - $ 217,987.64 
- $ 611.50 $ . $ - $ 26,459.6,9 
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 231,351.97 
- $ 480.00 $ . $ - $ 19,581.54 $ -
- $ - $ - $ - $ . $ 59,604.10 
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 223,097.01 
- $ 392.50 $ - $ - $ 27,012.79 $ -. $ 247.50 $ - $ - $ 29,437.28 $ 314,670.97 
. $ $ - $ - $ . $ 617,579.95 
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- $ . $ - $ - $ - $ -
- $ . $ - $ - $ - $ -

6,054.00 $ 7,302.44 $ 6,000.00 $ 184,000.00 • 161,954.20 $ 1,664,291.64 

41112014 

Project Total 
s 4,422.50 
$ 4,423.00 
$ 1,843.00 
$ 12,051.00 
$ 19,115.00 
$ 17,160.00 
$ 42,320.00 
$ 14,720.00 
$ 11,040.00 
$ 24,032,00 
$ 9,200.00 
$ 3,920.00 
$ 6,650.44 
$ 6,680.00 
$ 6,898.00 
$ 5,664.00 
$ 9,551.00 
$ 1,433.00 
$ 2,951.35 
$ 10,511.52 
$ 46,502.03 
$ 217,987.64 
$ 27,071.19 
$ 231,351.97 
$ 20,061.54 
$ 59,604.10 
$ 223,097.01 
$ 27,405.29 
$ 344,355.75 
$ 617,579.95 
$ . 
$ -
$ . 
$ 2,029,602.28 

Costs to Date $ 6,054.00 $ 7,302.44. $ 6,000.00 $ 184,000.00 $ 161,954.20 $ 1,664,291.64 $ 2,029,602.28 
Furi;d Loan Balance 

Pha_se 1 • Environmental Compliance 
Phase 2 ·Project Administration 

Phase 3 - Evaluation of Disinfection Alternatives 

Phase 4 - Design and Final Plans and Specifications 

Phase 5 - Services During Construction 
Phase 6 - Construction Progress Estimates - Rotschy, Inc. 

G:\PROJl'-CTS\2011111110C - PR DISINFECT FILT & SOURCE - ROTSCHY, INC\OWSRF INFO\REIMBURSEMENT INfO\VOUCHER ROST NO. 11\2014-04 PROJ COST BREAKDOWN 11.l<Js 

$ 49,602.28 

46



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON I 

l Agenda Title: Adopt Resoluti~~-E-~ 9~e-~~ng-1 ~~·-~-e:--------1 
I

' Surplusing City of Prosser Property. I April 8, 2014 
Regular Meeting 

' 
!bepartmeot 
' 

Public Works 
Cost of Proposal: 

1 N/A 
I 

Amount Budgeted: 
N/A 

Director: 

LJ. Da Corsi 

Reviewed by Finance Department: 

' 6l1f 
[ Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

i 

Contact f"_erson: 

I LJ. Da Corsi 

I 
1. 
2. 

Surplus Property Resolution. (1 page) 
Exhibit "A" (list of items to surplus). (1 page) 

!summary Statement: 

TF>l1one Number: '! 

sog 786-7300 I 
Account Number: I 

I N/A 

[ Name and Fund# 

I NIA 

The Resolution declares surplus certain property which has been used by the City of 
, Prosser and which occupies space which it desires to more efficiently use. The . 
I Resolution directs the Mayor to sell the assets if the cost of sale is less than the value of · 

I
. the property and authorizes him to dispose of the p_r_o_p_e_rt_y_o_th_e_rw_is_e_. ----------4 

, Consistent with or Comparison t9_: 

I EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Adopt Resolution Number 14-___ Surplusing City of Prosser property as described I 
I in Exhibit "A". I 

~wed by Department I Reviewed by City Attorney: I Approved by Mayor: . I . 
!Director: II{///~ II !/IJJC !c~_-3/ 
[ Date: · _j/_i:_ / fll I Date: ZQ Date: --}-fl 
I Today's Date: r+ .

1

. Revision Number/Date: 'I File Name and Path: 
· U:\Public Works 

I'-A_pr_i1_2_. _20_1 __ 4-----~---------~- .. ~eptl~roJ~~:iles\Agendas 

47



EXHIBIT "A" 

1. Metal (empty) case COP# 1104 
2. PBT (portable breath test kit) COP# 3035 
3. PBT (portable breath test kit) COP# 3036 
4. Book Shelf COP# 1159 
5. VHF Vega Remote Radio Controls COP# 1253 
6. VHF Vega Remote Radio Controls COP# 1254 
7. Keyboard COP# 0809 
8. Wireless Keyboard COP# 2590 
9. Casio Calculator COP# 2569 
10. Comfortage Steno Chair COP# 2283 
11. Gray Ex Swivel PNeil COP# 2418 
12. Office chair COP#3174 
13. Grey office chair COP# 3176 
14. Rolling chair COP# 3177 
l 5. Skill 3/8" Drill COP# 0224 
16. Meridian Phone COP# 0805 
17. Office Chair COP# 1769 
18. 2 drawer file cabinet COP# 1009 
19. Finger print station COP# 1146 
20. White shelving No COP# 
21. Printer PSC 23 5 5 COP# 2694 
22. Compaq keyboard COP# 2702 
23. Printer C4385 COP# 2938 
24. Office copier Savin BG21 P COP# 2913 
25. Compac deskpro COP# 2703 
26. HP Printer COP# 0240 
27. Emerson VCR COP# 3073 
28. Panasonic VCR COP# 3054 
29. US Robotics COP# 2612 
30. Z-tron vhf parts COP#ll05 
31. Microwave Antenna with hardware No COP# 
32. Green Office Chair COP# 2606 
33. Tropon Radar COP# 3042 
34. Micro Inventer 400 No COP# 
35. Micro Inventer 400 No COP# 
36. 2 Window Shades No COP# 

48



I 

! 
CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL I 
I Agenda Title: Approve Resolution 14- Meeting Date: 
! _____ surplusing three radar units to April 8, 2014 
i the Benton County Sheriff's Office Regular Meeting 

joepartment: Director: I Contact Person: Phone Number: 

I Dave Giles 
(509) 786-8220 

I Police Dave Giles 

1 

Cost of Proposal: Account Number: 
None associated N/A 

I Amount Budgeted: 
IN/A Name and Fund# I Re,;e: bV F;¥rtmeot 

! Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Surplus Property Resolution, 1 page 
2. EXHIBIT "A" (list of items to surplus), 1 page 

I Summary Statement: · ···-···---·---·-

!! The Department wishes to surplus three radar units so that they may be given to the 
, Benton County Sheriff's Office in exchange for two days of EVOC training. Estimated 

1 
value is $1,400. Radar units have not been in use by the Department for some time. 

! 
I Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

c------~-------·----------
1 Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

I 
Approve Resolution 14- surplusing three radar units to the Benton 
Sheriff's Office. 

' I Reviewed by Department--TB8Viewed by Citv Attorney: 

i Direi,-;tor::j /) [ ---

I C/~ c:---:___, 

i Date: I Date: lJ J IJ. Date: 
Today's Date: Revision Number/Date; File Na 

April 3, 2014 

' 

' 

49



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-----

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER 
DECLARING CERTAIN PROPERTY OF THE CITY OF PROSSER TO BE 
SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSAL OF SAID PROPERTY. 

WHEREAS, the City of Prosser has accumulated certain items of personal property which items 
are listed on the attached exhibit "A'', which items are no longer needed by the City of Prosser, and 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Prosser believes that such property is swvlus to the 
needs of the City and disposal of such property is for the common benefit, 

NO\V THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Prosser as 
follows: 

1. That the property listed on the attached Exhibit "A" is hereby declared surplus to the 
needs of the City of Prosser; 

2. That it is deemed to be for the common benefit of the Citizens of the City of Prosser 
to dispose of such surplus property; and 

3. That the Mayor or his/her designee is authorized to dispose of the items listed on 
Exhibit "A" in a commercially reasonable manner which will be in the best interest of 
the City of Prosser, including but not limited to negotiation by private sale, auction or 
if the cost of sale exceeds the valne of the property by disposal or donation to a 
charitable organization. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Prosser and APPROVED by the Mayor of the 
City of Prosser this day of April, 2014. 

Mayor, Paul Warden 
ATTEST: 

Rachel Shaw, City Clerk 

----
Howard Saxton, City Attorney 

50



ATTACHMENT "A" 

1. Kustom Raptor Radar Unit #RP02653 
2. Kustom Raptor Radar Unit #RP02652 
3. Kustom Raptor Radar Unit #R1'02654 

51



L CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

Agenda Title: Accept moneta~d?-na-~-io-~-in_D_~_e_e_t~-nq-1 -~-a~-e-: -----------; 
the amount of $1,390.08 from Grace Inc. April 8, 2014 
OBA Cottage Court · Regular Meeting 

Department · i Director: 

I Police ___ ___J Chief Dave Giles 
1 Cost of Proposal: 
I No cost to Department 
! 

Amount Budgeted: 

II N/A 

Contact Person: Phone Number: 
! 

I 
(509) 786-8220 

Chief Dave G~1·_1_e_s_-+----·----i 
Account Number: 
001-521-20-35 

Name and Fund# 
.

1 

Small Tools and 
Minor Equipment 

I 
[ Reviewed by Finance Department: 

! (~'-c-----------_____, 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Detailed estimate from Larsen Firearms 

I Summary Statement: 

! Grace Inc. DBA Cottage Court wishes to donate funds in the amount of $1,390.08 to the 
! Police Department to be used towards the purchase of two EO Tech sight systems and 
, two Surefire flash lights for department rifles. 

I . -~-~-----~-
1 Consistent with or Comparison to: 

I EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

j Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

I
i Move to accept monetary donation in the amount of $1,390.08 from Grace Inc., DBA 

Cottage Court in accordance with City of Prosser Ordinance No. 13-2826. 

~E3_: Date:~ Date:J!'-}-{f 
, Today's Date: j Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

' I 
[ April 2, 2014 

~---------·---··-~---------~----------~ 

52



Name/Address 

URI/I RllMll 
Law Enforcement and Tactical SUppties 

Class 3 Oeah!r 

P.O. Box 3457 
Pasco. WA. 99302 

PROSSER POLICE DEPT. 

601 7th Street 
Prosser, Wa 99350 

509-786-2332 

Terms I FOB 

Net15 

Item 

EOTECH XPS2-0. 

SUREFIRE X300-U-BK 

ST. SALES TAX 

r;f2.f!Ci 

REP 

Description 

+1uc 

Q.Q;A Ca Tt 1111-[ Caul(./ 

/ '-l:k ') [;J ,·we Cc'"""(/1 12.cl 
?1-<> 'i:C::'L/ vJ.4 - q p7s·-o 

PH: (509) 545-0346 FAX: (509) 546-3161 

Estimate 
Date Estimate No. 

01 /09/14 686 

Quantity Cost Total 

2 430.00 860.00T 
2 210.00 420.00T 

8.60% 110.08 

Total $1,390.08 

53



CALL TO ORDER 

CITY OF PROSSER, WASHING TON 
601 7TH STREET 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 25, 2014 

Mayor Warden called the Regular Meeting of the Prosser City Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

ROLL CALL 
Council Members Aubrey, Brumley, Hamilton, Taylor, Everett, Becken, and Elder were present. 

Others in attendance were City Clerk Shaw, Finance Director Mauras, City Planner Zetz, and 
City Attorney Saxton. 

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (None) 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

Fire District Governance Model, Bob Merritt, Benton County Fire District No. 3 Consultant 
Mayor Warden requested Council move item Sa until Mr. Merritt arrived. Council concurred. 

2014 Bituminous Sui:face Treatment (BST) Bid Resultsfi·om Benton County Public Works for 
the City of Prosser 
Mayor Warden provided an overview the 2014 Bituminous Surface Treatment (BST) bid results 
and discussed the City streets selected for the project. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
A motion was made by Council Member Becken, seconded by Council Member Everett to 
approve Consent Agenda Items "A - E." Motion passed 7 YES, 0 NO, 0 ABSENT. 

a. Approve Payment of Payroll Checks Nos. 600016 through 600018 in the 
Amount of $2,173.87 and Direct Deposits in the Amount of $12,188.98 
for the Period Ending February 14, 2014 

b. Approve Payment of Claim Checks Nos. 10156 through 10200, in the 
Amount of $161,477.05, and Electronic Payments in the Amount of 
$103,300.47, for the Period Ending February 25, 2014 

c. Accept Monthly Report by Prosser Economic Development Association 
for the Month of January 2014 and Authorize Payment for Those Services 
in the Amount of $2, 166.66 and Authorize Payment in the Amount of 
$1,416.67 for Grant Writer Services 

54



d. Approve the December 2013 Financial Statement 

e. Approve the January 28, 2014 Meeting Minutes 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS (Cont.) 

[Clerk's Note: Robert Merritt arrived at 7:03 p.m.} 

Fire District Governance Model, Bob Merritt, Benton County Fire District No. 3 Consultant 
Mr. Merritt addressed the Council with a letter from the Benton County Fire Commissioners 
regarding the Fire District Governance Model. He spoke regarding the Fire Commissioner's 
"spirit of cooperation" which led to the unanimous vote in support of moving forward with the 
Regional Fire Authority (RF A) with the intent to fully transfer all assets to the RF A. 

Mr. Merritt pointed to the timeline handout provided to Council and discussed the next steps 
necessary in the process. On behalf of the Fire Commissioner's Mr. Me11"itt requested the Mayor 
and Council provide a response letter to the Fire District prior to the March 3, 2014, regularly 
scheduled Fire Board meeting. 

Council thanked Mr. Meffitt and expressed their gratitude toward the Citizen Task Force for the 
work conducted on the recent study. 

COUNCIL ACTION 

APPROVE PAYMENT OF CLAIM CHECK NOS. 10201 THROUGH 10203 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $2,795.84, FOR THE PERIOD ENDING FEBRUARY 25, 2014 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Everett to 
approve payment of claim check nos. I 0201 through 10203 in the amount of $2,795.84 for the 
period ending February 25, 2014. Motion passed 6 YES, 0 NO, 0 ABSENT, I ABSENTION 
(Hamilton). 

ORDINANCE 14-2873 AMENDING SECTION 19 OF ORDINANCE NO. 01-2284, 
SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE NO. 01-2271 AND PMC SECTION 10.04.525, TO 
EXTEND THE NO PARKING AREA ON 7n1 STREET AND PATERSON ROAD 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Everett to adopt 
Ordinance 14-2873 amending Section 19 of Ordinance No. 01-2284, Section 1 of Ordinance No. 
01-2271 and PMC Section 10.04.525, to extend the No Parking Area on 7'h Street and Paterson 
Road. Council Member Aubrey requested clarification on parking near the tennis conrts. City 
Attorney Saxton provided an explanation of the area the ordinance addressed. Motion passed 7 
YES, 0 NO, 0 ABSENT. 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
Planning Department 2013 Annual Report (Steve Zetz, City Planner) 
City Plrumer Zetz provided a brief overview of the Plruming Department 2013 Annual Report. 

55



Council Member Brumley thanked staff for their effmts on the report. 

Continued Fire Governance Model Discussion (Mayor Warden) 
Mayor Warden inquired if Council supported staff drafting a letter for submittal to the Fire 
District as requested by the Fire Commissioners. Council concurred and directed Mayor to draft 
a response letter. 

Caslt Balance (Mayor Warden) 
Mayor Warden provided Council with a Financial Analysis of the 2013 Annual Budget and 
discussed the positive cash balance in the amount of $146,903. Additionally Mayor Warden 
provided scenarios for Council's consideration. 

Council member Hamilton stated it was his desire to restore the General Reserve Fund balance 
with the positive cash rather than spend it. 

Finance Director Mauras explained how staff arrived at the revenue forecasting and discussed 
the 2013 adopted budget compared to the 2013 actuals. 

Council Member Taylor stated it was his desire to allocate some of the funding toward the City 
Park restrooms remodel project. 

Council Member Becken expressed his desire to allocate some of the excess funds toward the 
restroom remodel project or a street project. 

Council Member Aubrey inquired if it was necessary to completely demolish the restrooms or 
could portions of the structure be salvaged. 

There was discussion regarding what the restroom remodel project consisted of and whether or 
not that was the best use of funds. 

Council Member Aubrey stated he wanted to see some of the funds be utilized on the restroom 
remodel project and the remaining funds put into the General Reserve Fund. 

Overall Council agreed to not spend the excess funds on any project that would reqmre 
reoccurring costs and to only look at one-time expenses. 

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business before the City Council at this time, the Regular Meeting of the 
Prosser City Council was adjourned at 7:41 p.m. 

Mayor Paul Warden 
Attest: 

-·~~~~~~~~~~~-

City Clerk Rachel Shaw 

56



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approve payment of claim 
Check no. 10386 in the amount of 
$59,966.70 for the period ending April 8, 

12014. 

' Department: 
Finance 

Cost of Proposal: 
$59,966.70 

I Director: 
I Regina Mauras 

I Amount Budgeted: 
See 2014 budget for each item listed. 

1. Check Register# 10386 

Summary Statement: 

Meeting Date: 
April 08, 2014 
Regular Meeting 

I Contact Person: 
I Toni Yost 

Phone Number: 
(509) 786-2332 

Account Number: 
See Attached 

Name and Fund# 
See Attached 

Approve payment of claim check no. 10386 and 10386 in the amount of $59,966.70 for 
the period ending April 8, 2014. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 
City's policy to pay bills in a timely manner. 

Recommended Citv Council Action/Suggested Motion: 
Approve payment of claim Approve payment of claim check no. 10386 and 10386 in the 
amount of $59,966.70 for the period ending April 8, 2014. 

Reviewed by Department Reviewed bll Citv Attorney: Approved bll Mayor: 
. Director: 
I \\al-f\{}l- N/A 

Date: Date: Date: ~ ' Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: ' File Name and Path: 

I Apnl 4, 2014 

57



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

CHECK REGISTER 

03/01/2014 To: 03/31/2014 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

708 03/31/2014 Payroll 10386 Washington Teamsters Welfare 

511 Legislative 
514 Financial, Recording & Elections 
518 Centralized Services 
521 Law Enforcement 
524 Protective Inspections 
558 Planning & Community Devel 
576 Park Facilities 
580 Non Expeditures 

0(11 General Fund 

54 2 Streets - Maintenance 
543 Streets Admin & Overhead 

HJ2Street Fund. 

517 Employee Benefit Programs 

117 Er11pioyee Benefits Securify • 

534 Water Utilities 
539 Irrigation And Reclamation 

403 Water fund 

535 Sewer 

407 Sewer Fun<! 

537 Garbage & Solid Waste 

448.GarnageFund 

Time: 16:50:34 Date: 03/25/2014 
Page: 1 

Amount Memo 

59,966.70 03/31/2014 To 03/31/2014-
WTWT 

1,164.52 
6,938.00 
1,199.52 

14,988.33 
2,394.04 
1,164.52 
1,339.66 

I 1,644.25 

.4Q,832:84 

2,660.39 
346.55 

3,006.94 

1,921.20 

1,921.29 

6,203.74 
1,445.84 

. 7,649.58 

6,463.57 

6,463.57 

92.57 

92.57 

59,966.70 Payroll: 

Date 

59,966.70 

58



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON -1 
1-c--~ ___ A_G_E_N~D_A __ B_IL_L ______ ~ 
, Agenda Title: Adopt Resolution No. 14- Meeting Date: ' 
____ approving all specifications, plans, April 8, 2014 
estimates, bid documents, contract Regular Meeting 
provisions, prepared by Benton County 
pursuant to the lnterlocal Agreement 
executed on January 14, 2014, and 
accepting the lowest qualified bidder 
Granite Constructions Company bid in the 

I 
total amount of $1, 172,000.00, of which the , 
City's portion is $74,312.00, and authorizes 

· the Mayor to sign and execute any 
documents or contracts, if any, necessary 
for the 2014 Bituminous Surface Treatment 

I Project. 

I :::l~~-:-e-0 n-r:-:s----~-.i~-e-::-r~-o-rsi---1-~-.-~n-. ~-a-:t_:_:_:-~o-n:-·· ' ~5::~e7::_::::: 
'COst of Proposal: ---~--~~~- · Account Number: 

$74,312.00 

Amount Budgeted: 
. $80,000.00 from the Transportation Benefit District Fund I 

Name and Fund# 
Transportation 

I Benefit District 

I Reviewed by Finance Department: 

! -~ I Attachments to~A_g_e_n"""'d-a"""P~a-c~ke-t"""'l-te_m_: _____ _ 

1. Resolution No. 14-__ 
2. Exhibit "A" 
3. Bid Results as submitted by Benton County Public Works for 2014 
4. Notice of Award Letter from Benton County Public Works to City of Prosser, dated 

I March 14, 2014 

I Summary Statement: 

! This Resolution provides the following: 

I 
• 

• 

• 

• 

Benton County agrees to administer and oversee implementation of the 
bituminous surface treatment of certain City streets as defined in Exhibit "A" 
The selection of a contract is in accordance with all federal, state, and local laws 
and bidding requirements 
The City of Prosser approves all specifications, plans, estimates, bid documents, 
and contract provisions 
The lnterlocal Agreement defining responsibilities of the County and City has 
been approved ~E)nton County and the City of Prosser 

J 

59



~----------··---·----

• The Public Works Director has recommended approval of said bid award for the 
2014 Bituminous Surface Treatment Project 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

I EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

f Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

' 

I 
Adopt Resolution No. 14- approving all specifications, plans, estimates, bid 
documents, contract provisions, prepared by Benton County pursuant to the lnterlocal 

i Agreement executed on January 14, 2014, and accepting the lowest qualified bidder I 
Granite Constructions Company bid in the total amount of $1, 172,000.00, of which the 
City's portion is $74,312.00, and authorizing the Mayor to sign and execute any I 
documents or contracts, if any, necessary for the 2014 Bituminous Surface Treatment 
Project. 

Reviewed bv Department I Reviewed by City Attornev:··rApproved by Mayor: 

l//Jf. i ~ ~tJ~~-
i Date: 1, f., I~ I Date:3 !:J{/; (' I Date: tf/'J-·/Lf. 
] Today's Oat : , Revision Number/Date:--r-F=il_e_N_a_m_e_a-nd_P_a-th_: __ _ 

I 
' I 

l March 26, 2_0_1_4----~-----------l----·-----~ 

60



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-----

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF PROSSER APPROVING ALL SPECIFICATIONS, 
PLANS, ESTIMATES, BID DOCUMENTS, CONTRACT 
PROVISIONS PREPARED BY BENTON COUNTY 
PURSUANT TO THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
EXECUTED ON JANUARY 14, 2014, AND ACCEPTING 
THE LOWEST QUALIFIED BIDDER GRANITE 
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BID IN THE TOTAL 
AMOUNT OF $1,172,000.00, OF WHICH THE CITY'S 
PORTION IS $74,312.00, AND AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR TO SIGN AND EXECUTE ANY DOCUMENTS 
OR CONTRACTS, IF ANY, NECESSARY FOR THE 2014 
BITUMINOUS SURFACE TREATMENT PROJECT 

WHEREAS, Benton County agrees to administer and oversee implementation of the 
bituminous surface treatment of ce1iain city streets as defined in Exhibit "A'', attached 
hereto m1d by this reference incorporated herein, and 

WHEREAS, the selection of a contract is in accordance with all federal, state, and local 
laws and bidding requirements, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Prosser approves all specifications, pl;ms, estimates, bid 
documents, and contract provisions, and 

WHEREAS, an Interlocal Agreement defining the responsibilities of the County and 
the City has been approved by Benton County and the City of Prosser, and 

WHEREAS, the Public Worlcs Director has recommended approval of said Bid Award 
for the 2014 Bituminous Surface Treatment Project, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Bid Award, pursuant to 
the illterlocal Agreement between the City of Prosser and Benton County for the 2014 
Bituminous Surface Treatment Project, is hereby approved and the Mayor is authorized to 
sign and execute any documents or contracts, if any, necessary for the project. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Prosser and APPROVED by the Mayor 
of the City of Prosser this day of , 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 

61



ATTEST: 

RACHEL SHAW, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

HOW ARD SAXTON, CITY ATTORNEY 

62



EXHIBIT "A" 

CITY OF PROSSER 
2014 BITUMINOUS SURFACE TREATMENT PROJECT 

Designated Locations 

Street Name Fro1n To 
BROWN ST BENNETT AVE PARK 
BROWN ST PARK ELLEN 
BROWN ST ELLEN MYRTLE 
BROWN ST MYRTLE PRIVATE ALLEY 
COURT ST BENNETT AVE MYRTLE 
COURT ST MYRTLE DEADEND 
DUDLEY AVE BENNETT AVE COURT 
DUDLEY AVE COURT MARKET 
DUDLEY AVE MARKET GUERNSEY 
CUERNSEY ST DUDLEY 4TH 
GUERNSEY ST 4TH PARK 
MAIN ST PARK PROSSER AVE 
MAIN ST PROSSER AVE DU'DLEY 
PROSSER AVE BROWN COURT 
PROSSER AVE COURT MARKET 
PROSSER AVE MARKET MAIN 
PROSSER AVE MAIN CUERt'lSEY 
YAKIMA AVE BROWN COURT 
YAKIMA AVE COURT MARl<ET 

63



~
P.RoJEc. T CE 1970 PRES~ B s T-2014.. ···--------, GRAN;;E CONST~~ -- CENTRAL WASHINGTON Ji'ZOLUMB!A ASPH~-LT &-----i.. IEOE ASPHAL TPA"N~,INC r~GINE;R~ . -1-1·-~-=-=---==~ . . ww••]l 
LOCATICN: BENTONCOUNTY COMPANY ASPHALT,,NC GRAVEL, INC 2732N Seek Road ESTIMATE L 
LET BY: GOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS , 80 Pond Road P 0 Box 939 jP O BD){ 9337 J Post Fal!s, ID 83854 

!DATE: Februar,ri1, 7.01-4;2:00p:::'...: Local'•me ----·· ~A~--- MosesLake_W~----- lY~~A 98909 _ -~- ~ · -===--------"w_______ _ -"'-----c=-'--

[1~~ I nr:M 0EsCR1_Prio~£ I aTY I UNIT l[PuR~gE I Ml~~NT ]j PuR~~TE I AM~~Nr ! ru:i~rE AM~~Nr J ~~~~TE .w AM~~Nr I PuR~~E Q;;J[P~~~TE A(,'~~Nr I 
I BITUMINOUS SU-RFACE-TRE'ATMENTW 318" to #1-0 BENTON couNTY ROAos-----------~w·~-- ------------- ----- - --l~1 
. 1------ -:r=:-1 1-~ r-- --=-:y ' - T 

2'2~Mr ssoool '"~."~- '°'"'-'''l---715_<l2_0020;oBoteoo; IH2,92G[l0 72500 9•49~000,r~ -=- I 

I CY. II ·31'°1---------'-72'."°°il 22001 ornoool 2100 4'1"500 0155 mo~ '°" md 
~L 21.00 - 1'0,280CQll '300 ."''""; 2400 '6944000 '~3720 2626~ 20'5 I ""95001 ___ -__ -~ 
M~ 110_00 3,221-90 I 12500 3,661,25 107.00 3,13-4.03 105.00 

1 •• 11e I 23000 e1•oeo ~ __ 00000 o.aaoo 285.oo s,m.JS . 220-:I '·""'ii esomj _____ 11,.4485Dle------+---

-t----~1--3~ ___ 11_'_2360 L 30000 12_5s1_00 2s500 11,93295 1-----------_,?_eo_OO .,,L~'"-!1---

3,075-45 ! t75.00 5,125.75 

9,158.80 350_00 _____ 11,.448 5!) 

11-723.60 3S0.00 ',4_654.50 

TRAFFIC CONTROL 
f--------

SPILL PREVENT:ON, CONTROL <>nd 

COUNTER MEASURES {SPCC) Pl,AN w" 'I' -~ .. 

i--~- TOTALBENTONCOUNTYRDADS :JC- ... , .... a:o?Jc "''"·""····II .. .,. 11 1 ,------------ ---,, 

Lump Sum I LS. II l.omp Ss:-t---$0,000 00 l Lornp So~.+-----~-1 Luwp Sum SB,400.00 1 Lump S"m 70,000 00 if L omo :t= '5,000 CO 

, .. -- 0 .. ~ I LS. U lump Sum 1,438-70 l Lvr.p Sum ! 500.0C l LUGlp Sum 500.00 Lump Sum _ ODO 00 I Lomo_Ssm .• ~J ... ~ .. """ 
• ..,,. .. """' "n \I • ~..,,.. """"'"II ........ ,, 234.33 1,283,873.60 1, 199,811.50 

--i ,.-~-

BITUMINOUS SURFACE TREATMENT 3/8" to #10 CITY OF PROSSER STREETS 
Ir----- ---------,--- --------.-·-· 

51_000.00 

-ll'---,---1[--- -1c ------------11 

770 oo I "·'°~l-----"O oo i 40 soc oojl moo [ ~ I ____ _ 
"'--------

---~~ _______ A§_PH/l.LT c5_~3_r j so.on ! TON II too oo I 42.00_~~ 
FURNISH AND PLACE MINERAL 

850 00 

I 10 I AGGREGATEf9RB2._~1:'.'.::~~#10) I 408.001 C.Y.1~01 215,~12.001~.__E:PO 15,09&_00 55.00 22,440 00 70 00 28,550_00 54.00 22,032.0C 

I--- 11 / TAA~f'~'.:_~?NTROl. ~__;__,~L1;1P &TI' I L.S. lumD Sum I 6,20(}_00 Lump Svm / 9,50{\00 I Lum;:_sy~ __ L.__ s,100 CD ............ I 0 000 00 Lu_;iP Sum ! __ 17)JOO.OO II lump Su1'1 

TOTAL CITY OF PROSSER 74,312.00 75,596.00 74,340.00 77,160.00 77,832.00 

GRAND TOTAL 1,172,000.00 1,246,401.25 i 1,270,574.33 1,361,033.60 1,277,649.50 

64



Steven W. Bccken 
Public Works Manager Benton County 
Daniel S. Ford, P.E. 
County Engineer 

March 14, 2014 

J. DaCorsi 
City of Prosser 
601 7th Street 
Prm;ser, WA 99350 

Department of Public Works 
Post Office Box 1001 -Courthouse 
Prosser, Washington 99350--0954 

Area Code 509 
Prosser 786w56l 1 

Tri-Citk:s 736-3084 
Ext 5664 

Fax 786-5627 

Per request, find a copy of the Notice of Award letter that was sent to Granite 
Construction Company for the Bituminous Surface 2014 - 1970 PRES Project. 

Please forward a signed copy of the Resolution from the Prosser City Council to me at your 
convemence. 

you. 

Shannon Christen 
Contract Coordinator 

65



Steven W. Beekeu 
Public Works Manager 

Danid S. Ford, P. E. 
County Engineer 

March 10, 2014 

Benton County 
Department of Public Works 

Post Office Box 1001-Courthouse 
Prosser, Wa~hington 99350-0954 

NOTICE OF AW ARD 

<I Mum Chavez, Regional C'.nntroll1er 
GRANITE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 
80 Pond Road 
Yakima, WA 98901 

Area Code 509 
Prosser 786w561 l 

Tri-Cities 736-308'1 
Ext 5664 

Fax 786·5627 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on Tuesday, March 4, 2014, the contract for BITUMINOUS SURFACE 
TREATMENT 2014 - CE 1970 PRES was awarded to your firm. Enclosed are three (3) copies of contract, 
including attached documents made a of contract. Sign the contracts and date as contractor ojJtain 
required bonds as set forth in the attachments. Return all documents together with original and three (3) copies 
of required bond within ten_QQ) calendar days to this office for signature by the B.oard of Coun!J' 
Commissioners. Ce1tification..JrL.the Cqntractor that au insurance policy, or endorsement to an existing policy, 
naming Benton County as aIUcdditional insured and otherwise satisfying the requirements set forth section 
1-07.!8 of the State of Washington Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction, 2012 
edition, has been obtained from a particular company and is in effect, shall accompany the signed contract. You 
will receive two (2) fully executed copies of the contract for yourself and surety. 

Mr. Marty Groom, Engineer II, will contact you concerning a date, time, and place for a pre-construction 
conference. Prior to the conference, please submit your proposed progress schedule advise as to anticipated 
date of commencing work. Also, provide our office with your Federal Tax ld1en1iti<catio11 Nu1mlfier 

Before work may commence on this project, following items must be completed: 

Contract executed by the Board of County Commissioners 
IBJ Pre-construction conference 

Intent to pay prevailing wages form filed with the Department of Labor & Industries 
IBJ Progress schedule submitted and approved 
IBJ Notification of anticipated date commencing work 

Very truly yours; 

~A~~~U~~=---~~~ 
Contract Coordinator 

c: Marty Groom, Engineer II 
File 

66



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
I Agenda Title: Approve the 2013 Update 
I to the Benton County Solid Waste Plan 

and Authorize the Mayor to submit a 
Letter to Benton County Solid Waste 
informing it that the Prosser City 

, Council has approved the 2013 Solid 
I Waste Update. 

I Qepartment: 

' Public Works 

I Direciill:. 

( L.J. Da Corsi 
Cost of Proposal: 
NIA 

I Amo"m B"dq~OO 
NIA 

Revi_ewed by Finance Department 

I ~ 

1. Determination of Nonsignificance 

i Meeting Date: 
April 8, 2014 
Regular Meeting 

Contact Person: 

! 
I L.J. Da Corsi 

1 
2. 2013 Update to the Benton County Solid Waste Plan 

Phone Number: 

(509) 786-2332 
1 Account Number: 

Name and Fund# 

hfinnmarv Statement: 

I The 2013 Benton County Comprehensive Solid Waste Management and 

I

' Moderate Risk Waste Management Plan (2013 Plan) provides background and 
guidance for a Jong-term approach to solid waste and moderate risk waste 

I (MRW) management in the region. This 2013 Plan comprises the combined I 
I comprehensive solid waste management plan (CSWMP) and Local Hazardous 

I
' Waste/Moderate Risk Waste (MRW) Plan for the incorporated and 
, unincorporated areas of Benton County (combined Plan). 

I The purpose of this 2013 Plan is to serve as a "roadmap" to managing the 
1 
comprehensive solid waste and MRW management systems in Benton County. 
The 2013 Plan was developed as a joint effort of Benton County and the cities of 
Benton City, Kennewick, Prosser, Richland, and West Richland. 

During the March 25, 2014 Regular Council Meeting, the Prosser City Council I 

adopted by resolution the lnterlocal Agreement Regarding Solid Waste ' 
Management between the City of Prosser and Benton County (Lead Agency). 

67



Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

_Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Approve the 2013 Update to the Benton County Solid Waste Plan and Authorize 
the Mayor to submit a Letter to Benton County Solid Waste informing it that the 

: Prosser City Council has approved the 2013 Solid Waste Update . 

. -1 -·----·~---c=-----~=-~-7"'"----c----~--~ ·~~-----; 
I ~~~~~~d by Department Reviewed by City Attorney: :?rovA ~y M/ayor: /I 

i .,\· . .fvµ I ~ II~ lJ .,,.)le.~ 
] Date: f/y/IJ I Date: ~J-/tf 
I Today's Date: ··, Rev1s1offNUmberfDate: File Name and Path: 

I April 3, 2014 I 
L .... ~---~--

68



DETERMINATION OF NONSIGNIFICANCE 

Description of proposal: Benton County Draft Solid Waste Management Plan 

Proponent Benton County Public Works Dept. 
Attn: Donna Holmes 
P.O. Box 110 
Prosser WA 99350 

File No. EA 13-25 

Location of proposal, including street address, if any: Encompasses all of Benton County, 
including incorporated cities and the unincorporated areas of the County. 

Lead agency: BENTON COUNTY 
The lead agency for this proposal has determined that it does not have a probable significant 
adverse impact on the environment. An environmental impact statement (EIS) is not required 
under RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c). This decision was made after review of a completed 
environmental checklist and other information on file with the lead agency. This information is 
available to the public on request. 

This DNS is issued under WAC197-11-340(2); the lead agency will not act on this proposal for 
14 days from the date below. Comments must be submitted by December 3, 2013. 

If you have questions about this DNS or the details of the proposal, contact Michael Shuttleworth 
using the information below. 

Responsible Official: Michael Shuttleworth 
Position/Title: Planning Manager 
Address: P.O. Box 910, Prosser WA 99350 

• Email planninq.department@co.benton.wa.us 

• Phone/Fax: (509)786-5612/(509) 786-~629; ~/'/d //7/,,,, -
DATE OF ISSUE: November 14, 2013 Signature:~ 
DISTRIBUTION: 
Applicant 
News Media 
Benton County Building Office 
Dept. of Natural Resources-Olympia 
Dept. of Natural Resources -Ellensburg 
Benton Clean Air Authority 
Bureau of Reclamation 
Benton County Public Works 
City of Kennewick 
City of Richland 
City of West Richland 
City of Benton City 
City of Prosser 
Benton Franklin Dist. Health Dept. 

Badger Mountain Irrigation District 
Benton Irrigation District 
Columbia Irrigation District 
Kennewick Irrigation District 
Kiona Irrigation District 
Roza Irrigation District 
Sunnyside Valley Irrigation District 
Department of Transportation 
Washington State Department of Health 
Department of Ecology - Olympia 
Department of Ecology - Yakima 
Corps of Engineers 
Yakama Indian Nation 
Fire District # 1 

69



Fire District # 2 
Fire District #3 
Fire District #4 
Fire District #5 
Fire District #6 
Fire Marshal 
Bureau of Land Management 
Department of Fish and Wildlife 
Office of Arch. & Historic Preservation 
Futurewise 
Port of Benton 
Port of Kennewick 
Council of Governments 

70



FINAL DRAFT 

2013 Update to the 
Benton County 

Solid Waste Plan 

'roi:wlV\A,urp" to W,Cll/\,/AgLV1,g Hie coMA,pveViel!\,sLve soLLo! wciste /AV\,o! MA,Oo!er!Ate rLsf.G 

wciste MA,/A 11\,/Agevt-tel!\,t St)stevvts Lil\, 12.eV1,l:OI/\, C,owvitt:J.' 

Prepared for: 
Benton County Solid Waste 

620 Market St., Prosser, WA 99350 
509-786-5611 

Prepared by: 
HDR ENGINEERING 

2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A, 
Pasco, WA 99301 509-546-2061 

71



* * * * INDEX* * * * 

Chapter 1 

Chapter 2 

Chapter 3 

Chapter 4 

Chapter 5 

Chapter 6 

Chapter 7 

Chapter 8 

Chapter 9 

Appendix A 

Appendix B 

Appendix C 

Appendix D 

Introduction 

Waste Stream Analysis 

Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, 

Recycling, and Organics 

Collection Systems 

Transfer and Disposal 

Miscellaneous Wastes 

Moderate Risk Waste 

Administration and Enforcement ............. . 

Implementation 

Waste Composition Data 

MRW Facility Final Siting Memo 

lnterlocal Agreement 

WUTC Cost Assessment Questionnaire 

Preliminary Draft Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
August 2013 

1-ltol-13 

2-1 to 2-6 

3-1 to 3-21 

4-1 to 4-13 

5-1 to 5-9 

6-1 to 6-20 

7-1 to 7-11 

8-1 to 8-8 

9-1 to 9-10 

Index 

72



Chapter 1 

Introduction 

73



74



Chapter l Introduction 

1.0 Introduction 

The 2013 Benton County Comprehensive Solid Waste Management and Moderate Risk Waste 
Management Plan (2013 Plan) provides background and guidance for a long-term approach to 

solid waste and moderate risk waste (MRW) management in the region. This 2013 Plan 
comprises the combined comprehensive solid waste management plan (CSWMP) and Local 
Hazardous Waste/Moderate Risk Waste (MR W) Plan for the incorporated and unincorporated 

areas of Benton County (combined Plan). 

1.1 Purpose and Organization of Plan 

The purpose of this 2013 Plan is to serve as a "roadmap" to managing the comprehensive solid 
waste and MRW management systems in Benton County. The 2013 Plan was developed as a 

joint effort of Benton County and the cities of Benton City, Kennewick, Prosser, Richland, and 
West Richland. It is intended to provide citizens and decision makers in Benton County with a 
guide to implement, monitor, and evaluate future activities in the planning area for a 20-year 
period. The recommendations for the 2013 Plan not only guide local decision makers, but 

substantiate the need for local funds and state grants to underwrite solid waste and MRW 

projects. 

The 2013 Plan conforms to the requirements of the State Solid Waste Management "Reduction 
and Recycling Act" (RCW 70.95, and follows suggested protocol as outlined in "Guidelines for 
the Development of Local Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Plans and Plan Revisions" 

(Waste 2 Resource Program, February 2010, Publication No. 10-07-005). 

The MRW Plan has been prepared to meet the planning requirements prescribed in the Local 
Hazardous Waste Planning Guidelines, RCW 70. l 05.220 and RCW 70.951.020, and follows the 
suggested protocol as outlined in Guidelines for Developing and Updating Local Hazardous 

Waste Plans (Waste 2 Resources Program, October 2009, Publication No. 09-07-073). The 
purpose of the MR W Plan is to establish the goals and objectives for the safe handling and 
management of moderate risk waste, which is composed of household hazardous waste (HHW) 
and conditionally exempt small quantity generator (CESQG) waste generated in the County. The 
Plan will direct and guide the management of these wastes over a twenty year planning period, 
from 2010 to 2030. The recommendations included in the MRW Plan are based on existing 

conditions and forecasts of future conditions in the County. 

The Plan is organized as follows: 

Chapter 1 

Chapter 2 
Chapter 3 
Chapter 4 

Introduction and Background of the Planning Area 
Waste Stream Analysis 
Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

Collection Systems 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 1-1 

75



Chapter I 1 ntroduction 

Chapter 5 
Chapter 6 
Chapter 7 

Chapter 8 
Chapter 9 

Transfer and Disposal 
Miscellaneous Wastes 

Moderate Risk Waste 
Administration and Enforcement 
Implementation 

1.2 2013 Plan Goals and Objectives 

The intent of this Plan is to establish the foundation for the proper management of solid waste 

and MRW in Benton County. This Plan update incorporates the following goals and objectives: 

Goal #1: Emphasize public outreach and educational programs. 

Objectives: 

• Expand methods of outreach, including use of social media. 
• Host and advertise events to increase paiticipation. 
• Coordinate events regionally. 
• Link regional websites. 
• Provide all types of information, including financial. 

Goal #2: Continue developing solid waste programs and projects that promote 

and maintain a high level of public health and safety which protects the human 

and natural environment of Benton County. 

Objectives: 

• Address the management of all types of solid waste. 
• Lead by example in environmental protection and in meeting environmental regulations. 
• Provide consistency among resource, land use, and waste management plans. 
• Address illegal accumulation of waste at residences and other locations. 

Goal #3: Manage solid wastes in a manner that promotes, in order of priority: 

waste reduction, reuse, and recycling, with source separation of recyclables as 

the preferred method. 

Objectives: 

• Work toward reaching a diversion rate of 50% by 2020. 
• Emphasize programs for commercial waste diversion. 
• Establish consistent methodologies to measure the baseline and future progress in 

achieving waste diversion. 
• Obtain accurate data on waste diversion activities. 
• Support statewide product stewardship policies. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 1-2 

76



Chapter l Introduction 

Goal #4: Encourage and expand coordination and communication regarding 

solid waste issues among all jurisdictions, agencies, and private firms in Benton 

County. 

Objectives: 

• Encourage consistent policies across jurisdictions. 
• Encourage public involvement in the planning and implementation process. 
• Emphasize local responsibility for solving solid waste management issues. 

Goal #5: Provide for efficient collection, transfer, and disposal of MSW and 

recyclables. 

Objectives: 

• Ensure access to collection or drop-off services for residences, businesses, and industry. 
• Locate recycling and solid waste transfer, processing, and disposal facilities to optimize 

service levels and transportation efficiencies. 
• Ensure adequate disposal capacity. 

Goal #6: Establish guidelines and strategies for management of specific waste 

streams. 

Objectives: 

• Develop a plan to prepare for management of disaster debris. 
• Develop Best Management Practices for agricultural waste reuse and recycling. 
• Develop a plan for managing tires. 
• Develop a plan for managing universal waste. 
• Continue and expand the use oflitter work crews. 

Goal #7: Promote and reduce obstacles to the development of new solid waste 

technologies and facilities. 

Objectives: 

• Identify specific waste streams appropriate for technology or facility development. 
• Identify regionally beneficial opportunities. 

Planning Authorities 

1.2.1. Solid Waste Advisory Committee 

According to Chapter 70.95 RCW, each county shall establish a local solid waste advisory 
committee (SW AC) to assist in the development of programs and policies for solid waste 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 1-3 

77



Chapter I ]ntroduction 

handling and disposal, and to review and comment upon proposed rules, policies, or ordinances 

prior to their adoption. Two primary responsibilities of the SW AC are to advise on the 2013 
Plan development and to assist in the plan adoption process. This Plan Update was prepared 
under the direction and guidance of the SW AC. The SWAC has participated in the 2013 Plan 

development by reviewing the previous plan and draft versions of the 2013 plan, providing input 
and comment on all issues covered by the 2013 Plan, acting as a liaison to their constituencies, 

and assisting in public involvement. The committee also reviewed the complete draft and final 
plans, and will be asked to recommend the 2013 Plan for adoption by the county and 
municipalities. After the 2013 Plan is adopted, the SW AC will routinely evaluate 
implementation of recommended programs, and will help to promote waste reduction and 
recycling throughout the region. SW AC members will also paiticipate in amending the 2013 

Plan, if necessary. 

Members of the SWAC are included in Exhibit 1-1. Meetings are whenever action by the 
SW AC is needed, or at least quarterly. Minutes of the meetings are on file in the County Public 

Works office. 

Exhibit 1-1. Solid Waste Advisory Committee Members, 2013 

Darrick Dietrich, Chair Basin/Ed's Disposal, Inc. Khris Olsen Public Citizen 
------------

Shon Small Benton County Patrick Puntney Clayton-Ward 
---··-·----·· 

Lloyd Carnahan City of Benton City Pete Rogalsky City of Richland 
-·--··-·--------·---~ 

John Deskins City of Kennewick Roscoe Slade City of West Richland 
·-·---···--·-·-···---···---··-····-··-·····--· 

Bob Elder City of Prosser Jeff Wheatley Waste Management 
-----·-----·-·" ___ 
Mike Jewett Sanitary Disposal 

1.2.2. Role of Local Governments 

The cities of Benton County have chosen to fulfill their solid waste management planning 
responsibilities by paiticipating with the county in preparing a joint city-county plan for solid 

waste management. 

The 2013 Plan has been developed with Benton County as the lead agency and participation and 
cooperation defined in an inter-local agreement among the County and the cities of Benton City, 
Kennewick, Prosser, Richland, and West Richlai1d, with only the Hanford area excluded. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 l-4 

78



Chapter I Introduction 

1.3 Solid Waste Planning History in Benton County 

This 2013 Plan is the most recent plan and supersedes all previous Benton County solid and 
hazardous waste plans, including the 1977 Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Plan.for 

Benton and Franklin Counties, the 1994 Benton-Franklin Counties Comprehensive Solid Waste 
Plan, and the 2006 Solid Waste Management Plan Update (the 2006 Plan). 

Exhibit 1-2. lists key recommendations from the 2006 Plan and their current implementation 

status. 

Exhibit 1-2. Status of Previous Solid Waste Management Plan Recommendations 

Public Education and Outreach 

1. Develop and distribute bilingual outreach materials. 

2. Develop and distribute direct mailing newsletter. 

3. Develop phone book section insert with information on solid waste 
and recycling. 

4. Increase use of social media and web sites for information 
dispersion. 

5. Provide technical assistance to schools and businesses. 

Waste Reduction 

1. County to procure recycled content products. 

2. Develop environmentally preferable purchasing criteria for 
computers and electronics. 

3. Implement City/County waste reduction policies. 

4. Develop and implement methods to measure waste reduction 
results. 

5. Provide reuse or swap shops, or both, at landfill or drop-off sites for 
used residential materials 

Recycling 

1. Implement internal recycling program for County operations. 

2. Implement special event recycling. 

3. Expand recycling drop-box program. 

4. Implement rewards program for residential recyclers. 

5. Implement recognition program for commercial waste reduction 
and recycling successes. 

6. Provide education to businesses on recycling. 

7. Provide commercial waste audit assistance. 

Organics 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 

Ongoing 

Ongoing in City of 
Richland 

Not implemented 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Implemented 

Implemented 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Not implemented 

1-5 

79



Chapter I Introduction 

~ - ' "< 

1" Expand yard waste chipping program" 

2. Encourage food waste management at restaurants and other 
establishments, such as donations to food banks, processing for 
animal waste, or rendering. 

3. Investigate opportunities for biomass processing. 

4. Assess feasibility of in- or out-of-county composting facility. 

Collection Systems 

1. Change service levels to capture more households for recycling. 

Transfer and Disposal 

1. Expand Horn Rapids Landfill to ensure in-county disposal capacity. 

2. Assess long-haul of MSW out of City of Richland. 

3. Expand local transfer station capacity. 

Construction and Demolition Debris 

1. Provide education programs for contractors. 

2. Establish construction, demolition, and inert waste diversion 
specifications for public projects. 

3. Use recycled content building specifications for public projects. 

4. Develop disaster management plan. 

5. Establish locations for staging and temporary storage of disaster 
debris. 

6. Assess development of regional C&D facility. 

Wood Waste 

1. Support diversion at transfer stations and landfills. 

2. Provide public education on facilities to divert wood waste. 

Industrial Wastes 

1. Continue to monitor and regulate industrial waste disposal; provide 
assistance as necessary. 

Agricultural Wastes 

1. Form committee to discuss potential opportunities for alternative 
energy industries using agricultural waste. 

Tires 

1. Implement City/County purchasing programs for recycled tire 
products. 

2. Reduce City/County tire waste through maintenance and repair 
program. 

3. Provide tire waste public education programs. 

Biomedical Wastes 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 

Ongoing 

Not implemented 

Ongoing 

Implemented 

Ongoing 

Not Implemented 

Ongoing 

Not Implemented 

Not Implemented 

Not Implemented 

Not Implemented 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Not implemented 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

1-6 

80



Chapter I lntroduction 

1. Provide education materials for correct management of residential 
medical waste. 

2. Collect sharps and outdated pharmaceuticals at MRW collection 
sites. 

Asbestos 

1. Educate homeowners on proper handling methods. 

Moderate Risk Wastes 

1. Expand public education program. 

2. Provide information on alternative products. 

3. Use mobile collection center to target rural areas. 

4. Expand household hazardous waste collection to include 
biomedical waste generated by households. 

5. Implement recognition program for businesses. 

6. Provide business collection assistance. 

7. Continue enforcement efforts. 

Tank Pumping 

1. Continue private sector management of septage. 

2. Assess feasibility of developing facility if disposal becomes limited 
for oil/waste separator sludge. 

3. Continue private sector management of fats/oil grease tank 
pumping. 

Electronic Wastes 

1. Inventory available opportunities fore-waste collection and 
recycling. 

2. Establish relationships with recyclers and programs to recycle e
waste. 

Administration 

1. Facilitate interagency cooperation. 

Enforcement 

1. Coordinate enforcement activities among responsible agencies. 

2. Improve coordination among County agencies, cities, and other 
relevant public agencies responsible for illegal dumping cleanup, 
education, and prevention programs. 

3. Develop coordinated public outreach and education program. 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Not implemented 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

1.3.1. City of Richland 2011 Solid Waste Management Plan 

The 201 J City of Richland Solid Waste Management Plan documents existing waste 
management policies and current programs established and operated by the City. The City's 
plan is incorporated by reference into the County plan, and is not intended to replace the City's 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 l-7 

81



Chapter 1 Introduction 

commitment to the Benton County Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Plan and Interlocal 

Agreement. Copies of Richland's Solid Waste Management Plan may be obtained by contacting 
the City's Public Works Department. 

The City's plan serves as a guide to Richland's solid waste management approach in the years 
ahead. Highlights of the plan's recommendations include the following: 

• Enhance existing waste and recycling programs for commercial customers. 
• Continue curbside collection of food waste by the commercial sector. 
• Expand Horn Rapids Landfill. 
• Expand diversion of construction and demolition materials at Horn Rapids Landfill as 

markets allow. 
• Support diversion of wood waste at transfer station and landfill. 
• Encourage and support research and development of alternative energy industries and 

development of new recycling technologies. 
• Promote programs and provide incentives that encourage and support waste reduction, 

reuse, and recycling. 

1.4 Relationship to Other Plans 

The solid waste management plan must be viewed in the context of the overall planning process 
within all jurisdictions. As such, it must function in conjunction with various other plans, 
planning policy documents, and studies which deal with related matters. Included among these 
are the County Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code, Shoreline Management Master Plan, 

capital facility plans, emergency management plans, watershed plans, and floodplain 
management plans. 

1.4.1. Benton County Comprehensive Plan 

The planning guidelines require that the solid waste management plan reference comprehensive 

land use plans for all participating jurisdictions to ensure that the solid waste management plan is 
consistent with policies set forth in the other documents. This includes the Benton County 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan 2006 Update (with revisions). 

Benton County's Comprehensive Plan is the official statement adopted by the Benton County 

Board of Commissioners (Board) setting forth goals and policies to protect the health, welfare, 
safety, and quality of life of Benton County's residents. The fundamental purpose of the plan is 
to manage growth and land use in order to sustain and enhance the quality of life for county 

residents, as that quality is defined by the residents themselves via the public process. The plan 
expresses a long-range vision of how citizens want their rural community to look and function in 
the future. The plan helps to focus, coordinate, and direct the many diverse activities of County 

departments by providing a comprehensive and common vision. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 1-8 

82



Chapter 1 Introduction 

1.4.2. Shoreline Management Plans 

Shoreline management plans establish policies and regulations for development along shorelines. 
Shorelines include all waters of the state, including reservoirs, floodplains, and their associated 
wetlands. While the area is recognized as arid and semi-arid, there are a number of hydrological 
features meeting the definitions for protection under the Washington Shoreline Management Act 
of 1972. Benton County contains Mound Pond and Yellepit Pond. The shorelines of the 

Columbia and Yakima Rivers are also regulated by the Shoreline Management Act. The Benton 
County Shoreline Management Master Plan prohibits development of sanitary landfills along 
shorelines. 

1.5 Background of the Planning Area 

The planning area includes Benton County and the cities of Benton City, Kennewick, Prosser, 
Richland, and West Richland, with only the Hanford area excluded. The county is bordered on 
the west by Klickitat and Yakima counties, on the north by Grant county, on the east by Franklin 
and Walla Walla counties, and on the south by Umatilla county, Oregon. 

1.5.1 Population 

Between 1990 and 2010, the County's population increased from 112,560 to 188,931, a 68% 
increase. Exhibit 1-3 contains population data for 1990 -2010. 

Exhibit 1-3. Benton County Population 1990-2010 

Area 
. .. .. 

1990 .. 2000 .. 2005' .. ~lO .. 
Benton County 112,560 142,475 159,286 188,931 

Unincorporated 27,849 33, 169 34,979 43,453 

Incorporated 84,711 109,306 124,307 145,478 

Source: 2011 update to the Benton County Comprehensive Plan 

There are five population centers in Benton County: Benton City, Kennewick, Prosser, Richland, 

and West Richland. Between 2005 and 2010, the County's population increased nearly 19%. 
The population growth for Benton County between 2005 and 20 I 0 is summarized in 

Exhibit 1-4. As indicated, the City of Benton City experienced the highest rate of growth during 
the period, while the City of Richland experienced the greatest increase in population. 

Exhibit 1-4. Benton County Population, 2005-2010 

County Total 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 1-9 

83



C,hapter 1 ]ntroduction 

Unincorporated 34,979 43,453 24.2% 8,474 

Incorporated 124,307 145,478 17.0% 21, 171 

Benton City 2,901 3,779 30.3% 878 

Kennewick 62,715 71,794 14.5% 9,079 

Prosser 5,331 5,668 6.3% 337 

Richland 43,309 52,901 22.1% 9,592 

West Richland 10,051 11,336 12.8% 1,285 

Source: 2011 update to the Benton County Comprehensive Plan 

The land area of the County is 1,782 square miles. Jn 2011, a little over 50% of the county was 
in some form of agricultural use. Exhibit 1-5 indicates the distribution of land use in the 
County. 

Exhibit 1-5. Benton County Land Use 

Cities and Urban Growth Area 71,235 111 6°/o 

Hanford Site 266,220 416 24°/o 

Unincorporated Area 

Irrigated Agriculture 251,406 393 23°/o 

Dryland Agriculture 309,373 484 28o/o 

Rangeland & Undeveloped 183,973 288 16°/o 

Residential (rural) 22,342 35 2% 

Public 5,945 9 1 o/o 

Commercial 3,035 0.5 0 

Industrial 1,526 2.3 0 

Aggregate 367 0.57 0 

Unbuildable 251 0.39 0 

Total Unincorporated Area 778,218 1,235 70% 

Total County Area 1,115,673 1, 782 100% 

Source: 2006 Benton County Comprehensive Plan, updated 2011 

The Hanford Reservation accounts for over 24% of the County's area, or about 416 square miles. 
The land use trend on the Hanford Site can be broadly described as the gradual reintegration of 
major portions ofHanford's resources (land, water, and infrastructure) into the economy, 

custom, and culture and regulatory authority of local jurisdictions within which the Site lies. The 

Site is presently being cleaned up for future uses that, in addition to federal missions, will likely 
include non-defense related private and public sector uses. Local jurisdictions are preparing land 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 1-10 

84



Chapter 1 Introduction 

use plans for the portions of the Hanford Site within their boundaries. The Hanford Site is not 
included in the county's solid waste management plan. 

1.5.2 Economy 

During the current decade, all of eastern Washington is experiencing significant population and 
economic growth for reasons beyond local influence. lt is anticipated that the current regional 
growth trend will continue into the near and mid-term future (5 to 10 years). 

The region's economy is anchored in agriculture, bio and high-technology, manufacturing, 
service industry, and government. Businesses range from a U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) 

national laboratory, high-tech firms, environmental and engineering companies, to food growers 
and processors, wineries, and manufacturers. Three major sectors have been the principal 
driving forces of the economy in the Benton County since the early 1970s: 

• DOE and its contractors operating the Hanford Site; 
• Supply System in its construction and operation of nuclear power plants; and 
• The agricultural community, including a substantial food-processing component. 

Except for a minor amount of agricultural commodities sold to local-area consumers, the goods 
and services produced by these sectors are exported outside the County. In addition to the direct 
employment and payrolls, these major sectors also support a sizable number of jobs in the local 
economy through their procurement of equipment, supplies, and business services. A summary 
of the non-agricultural employment is provided in Exhibit 1-6. 

In addition to these three major employment sectors, three other components can be readily 

identified as contributors to the economic base of the county. The first of these, loosely termed 
"other major employers," include the five major non-Hanford employers in the region. A 
summary of the major employers of the region (Benton and Franklin counties) is provided in 

Exhibit 1-7. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 J. j j 

85



Chapter 1 Introduction 

# 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Exhibit 1-6. Tri-Cities MSA Non-Agricultural Employment 
February 2011 

Total Nonfarm 98,500 

Goods Producing 12,700 

Construction 5,700 

Manufacturing 7,000 

Services Providing 85,800 

Private Services 67,700 

Trade, Transportation, Utilities 15,200 

Financial Services 3,700 

Government 18, 100 

Source: Trl-City Development Council, accessed January 2013. 

!1ttp:llwww.tridec.org!site selectionltri-cities demographics/labor forceemplovn1entl 

Exhibit 1-7. Major Employers in the Tri-Cities Region 
·.·. 

~········ ,••' 

Battelle/Pacific Northwest National Laboratorv Research and Develonment 

URS Government 

CH2M Hill Government 

ConAQra Value Added Anriculture Products 

Bechtel National Government 

Kadlec Medical Center Health Services 

Washington River Protection Government 

Mission Suooort Alliance Government 

Washington Closure Hanford Government 

Tyson Foods Value Added Aariculture Products 

Enerav Northwest Research and DeveloomenUManufacturina 

Kennewick General Hospital Health Services 

Broetje Orchards Value Added Aariculture Products 

Lourdes Health Network Health Services 

AREVA Manufacturina 

Apollo Inc. Manufacturina 

Lockheed Martin Technoloav/Government 

Boise Cascade Manufacturina 

Fluor Federal Services Government 

Department of Enerav (DOE) Government 
Source: Tri-City Development Council, accessed January 2013. http://VW11W.tridec.org/site selectionltri
cities de1nographics/major industrv empJoyers/#Top 25 Employers 

Final Draft 20 I 3 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 

~ 
4,485 

3,500 

3,260 

3,057 

2,850 

2,175 

1,686 

1,478 

1,370 

1,300 

1,222 

1,072 

1,000 

807 

662 

625 

600 

571 

541 

414 

1-12 

86



Chapter 1 Introduction 

1.6 Evaluation of Potential Landfill Sites 

A preliminary siting review assessment was performed in 1994, with the intent of providing an 

initial assessment of the feasibility of siting a new landfill in Benton County (copy of feasibility 
on file with Benton County). Some of the locational standards are not appropriate for evaluating 
an entire county at once. These criteria are site specific and should be used when evaluating a 
single candidate site or a limited number of potential sites. The Solid Waste Management Plan 
should not be used for detailed site analysis, but rather to identify areas that can be examined in 

detail in other studies. 

Areas addressed in the study included the following, all other factors determined by the Benton-
Franklin Health District. 

• Geology 

• Surface water 

• Climatic factors 

• Groundwater 

• Slope 

• Land use 

• Soil 

• Cover material 

• Toxic air emissions 

• Flooding 

• Capacity 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 1-13 

87



Chapter 2 

Waste Stream Analysis 

88



89



2.0 Waste Stream Analysis 

An accurate analysis of the types and quantities of waste generated provides the necessary data 
for identifying existing and future solid waste system needs, and the policies and programs to be 
implemented to meet those needs. This chapter analyzes Benton County's waste generation 
trends, and utilizes historical and projected population data to produce a 20-year (2012 to 2032) 
waste generation forecast. The chapter also includes waste composition data for the disposed 
waste stream, in order to identify potential opportunities for recycling, composting or other 
diversion activities. 

For the purposes of this analysis, waste generation is defined as tons of solid waste disposed and 

diverted in Benton County. Most types of solid waste are disposed of in landfills; however, 
some wastes are incinerated, used as soil amendment, or disposed in sites designated for a 
specific type of waste. The largest component of the waste stream is mixed municipal solid 
waste (MSW) and consists of waste typically generated by residences, offices, and other 

businesses and institutions, excluding special wastes. Special wastes include industrial waste, 
wood waste, demolition debris, biomedical wastes, sludge and septic tank pumpings, tires, and 
other types of wastes. Each category of special waste has its own characteristics and handling 

needs. Special waste and hazardous wastes produced by households, and by businesses in small 
quantities, are addressed separately in Chapters 6 and 7 of this Plan. 

Data used in this Plan reflect a key difference between disposed and diverted quantities of waste. 
As used in this Plan, disposed solid waste is considered to be all solid waste placed in landfills 
within, or outside of the county. Diverted waste includes waste that is recycled, composted, or 
otherwise dive1ted from disposal. 

2.1 Waste Generation 

According to data from Ecology, the total amount of waste generated in Benton County in 2010 
was approximately 263,000 tons, including 175,000 tons disposed and 88,000 tons diverted. 
Exhibit 2-1 depicts the amount of solid waste generated in the County between 2005 and 2010. 

The overall decline in generation beginning in 2008 is indicative of the economic slowdown and 
similar to other regions across the state and country. 

The disposal data includes municipal solid waste that is disposed in landfills, as well as other 

types of disposed waste, such as construction, demolition, and inert debris and petroleum 
contaminated soil. The diversion data incorporates recycled materials as well as materials that 
are diverted, such as asphalt and concrete, and wood waste diverted for energy recovery. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 2-l 

90



Chapter 2 Waste Generation 

Exhibit 2-1. County-wide Waste Generation, 2005 - 2010 

350,000 

300,000 

200,000 

150,000 

100,000 

50,000 

2.2 Diversion Rate 

The County's overall diversion rates for the years 2005 through 20 I 0 are shown in Exhibit 2-2. 
The decline in the diversion rate can be attributed to the decline in the economy, and most 
notably decline in building construction, which contributed significantly to the quantity of waste 
diverted, specifically inert, asphalt and concrete, etc. The County has established a goal of 50% 
diversion by 2020. Policies and programs will be recommended in the Plan to enable the County 

to reach the diversion goal. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 2-2 

91



C:hapter 2 Waste Generation 

Exhibit 2-2. County-wide Diversion Rate, 2005 to 2010 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

2.3 Waste Generation Projections 

2.3.1. Per Capita Waste Generation 

The methodology used to estimate solid waste generation rates for the next 20 years consists of 

using the per capita generation rate and multiplying this rate by population projections. The per 
capita waste generation rate for the State of Washington in 2009 was 12.37 lbs/person/day 
(disposed amounts include all waste that was disposed in MSW, limited purpose, and inert 
landfills and incinerators, both in-state and exported). Utilizing this number and Benton County 

population data, the 20 l 0 waste generation in Benton County would be calculated to be over 
426,000 tons, which is more than the 263,600 tons reported for the County in 2010. Therefore, 

this study calculates the County's per capita generation rate using the known data from 2010. 

That calculation is: 

263,603 (tons) 2,000 lb 365 days 20 I 0 Per Capita 
Waste 

Generation Rate 

Total Waste Generation (tons) 

Population (pp) 
-------x x 

188,931 (pp) 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 

ton year 

7.65 
lb/pp/day 

2-3 

92



Chapter 2 Waste Generation 

2.3.2. Population Projections 

The population projections for the Solid Waste Management Plan planning period 2010 to 2032 
utilizes the 2011 County Comprehensive Plan. Based on this data, it is estimated that the 
County's population will reach 250,842 by the year 2032. In Exhibit 2-3, the population 
projections are shown in 5 year increments through 2030, and then extrapolated to 2032 for the 
purposes of waste generation planning. The population of the County is anticipated to continue 
growing over the next 20 years, by approximately 7-8 % every 5 years. This is based on the 

Washington State Office of Financial Management High Series population projections. 

Exhibit 2-3. Benton County Population Projections 2010-2032 

275,000 

250,000 

225,000 

200,000 

175,000 
2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2032 

Source: Washington State Office of Financial Management. 

Utilizing the population projections from the County Comprehensive Plan and the per capita 

waste generation rate above, the estimated waste generation over the 20-year planning period is 
calculated, as shown in Exhibit 2-4. 

Exhibit 2-4. Benton County Solid Waste Projections 2010-2032 

. .. 
2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2032 . 

Projected Waste 
Generation (tons) 263,603 284,259 305,380 326,505 346,517 350,206 

Waste generation is influenced by various demographic and economic factors, including changes 
in levels of employment and personal income, the value of recyclable materials, the price of 
disposal services, changes in product design and packaging, and changes in behavior affecting 
waste reduction and recycling activities. Some of these factors are difficult to measure over 

time, while others are so interrelated that using them in a statistical analysis lowers the accuracy 
of the forecast. For these reasons, a forecast was developed based on the historical waste 

generation and using population to indicate the upper limit of potential increase in solid waste 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 2-4 

93



Chapter 2 Waste Generation 

generation within the county. However, it is important to realize that any of these related factors 
may change within the forecast period. To maintain accuracy, the generation rate should be 

monitored and projections should be routinely updated. 

2.3.3. Level of Service 

The population projections for Benton County predict a growth of approximately 62,000 people 

between 20 I 0 and 2032. In order to maintain an adequate level of service, Benton County will 
need to provide waste management programs for an additional 86,500 tons estimated to be 

generated in 2032. 

2.4 Waste Composition 

In addition to the amount of waste being generated, it is important to evaluate the components of 
disposed waste in order to identify potentially recyclable and compostable materials. This 
information is valuable in planning effective recycling and waste minimization programs. 

Several factors affect waste composition, including opportunities available for recycling or 
composting materials, types of business and industry, the area climate, occurrence of natural 

disasters, mix of urban versus rural designations, the density of single and multi-family 

dwellings, and technological advances. 

No detailed waste composition study has been performed to date for Benton County. Waste 
composition studies from other jurisdictions are summarized by Waste Generation Area in the 
2009 Washington Statewide Waste Characterization Study (Ecology, 2010). Jn order to estimate 

the types and quantities of materials that comprise Benton County's disposed waste stream, the 
categorical percentages from the Central Waste Generation Area, where Yakima and Grant 
Counties were sampled, were multiplied with the 2010 disposed tonnage for Benton County. 

The results of the composition analysis are summarized in Exhibit 2-5; the complete analysis is 

included in Appendix A. As indicated, the top 5 material types include: organics (food, leaves 
and grass); construction and demolition materials (carpet, soil, rocks, sand, asphalt roofing, and 
insulation); paper packaging (cardboard, kraft paper, mixed/low grade paper packaging); wood 

debris (painted wood, pallets and crates, wood waste and treated wood); and consumer products 

(textiles, furniture, televisions). 

The information presented in Exhibit 2-5 and Appendix A is important for identifying the types 
and quantities of materials that could potentially be targeted for recycling, composting or other 

diversion programs. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 2-5 

94



C-hapter 2 Waste Generation 

Exhibit 2-5. Waste Disposal Composition Summary for Benton County 

.. . 
. · .· Estt~a~ a11r1ton 

Material Percent' 
i;;Qunty Ton~ . 

. . . ·· 

Paper Packaging 10.4% 19,649 

Paper Products 8.2% 15,492 

Plastic Packaging 6.7% 12,658 

Plastic Products 4.8% 9,069 

Glass 3.5% 6,613 

Metal 6.2% 11,714 

Organics 26.2% 49,500 

Wood Debris 9.9% 18,704 

Construction Materials 11.1% 20,971 

Consumer Products 8.5% 16,059 

Hazardous/Special Wastes 3.2% 6,046 

Residues 1.2% 2,267 

TOTAL 100% 188,742 

Source: Washington 2009 Statewide Waste Characterization Study, Central Waste 
Generation Area 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 2-6 

95



Chapter 3 

Education and Outreach, 
Waste Reduction, Recycling, 

and Organics 

96



97



3.1 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, 
Recycling, and Organics 

This chapter describes existing programs and potential options for reducing the amount of waste 
being generated and disposed in Benton County. The programs discussed in this chapter are 

organized as follows: 

• Education and Outreach 
• Waste Reduction 
• Recycling 
• Organics 

The first section describes education and outreach, which is key to successful waste 

education/recycling programs and a required element of the plan (RCW 70.95.090(7)(b)(iv)). 
Programs recommended for implementation will educate and promote concepts of waste 
reduction and recycling throughout the County. The next section, waste reduction, discusses 

programs that reduce the amount of waste generated, while the final two sections discuss 
programs that reduce the amount of waste requiring disposal (recycling and organics 
management). 

3.1 Education and Outreach 

The County's solid waste planning goals and objectives in the area of public education and 

outreach are: 

Goal #1: Emphasize public outreach and educational programs. 

Objectives: 

• Expand methods of outreach, including use of social media 
• Host and advertise events to increase participation 
• Coordinate events regionally 
• Link regional websites 
• Provide all types of information, including financial 

Goal #2: Encourage and expand coordination and communication regarding solid waste 
issues among all jurisdictions, agencies, and private firms in Benton County. 

Objectives: 

• Encourage consistent policies across jurisdictions. 
• Encourage public involvement in the planning and implementation process. 
• Emphasize local responsibility for solving solid waste management issues. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-1 

98



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

3.1.1 Existing Programs 

Public education and outreach programs supporting waste reduction, recycling and organics 
management activities have been ongoing. Local governments have developed programs on a 
variety of topics. Education efforts include the following: 

• Display booth 

• Speakers bureau 

• Solid waste videos 

• Mailings and advertisements 

• Promotional materials 

• Composting workshops 

• Compost bin sales 

• Environmental workshops 

• Classroom outreach 

• Website 

• Social Media 

Examples of outreach and education programs developed within the county are described below. 

Benton County--

The County provides information on its website and on its Facebook page about the location of 
drop-off and buy-back sites for recyclables, as well as ways to reduce and reuse materials, the 

proper disposal of household hazardous waste, the Washington E-Cycle Program, used motor oil 
collection sites, and disposal of medical waste. The County purchases and maintains recycling 
containers that are available to public events for free upon request. The County also provides 
outreach on all its programs at a booth at the County Fair, and information to high schools on 

paper recycling, as well as provides support to the City of Richland"s Green Living Office, and 
the Benton-Franklin Cooperative Extension office's composting seminars. 

City of Richland-· 

The City has a part time "Environmental Education Coordinator"" who provides infonnation to 
the public about various environmental issues effecting the City or community. Information is 

regularly sent out to the public in newsletters, utility bill inserts, press releases to radio and 
television, e-newsletters and other printed publications (including the local newspaper). The 
Green Living Office also has a number of environmental resources available to the public, 
including books, curriculum, handouts, and videos. Programs and presentations relating to the 

environment also are made available to service organizations, businesses, non-profit 

organizations, and students/schools. 

The City's website and social media outlets include information on how to recycle in Richland 

and the materials that are accepted through various programs. The City of Richland bas a 24-

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-2 

99



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, \Vaste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

hour government access channel (CityView, Channel l 3) which regularly plays environmentally 
related videos during the "Eye on our Earth" segment, and runs public service announcements. 
The City has an Electronic Reader Board with waste reduction and recycling information 
uploaded for motorists to see. The City also encourages homeowners to compost in their own 

backyard, and hosts backyard composting programs each year where free bins and books are 
provided to each trained participant. The City has implemented a Green Recognition Program 
for businesses, schools, and organizations to showcase their knowledge and apply for recognition 

awards. 

City of Kennewick--

Each new resident and business is mailed a brochure outlining the City's existing programs. The 
City provides curbside and drop box recycling information on its website, and also offers 
backyard composting workshops. 

3.1.2 Options 

The following are options for public outreach and education programs. 

I. Website and Social Media 

Benton County's website concerning solid waste and recycling program activities has expanded 
since the 2006 SWMP, but could be further expanded to include additional outreach materials 
including bilingual materials, description of how the County is leading by example in waste 

reduction, and regionally coordinated links and messages, including social media links. Benton 
County should regularly update its website to be a successful component of a waste reduction 
and recycling education campaign. As with any promotional medium, the website must be user

friendly, accurate, and interesting. The website should be professionally designed, if possible. 

2. Technical Assistance to Schools and Businesses 

This option recognizes the need to reach schools and businesses regarding their handling of 
waste. Outreach to schools and businesses would offer free technical assistance and waste audits 
to identify opportunities to implement waste reduction, recycling and composting activities. A 

functional waste reduction and recycling program in a school yields daily reminders to the 
students of their direct impacts on the environment. The benefits of this alternative are that 

commercial sources produce a significant portion of solid waste in Washington. This alternative 
is inline with the State's Beyond Waste Plan (Initiative I). 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-3 

100



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

3. Landfill/Facility Tours/Interactive Education 

The County, City of Richland, and private companies could offer tours of the landfill and other 

facilities that engage students and the community with presentations on waste reduction, 
recycling, and other solid waste management issues. 

3.1.3 Recommendations 

The Solid Waste Advisory Committee reviewed the options discussed above and has 
recommended the following options: 

1. Website and Social Media 

The County will strive to make its website more user friendly, and make sure it is updated as 

often as possible. It will include more bilingual material in order to reach out to additional 
residents. More information will be posted on our Facebook page to reach additional residents. 

2. Technical Assistance to Schools and Businesses 

The County will try additional outreach to schools and businesses and offer assistance to their 
staff with waste reduction, recycling and composting activities. 

3.2 Waste Reduction 

Waste reduction is defined as a reduction in the amount and/or toxicity of waste entering the 
waste stream. While all components of an Integrated Solid Waste Management System are 

important, reduction of waste at its source should be applied prior to implementation of other 
techniques, creating less waste to be recycled, reused, composted, incinerated, or landfilled. 

Final Draft 20 l 3 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MR W Plan 

January 2014 3-4 

101



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

The solid waste hierarchy places source reduction as the top priority 

Waste reduction is the most environmentally significant and cost-effective way to impact waste 
generation. Reducing waste is achieved by reducing consumption, reusing durable products, 

retrieving materials from disposal, reducing the toxicity of the waste stream, or a combination of 
these options. Unlike recycling or diversion, most waste reduction methods require no material 
processing. A key component of both volume and toxicity reduction involves moving 
"upstream" to encourage manufacturers to make less wasteful, less hazardous products. 

The County's planning goal and objectives in the area of waste reduction are as follows: 

Goal #3: Manage solid wastes in a manner that promotes, in order of priority: waste 
reduction, reuse, and recycling, with source separation of recyclables as the preferred 
method. 

Objectives: 

• Support and maintain a solid waste system that protects human health and safety 
• Work towards reaching a diversion rate of 50% by 2020. 
• Emphasize programs for commercial waste diversion. 
• Establish consistent methodologies to measure the baseline and future progress in 

achieving waste diversion. 
• Obtain accurate data on waste diversion activities. 
• Support statewide product stewardship policies 

The following sections present a discussion of existing waste reduction programs and options for 
expanded or new residential and commercial waste reduction programs. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-5 

102



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

3.2.1 Existing Programs 

Area jurisdictions are involved in several internal activities. The county and cities are working 
to instill waste reduction and recycling as a work ethic among employees, and to set an example 
for the community. 

Washington State offers a statewide, online materials exchange, www.2good2toss.com, for 
municipalities. This website provides a free, online bulletin board for residents to sell or give 
away used, but useable items, instead of sending them to the landfill. The City of Richland lists 
www.2good2toss.com as well as other outlets, and they provide a handout with community reuse 
ideas for material exchange and reuse, such as second-hand stores, Goodwill, New Beginnings 

Thrift Store, and antique stores. Habitat for Humanity operates a ReStore in Richland where 
used and surplus building materials are sold. 

The City of Kennewick is currently updating its website, and department managers are 
evaluating how to include the solid waste program, which will likely highlight information on 
waste reduction, reuse, and recycling. There are several second hand or thrift stores in the City, 
including Goodwill, St. Vincent de Paul, Value Village, Second Hand Haven, and Plato's Closet. 

3.2.2 Options 

Following are potential programs and policies for waste reduction: 

1. Support Product Stewardship and Extended Producer Responsibility Policies 

Product Stewardship is the act of minimizing health, safety, environmental and social impacts, 
and maximizing economic benefits of a product and its packaging throughout all lifecycle stages. 
The producer of the product has responsibility to minimize adverse impacts, along with other 
stakeholders, such as suppliers, retailers, and consumers, who also play a role. Stewardship can 

be either voluntary or required by law. 

Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is a mandatory type of product stewardship that 
includes, at a minimum, the requirement that the producer's responsibility for their product 

extends to post-consumer management of that product and its packaging. There are two related 
features of EPR policy: (1) shifting financial and management responsibility, with government 
oversight, upstream to the producer and away from the public sector; and (2) providing 
incentives to producers to incorporate environmental considerations into the design of their 

products and packaging. 

Benton County could initially support Product Stewardship programs for those items that are 
hazardous or toxic, and cannot be collected and handled safely via existing collection systems. 

Product Stewardship programs should not be for commodities that already pay their own way to 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-6 

103



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

be recycled. Traditional recyclables should be left to the open market to be recycled; and the 
community should encourage greater market development. Policy decisions regarding end of 
life management of materials are the responsibility of the local policy decisions of Benton 

County and the local jurisdictions. 

The County and cities can also become Associate Members of the Northwest Product 

Stewardship Council (NWPSC). Associate members are local, state, regional and federal 
government agencies, businesses, and non-profit organizations that support the NWPSC mission 
and product stewardship principles. Associate Members are required to sign on to the program 
on behalf of their entire agency or organization. Associate Members agree to support product 
stewardship programs and legislation as their agency or organization allows. 

The next step is to work closely with local businesses to promote producer responsibility through 

voluntary initiatives and take-back programs and to work with communities regionally and 
statewide on more comprehensive measures. Some of the next measures the County can also 
consider undertaking include: 

• Adopt a procurement policy that includes Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR). 
• Consider partnerships with local businesses to take-back products they sell that are 

hazardous. 
• Publish aiiicles in newsletters highlighting the program to the general public. 
• Identify businesses, especially manufacturers, and meet with them to explain the 

program. 

2. Environmentally Preferable Products Guidelines 

Environmentally preferable products (EPP) typically are defined as products that have a lesser or 

reduced effect on human health and the environment when compared with competing products 
that serve the same purpose. They include products that have recycled content, reduce waste, use 

Jess energy, are less toxic, and are more durable. 

Some of the benefits of EPP include: 

• Improved ability to meet existing environmental goals. 
• Improved worker safety and health. 
• Reduced liabilities. 
• Reduced health and disposal costs. 

The County and cities would consider giving preference to the purchase of environmentally 

preferable products, and promote vendors/contractors to meet these requirements as well. 

3. County/City Waste Reduction Policies 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-7 

104



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

In addition to educating consumers and businesses, it is important for local governments to 

"practice what they preach." Through numerous, small choices employees make each day, large 
amounts of waste can be prevented. Employees should be encouraged to learn more about waste 
reduction practices and work toward implementing and promoting such practices. Such practices 

by county/city employees should be implemented whenever practicable and cost-effective. 

4. Promote Use of Existing Waste Exchanges 

The County and other cities could promote the use of existing on line materials exchange 

websites. 

5. Promote Use of Reuse Stores and Organizations 

The County and cities could promote the use of existing reuse stores and organizations in the 
County for residents and businesses to donate used clothing, household goods, and other items. 
Promotions could be implemented through the County's website, at clean up events, and other 

regional events. 

6. Waste Reduction Requirements/or New Developments 

The County and cities could require new residential and commercial development projects to 
incorporate measures to reduce the amount of waste generated during construction and operation. 

Examples include incorporating green building guidelines such as recycled content building 
materials, material reuse and recycling requirements, landscaping specifications, construction 

waste diversion, and other measures. 

7. Methods to Measure Waste Management and Reduction Results 

Waste reduction can be an elusive concept to measure. Even when an organization does show a 

reduction in their waste stream over time, without a full characterization of the waste generated 
before and after changes are implemented, it is difficult to prove which initiatives are successful 
and how successful they are. However, it continues to be a vitally important concept because it 

is much easier and less expensive to simply never generate waste then it is to find a way to 
recycle it. For that reason, the County must continue to promote waste reduction methods and 
set an example for other establishments by adopting waste reduction strategies. 

3.2.3 Recommendations 

The Solid Waste Advisory Committee reviewed the options discussed above and has 

recommended the following options: 

I. Support Product Stewardship and Extended Producer Re.1ponsibility Policies 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-8 

105



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, \Vaste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

Benton County supports Product Stewardship programs for those items that are hazardous or 
toxic, and cannot be collected and handled safely via existing collection systems. 

2. Environmentally Pr~ferable Products Guidelines 

The County and cities will research ways to give preference to the purchase of environmentally 

preferable products, and promote vendors/contractors to meet these requirements as well. 

3. County/City Waste Reduction Policies 

The County and cities will research ways to teach their employees to learn more about waste 

reduction and recycling, and work toward implementing and promoting such practices in the 
workplace. 

4. Promote Use ofExisting Waste Exchanges 

The County and other cities will explore ways to promote the use of existing online materials 

exchange websites. 

5. Promote Use of Reuse Stores and Organizations 

The County and cities will explore ways to promote the use of existing reuse stores and 
organizations in the County. 

6. Waste Reduction Requirements/or New Developments 

The County and cities will explore ways to encourage new residential and commercial 
development projects to incorporate measures to reduce the amount of waste generated during 
construction and operation. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-9 

106



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, \Vaste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

Recycling 

Recycling is the second tier in the hierarchy of solid waste management in the State. Although 
Washington State's goal to achieve a statewide recycling rate of 50 percent has not been met, 
recycling has continued to increase. The County's goal and objectives for recycling are 

established in the following: 

Goal #3: Manage solid wastes in a manner that promotes, in order of priority: waste 
reduction, reuse, and recycling, with source separation of recyclables as the preferred 
method. 

Objectives: 

• Work towards reaching a diversion rate of 50% by 2020. 
• Emphasize programs for commercial waste diversion. 
• Establish consistent methodologies to measure the baseline and future progress in 

achieving waste diversion. 
• Obtain accurate data on waste diversion activities. 

3.2.4 Benton County Recycling/Diversion Rate 

There are numerous methodologies for calculating a recycling or diversion rate, as described 
below. 

MSW Recycling Rate: To determine a recycling rate that is consistent and comparable to past 
years, Ecology has measured a very specific part of the solid waste stream since 1986. It is 
roughly the part of the waste stream defined as municipal solid waste by the Environmental 
Protection Agency. It includes durable good, nondurable good, containers and packaging, food 
wastes, and yard trimmings. It does not include industrial waste, inert debris, asbestos, biosolids, 
petroleum contaminated soils or construction, demolition and landclearing debris recycled or 
disposed of at municipal solid waste landfills and incinerators. 

Diversion Rate: Since the mid-l 990s, Ecology has noted very large increases of material 
recovery in "non-MSW" waste streams; most notable are the growing industries in recycling 
asphalt, concrete, and other construction, demolition, and land clearing debris. The recovery of 
these materials for uses other than landfill disposal is termed "diversion." The diversion rate is 
an overall measure which includes materials that fall under the "MSW Recycling Rate" and also 
"diverted" materials. 

It bas been estimated that in 20 l 0, the residents and businesses in the county generated 
approximately 263,000 tons of waste, and approximately 88,000 tons of this waste was diverted 
from disposal, for a diversion rate of33%. The 2010 diversion rate is calculated using the 
following formula: 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-10 

107



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Wa<;te Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

Diversion Rate 
(%) 

Diversion (tons) 

Waste Generation (tons) 

88,243 

263,603 
= 33.48 % 

A summary of the types and quantities of materials dive1ted in Benton County in 2010 is shown 

in Exhibit 3-l. 

Hi h rade 
Mixed 
News a er 
Plastic 
HDPE 

LDPE 
PET 
Plastic - other 
Photo ra hie films 

Container Glass 
Metals 
Ferrous metals 
Non-ferrous metals 

Aluminum cans 
Tin cans 

Yard Debris 

Exhibit 3-1. Benton County Diversion -2010 

9, 134 Batteries - Auto Lead Acid 
Batteries - Household Dry Cell 

258 (alkaline/carbon 
837 Batteries - NiCad/NiMH/Lithium 

2,093 S ecial Wastes 
Antifreeze 

59 As halt and/or Concrete 
Asphaltic Materials (excluding 

117 roofin 
42 Concrete 
27 Electronics 

4 
803 

25,545 
1,964 

195 
48 

3,102 

1,058 
329 

84 
450 

12 
883 

Electronics - com uters/other 
Electronics - CRT/TVs 
Fluorescent Lam s 4 foot 
Fluorescent Lam s (8 foot 
Fluorescent Lam s Other 
Reuse - Clothing & Household 
items 
Reuse - eneral 
Tires burned for ener 
Tires retreaded) 
Tires reused/resold 
Oil Filters 

, other) 

Total 
Source: Washington State Department of Ecology Recycling Data for Benton County 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 

119 

5 
4 

125 
10,076 

10,088 
17,686 

162 
63 
57 
6 
1 
9 

28 
64 
51 
4 

54 
35 

487 
169 

1,907 

88,243 

3-1 l 

108



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

3.2.5 Oregon State Requirements 

Oregon statute (ORS 459.305) requires landfills that accept out-of-state garbage to certify that 
the local governments, which export more than 75,000 tons annually into Oregon for landfill 
disposal, provide the opportunity to recycle and implement recycling education programs. 

Currently, the Cities of Kennewick, Benton City, Prosser and West Richland contract with 
private haulers for garbage service. These private haulers export a portion of that waste to 

Oregon landfills. 

Waste Management, Inc. serves the City of Kennewick, with a population of nearly 74,000 
(based on 2020 Census figures). Waste Management submitted a Waste Reduction Certification 

plan, and it is approved by the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality for the City of 
Kennewick. This Waste Reduction Plan has been approved without the requirement of a 
curbside program; however there is a curbside recycling program in place. 

Basin Disposal, Inc./Ed's Disposal has the contract for the Cities of Benton City, Prosser, and 
West Richland. Basin Disposal has an exemption from ODEQ from the requirements of ORS 

459.305. 

As the Richland landfill nears capacity, and as requirements for use of other available landfill 

opportunities change and become more restrictive, Benton County, their partner Cities and 
Refuse Haulers will need to change and adapt to the in order to meet the needs of their citizens. 

3.2.6 County and City Internal Recycling Programs--

Benton County collects cardboard, paper, plastics and metals from many County buildings, 
which is recycled by local haulers, including Clayton-Ward Recycling. Some County 

maintenance projects reuse materials, such as recycled asphalt, however there is no requirement 

for this practice. 

City of Benton City bas a paper recycling program. Ed's Disposal collects the office paper 

from City facilities, and the City returns its ink cartridges 

City of Kennewick employees collect their office paper and aluminum cans in boxes located in 

all major departments. Cardboard is also separated for recycling. A local recycler picks up the 
materials and transports it to their main collection center for recycling. 

City of Richland collects and recycles office paper, phone books, cardboard, toner cartridges, 
cell phones and rechargeable batteries. In addition, many of the buildings collect aluminum, 

plastic, and tin. Cardboard is also separated for recycling. Materials are collected by staff and 
transported to a local recycler. The City has also adopted a procurement policy for recycled 

content materials (Richland Municipal Code (RMC) Title 3.04.140). The City's intent is to 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-12 

109



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

promote the use of recycled products and recyclable products by the City depmiments, and 

stimulate demand for recycled products and help develop markets for recyclable and reusable 

materials. City departments are to use recycled and recyclable products whenever practical and 

reasonable. The contracts office maintains a list ofrecycled and recyclable products available to 

the City departments. 

City of West Richland has an office paper recycling program. The materials are collected by 

Ed's Disposal. 

City of Prosser has no formal program. City staff recycles office paper and cardboard using 

containers placed in various office spaces. Roadside tree trimming is chipped and used for 

landscaping and/or playground fall zones. Some City road projects have used asphalt road 

grindings for alleyways, however there is no requirement for this practice. 

The development and implementation of these programs help encourage local government 

employees to take the recycling habit home with them, promoting recycling both at home and in 

the workplace. 

Residential and Commercial Recycling Programs-

Benton County--The principal method for collecting recyclables from residents and businesses 

in Benton County is through a system of conveniently located drop boxes. In addition, a number 

of private and non-profit recycling centers provide opportunities to recycle a wide variety of 

materials, such as paper, aluminum, glass, auto batteries, scrap metal, used motor oil, and white 

goods. Materials may be dropped off for free or sold, depending on the item and the recipient. 

Most of the buyback centers and drop-off sites are conveniently located. Some facilities 

specialize in collecting only certain types of materials. For example, one company only accepts 

batteries. Other facilities provide comprehensive collection of such items as glass, aluminum, 

tin, paper, plastic, used oil, scrap metal, cardboard, and car batteries. Usually these facilities pay 

for some materials and accept other materials at no charge. The County maintains a list of 

available recycling opportunities on its website. The locations of drop boxes and buy-back 

centers are provided in Exhibit 3-2. 

Exhibit 3-2. Location of Recycling Drop Boxes and Buy-Back Centers 

Benton City 
Recycling Drop Box Sites 
• 7111 Street and Dale A venue 
• 920 Horne Drive 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 

Ed's Disposal 

3-13 

110



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, \\Taste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

Kennewick 
Kennewick Transfer Station 2627 Ely Street 

Recycling Drop Box Sites 
• 4602 West Clearwater Avenue (Winco parking lot) 
• 2721 West Kennewick Avenue and Highway 395 

(McDonalds parking lot) 
• West 7th Avenue and South Washington Street 
• 7011 West Canal Drive (Wok King parking lot) 
• 7704 South Bermuda Road (Bermuda Fire Station) 

• Chevron, Corner of Keene & Oueensgate Village N 
• 119 East Albany Street 

Prosser 
Recycling Drop Box Sites 
• 1006 Dudley Avenue 
• Sherman Avenue City Yard 

Richland 
Horn Rapids Landfill/HHW/MRW 3120 Twin Bridges 
Recycling Drop Box Sites 
• West ?'h Avenue and 'W' Avenue, Battelle complex 
• 2411 George Washington Way, near the ?-Eleven 
• 2400 Stevens Drive, near the Hanford Bus Lot 
• 1300 Block of Jadwin Avenue, Uptown Shopping 

Center behind the Texaco Station 
• 1378 Lee Boulevard, west of Fran Rish Stadium 
• 103 Keene Road, south of ACE Hardware 
• 2801 Duportail in the Walmart Parking Lot 
• Corner of Queensgate Drive and Keene Road 

Richland (con) 
Recycling Drop Box Sites 
• 1936 Sa int Street 

West Richland 
Recycling Drop Box Sites 
• 460 South 40th Avenue 
• 4300 Block of Mt. Adams View 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 

Waste Management 

Waste Management 

Clayton Ward Company 

Basin Disposal 

City of Richland 

Clayton Ward Company 

Ed's Disposal 

3-14 

111



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

The City of Kennewick has a curbside collection program for recycling of glass tin, aluminum, 

PETE and HOPE containers; newspaper, cardboard, mixed paper, and magazines, and used 

motor oil. 

The City of Richland City Council authorized a pilot program for curbside recycling in 2009, 

and service began in May 2009. The duration of the pilot program was from May through 

December 2009. A contract was let to a local vendor to process recycled materials. The 

program included an aggressive communications effort with the residents in the targeted areas, 

including residential utility bills, messages on the City's website, an established phone line, 

messaging on the municipal reader board and information available through additional means. 

The pilot program was a complete success with 922 tons of recyclable items were processed and 

dive1ted from the landfill. The program was then rolled out to all residents in 2010 as a 

voluntary program, resulting in a 27% participation rate. 

3.2. 7 Designation of Recyclable Materials--

The Washington Administrative Code (WAC 173-350-100) defines Recyclable Materials to 
mean, "those solid wastes that are separated for recycling or reuse, including, but not limited to, 

papers, metals, and glass that are identified as recyclable material pursuant to a local 

comprehensive solid waste plan." In order for any material to be considered a recyclable 

material under Chapter 173-350, it must be identified as such in the local comprehensive solid 

waste management plan. If a materials is not identified in the plan as recyclable, then the ability 

of the person/company wanting to recycle this material and be able to benefit from some of the 

exemptions granted under Section 350 does not exist. If materials are not designated as 

recyclables, they remain regulated as solid wastes. 

The following materials are designated as recyclable materials in the County: 

• Paper (newspapers, magazines, mixed paper, and corrugated cardboard). 
• Glass bottles (clear, brown, and green). 
• Plastic bottles (PETE and HOPE). 
• Steel and aluminum cans. 
• Other ferrous and non-ferrous metals 
• Electronics 
• Used motor oil 
• Antifreeze 
• Household batteries 
• Automobile batteries. 
• Organic Waste 
• Construction Wood Waste 
• Concrete 
• Brick 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-15 

112



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

• Asphalt 

The addition or deletion of materials accepted for recycling will require ongoing evaluation and 
will be based on several factors, such as market stability and collection and processing costs. As 

required by the planning guidelines, criteria have been developed for adding or removing 
materials from the above list of materials. The following will be considered for adding new 

materials: 

• Local markets and/or brokers expand their list of acceptable items based on new uses for 
materials or technologies that increase demand. 

• New local or regional processing or demand for a given material occurs. 
• Sufficient quantity of the material is available in the waste stream. 
• The material can be collected efficiently and has minimal processing requirements. 
• Other conditions not anticipated at this time. 

Removing materials from the list requires: 

• The market price becomes so low that it is not longer feasible to collect, process, and/or 
ship to markets. 

• No market can be found for an existing recyclable material, causing the material to be 
stockpiled with no apparent solution in the near future. 

• Other conditions not anticipated at this time. 

Although it is unlikely that any existing recyclables would be removed from the current 
collection program barring a sudden shift in market conditions, it is likely that additional markets 
might become available for materials not currently recycled. 

A proposal to add or delete a designated recyclable material will be brought to the SW AC, who 

will vote for or against the proposal. Following approval or non-approval of the proposal, all 
parties in the County will be notified of the addition or deletion of the material. 

3.2. 7 Options 

Benton County and the cities have established an objective of working towards reaching a 
diversion rate of 50% by 2020. One method to reach this rate is to increase recycling. This 

section presents programs and policies to increase recycling, including county and city internal 
recycling programs, and residential and commercial recycling programs. 

I. Expanded Recycling Drop-Box Program 

Benton County and the cities could consider expanding the current drop-box program by either 
adding additional materials for collection or adding additional sites located in the county: 

• At a minimum, the County and cities should periodically evaluate the range of 
recyclables accepted at the current drop boxes and determine whether new materials 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-16 

113



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

should be added. 
• The County and cities also should monitor growth patterns within the county and provide 

drop boxes to areas that are showing increased growth. 

2. Rewards Program/or Residential Recyclers 

Recycle Bank is a program that rewards customers for recycling by providing incentives for 
recycling higher weights of materials. The program works by implanting or attaching a radio 
frequency identification (RFID) tag to the recycling caii, this RFID corresponds to an account 
number with Recycle Bank. Customers must activate their own Recycle Bai1k accounts to 
participate. The collection vehicles are equipped with weight sensing collection arms and RFID 
readers. When the recycling is collected the RFID tag is read and a computer stores recycled 
material weight collected by account. This infonnation is then downloaded into the Recycle Bank 
program and the ainount of materials recycled earns the account holder points. These points can be 
redeemed at many major retailers for goods or services. This type of program could be implemented 
in Kennewick and Richland, which have residential curbside recycling service. 

3. Commercial Waste Assistance 

Many industry associations have taken on the role of promoting recycling within their industries. 

This is particularly true for large businesses where waste reduction and recycling provide 

opportunities to reduce overhead costs and where disposal costs have risen substantially. It is 

often the smaller businesses that may lack information about opportunities and the role recycling 

may play in reducing disposal costs. 

The City of Richland offers businesses information on its website on how to conduct a waste 

audit. Benton County and the other cities could work with the certificated haulers to provide its 

businesses with free technical assistance, by providing waste assessments. A waste assessment 

should address: 

• The amount, nature, and composition of the waste generated in all functional areas of an 
establishment. 

• How the waste is produced, including relevant management policies and practices. 
• How the waste is managed. 

The information from the waste assessment is the basis for identifying and developing the waste 
reduction and recycling options for the business. 

4. Recycling Opportunities Related to the Wine Industry 

During an informal survey, several of the wineries identified the need for recycling drop boxes 

closer to their facilities such as the Prosser Wine Village and Red Mountain. Such drop boxes 

are available for hire, and some wineries have chosen to recycle their glass through this option. 

The following options for assistance to the wine production industry could include: (I) 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-17 

114



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

additional recycling drop boxes for cardboard and bottles (should accept all colors of glass 
commonly used in wine industry); (2) connecting wineries to artists who repurpose corks and/or 
wine bottles; (3) bringing in wine industry experts to hold workshops presenting newest 

technology and ideas for processing of post-production organics; and ( 4) serving as a conduit 
between wineries and other markets interested in purchasing post-production organics. 

3.2.8 Recommendations 

The Solid Waste Advisory Committee reviewed the options discussed above and has 
recommended the following options: 

I. Expanded Recycling Drop-Box Program 

Benton County will study the feasibility of adding additional sites located in the county. 

2. Rewards Program.for Residential Recyclers 

Benton County will partner with Cities who provide curbside recycling to explore the feasibility 

of a program similar to the Recycle Bank Rewards Program. 

3. Commercial Waste Assistance 

Benton County and the other cities will consider the feasibility of working with the certificated 

haulers to provide their businesses with technical assistance to perform waste assessments. 

4. Recycling Opportunities Related to the Wine Industry 

Benton County will study the options to assist the wine industry in their recycling/reuse efforts. 

3.3 Organics 

One of the initiatives of the State's Beyond Waste Plan is to increase recycling for organic 

materials. Yard waste collection programs are required where there are "'adequate markets or 
capacity for composted yard waste within or near the service area to consume the majority of the 

material collected." For Benton County, the following goal and objective is related to the 
management of organics: 

Goal #6: Establish guidelines and strategies for management of specific waste streams. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-18 

115



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

Objective: 

• Develop Best Management Practices for agricultural waste reuse and recycling. 

3.3.1 Existing Programs 

The County and cities actively promote backyard composting as a waste reduction method by 
providing backyard composting workshops. The County supports the efforts of the Cities of 
Prosser, Benton City and West Richland in their chipping programs, as well as the composting 

seminars held by WSU Cooperative Extension. 

The City of Richland has added seasonal collection of organic yard trimmings at the curb to its 
basic residential garbage services. Households, except apartments and condos, are provided one 
green yard waste can. Additional cans are available for a monthly fee of two dollars. Materials 

that can be placed in the green can include loose grass, leaves, plant trimmings, garden debris 
like inedible fruits and vegetables, non-treated wood and branches less than 12" in diameter. 
The material is collected separately from garbage, every other week on the regular collection 
day. The program operates between the first week of March and the last week of November. In 

addition, during the spring and fall, drop boxes are placed in Richland neighborhoods for the 
collection of bulky and excess yard debris. The City also encourages residents to use a mulching 
lawn mower, backyard composter, and other methods to manage their organic waste. 

The organic material collected in the City's residential yard waste collection program is 
processed at the Horn Rapids Composting Facility. The compost facility opened in 2010 and 

accepts residential yard waste with no charge to the resident. Biosolids from the City's 
Wastewater Treatment Plant is composted with the green waste. The composting program will 

save landfill space, help meet the State's recycling goal and provide compost materials to the 
public. The program processed approximately 800 dry tons ofbiosolids, 1,500 tons of wood 
waste and 1,200 tons of curbside yard waste in 2011. Compost produced from the first few years 
of operation will be used as cover material for the area of the landfill that is being closed. 

3.3.1.1 Organic Waste Inventory for Benton County 

The Port of Benton, in cooperation with the Benton County Solid Waste Advisory Committee, 

conducted a study in 2009 to evaluate organic wastes in Benton County that may be useful for 

generating renewable energy. This work was funded by a grant from the Washington State 
Department of Ecology (Ecology). Completion of the study is consistent with Port of Benton 
and Benton County goals to promote local economic development, along with public health and 

safety, social services, and environmental quality. 

The results of the study showed that, in general, the top categories of available waste materials 

are food processing wastes, wheat straw from irrigated wheat fields, various solid wastes (such 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 20 l 4 3-19 

116



Chapter 3 Education and Outreach, Waste Reduction, Recycling, and Organics 

as wastepaper, yard waste, etc.), corn stover, grape pomace, mint slug, and turf grass straw. The 

October 2009 Draft Report is on file in the Benton County Public Works Depmiment. 

3.3.2 Options 

1. Expand Yard Waste Chipping Program 

A semi-annual program providing a chipper at designated drop-off sites throughout the area 
would divert additional materials from the landfill, and provide additional capacity to handle 
yard waste in the County. This option would only be implemented when appropriate end use 
markets are available for the chipped material, which may include public use for parks, medians 
or other landscaped areas, or in private operations. 

2. Implement Curbside Green Waste Collection for Commercial Customers 

This option incorporates a voluntary curbside green waste collection service for commercial 
customers. The service would be provided at the appropriate service frequency. The materials 
collected would be processed for mulch, composting, or other uses at designated and permitted 

compost facilities. 

3. Diversion of Organic Waste from Wine Industry 

The growing wine industry within Benton County is a waste producing sector that has not been 
previously addressed within the County's Plan. This industry produces very specific waste 
streams including organics that are by-products of the wine making process. An informal survey 
of several of the larger wine producers within Benton County identified a few common disposal 

methods of organics processing, including on-site land application, burial in pits, and selling to 
cattle ranchers for feed. The pit burial method can create hazardous conditions depending on the 
size and depth of the pit and whether or not access is limited in order to prevent accidental 

encounters. The County should work with wine industry representatives to identify opportunities 
to divert materials for beneficial use that are environmentally sound and protect public health. 

3.3.3 Recommendations 

The Solid Waste Advisory Committee reviewed the options discussed above and has 
recommended the following options: 

The County will support the effmis of the cities to provide yard waste chipping, and continue to 
study ways in which to use the resultant material in environmentally appropriate ways. It will 

also research ways to expand the city-only program into the non-incorporated areas. It will 
suppmi the agricultural and wine industry in finding uses for organic wastes produced in Benton 

County. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 3-20 

117



Chapter 4 

Collection Systems 

118



119



4.0 Collection Systems 

This chapter provides a discussion of refuse collection in Benton County, including background 
information on how refuse collection is regulated, the legal authority that counties and 
municipalities have in managing collection services for solid waste and recyclables, and existing 

conditions for these activities. The chapter concludes with a discussion of the potential options 
for meeting existing and future collection needs in the county. 

For the purposes of this plan, Benton County has established the following goal and objectives in 
relation to collection of solid waste: 

Goal #5: Provide for efficient collection, transfer, and disposal of MSW and recyclables. 

Objectives: 

• Ensure access to collection or drop-off services for residences, businesses, and industry. 
• Locate recycling and solid waste transfer, processing, and disposal facilities to optimize 

service levels and transportation efficiencies. 
• Ensure adequate disposal capacity. 
• Support the current WUTC authority as the appropriate framework to achieve safe and 

environmentally sound solid waste collection systems, allow for universal access to solid 
waste collection at just and reasonable rates. 

4.1 Background 

The Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC), the county, and the 
municipalities regulate refuse collection in Benton County. The regulatory authority and 
jurisdiction ofeach of these entities is described below. 

4.1.1 WUTC Authority 

The WUTC supervises and regulates solid waste collection companies. WUTC authority 
(Chapter 8 I. 77 RCW and Chapter 480-70 WAC) is limited to private collection companies and 

does not extend to municipal collection operated by municipalities or their contractors. The 
Commission requires reports, establishes rates, and regulates service areas and safety practices. 

A private solid waste collection company must apply to the WUTC for a certificate of public 
convenience and necessity to operate in the unincorporated areas of the county or in incorporated 

areas which choose not to regulate refuse collection. The WUTC grants certificates within a 
designated service area to an applicant based on cost data, documented need for the service, and, 
if the district is already served by a certificate holder, the ability or inability of the existing 

certificate holder to provide service to the satisfaction of the WUTC. The Commission requires 
annual reports showing the refuse collection company's gross operating revenue. Certificates 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 4-1 

120



Chapter 4 Collection Systems 

may have terms and conditions attached and may be revoked or amended after a hearing held by 
the WUTC. 

Commission regulation of solid waste collection companies does not include collecting or 
transporting of recyclable materials from a drop box or recycling buy-back center. It also does 
not include collecting or transporting recyclable materials by or on behalf of a commercial or 
industrial generator ofrecyclable materials to a recycler for use or reclamation (Chapter 

81.77.010(8) RCW). Transportation of these materials is regulated under Chapter 81.80 RCW 
which governs the regulation of motor freight carriers. These carriers require a WUTC permit 
and proof of insurance to operate in the state. If the commercial recycling hauler also possess a 
certificate to operate as a solid waste company, WUTC is responsible for ensuring compliance 
with safety practices. For other commercial recycle haulers, the Washington State Patrol 

oversees hauler traffic safety practices. 

4.1.2 County Authority 

The rights of the counties in terms of solid waste collection include the establishment of solid 

waste collection districts forthe mandatory collection of solid waste (Chapter 36.58.100 RCW). 
However, solid waste collection districts cannot include incorporated areas without the consent 

of the legislative authority of the city or town. 

To form a solid waste collection district, public hearings must be held and the county legislative 
authority must determine that mandatory collection is in the public interest. County provision of 

collection services can be implemented only if the WUTC notifies the county that no qualified 
haulers are available for a district. Under mandatory collection, a hauler may request that the 
county collect fees from delinquent customers. 

In Benton County, all unincorporated areas are covered by WUTC certificate holders; there are 
no solid waste collection districts. Although county authority to collect refuse in the 

unincorporated areas is limited, counties have the legal authority to assess fees on collection 
services provided in those areas. Presently, Benton County includes a surcharge tax on garbage 

collected in the unincorporated portions of the County. RCW 36.58.045 authorizes counties to 
assess such fees to fund administration and planning expenses associated with solid waste 
management. 

4.1.3 Municipality Authority 

Cities and towns have several options for managing solid waste collection under state law, 

including: 

The city may choose not to manage or regulate its own refuse collection services. Collection 
services may then be provided by the certificate hauler(s) with authority for that area under the 

regulation ofWUTC. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 4-2 

121



Chapter 4 Collection Systems 

• The city may require a private company to obtain a refuse collection license from the city 

and to conform to all city collection guidelines. 

• The city may award contracts to private companies for refuse collection in all or part of 

the city. The contract hauler does not need to hold a WUTC certificate for that area. 

Usually contracts are awarded based on selection criteria as determined by the city. The 

city may decide to manage and maintain its own municipal collection system for all or 

part of its jurisdiction. 

The WUTC would not have jurisdiction over the last two options (Chapter 81. 77.020 RCW). 

State law also allows municipalities to require residents and businesses to subscribe to 

designated refuse collection services. 

The City of Richland is the only municipality in the region that provides collection services 

through a city solid waste utility. 

4.2 Existing Refuse Collection Services 

Refuse collection services in Benton County are provided through a number of different 

mechanisms, including municipal, WUTC ce1tificates, and municipal contracts. The existing 

collection services and arrangements for each entity are described below. 

4.2.1 Unincorporated Benton County 

Refuse collection in unincorporated Benton County is provided under ce1tificates granted by the 

WUTC. Four haulers are certified to collect waste in Benton County, as indicated in Exhibit 4-

1. Maps of the service areas for each certificate holder are provided in Exhibits 4-2 through 4-

5. 

Basin Disposal, Inc.: Serves primarily the eastern area of Benton County, and the Hanford site. 

Waste collected by BDl trucks is brought to the BDI transfer station located in Pasco (1721 

Dietrich Road) and is long-hauled to the Finley Buttes landfill for disposal. 

Ed's Disposal, Inc.: Ed's Disposal, Inc., primarily serves central Benton County. Waste is 

transported to the BDI transfer station in Pasco and long-hauled to the Finley Buttes landfill for 

disposal. 

Sanitary Disposal, Inc.: Sanitary Disposal, Inc. collects waste from the southwestern corner of 

Benton. Waste collected in the County is transported to a transfer station in Umatilla County, 

Oregon, between the Cities of Hermiston and Umatilla, and is long-hauled to the Finley Buttes 

landfill for disposal. 

Waste Management of Kennewick: Serves areas throughout unincorporated Benton County 

for the collection and disposal of solid waste. Waste collected by Waste Management is 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 4-3 

122



Chapter 4 Collection Systems 

transported to its transfer station in Kennewick, and hauled to the Columbia Ridge landfill for 

disposal. 

Exhibit 4-1. Benton County Certificated Haulers 

Certificate G-118 Certificate G-173 
Basin Disposal, Inc. Sanitary Disposal, Inc. 
PO Box 3850 Box 316 
Pasco, WA 99302-3850 Hermiston, OR 97838 
(509) 547-2476 (541) 567-8842 

Certificate G-110 Certificate G-237 
Ed's Disposal, Inc. Waste Management of Kennewick 
PO Box 3850 PO Box6088 
Pasco, WA 99302-3850 Kennewick, WA 99336-0088 
(509) 547-2476 

4.1.2 Benton City 

The City of Benton City contracts with Ed's Disposal, Inc. for residential and commercial solid 
waste collection. Residents are provided with either a 64-or 96-gallon wheeled cart, which is 
collected weekly using an automated truck. Additional residentially generated garbage is 

allowed at no extra charge, as long as it is no more than 65 pounds per item. Commercial 
customers are serviced by Ed's Disposal, and businesses can contract for waste and recycling 

(cardboard only) collection. 

4.1.3 City of Kennewick 

The City of Kennewick contracts with Waste Management to provide collection services to 

residences and businesses within the city. Residential refuse is collected using automated 
curbside collection vehicles. Residents can choose either a 35-gallon or a 96-gallon cart for 
refuse. The rates vary by size of the cart, and are lower for the smaller cart, which encourages 
residents to recycle more, and discard less refuse. There is an additional charge for refuse that 

does not fit in the cmt. 

Recycling service is provided at no additional charge. Residents are provided bins for curbside 
collection of recyclables. One bin is used for the collection of glass bottles and jars. The second 
bin is used for the collection of comingled recyclables, including aluminum cans, tin cans, 

paperboard milk cartons, P.E.T. plastic soda and H.D.P.E. plastic milk bottles, newspaper, and 
magazines. Residents are instructed to place cardboard and used oil next to the bins. There is no 

limit on the amount of clean recyclables residents can place at the curb. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 4-4 

123



Chapter 4 Collection Systems 

Exhibit 4-2. Certificate G-118, Basin Disposal, Inc. 

DRAFT Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

August 2013 

--------------~ --
_.,..... __ _ 
-·---____ .. 
......... __ _ 

+ • • • 
Soalt1 t 145&.oo& 

5 

124



Chapter 4 Collection Systems 

Exhibit 4-3. Certificate G-110, Ed's Disposal, Inc. 

-_;;; .. 

-

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 

-

s.'.l
",,,_ 
,\, __ 

... 

---

4-6 

125



Chapter 4 Collection Systems 

Exhibit 4-4. Certificate G-173, Sanitary Disposal, Inc. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 

ennewick 

4-7 

126



Chapter 4 Collection Systems 

Exhibit 4-5. Certificate G-237, Waste Management of Kennewick 

... -

Oregon 

- - - -... 
' • • ' '""~ ..... 

c;;J 
LSiU ,,_._'? 

,koiil::l1.!W,Hli ....., 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 

- - -
~-----------~ --
---~------

4-8 

127



Chapter 4 Collection Systems 

City residents also are provided coupons that allow them the opportunity to self-haul waste to the 
transfer station free of charge up to 12 times per year, replacing Spring and Fall Cleanup Events. 

Waste Management also offers scheduled holiday clean-ups. 

4.1.4 City of Prosser 

The City of Prosser contracts with Basin Disposal, lnc. (BDl) for residential and commercial 

solid waste collection. Residents are provided with either a 64-or 96-gallon wheeled cart, which 
is collected weekly using an automated truck. Additional residentially generated garbage is 
allowed at no extra charge, as long as it is no more than 65 pounds per item. Additionally, 
Prosser sponsors a spring cleanup event for all waste except household hazardous waste, and a 

fall clean up event for vegetative waste only. Commercial customers are serviced by BDl, and 
businesses can contract for waste and recycling (cardboard only) collection. 

4.1.5 City of Richland 

The City of Richland's Public Works Department, Solid Waste Division provides residential, 
commercial and roll-off box collection services in the City. Residential customers comprise 
approximately 47% of the collection (by weight), and commercial and roll-off customers each 

contribute about 28% and 24%, respectively. All waste is hauled directly to the Hom Rapids 

Landfill. 

Richland city crews collect residential waste five days per week from approximately 16,000 
residential accounts. Participation in the curbside recycling program is voluntary, and an 
additional monthly fee applies to that service. 

The City of Richland has added seasonal collection of organic yard trimmings at the curb to its 

basic residential garbage services. Households, except apartments and condos, are provided one 
green yard waste can. Additional cans are available for a monthly fee of two dollars. Materials 
that can be placed in the green can include loose grass, leaves, plant trimmings, garden debris 

like inedible fruits and vegetables, non-treated wood and branches less than 12" in diameter. 
The material is collected separately from garbage, every other week on the regular collection 
day. The program operates between the first week of March and the last week of November. In 
addition, during the spring and fall, drop boxes are placed in Richland neighborhoods for the 

collection of bulky and excess yard debris. The City also encourages residents to use a mulching 
lawn mower, backyard composter, and other methods to manage their organic waste. 

The City provides commercial collection services to approximately 845 accounts. Private 

haulers provide recycling services to some City businesses. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 20 14 4-9 

128



Chapter 4 Collection Systems 

4.1.6 West Richland 

The City of West Richland contracts with Ed's Disposal, Inc. for residential and commercial 

solid waste collection. Residents are provided with either a 64-or 96-gallon wheeled cart, which 
is collected weekly using an automated truck. Additional residentially generated personal 

garbage is allowed at no extra charge, as long as it is no more than 65 pounds per item. 
Commercial customers are serviced by Ed's Disposal, and businesses can contract for waste and 
recycling (cardboard only) collection. 

4.2 Existing Programs for Self-Hauled Waste 

Several options are available in the County for residents that choose to self-haul their waste. 

4.2.1 Drop Box Facilities 

There is a Drop Box Facility located in Prosser for city residents that choose to self haul. This 

drop box is operated by BDI. The drop box is open for \6 hours per week on Wednesdays, 
Fridays, and Saturdays. In addition, non-commercial motor oil is accepted at the facility. 

Ed's Disposal, Inc., operates a Drop Box Facility in Benton City. This drop box is also open 16 

hours per week, on Thursdays and Saturdays. In addition, non-commercial motor oil is accepted 
at the facility. 

The Drop Box facilities consist of an elevated receiving floor and a stationary compactor unit. 

The receiving floor is generally 20 feet by 30 feet in size and is constructed of asphalt. The 
facility operator uses a tollbooth on-site to conduct transactions. 

Once waste is compacted into the container, the loaded container is transported to the BDI 
Transfer Station located in Pasco, prior to shipment to Finely Buttes landfill for disposal. 

Exhibit 4-6 provides a summary of waste tonnages collected at the two drop boxes. 

Exhibit 4-6. Tons of Self-Hauled Waste at Benton City and Prosser Drop Boxes 
. . . .· 

·· ..... Year 
. 

.. .... .... .. · . . .. . · .. · · ... ... · . .· . ... 

Pr9p Bpx Facility 2006. . 
2007 .· 2001) 

.. 20oe·· . 
2010 . 2011 . . 

Benton City 230+ 230+ 120+ 

Prosser 230+ 220+ 210+ 

Source: BO!, Inc. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 

·. 

130+ 80+ 105+ 

210+ 80+ 80+ 

4-10 

129



Chapter 4 Collection Systems 

4.3 Collection Requirements 

4.3.1 Urban and Rural Designation 

The 1989 legislation allows counties to contract for the collection of source-separated recyclable 
materials from residences within unincorporated areas. Under this provision, counties can 
manage, regulate and establish the price of curbside recycling collection services. However, this 

does not mean the counties are authorized to operate their own solid waste collection systems as 
municipalities may. lfthe counties do not elect to contract for the collection of source separated 
recyclable materials from residences, the WUTC must be notified in writing no later than ninety 
days following the approval of the solid waste management plan's waste reduction and recycling 

element. Upon notification, the WUTC would have the responsibility for implementing any 
mandated curbside recycling or yard waste programs and determining their service levels, as 
addressed in the waste reduction and recycling element of the solid waste management plan. 

Municipalities have the authority to provide or contract for residential curbside recycling 
services within their boundaries (Chapter 35.21.120 RCW). Additionally, they have the 
authority to manage, regulate, and fix the price of these services. Municipalities designated as 
urban are required to provide curbside collection of recyclables, or an equivalent program 

[70.95.090(7)(b)(i)]. Municipalities designated as rural may choose to meet minimum service 
level requirements either independently or in cooperation with the county. 

The 2010 Guidelines for solid waste management plans issued by the Department of Ecology 
require local governments to develop clear criteria to determine the designations for urban and 

rural areas for disposal and waste reduction and recycling (RCW 70.95.092). Criteria to be 
considered include: 

• Anticipated population growth. 

• The presence of other urban services. 

• Density of developed commercial and industrial properties. 

• Geographic boundaries and transportation corridors. 

The Cities of Kennewick and Richland have been designated as "urban" (population of 12,000 or 

more) and the remainder of the cities and unincorporated Benton County is designated "rural." 
The planning guidelines recognize that there are differences in the services that can be offered to 
urban versus rural areas for solid waste services. Estimated 2010 population and housing 
densities are provided in Exhibit 4-7. The rural nature of Benton County limits the economic 

feasibility of certain methods of recyclables collection. For example, curbside collection may 
only be economically feasible in the two communities which have a population base to support 

this type of system. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 4-11 

130



Chapter 4 Collection Systems 

Exhibit 4-7. 2010 Estimated Population and Housing Densities 

Unincorporated 43,453 1,235 35 12,214 10 
Count Area 

Benton City 3,779 2.56 1,476 1, 185 463 

Kennewick 71,794 25.9 2,772 27,205 1,050 

Prosser 5,668 4.08 1,389 1,907 467 

Richland 52,901 39.34 1,345 20,426 519 

West Richland 11,336 20.43 555 4,398 215 

Source: Washington State Office of Financial Management April 1 2011 Population (High Series), Population Density, and Housing 

As required in RCW 70.95.090(5)(d), solid waste collection needs must be projected for the next 
six years. Requirements for future collection services will depend on population growth. 

Forecasted growth in population for Benton County for the years 2012 through 2018 are 
provided in Exhibit 4-8. As indicated, the population of unincorporated Benton County is 
estimated to reach 48,979 in 2018 and incorporated Benton County will reach 163,975. This 
level of growth will most likely require additional collection routes. In addition, the City of 
West Richland is expected to exceed 12,000 residents by 2014, and will be required to provide 

curbside recycling, or an equivalent program, under the current "urban" designation. 

Exhibit 4-8. Forecasted Population, 2012-2018 

' 
·, _year __ - _ 

' ,' ' 

Area ' 20.12 ' 2013 2014 20,15 

Unincorporated 44,826 45,528 46,242 46,859 

Incorporated 150,074 152,426 154,815 156,877 

Benton Citv 3,898 3,959 4,022 4,075 

Kennewick 74,062 75,223 76,402 77,420 

Prosser 5,847 5,939 6,032 6,112 

Richland 54,572 55,427 56,296 57,046 
West 

Richland 11,694 11,877 12,064 12,224 
Source: Benton County Comprehensive Plan, 2011 Update 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 

' 

2016, 20.17 

47,555 48,262 

159,208 161,574 

4,136 4,197 

78,570 79,738 

6,203 6,295 

57,894 58,754 

12,406 12,590 

•' 

,,' 

2018 

48,979 

163,975 

4,259 

80,923 

6,389 

59,627 

12,777 

4-12 

131



Chapter 4 Collection Systems 

4.3.2 Options 

At this time, solid waste collection appears adequate for the residents of Benton County. 
However, continued population growth will likely require additional collection routes in the 
future. The following options have been submitted to the Solid Waste Advisory Committee for 

their consideration: 

1. Mandatory Collection in Unincorporated Areas. 

Currently, collection services in the unincorporated county are voluntary. Residents and 
businesses may choose to self-haul their waste to drop boxes, transfer stations, or to the Horn 
Rapids landfill. The County could consider making collection services mandatory. Mandatory 

collection requires that all residents within a defined area sign up and pay for a minimum level of 
service. The primary reasons for taking this step are to minimize illegal dumping and to 
distribute the costs of recycling and solid waste management equitably among all residents. 

To require mandatory collection in an unincorporated area or county-wide, the County would be 
required to form a collection district as described in RCW 36.58A.030. The statute requires the 

County to hold public hearings on the issue and get approval by the County Commissioners. The 
Commissioners could approve a mandatory collection district in all or part of the County if it was 
deemed in the public interest and necessary for the protection of public health. 

The County has traditionally maintained a voluntary system based on the rural nature of much of 

the County unincorporated areas, and the preference of the community to give residents the 
option to subscribe to service or self-haul their waste to a permitted facility. 

2. Further Evaluation ()fRecycling Service Level Changes for County Unincorporated Area 

In the 2006 Plan update, the option to change recycling service levels was recommended for 
implementation. The County has evaluated the option, but has not made any changes to the 

existing service level, which is established as a population of 12,000. Since the 2006 Plan 
adoption, the City of Richland has implemented curbside recycling for single-family residents. 

The County could consider changing the population requirement as a means to offer more 
convenient recycling in ceiiain County area by using housing density rather than population. 

The WUTC haulers would be required to provide the recycling services specified in the Plan. 
Working with the haulers, the County could define a new minimum service level that expands 

recycling and encourages haulers to invest in additional equipment for the service. 

4.3.3 Recommendations 

The Solid Waste Advisory Committee reviewed the options discussed above and has 

recommended the following options: 

Benton County will continue to monitor the current garbage collection practices, and make 

changes if deemed necessary and prudent. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 4-13 

132



Chapter 5 

Tran sf er and Disposal 

133



134



Chapter 5 Transfer and Disposal 

5.0 Transfer and Disposal 

This chapter includes a discussion of solid waste handling systems that includes transfer stations, 
landfills, and export of waste outside of Benton County and the laws governing these activities. 

The County has adopted the following goals and objectives for landfilling and transfer: 

Goal #5: Provide for efficient collection, transfer, and disposal of MSW and recyclables. 

Objectives: 

• Ensure access to collection or drop-off services for residences, businesses, and industry. 
• Locate recycling and solid waste transfer, processing, and disposal facilities to optimize 

service levels and transportation efficiencies. 
• Ensure adequate disposal capacity. 

5.1 Transfer Stations 

Waste transfer stations play an important role in a waste management system, serving as a link 

between local waste collection programs and the final disposal facility. The primary reason for 
using a transfer station is to reduce the cost of transporting waste to disposal facilities. 
Consolidating smaller loads from collection vehicles into larger transfer vehicles enables 
collection crews to spend less time traveling to and from distant disposal sites and more time 

collecting waste. Transfer stations reduce overall transportation costs, air emissions, energy use, 
truck traffic, and road wear and tear. The Horn Rapids Transfer Station is used to eliminate the 
needs for customers to access the landfill, reducing the risks associated with self-haul vehicles 

interacting with commercial collection vehicles. 

There are four transfer stations that are used for management of waste generated in Benton 

County. The transfer stations are described in the following sections. 

5.1.1 Horn Rapids Landfill Transfer Station 

The City of Richland operates a transfer station at the Horn Rapids Landfill. The transfer station 

is utilized by self-haulers for the disposal of waste, and eliminates the need for these customers 
to access the operation area of the landfill. 

Data on the use of the transfer station from 2006-20 l 0, including number of visits and tonnage, 
is included in Exhibit 5-1. The number of visits has averaged over 40,000 per year over the past 

five years, and tonnage has averaged 5,400 tons per year. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 20 J 4 5-J 

135



Chapter 5 Transfer and Disposal 

Exhibit 5-1. Horn Rapids Landfill Transfer Station Annual Visits and Tonnage 

40,000 

30,000 Ill Visits 

II Tonnage 
20,000 

10,000 

0 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

5.1.2 Waste Management Transfer Station 

Waste Management operates a transfer station in Kennewick which is available for use by 
collection vehicles and the general public. The facility also includes a public recyclable 

materials and limited-purpose moderate risk waste drop-off area that accepts used oil and used 
antifreeze. The facility is open Monday through Saturday. 

5.1.3 BDI Transfer Station 

Columbia Basin LLC, d.b.a. BDI Transfer, operates a transfer station in Franklin County, at 1721 

Dietrich Road in Pasco, which is available for use by commercial haulers and the general public. 
The facility accepts municipal solid waste, recyclable materials, and moderate risk waste 
(moderate risk waste is accepted from Franklin County residents only). 

5.1.4 Hermiston Transfer Station 

Waste collected in the County unincorporated area by Sanitary Disposal is taken to the 

company's Transfer Station in Hermiston, Oregon. The facility is permitted to accept municipal 
solid waste. 

5.2 Landfills 

Solid waste landfills in the State of Washington are regulated by local health departments and the 

Department of Ecology through the Criteria for Municipal Solid Waste Landfills Chapter 173-
351 WAC. This section will provide information on Benton County landfill goals, local 
facilities, and an inventory of present capacity. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 20 I 4 5-2 

136



Chapter 5 Transfer and Disposal 

5.2.1 Existing Landfills 

Over the past I 0 years, nine landfills have been used to dispose of waste generated in Benton 

County. They include: 

• City of Kennewick Inert Landfill, Washington. 

• City of Prosser Inert Landfill, Prosser, Washington. 

• Columbia Ridge Landfill, Arlington, Oregon. 

• Finley Buttes Regional Landfill, Morrow County, Oregon. 

• Graham Road, Spokane County, Washington. 

• Greater Wenatchee Landfill, Douglas County, Washington. 

• Horn Rapids Landfill, Richland, Washington. 

• Roosevelt Regional Landfill, Klickitat County, WashiJ1b1on. 

• Sudbury Road Landfill, Walla Walla, Washington. 

The majority of waste disposed from Benton County is taken to the Columbia Ridge Landfill in 

Arlington, Oregon. Other major landfills used for disposal of waste from Benton County include 

the Horn Rapids Landfill in the City of Richland, and the Finley Buttes Regional Landfill in 

Morrow County, Oregon. In 2007, 5,000 tons of soil, rock, gravel and asphalt were taken to 

Drollinger Park as part of the City of Richland's closure of this park in 2008. 

The Benton County tonnages reported for these landfills are provided in Exhibit 5-2. 

Horn Rapids Landfill--

The City of Richland owns and operates the Horn Rapids Landfill, located approximately 3.5 

miles northwest of town, off of Highway 240. Approximately 46 acres, out of 114, of the 

property is permitted for solid waste disposal. Adjacent to the permitted area is a separately 

permitted area of approximately 25 acres for the land application of biosolids, including 6 acres 

for the compost facility. In addition, there are approximately 14 acres which are occupied with 

facilities that include: 

• An office/toll booth and a scale for weighing incoming loads. 

• A transfer station for use by self-haul residential and small commercial waste and 

recyclables haulers. 

• An area for land farming of petroleum contaminated soils generated in Benton County. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 5-3 

137



Chapter 5 Transfer and Disposal 

Exhibit 5-2. Disposal Summary for Benton County 

250,000 T------------·· 

! 
200,000 

150,000 

100,000 

MW: Greater Wenatchee 

Sudbury 

Ill Roosevelt 

Prosser 

till Graham Road 

Ill Drollinger Park 

llli City of Kennewick 

Iii Finley Buttes 

Ill Horn Rapids 

Iii Columbia Ridge 

I 200~-,-;001 200;:'2003 200~'~005-,;00~·;001 2008 2009 201~' 
I_______ ·-----··-- ----------------· ---····-···- -·-----·-·-----··------------- --·------··-------·-

The landfill operates under a solid waste disposal permit issued by the Benton-Franklin Health 

District in compliance with provisions of Chapter 173-351 WAC. The existing landfill was 
constructed prior to Subtitle D regulations, and therefore was not designed with a bottom liner or 
leachate collection system. A 4-acre vadose monitoring zone has been established within the 
Northeast corner of the permitted 46-acre disposal area. Small amounts of organic 

contamination have appeared in the water samples collected at the property boundary. 
Additional wells were installed in 1998 closer to the active disposal area to further define 
concentration levels of contaminates. The City of Richland has finished the remedial 

investigation, as required by the Toxics Control Act, and designed and installed a landfill gas 
extraction system that has been approved by the Department of Ecology. Part of the gas system 
design also includes a modified closure design that extends the landfill's capacity, projected to 
be 2018. The City's financial assurance for Closure/Post-Closure is being funded by a surcharge 

collected against each ton of waste crossing the scales. The City has completed a Master Plan 
for the future of the site. 

Due to the advent of the City's voluntary residential recycling program, waste disposal activities 
within the currently permitted area are projected to continue until 2018. Expanding diversion 

programs to commercial customers and to further expand construction and demolition recycling 
will add more time to the use to the current facility. After the current facility is full, the City will 
need to develop and use a new permitted space or long haul waste to a regional landfill. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 5-4 

138



Chapter 5 Transfer and Disposal 

The Landfill is open to city and non-city residents. City residents are allowed to dispose of 

waste at the Landfill for $10 a visit for up to 1,200 lbs; non-city residents pay $25 for up to 1,200 

lbs. Residents must be present, have proper identification and show their City of Richland utility 

bill in order to dispose of their waste. Richland commercial and non-Richland commercial 

customers are charged for disposal according to the rate schedule established at the Landfill. The 

rates are assigned by vehicle type for residential waste, and by vehicle type and weight for 

commercial and construction debris. Some exceptions can be made for Richland residential 

waste hauled in a commercial vehicle, as determined by the Landfill site superintendent. Jn 

addition, rates are also established for different types of wastes. 

Information on the Horn Rapids Composting Facility is included in Chapter 3, Section 3.4.1. 

Data on the use of the landfill is available for the past 5 years, including number and types of 

users, and volume and weight of materials disposed. Historical data for landfill transactions and 

disposal for the last 6 years is summarized in Exhibit 5-3. 

Exhibit 5-3. Horn Rapids Landfill Use 

Ye.ar ViSlb; !~11s 

2007 55,145 68, 183 

2008 51,947 65,932 

2009 75, 151 58,327 

2010 57,393 52,521 

2011 50,737 52,597 

2012 48,730 
49,948 

City of Prosser Inert Landfill--

The City of Prosser owns and operates an inert waste landfill located on the south side of town 

within the City limits. The landfill is used by the City Public Works Department only and is not 

open to the general public. The site was permitted by the BFHD on September 19, 1990; 

however, material has been accepted at the site since August 1, 1990. Jn 2010, a reported 250 

tons of material were disposed at the facility. 

City of Kennewick Inert Landfill--

The City of Kennewick operates an inert waste facility in a similar manner to Prosser. In 2010, 

approximately 1,458 tons of materials were disposed at the landfill from Benton County. 

Columbia Ridge Landfill--

The Columbia Ridge Landfill is a regional landfill that is owned and operated by Waste 

Management, Inc. The landfill is situated on a 2,036-acre site located in Arlington, Oregon. The 

facility is designed to meet both state and federal environmental standards and operates under 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 5-5 

139



Chapter 5 Transfer and Disposal 

Oregon Department of Environmental Quality Permit #391. The landfill became operational in 
1990 and has a life expectancy of over 100 years. In 2010, approximately 86,603 tons of 
material was disposed at the landfill from Benton County. 

Finley Buttes Landfill--

The Finley Buttes Regional Landfill is located in Morrow County, Oregon. lt is a regional solid 

waste management facility, owned by Waste Connections, which serves the Pacific Northwest. 
The landfill is located 10 miles south of Boardman, Oregon. Access to the site is by highway, 
Columbia River barge system, and rail. 

The site is operated under ODEQ Solid Waste Disposal Permit No. 394 and the landfill is 
designed, constructed, and operated to be in compliance with all requirements of the Oregon 
DEQ and EPA Subtitle D MSW landfill requirements. Landfilling operations at the site began in 
1990. Waste Connections is permitted to utilize 510-acres of the 1,802-acre site for municipal 
solid waste (MSW) disposal. 

The estimated available fill capacity at the site, as currently permitted by the Oregon DEQ, is 90 

million tons ofMSW. The landfill receives over 500,000 tons of MSW annually. In 2010, 
37, 109 tons of material was accepted from Benton County. The projected life of the currently 
permitted landfill exceeds the 20-year period covered by the 2006 Benton County Solid Waste 
Management Plan Update. 

Graham Road Limited Purpose Landfill--

The Graham Road Facility is owned and operated by Waste Management of Washington, Inc., 
and is located in Spokane County. Graham Road is a Limited Purpose Landfill that accepts 
construction and demolition debris, asbestos, tires, wood, concrete, asphalt, special waste, 
petroleum-contaminated soils, creosote-contaminated wood, and railroad ties. Graham Road has 

been in operation since 1991. Waste Management has owned and operated the landfill since 
1997. In 2010, approximately 8.7 tons of asbestos-containing waste was sent to the facility from 

Benton County. 

Roosevelt Regional Landfill--

The Roosevelt Regional Landfill is located in a remote area of Klickitat County in South Central 
Washington. The largest private landfill in the state, Roosevelt covers an area of 2,545-acres, 

has a 120 million ton capacity, and a 40-year expected life span. The landfill is designed to meet 
all current solid waste landfill regulations, including the Criteria for Municipal Solid Waste 

Landfills (WAC 173-351). The landfill is operated by Allied Waste/Republic Service Company. 
This landfill currently accounts for 69% of the State's disposal capacity and in 2010 received 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 5-6 

140



Chapter 5 Transfer and Disposal 

some type of solid waste from 26 counties in Washington. 1 In 20 I 0, approximately 4 77 tons of 
material was accepted from Benton County. 

Sudbury Road Landfill--

This landfill is located in Walla Walla County, Washington. It is owned by the City of Walla 
Walla. Since 1994, limited amounts of asbestos containing materials originating from Benton 
County have been sent to this landfill for disposal. In 2008, 11 tons of asbestos containing 
material and about 12 tons of MSW were sent for disposal to this facility. In 2009, about 2 tons 
of asbestos containing material and 6 tons of MSW were sent to this facility. No material was 

taken to the Sudbury Road Landfill in 20 I 0. 

5.3 Waste Import/Waste Export 

5.3.1 Waste Import 

"Waste import" refers to transfer of waste into Benton County from other areas. Some waste 
entering the County comes from neighboring Franklin County residents bringing materials to the 

Horn Rapids Landfill in Richland. This is assumed to be a very small amount of waste, and is 
not tracked independent of regular residential waste brought to the landfill. Periodically, Yakima 
County residents may use the Prosser Drop Box Facility, particularly during Prosser Cleanup 
Days. The Prosser Inert Landfill, as stated above, only accepts demolition waste from its Public 

Utility Department. Therefore, the impmtation of municipal solid waste for landfill disposal is 
essentially non-existent in Benton County. 

5.3.2 Waste Export 

"Waste expmt" refers in this section to the transfer of waste from Benton County to a landfill 
located outside the area. Waste Management of Kennewick, Ed's Disposal, Inc., and Basin 

Disposal, Inc., of Pasco, and Sanitary Disposal of Hermiston provide for the collection of solid 
waste, and export waste out of the county for disposal. Information on the provision of this 
service is provided below. 

Waste Management 

Currently, Waste Management of Kennewick is under contract with the City of Kennewick, and 
under a WUTC franchise certificate to portions of unincorporated Benton County, for the 
collection and disposal of solid waste. Waste collected by Waste Management of Kennewick is 

transported to its transfer station in Kennewick. At the transfer station, the waste is off-loaded 
and compacted into closed-top transfer vehicles for transport to Waste Management's Columbia 

Ridge Landfill in Arlington, Oregon. Waste Management utilizes third party transpmiation 
companies for the 90-mile transfer of waste from the Kennewick transfer station to the Columbia 

1 Washington State Department of.Ecology, Solid Waste in rVashington State--N'ineleenth Annual Status Report. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 5-7 

141



Chapter 5 Transfer and Disposal 

Ridge Landfill. Currently, eight to nine fully loaded transfer trucks (each carrying 31 tons of 
compacted solid waste) make the trip from the Kennewick transfer station to the Columbia Ridge 
Landfill each day. Additional transport can be added to accommodate waste for the planning 

period. 

Ed's Disposal, Inc. 

Ed's Disposal, lnc., of Pasco collects waste from unincorporated areas of Benton County, and the 
cities of West Richland and Benton City. The waste is brought to the BDI Transfer Station in 
Pasco and long-hauled to the Finley Buttes Landfill for final disposal. The BDl Transfer Station 

can easily accommodate volumes of waste projected for the 20-year planning period. 

Basin Disposal, Inc. 

Basin Disposal, Inc., of Pasco collects waste in unincorporated areas of Benton County and the 
City of Prosser. Waste collected by Basin Disposal, lnc., is brought to the transfer station in 
Pasco, and is long-hauled to the Finley Buttes facility for final disposal. 

Sanitary Disposal 

Sanitary Disposal, Inc. collects waste from unincorporated areas in the southern portion of 
Benton County. Waste collected in this section of the county is transported to Sanitary 
Disposal's transfer station in Umatilla County, Oregon, and is then long-hauled to the Finley 

Buttes Regional Landfill in Morrow County, Oregon. 

5.4 Landfill Capacity 

Given current technology and disposal patterns, landfills are and will remain a necessary and 

important component of waste management. Source reduction and recycling can divert 
significant portions of the waste stream, but not all components of the waste stream are 

recyclable. Therefore, Benton County will be required to continue to secure out-of-county 
disposal capacity or create additional capacity within the County. 

As discussed above, three landfills provide the majority of disposal capacity for the County: 

• The Horn Rapids Landfill, located in Richland. 

• Two regional landfills: Columbia Ridge Landfill and Finley Buttes Landfill. 

The Horn Rapids Landfill has the capacity to accept waste generated by the City of Richland for 
approximately 6 years. The current permitted capacity is anticipated to be used up sometime in 
2018 at the City's current rate of waste placement. After the current facility is full, the City will 

need to develop and use a new permitted space or long haul waste to a regional landfill. The two 
regional landfills have capacity well beyond the timeframe addressed by this plan. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 20 J 4 5-8 

142



Chapter 5 Transfer and Disposal 

5.5 Options 

The following options are presented for consideration: 

1. Monitor the City of Richland's Process to Evaluate the Feasibility of Expanding the Horn 
Rapid~ Landfill to Ensure In-County Disposal Capacity. 

The City is evaluating the feasibility of expanding the Horn Rapids Landfill. Initial studies 

indicate the landfill could be expanded to accommodate seven million tons, or approximately 
65,000 tons per year for 66 years, depending on the quantity of material disposed per year. The 
landfill would be constructed in compliance with Subtitle D regulations for sanitary landfills, and 
would accept municipal solid waste for disposal. The expanded facility would provide 
convenient disposal opportunity for residents and businesses at the same level of service as the 
existing facility. The estimated cost to expand the Landfill is $33 million over the 53 year life of 

the new facility. The first phase of the new Landfill will be about $6 million to begin operations. 
Operations and maintenance costs would be similar to existing costs. Expansion would ensure 
in-County disposal capacity for County and City residents. 

The County and cities should monitor the City's planning effort, and where feasible, provide 

input into the process. 

5.6 Recommendations 

The Solid Waste Advisory Committee reviewed the options discussed above and has 
recommended the following options: 

The County and cities will monitor the City's planning effort, and where feasible, provide input 

into the process. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 5-9 

143



• 

Chapter 6 

Miscellaneous Wastes 

144



145



6.0 Miscellaneous Wastes 

The purpose of this section is to review the generation, handling, and disposal methods for 
several special wastes in Benton County. These wastes require special handling and disposal and 

are generally managed separately from municipal solid waste. The wastes addressed in this 
chapter are: 

• Agricultural wastes. 
• Asbestos. 
• Biomedical wastes. 
• Construction, demolition, inert and disaster debris. 
• Petroleum contaminated soil. 
• Street wastes. 
• Tires. 
• Electronic wastes. 

Wastes such as low-level radioactive wastes and biosolids will not be addressed in the Plan. 

Universal waste is addressed in the MRW Plan included in Chapter 7. There may be other items 
for the special waste category but they have not been identified or have not caused a problem in 
the County. The nature and sources of these wastes, as well as the existing programs for 

managing these wastes in Benton County are described, and where warranted, options are 
presented. 

6.1 Goals and Objectives 

With respect to specific waste streams, the County has adopted the following goal and 

objectives: 

Goal #6: Establish guidelines and strategies for management of specific waste streams. 
Objectives: 

• Develop a plan to prepare for management of disaster debris. 
• Develop Best Management Practices for agricultural waste reuse and recycling. 
• Develop a plan for managing tires. 
• Develop a plan for managing universal waste. 
• Continue and expand the use of litter work crews. 

6.2 Agricultural Waste 

Agricultural wastes are by-products of farming and ranching that include crop harvesting waste 

and manure. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-l 

146



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

6.2.1 Existing Conditions 

According to the 2007 Census of Agriculture, the number of farms in Benton County is 
increasing; up 24 percent from 1,313 fanns in 2002 to l ,630 farms in 2007. The total farm 
acreage increased by 4 percent, totaling 632,636 acres in 2007 over the 607,963 acres in 2002.1 
The 2007 cattle inventory was 39,324 up from 28,5 l3 in 2002. 

Agricultural wastes result from fanning and ranching activities, and consist of primarily crop 
residues and manure. In 2007, the top crop items in acreage were listed as follows: 

• Wheat for grain, 94,268 acres. 
• Vegetables harvested for sale, 73,530 acres 
• Potatoes, 32, l 70 acres 
• Grapes, 23,322 acres 
• Sweet corn, 22,500 acres 

The Port of Benton, in cooperation with the Benton County Solid Waste Advisory Committee, 

conducted a study in 2009 to evaluate organic wastes in Benton County that may be useful for 
generating renewable energy. This work was funded by a grant from the Washington State 
Department of Ecology (Ecology). The results of the study showed that, in general, the top 
categories of available agricultural waste materials are food processing wastes, wheat straw from 

irrigated wheat fields, corn stover, grape pomace, mint slug, and turf grass straw. The report 
estimated that over 300,000 tons per year of organic agricultural residuals are available in 
Benton County. Exhibit 6-1 summarizes the estimated quantity of organic agricultural residuals 
available in Benton County. Jn addition, the report identified additional, larger quantities of 
materials in neighboring counties, such as Franklin, Yakima, Walla Walla, and Klickitat. The 

report is on file in the Benton County Public Works Department, 620 Market St., Prosser, 
Washington, or can be viewed online at www.co.benton.wa.us. 

1 2007 Census of Agriculture, Benton County, United States Depart1nent of Agriculture, Washington Agricultural 
Statistics Service. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-2 

147



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

Exhibit 6-1. Summary of Organic Residuals Available in Large Quantities in Benton 
County 

·. . · .. 
Mat{lrjal tcs~ru~t~ An~JJal , l\va!lft~ility 

I • QnaJJtity (tOJJS) 
. . ·. . 

'• '· 

. 

. 

Food Processing Wastes >200,000 Potentially available (potato waste 
and apple pornace in demand for 
cattle feed). 

Corn Stover 72,000 Available (some existing collection 
(assumes 50% left in field) and use) 
Wheat Straw 35,000 Available (some existing use) 
(irri.gated fields, assumes 50% left in field) 
Wood 3,200 to 8,300 Partially available 
(woody orchard prunings) 
Grape Pomace 12,000-20,000 Available 
Horse and cattle manure 15,000 Available 
(non-dairy) 
Mint 6,400-8,300 Available 
Turf Grass Straw 7,400-12,500 Available (some alternate uses) 

6.2.2 Options 

1. Continue to Work Cooperatively with Port of Benton and Regional Agencies to ldentifY 
Opportunities.for Beneficial Use of Organic Residuals.from Agriculture 

Given the rural nature of Benton County, the potential exists for the generation of significant 

amounts of agricultural waste. Although little agricultural waste requires disposal in Benton 

County, the Port of Benton report identified opportunities for use of the materials for energy 

generation and/or establishment of regional organics management centers, either in the county or 

on the county perimeter. 

A committee has been formed that discusses potential opportunities in the County to further 

investigate oppmtunities for developing these types of alternative energy industries. Interested 

and affected stakeholders to be included in the discussions have included city and county 

representatives, farmers, processors, energy industry representatives, and the waste and recycling 

industry. 

6.3 Asbestos 

Asbestos is a material that was used for thermal insulation, surfacing materials, and other 

purposes in buildings throughout the 1950s, 1960s, and 1970s. When asbestos-containing 

material (ACM) becomes easily crumbled by hand pressure, it is called friable and dangerous 

because it can release asbestos fibers into the air. Likewise, cutting or sanding of non-friable 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 6-3 

148



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

ACM can release asbestos fibers into the air. Friable asbestos fibers are a known carcinogen, 
which can cause lung cancer and other disabling and fatal diseases. 

Federal regulations governing handling, transportation, and disposal of ACM are known as the 
National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) ( 40 CFR Part 61 ). 
Requirements for asbestos disposal include, to name a few, standards for covering the waste, 
maintenance of waste shipment records, and maintenance ofrecords concerning location and 
quantity of waste disposed. 

Ecology Dangerous Waste Regulations (WAC 173-401-53 I Threshholds for hazardous air 
pollutants) states that asbestos waste that contains 0.01 % of friable asbestos exceeds the criteria 
for carcinogenic dangerous waste and must be regulated. The Benton Clean Air Authority 

(BCAA) is the local agency responsible for enforcing federal, state, and local asbestos 
regulations. The Authority has adopted local regulations, consistent with existing federal and 
state regulations, for the removal, encapsulation, and disposal of ACM. In its regulations, 
BCAA has lowered the limits for notification and emission control from 260 linear feet (or 160 

square feet) to 10 linear feet (or 48 square feet). Asbestos may only be removed by licensed 
asbestos contractors or by homeowners after a notice is provided to BCAA. Asbestos 
contractors are licensed by the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries. 

6.3.1 Existing Conditions 

Municipal solid waste landfills can accept non-friable asbestos wastes if acceptance and disposal 
procedures are in compliance with federal, state, and local regulations. There are a limited 

number of facilities that currently accept ACM for disposal. Asbestos waste generators in 
Benton County can haul their waste to either the Columbia Ridge Landfill (Oregon) or the 
Roosevelt Regional Landfill (located in Klickitat County) for disposal. Both sites have approved 
programs for asbestos waste disposal. As discussed in Chapter 5, some ACM originating in 

Benton County is sent to Sudbury Road and Graham Road landfills. The Horn Rapids Landfill 
has modified their waste policy to accept ACM (non-friable asbestos). 

Asbestos-containing materials can be disposed of in solid waste landfills if they are encapsulated, 
packaged, and covered for disposal in accordance with the local, state, and federal asbestos 

regulations described previously. Acceptance of asbestos at a landfill facility requires special 
handling of the material, additional paper work, and additional training of personnel. These 
requirements increase asbestos waste disposal costs. 

6.3.2 Options 

I. Encourage BCAA to Increase Enforcement of Asbestos Waste Disposal Activities 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-4 

149



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

Asbestos regulations require a written notice of intent to remove or encapsulate asbestos. This 
notice is provided to the BCAA and includes information for handling of the wastes, from 
removal and encapsulation to disposal. The BCAA is responsible for ensuring that the 

procedures outlined in the notice of intent are enforced. The BCAA should be encouraged to 
increase enforcement of asbestos waste disposal activities, including additional follow-up on 
notices of intent to ensure that the wastes were disposed of in the approved manner. Fining 
illegal dumpers and publicizing incidents of illegal asbestos dumping in local newspapers should 
help to discourage illegal dumping and help the public become educated and aware of proper 

disposal practices. 

2. Provide Education to Homeowners on Proper Handling and Disposal 

Much of the asbestos waste generated results from demolition and remodeling projects. The 
quantities generated are a direct result of the amount of this type of work that is conducted. 

While private contractors are generally aware of asbestos handling requirements, homeowners 
doing their own project work may not recognize asbestos-containing materials. Current BCAA 
requirements allow homeowners to remove their own asbestos if they are doing the 
renovation/remodeling work themselves. Some homeowners may be unknowingly placing 
asbestos-containing materials from small remodeling projects in with their trash. There may be a 

need to educate homeowners about proper identification of asbestos-containing materials and 
proper handling and disposal methods. While some information is available on the BCAA 
website, the County could work with BCAA to develop more comprehensive information and 

outreach strategies. 

6.4 Biomedical Wastes 

Medical treatment and research facilities generate a wide range of special wastes that require 

handling and disposal. Because of the variety of waste streams, several different regulatory 
agencies at the local, regional, state, and federal level have regulations pertaining to best 
management practices, and apply their own definitions to waste types. For the purpose of this 

Plan Update, biomedical waste means, and is limited to the following types of waste in 
accordance with RCW 70.95K.010: 

a. Animal Waste: Waste animal carcasses, body parts, and bedding of animals that are 
known to be infected with or that have been inoculated with, human pathogenic 

microorganisms infectious to humans. 

b. Biosafety Level 4 Disease Waste: Waste contaminated with blood, excretions, 
exudates, or secretions from humans or animals which are isolated to protect others from 

highly communicable infectious diseases that are identified as pathogenic organisms 
assigned to biosafety Level 4 by the Centers of Disease Control, National Institute of 
Health, Biosafety in Microbiological and Biomedical Laboratories, current edition. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-5 

150



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

c. Cultures and Stocks: Wastes infectious to humans, includes specimen cultures, 

cultures and stocks of etiologic agents, wastes from production of biologicals and semms, 

discarded live and attenuated vaccines, and laboratory waste that has come into contact 

with cultures and stocks of etiologic agents or blood specimens. Such waste includes but 

is not limited to culture dishes, blood specimen tubes, and devices used to transfer, 

inoculate, and mix cultures. 

d. Human Blood and Blood Products: Discarded waste human blood and blood 

components, and materials containing free-flowing blood and blood products. 

e. Pathological Waste: Waste human source biopsy materials, tissues, and anatomical 

parts that emanate from surgery, obstetrical procedures, and autopsy. "Pathological 

waste" does not include teeth, human corpses, remains, and anatomical parts that are 

intended for interment or cremation. 

f. Sharps Waste: All hypodermic needles, syringes with needles attached, IV tubing with 

needles attached, scalpel blades, and lancets that have been removed from the original 

sterile package. 

The handling, transport, treatment, and disposal of infectious waste are regulated in some fashion 

by the following entities: 

• U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 
• Washington Department of Ecology. 
• Washington Department of Health. 
• Washington Department of Transportation. 
• Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC). 
• Benton-Franklin Health District. 
• National Hospital Ce1iification Association. 

Under the Medical Waste Tracking Act of 1988 (MWTA), the EPA gives states the 

responsibility of permitting infectious waste treatment technologies. Treatment technologies 

must be consistent with the requirements of Title V of the Federal Clean Air Amendments. 

Washington State agencies most directly involved in this process are Ecology, the Department of 

Health, and the WUTC. Ecology administers permits for the following biomedical wastes 

treatment alternatives: 

• Incineration. 
• Autoclaving. 
• Chemical Disinfection. 
• Microwaving. 
• Macrowaving (for offsite treatment only). 
• Gas vapor and irradiation sterilization. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-6 

151



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

6.4.1 Existing Conditions 

The two major hospitals in the area (Kennewick General Hospital and Kadlec Medical Center, 
located in Richland) no longer incinerate their biomedical wastes. One franchise hauler, 
Stericycle, has a certificate granted by the WUTC (certificate G-244) to collect biomedical 
throughout the state. The collection service is provided on an on-call and regular basis. 

Major generators of biomedical wastes in Benton County dispose of their wastes through a 
licensed state franchise service provider. At this time there have been neither reported problems 
with biomedical wastes nor identification of biomedical waste disposed improperly in the waste 
stream. Although no problems have been identified, a potential exists for improper disposal of 

these wastes. The BFHD provides a brochure on proper home disposal of syringes and lancets, 
and refers the medical community to Stericycle for disposal options. 

While most medical facilities are informed about proper management of biomedical wastes, 
residential generators may not be informed about proper management for sharps and outdated 

pharmaceuticals. Pharmaceutical wastes present both wastewater and solid waste management 
issues. Often residents flush unwanted pharmaceuticals down toilets or pour them down drains, 
leading to potential contamination of surface waters, ground waters, and biosolids. In areas 
where there are wells and septic systems, this practice could affect drinking water. Proper 
disposal is also an issue for solid waste collection workers who must handle the waste. 

6.4.2 Options 

Two options to address residential biomedical waste are presented: 

I. Educational materials.for correct management of medical waste generated by residents. 

Educational materials should continue to inform residents about the risks associated with their 
wastes and the services available to properly store and dispose of them. Residential sharps 
generators can use information about correct containers and collection opportunities. 

2. Collection of shmps by garbage haulers, and outdated pharmaceuticals by local law 

el'!forcement agencies. 

Most garbage haulers will accept sharps in their collection bins. Some will provide sharps 

containers, but most encourage residents to use sturdy, shatter and puncture proof, plastic bottles 
as sharps containers. Residents are provided label to use to identify the bottle as a sharps 
container, so it is not inadvertently put in a recycling bin. Local law enforcement agencies hold 
semi-annual pharmaceutical collection events in conjunction with the Drug Enforcement 

Agency. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-7 

152



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

6.5 Construction and Demolition Debris 

Construction and demolition (C&D) debris consists of the materials generated during the 
construction, renovation, and demolition of buildings, roads, and bridges, and included within 
the definition of Solid Waste (WAC 173-350-100). This waste stream often contains: 

• Concrete 
• Wood (from buildings) 
• Asphalt (from roads and roofing shingles) 
• Gypsum (the main component of drywall) 
• Metals 
• Bricks 
• Glass 
• Plastics 
• Salvaged building components (doors, windows, and plumbing fixtures) 
• Trees, stumps, earth, and rock from clearing sites 

A category closely related to C&D is "inert waste." Inert waste includes cured concrete that has 

been used for structural and construction purposes, including embedded steel reinforcing and 
wood, that was produced from mixtures of Pmtland cement and sand, gravel, or other similar 

materials; asphaltic materials that have been used for structural and construction purposes (e.g., 
roads, dikes, paving) that were produced from mixtures of petroleum asphalt and sand, gravel, or 
other similar materials; brick and masonry that have been used for structural and construction 
purposes; ceramic materials produced from fired clay or porcelain; and glass, composed 
primarily of sodium, calcium, silica, boric oxide, magnesium oxide, lithium oxide or aluminum 

oxide. Glass presumed to be inert includes, but is not limited to, window glass, glass containers, 
glass fiber, glasses resistant to thermal shock, and glass-ceramics. Glass containing significant 
concentrations of lead, mercury, or other toxic substance is not presumed to be inert; nor are 

stainless steel and aluminum. 

The primary difference between the two types of waste is that demolition waste is considered 

susceptible to decomposition, whereas inert waste is considered resistant to decomposition. 

6.5.1 Disposal Regulations 

Under WAC 173-350-400, Limited Purpose Landfills include, but are not limited to, landfills 
that receive segregated industrial solid waste, construction, demolition and landclearing debris, 

wood waste, ash (other than special incinerator ash), and dredged material. WAC 173-350 
require liners and leachate collection systems for Limited Purpose Landfills. 

Disposal of inert wastes is specifically addressed in WAC 173-350-990. Under that regulation, 
the requirements for inert sites are significantly reduced from those required for solid waste 

landfills. For example, no liners, leachate collection or treatment systems are required for inert 
fills. The less stringent requirements would result in cost savings in all aspects of construction, 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-8 

153



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

operation, and maintenance of the inert fill. It is often advantageous to divert inert wastes from 
the municipal solid waste stream for disposal at an inert landfill. This reduces the amount of 
costly landfill space consumed by wastes that do not necessarily require disposal in a solid waste 
landfill. A higher level of regulatory overview should be part of any permitted Inert Waste 
Landfill so that non-permitted material (i.e. non-inert Solid Waste) does not become deposited in 
a non-lined landfill). 

Options for disposal of C&D and inert wastes include: 

g. Use of Inert Waste as Fill Material: WAC 173-350-410 provides for use oflimited 
amounts (less than 250 cubic yards) of inert waste as general unregulated fill material. 

h. Disposal in Inert Waste Landfills: Inert landfills may only manage concrete, asphalt, 
masonry, ceramics, glass, aluminum, and stainless steel. The waste must meet the 
definition of"inert" provided earlier. 

1. Disposal in Limited Purpose Landfills: Limited purpose landfills are available to 
accept many other types of wastes including industrial waste, demolition waste, problem 
waste, and wood waste. Design criteria for limited purpose landfills are performance 
based, subject to location standards, design and operating criteria, ground water 
monitoring, and financial assurance. Limited purpose landfill design specifications 
always include a liner and leachate collection system. 

6.5.2 Existing Conditions 

C&D waste generated in Benton County is managed at several landfills, which were previously 
discussed in Chapter 5. The tonnages of Benton County demolition and inert waste accepted at 
these facilities are provided in Exhibit 6-2. The majority of C&D materials are delivered to the 
Horn Rapids Landfill, where the materials are reused, recycled, or disposed. The City uses a tub 
grinder to pulverize wood material for use as intermediate cover material at the Landfill. 

Limited recycling and reuse opportunities exist for C&D in Benton County. Opportunities do 
exist for scrap metals, asphalt, and concrete recycling in the City and region. Exhibit 6-3 
contains a list of facilities in the region that accept C&D materials. Concrete and asphalt 
pavement is crushed and used as base material for new construction or as aggregate in new 
asphalt. Wood waste is processed and sold for landscaping mulch or used to produce new wood 
products. It is often used for hog fuel for steam-generated electricity. Gypsum from wallboard 
is ground and used to manufacture new wallboard, and fertilizer. Architecturally valuable 
timbers, hardware, doors and windows are salvaged and reused with minimal or no processing. 
When recovered, these materials are not regulated as disposed solid waste. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-9 

154



Exhibit 6-2. Demolition and Inert Waste Disposal Summary for Benton County 

01~111:111~1 2~ll'···· 2(1(1!? 
~ite ···· !)em. 1ill!tt l'i>tal t>~ih;i 11~ifi'f 'ttitali 

Hom 
12,49 

Rapids 16,569 l,520 ]8,089 l 1,380 l,ll9 22,267 l,640 23,907 21,1011 8231 21,9241 18,5941 
Landfill 9 

Roosevelt 125 125 669 669 160 160 0 70 

Colun1bia 
0 0 0 Ridge 

-

Graham I 
Road (LP) 4 I 21 61 I I 01 2.5 I I 31 21 I I 21 I 1.341 

Prosser I I 207 I 201 I I I 01 I 453 I 453 I I I OI I 
(!ID) 

City of 
Kennewick I I 9,130 I 9,uo I I I oj I 2,5n / 2,513 I I I OI I 
(I/D) 

Total I 16,698 I 10,859 l 21,557 I 12,049 J 1,119 I 1 3 • 1 ~ I 22,430 I 4,606 I 27,036 I 21,1221 8231 21,945/ 18,6651 

Source: Washington Department of Ecology, Solid Waste Disposal Data by County (Landfilled and Incinerated: 1994 -2010) 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 6-10 

··.··211119. 

inert t()rali 

l,541 I 20,135 I 

70 

0 

I 1 I 

I 01 

I OI 

1,541 I 20,206 I 

2(1t(I. 

~11\, . •nett .rota• 

18,014 I 36,626 I 54,640 

0 

0 

I I 0 

I 69 I 69 

I 979/ 979 

18,014 I 37,674 I 55,688 

155



Exhibit 6-3. Regional C&D Facilities r------- ------
City Materials I Facility 

i'Ray Poland and Sons, Inc. Kennewick Concrete, rebar I 

]Pacific Steel and Recycling Kennewick All grades of construction metals I 

! Aluminum, Brass, Copper, Ferrous scrap, Lead, Nonferrous, 
, Twin City Metals Kennewick Porcelain/cast-Iron, Stainless steel, Wire (ferrous, bare wire, 

insulated) 

HVAC Recovery I Pick Up Kennewick Copper 
' 

R S Davis Recycling 
Hermiston, OR Scrap metal 

i lncoroorated 

! Ross Scrap Yard Hermiston, OR Scap metal 

Suoer Scrap Kennewick Scrap metal 
i DLC Recycling Yakima Scrap metal 
DRS Richland Clean drywall 
i Mavflower Metals Prosser Scrao meta! 

[Tommy's Steel and Salvage Pasco Ferrous and non-ferrous metals 

Central Pre-Mix Pasco Clean concrete block, bricks, rock, and gravel 
i Inland Asohalt Richland Concrete and asoha!t 
·American Rock Products Richland Concrete (No metal or asohalt) 

6.5.3 Options 

Many C&D materials, such as wood, asphalt, concrete, rock, gypsum, and various metals, have 
multiple potential uses and are cost-effectively recovered, processed, and used as raw materials 
for new (or renewed) end uses. Wood waste is processed and sold for landscaping mulch or used 
to produce new wood products. It is often used for hog fuel. Gypsum from wallboard is ground 

and used to manufacture new wallboard, and fe1tilizer. Architecturally valuable timbers, 
hardware, doors and windows are salvaged and reused with minimal or no processing. When 
recovered, these materials are not considered, or regulated, as solid waste. 

Such activities reduce pressure on waste disposal facilities, reduce dependence on "virgin" raw 

materials, and decrease energy use. In addition, the economic value of this market activity is 
enormous. Jn many communities, C&D and inert materials are now recognized as having 
significant potential to contribute to recycling goals and reduce waste overall. 

C&D wastes are generated at a rate which is proportional to construction activity in a county and 

therefore dependent on the economic climate as well as population growth. Since Benton 
County will continue to experience growth and redevelopment, there will be C&D waste to be 

handled. 

Historically, C&D and inert wastes have been collected. transported, recycled, and disposed by 

the private sector. This responsibility shonld remain with the private sector. Benton Connty 
should, however, support private efforts by encouraging separation ofrecyclable or reusable 
materials from the waste stream. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-11 

156



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

In keeping with the state goals and policies for waste reduction and recycling, the following 
options have been presented to the Solid Waste Advisory Committee as a means to gain more 
control and insight into the disposal of demolition wastes, to reduce the amount of C&D and 
inert wastes requiring disposal, and to prepare for emergencies and disasters that create debris: 

I. Provide Education Programs.for Contractors. 

A straightforward method to help divert C&D and inert waste is to provide general contractors 
with educational material and information about alternative facilities that take C&D and inert 
waste. This could be as simple as providing a brochure listing the diversion facilities in the 
region, with hours, location, cost, and material types accepted. Providing information on reuse 
opportunities, such as exchange programs, can also be useful. A key opportunity for informing 

contractors about reduction and recycling opportunities is during the permitting process. 

In addition to general reduction and recycling opportunities, contractors could be provided 

information about deconstruction and green building practices: 

Deconstruction: This involves dismantling of a structure, salvaging building contents and 

components, and finding viable markets and outlets for materials. This practice can be used to 
varying degrees, which can range from reuse of an entire structure or foundation, to select 
assemblies and systems, to the careful removal of specific materials or items. 

Green Building: Increasing the amount of green building practices is one of the five key 

initiatives identified in the State's Beyond Waste Plan. Green building is defined by the Beyond 
Waste plan as "design and construction practices that significantly reduce or eliminate the 
negative impact of buildings on the environment and occupants in five broad areas: sustainable 
site planning; conservation of materials and resources; energy efficiency and renewable energy; 

safeguarding water and water efficiency; and indoor air quality." The Beyond Waste Plan 
adopted a short-term goal of "dramatically increasing adoption of environmentally preferable 
building construction, operation and deconstruction practices throughout the state and the 

region." A separate long-term goal was also adopted, which is for "green building to be a 
mainstream and usual practice throughout the state." 

The Beyond Waste Plan makes seven recommendations specifically for green building: 

a. Coordinate and facilitate partnerships to implement the green building action plan. 

b. Lead by example in state government. 

c. Provide incentives that encourage green design, construction and deconstruction and 

begin removing disincentives. 

d. Expand capacity and markets for reusing and recycling construction and demolition 

materials. 

e. Provide and promote statewide residential green building programs. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-12 

157



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

f. Increase awareness, knowledge and access to green building resources. 

g. Encourage innovative product design. 

2. Establish C&D and Inert Waste Diversion Specifications.for County or City Projects. 

Another method for encouraging C&D and inert waste diversion is to include C&D and inert 
waste diversion requirements/procedures into project specifications, which are part of the 
contract between the contractor and the project owner. Because specifications are a major 
communication tool to convey the requirements of a construction or demolition project, 

specifications that contractors are required to follow could also include conditions and 
requirements for diverting C&D and inert materials. If the conditions are not met, the contractor 
could be held accountable. 

The specification would require the contractor to submit a C&D waste management plan to the 
project owner and architect which will recover 50 - 75% of the C&D wastes for reuse and 
recycling. The plan must include a list of reuse and recycling facilities that will be used and 
materials that will be recovered. At the end of the project, the contractor must provide a final 
accounting of the disposition of recovered materials, including submittal of receipts, to receive 

final pa ym en ts. 

3. Use Recycled Content Building Specifications for County or City Projects. 

There are building materials made with recycled content (insulation, plastic lumber, tiles) that 

are market ready, competitively priced and perform as well as virgin products. To generate 
demand and promote the reuse of C&D and inert materials in their present and recycled form, 
Benton County and the cities would require the use of recovered and recycled materials for 
county building and renovation projects. 

As discussed above, the Beyond Waste Plan Green Building Initiative objective is "to 

dramatically increase adoption of environmentally preferable building construction, operation 
and deconstruction practices throughout the state and the region." The long-term goal of this 
initiative is "for green building to be a mainstream and usual practice throughout the state." 

Other governmental actions are being taken on the state and local level. The High Performance 

Green Building Bill was signed in to law by Governor Gregoire on April 8, 2005. This bill 
adopts LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) standards for state-owned 

buildings and schools. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-13 

158



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

4. Develop a Disaster Management Plan.for Benton County. 

In the aftermath of a disaster, the primary focus of government response teams is to restore and 
maintain public health and safety. As a result, debris diversion programs such as recycling and 

reuse can quickly become secondary. Advance planning, through a Disaster Management Plan, 
can help Benton County identify options for collecting, handling, storing, processing, 
transporting, diverting, and disposing of debris. Preparing a plan before an emergency happens 
can save valuable time and resources if it is needed. 

5. Additional Oversight of Small Inert Waste Fill Projects 

The county adheres to the state regulation that inert waste fill of less than 250 cubic yards does 
not have to be pennitted. Improvements could be made in the level of control or scrutiny the 
county applies to individual demolition and/or construction projects, especially those in the 
unincorporated areas of the county. Some record of volume, waste type, fill location, and 
responsible party should be maintained. This could be facilitated through the issuance of 
demolition permits or through the building permit process. 

6.6 Petroleum-Contaminated Soils 

Petroleum-contaminated soils (PCS) are soils that have been contaminated by a petroleum 

product through leaks from petroleum product storage tanks or spills. Some PCS can be 
contaminated with lead, benzene, solvents, and PCBs and therefore may be considered 
hazardous. This section discusses only non-hazardous PCS. 

PCS requires clean up when hydrocarbon contamination levels exceed those specified in 

Ecology's Model Toxics Control Act Cleanup Regulation (MTCA) (WAC 173-340). Under the 
MTCA, there are separate cleanup levels for industrial verses non-industrial zoned land along 
with maximum allowable levels for each individual constituent. PCS above MTCA cleanup 

levels can be treated in-situ, in place, or excavated and treated on site or at an approved treatment 
facility. 

6.6.1 Existing Conditions 

Proper disposal of PCS is largely the responsibility of the generator. PCS generated in Benton 
County may be disposed of in several ways, including treating their soils onsite, disposing of 

them at a regional treatment center, or disposing of them at a permitted landfill. The generator 
must select a method approved by Ecology and typically will use cost to make the final selection 

of disposal method. 

One option which is only available to generators in Benton County is to haul the PCS to the Horn 

Rapids Landfill, where the wastes are land farmed, disked in with native soils, and then used as 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-14 

159



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

cover and road-building materials at the landfill. The Benton-Franklin Health District monitors 

the acceptance of PCS at the landfill and requires testing of the material before it is used at the 
landfill at least 6 months after it was first land farmed. The Horn Rapids Landfill uses a special 
form and procedure to track PCS through the treatment process. The BFHD approves and 
monitors PCS delivered to the Horn Rapids Landfill for treatment and re-use. 

Other options for disposal are the Kennewick and Pasco transfer stations and export to one of the 
regional landfills. Generators with PCS designated as dangerons wastes must find other methods 

of appropriately disposing of their wastes that complies with all local, state, and federal 
regulations. 

Present disposal and treatment options for PCS appear to be adequate. PCS wastes generated in 

Benton County will continue to be disposed at the Horn Rapids Landfill, on-site, Roosevelt 
Regional Landfill, Finley Buttes Landfill, and Columbia Ridge Landfill. 

6.6.2 Options 
1. Maintain Existing System 
The County and cities should promote the private sector to continue to manage and dispose of 
PCS. These operations are likely to continue to use the Horn Rapids Landfill or other 
appropriately permitted facilities. Where appropriate, the County and cities should support and 

encourage the private sector to treat contaminated soils to minimize the amounts landfilled. 

6.7 Street Wastes 

Street wastes are collected during maintenance activities of cleaning streets, parking lots, storm 
sewers, and drainage systems. They are considered a solid waste in RCW 70.95.030 when the 
liquids have been decanted. Typically these street wastes fail the Model Toxics Control Act 
standards for total petroleum hydrocarbon (WTPH 418. I Modified) and heavy metals; however, 

on the east side of Washington, street sweepings do meet MTCA standards due to the high 
volatilization. Many generators are now disposing of this material in landfills at considerable 

expense. 

6.7.1 Existing Conditions 

Street sweepings and vactor truck wastes collected at the Richland and Kennewick Decant 
Facilities have routinely tested under MTCA levels. Kennewick disposes of the material at their 

Inert Landfill, while Richland uses it for cover at the landfill. Prosser also disposes of street 
sweepings in their Inert Landfill. Decanted water from both decant facilities enter oil/water 
separators and each city's sewerage system. The City of Kennewick is looking into the feasibility 

of a decant facility that would handle contaminated street waste. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-15 

160



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

6.7.2 Options 

I. Evaluate Potential Reuse of Street Wastes 

Numerous reuse options for street wastes are potentially available. For example, the material 

might be used as feedstock in cement manufacture, asphalt production, composting, concrete 
manufacture, and industrial fill. Other reuse options include construction uses like fill or 
roadbed material. Some of the processing and reuse options for street wastes may not be realistic 
given regulations, pem1itting requirements, and material specifications involved in the options, 
leaving landfilling or treatment as the only options. Richland and Kennewick have both 
constructed street waste facilities, with all wastes going to landfills. 

6.8 Tires 

A waste tire is a tire no longer usable for its original intended purpose because of wear, damage, 
or defect (RCW 70.95.550) Tires do not include the metal wheel to which they are usually 

fastened. With its useful life over, it must be stored (temporarily), and then recycled or disposed. 
Tire dealerships remove most old tires in the process of selling new ones. Individuals may also 
accumulate old tires. When vehicles are junked, the tires on the vehicle, spares, and snow tires 
may be stored by the owner or taken to a wrecking yard. 

Jn 2005, the Washington State Legislature passed SHB 2085, creating a Waste Tire Removal 
Account with funds for cleanup of unauthorized and unlicensed tire piles. Funds for this account 
come from a $1 fee for each new replacement tire sold in Washington. The 2009 Legislature 

passed Senate Bill 5976 that transfers most of the collected tire fee revenue to Department of 
Transportation every other year (starting in 2011) (RCW 70.95.532). Ecology currently receives 

an annual tires budget of $500,000. This funding reflects an 80% reduction from previous years. 

Ecology is changing the focus of the Tire Program in light of the funding reduction. At the start 
of the program, we focused on removal of unauthorized tire piles. All of the tire piles identified 

in the 2005 Study of Unauthorized Tire Piles have been cleaned up along with many others. 

6.8.1 Existing Conditions 

The tire pile regulations are applicable and enforceable for piles where more than 800 tires are 
stored (WAC 173-350). Currently, there are no permitted tire pile facilities in the County (a 

previously permitted facility has been abandoned by the owner and is not under a permit). Tire 
collection events are held in Prosser and West Richland, sponsored by the Benton County 
Mosquito Control District. 

Tires are accepted for a fee at the Horn Rapids Landfill. Tires are no longer buried, but 
transported off site to recycling operations. Waste Management accepts tires at the Kennewick 
Transfer Stations for a fee. Tires are not collected curbside with refuse. Tires are shipped by 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 20 J 4 6-16 

161



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

Waste Management to a facility in Richland. Tires are accepted at the BDI Transfer Station for a 
fee, and tires are collected at curbside with the refuse in West Richland, Prosser and Benton City, 
as well as Ed's Disposal and Basin Disposal's county service areas. 

Most large tire retailers contract with a tire collector for transport away from the site and 
eventual disposal/recycling. The majority of tires collected in the county are transported out of 

the county or state. 

Tires will continue to be accepted at the Richland Landfill, Kennewick Transfer Station, BDI 
Transfer Station, and local tire retailers. The BFHD will identify tire piles that do not comply 

with state regulations and require compliance with these regulations. Tire policy and 
enforcement should be a consistent focus of Benton County to prevent the accumulation of tires 
outside of the traditional solid waste system. 

6.8.2 Options 

1. Develop a Planf(Jr Management of' Tires 

Although currently there are a variety of ways in which tires are safely collected, in Benton 
County, the collection of tires at individual residents or businesses has the potential to become a 

nuisance. The County and cities should develop a plan to address the accumulation of tires on 
individual properties, and should pursue state grants, if available, to assist in tire pile cleanup. 
Municipal and county solid waste staff should coordinate tire recycling activities with programs 
in other jurisdictions. 

2. County and City Purchasing Programs.for Recycled Tire Products. 

As was discussed in Chapter 3, Benton County can use its purchasing power to promote markets 
for scrap tires. There are a wide variety of tire-derived products available in the marketplace 

such as molded rubber products (e.g., carpet underlay, flooring material, dock bumpers, patio 
decks, railroad crossing blocks, roof walkway pads, rubber tiles and bricks, movable speed 
bumps). EPA has developed recycled-content recommendations for many products made from 

scrap rubber. Additionally, rubberized asphalt can have applications in many public works 
projects and loose fill crumb rubber can be used in a variety of applications for recreation and 
outdoor use such as playgrounds and walking trails. 

Purchasing programs also can promote the use of retreads in government fleets, which is a 

common practice in commercial fleets for large truck tires. Retreading refers to reusing a tire 
casing and applying a new tread to the tire surface. EPA also has a procurement guideline 
developed for retread tires. 

2. County and City Programs to Reduce Tire Waste. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-17 

162



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

City and county governments can divert tires from the waste stream from their fleets through 
maintenance and repair programs. Good tire maintenance can extend the life of a tire 
significantly. Windshield stickers can be used to remain maintenance facilities to check tires just 

as stickers are used for oil changes. Tires also can be repaired, if damaged, to increase their life 
span. Tire waste also can be reduced by purchasing longer-life tires. 

3. Public Education Programs. 

Consumers can be educated on tire maintenance, tire repair, and lifecycle costs to encourage 
purchase of longer-life tires. One specific target for educational materials could be companies 

that operate commercial fleets. 

6.9 Electronic Waste 

Electronic waste refers to discarded computers, monitors, printers, fax machines, cell phones, 
electronic cables, and other electronic products. In 2006, the Washington State Legislature 
passed Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill 6428, which established the Washington State 
Electronics Product Recycling Law. The law requires manufacturers of electronic products sold 
in Washington State to finance and implement electronics collection, transportation, and 

recycling programs in Washington State no later than January 1, 2009. This program is available 
to households, small governments, small businesses, and charities. Ecology oversees this 
program. Electronic products that are covered in the legislation include cathode ray tube (CRT) 
and flat panel computer monitors having a viewable area greater than 4 inches when measured 

diagonally, desktop computers, laptops, portable computers, and e-readers. 

6.9.1 EXISTING CONDITIONS 
Implemented in January 2009, E-Cycle Washington provides free recycling of computers, 
monitors, laptops, e- readers, and televisions to residents, charitable organizations, small 
businesses, and small government agencies. 

The business locations that accept and recycle or reuse electronic materials in Benton County 
include the following: 

• Clayton Ward Recycling, I 19 East Albany, Kennewick 
• Clayton Ward Recycling, J 936 Saint St., Richland 
• Goodwill - Columbia Center Mall, I 00 Columbia Center Blvd., Kennewick 
• Goodwill - Fred Meyer Donation Center, Corner of I 0th and Hwy 395, Kennewick 
• Goodwill - Albertsons Donation Center, 140 W. Gage Blvd., Richland 
• Goodwill - Wahnart Donation Center, 2801 Duportail St., Richland 
• Value Village, 731 N Columbia Center Blvd., Kennewick 
• Stay Tan West, 3680 W. Van Giesen, West Richland 
• Staples, J 480 Tapteal Dr., Richland 
• Office Depot, 1717 George Washingon Way, Richland 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-18 

163



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

• Office Depot, 6815 W. Canal Dr., Kennewick 
• Best Buy, 6809 W. Canal Dr., Kennewick 

6.9.2 OPTIONS 

1. Monitor and Evaluate £-Waste Program 

The County should monitor the current E-Cycle program for effectiveness. Beginning in 2010, 
local governments and local communities are encouraged to submit an annual "Satisfaction 
Report" to Ecology by March I. The entity responsible for preparing the solid waste 
management plan for an area is responsible for submitting the Satisfaction Report. The report 
must use a template Ecology provides that will include information on: 

Accessibility and convenience of services and how they are working in their community. 

• What services aren't working and why. 
• Suggestions for improvements to services plans provide. 
• Description of public outreach and education. 
• Any other relevant information. 

One copy is to be submitted electronically, and an additional paper copy is to be submitted by 
mail. Within 90 days, Ecology will either approve the report or request additional information. 

Ecology will use information in these reports when evaluating recycling plan service levels and 
revisions. 

2. £-Waste Education 

Local governments are required by Ecology to provide their citizens with information about the 

E-Cycle program through existing educational methods typically used by local government. This 
includes listing locations and hours of operation of local collection sites and services. Ecology 
has developed a Local Government Toolkit, to promote E-Cycle Washington. This toolkit is 
available on the Department of Ecology web site. This public education program will promote 

the existing drop-off locations in the County that are part of the state program. 

3. Update list of available opportunities fore-waste collection and recycling 

This information is on the County's website, along with a link to the Ecology website. The 
County should regularly update the information to ensure it is accurate. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 20 J 4 6-19 

164



Chapter 6 Special Wastes 

6.10 Recommendations 

The SWAC reviewed the options for special wastes, and recommends the following policies and 
programs for implementation: 

Benton County and the Cities will continue to monitor the handling of special wastes and pursue 
increased education and continued support in the enforcement and cleanup of hazardous wastes. 
We will work on developing a disaster management plan for Benton County and in cooperation 
with its Cities. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 6-20 

165



Chapter 7 

Moderate Risk Waste 

166



167



7 .0 Moderate Risk Waste 

7 .1 Introduction 

The purpose of this Plan is to establish the goals and objectives for the safe handling and 
management of moderate risk waste (MRW), which is composed of household hazardous waste 
(HHW) and conditionally exempt small quantity generator (CESQG) waste generated in the 
County. The Plan will direct and guide the management of these wastes over a twenty year 
planning period, from 2012 to 2032. The recommendations included in this Plan are based on 
existing conditions and forecasts of future conditions in the County. 

This Plan includes the geographic area of Benton County, including both the incorporated and 
unincorporated areas. The lead agency in its development is the Benton County Department of 
Public Works. The population distribution across the County averages I 06 people per square 
mile, with more residents living in the incorporated cities/towns of the county (77%) as 
compared to the unincorporated area (23%). In 2010, the total County population was 188,931 
people. Population growth from 2000 to 20 I 0 was approximately 32%. Estimates prepared by 
the Washington State Office of Financial Management (high series) project the population to be 
250,842 by the year 2030. 

The Plan was prepared with input from the Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SW AC) during 
the 2012 Solid Waste Management Plan update process. A list of the SWAC members and the 
meeting dates, along with information on where minutes from those meetings are archived, is 
included in Chapter 1. 

7.2 Current Conditions 

A Moderate Risk Waste facility operated at the Horn Rapids Landfill from 1995 to 2010. The 
facility was staffed with two full time personnel, and accepted waste from households and small 
quantity generators in Benton County. The types of materials collected at the Horn Rapids 

Facility included the following: 

• Paint (oil base and latex) • Propane Cylinders 

• Cleaning Agents • Aerosols 

• Polishes • Transmission & brake fluid 

• Antifreeze • Wood preservatives and stains 

• Batteries • Pesticides 

• Gasoline • Motor oil and anti-freeze 

• Adhesives and glues • Pool Chemicals 

• Fluorescent light bulbs/tubes 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 20 J 4 7-1 

168



Chapter 7 Moderate Risk Waste 

The quantities of materials collected at the facility and at collection events, from 2008 through 
201 l, are indicated in Exhibit 7-1. 

Exhibit 7-1. MRW Materials Collected in Benton County 
2008-2011 (pounds) 

Small Quantity 
Household Generator 

Hazardous Waste Waste 
Year (HHWI (SQG) TOTAL. %HHW 

2008 295,069 19,693 314,762 94% 

2009 356,852 6,328 363,180 98% 

20101 117,131 7,356 124,487 94% 

20112 137,754 N/A 137,744 N/A 
1Partial year due to fire 
2 Two collection events, participants not tracked 

%SQG 

6% 

2% 

6% 

N/A 

The previous MRW facility received an average of approximately 4,675 customers per year, with 

the majority of customers coming from Richland, West Richland, and Kennewick, and small 

numbers of customers from Prosser, Benton City, and unincorporated Benton County, see 

Exhibits 7-2 and 7-3. 

Exhibit 7-2: MRW Customer Trips 

Trips Trips Trips 
Year HHW SQG TOTAL 
2008 4,450 79 4,529 

2009 4,748 77 4,825 

20101 3,815 48 3,863 
1Partial year due to fire 

Source: 2008-2010 trip counts from MRW and SQG Annual Reports. 2009 and 2010 

forms track used oil, battery, and antifreeze customers separately and customer 
trips for these materials are not tracked. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 7-2 

169



Chapter 7 Moderate Risk Waste 

Exhibit 7-3: MRW Customer Source Breakdown 
(based on 2008 MRW Customer Tracking) 

·· ... .... .. 
P¢r~!Jtof 

City ... · 'frill$ · .. ·. . · .. · .. · . l'otal .. 
West Richland 386 8.7% 

Richland 3,633 81.6% 

Prosser 12 0.3% 

Kennewick 271 6.1% 

Benton City 71 l.6% 
Benton County 
(other) 77 1.7% 
TOTAL 4,450 100% 

In addition to the former MR W facility at the Horn Rapids Landfill, Benton County offered 

satellite HHW drop-off facilities in Benton City and Prosser to provide convenient disposal 

options for County residents. These facilities were operated by Basin Disposal, Inc. of Pasco, 

WA. 

The Benton City satellite facility is located at the City shop south of the intersection of Della St 

and 7'h St. In Prosser, the satellite facility is located at the City Yard/transfer station at 10th St. 

& Sherman St. These facilities currently collect only used oil. The used motor oil is collected 

and recycled by Oil Recycling and Refining Company, whose local facility is at 403 N. Dayton, 

Kennewick. 

Jn 20 l 0, the facility was destroyed in a fire. Since that time, the County has operated collection 

events twice yearly to provide opportunities for County residents and eligible businesses to 

properly dispose ofMRW. For participation rates for the four collection events held in 

Kennewick in 2012 and 2013 see Exhibit 7-4. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 7-3 

170



Chapter 7 Moderate Risk Waste 

Exhibit 7-4 HHW Collection Participant Breakdown 
(based on tracking at events held in 2012 and 2013) 

. . ·. 
• J>~~lli!-tiir · 

CitV . Pardcinalll:S . 'fllflll . 
Benton City 37 1.2% 
Kennewick 3,633 41.8% 
Prosser 12 0.5% 

Richland 271 26.8% 
W. Richland 71 6.3% 
Benton County 77 6.9% 
Other (did not stop 
for survey) 503 16.4% 
TOTAL 4,450 100% 

7.3 Hazardous Waste 

Businesses or institutions producing or accumulating hazardous waste above the quantity 
exclusion limits are required to meet a stringent set of regulations when storing, handling, and 
disposing of their hazardous wastes. In addition, these fully regulated hazardous waste 
generators must comply with extensive waste tracking and reporting requirements. CESQGs 
must meet certain requirements for identifying and managing their hazardous wastes, but are 
exempt from portions of the waste tracking and reporting requirements. 

7 .3.1. Hazardous Waste Generators 

Businesses in the County that are registered as hazardous waste generators have an EPA/State 
identification number issued under Chapter 173-303-WAC, as listed in Ecology's Facility Site 
Identification (F/SID) database (as of February 2012. A map showing the distribution of the 
registered hazardous waste generators is included as Exhibit 7-5. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 7-4 

171



Chapter 7 Moderate Risk Waste 

Exhibit 7-5. Distribution of Hazardous Waste Generators 

• • • • 
f-f 

j / 

• 

7.3.2. Hazardous Waste Sites 

Ecology publishes the Hazardous Sites List as required by WAC 173-340-330. The list is 
updated twice per year. It includes all sites that have been assessed and ranked using the 
Washington Ranking Method. Also listed are National Priorities List (NPL) sites. Sites on the 
Hazardous Sites List (excluding NPL and TSP sites) have undergone a preliminary study called a 
Site Hazard Assessment (SHA). An SHA provides Ecology with basic information about a site. 
Ecology then uses the Washington Ranking Method (WARM) to estimate the potential threat the 
site poses, if not cleaned up, to human health and the environment. The estimate is based on the 
amount of contaminants, how toxic they are, and how easily they can come in contact with 
people and the environment. Sites are ranked relative to each other on a scale of one to five. A 
rank of one represents the highest level of concern relative to other sites, and a rank of five the 
lowest. Hazard ranking helps Ecology target where to spend cleanup funds. However, a site's 
actual impact on human health and the environment, public concern, a need for an immediate 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 7-5 

172



Chapter 7 Moderate Risk Waste 

response, and available cleanup staff and funding also affect which sites get first priority for 
cleanup. A site may be removed from the list only if the site is cleaned up. In some cases, long
term monitoring and periodic reviews may be required to ensure the cleanup is adequate to 
protect the public and the environment. Placing of a site on the list does not, by itself, imply that 
persons associated with the site are liable under Chapter 70.1050 RCW. 

7.4 Transporters and Facilities 

Hazardous waste transportation companies that are registered with Ecology which can service 
businesses in Benton County are included in Exhibit 7-6. This is a partial list, and does not 
constitute a recommendation. All transpotters of hazardous waste require a common carrier 
permit issued by the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC), under RCW 
81.80. 

There are presently no household hazardous waste collection facilities in the County. If it 
became necessary to site a hazardous waste facility in the County to handle the County's waste, 
the 2006 Comprehensive Plan designates specific areas of the County for Heavy Industrial land 
uses. Heavy industries are by definition those that in the normal course of activity transport, 
store or produce emissions, smoke, glare, noise, odor, dust and hazardous materials as products 
or byproducts. Lands designated Heavy Industry on the Land Use Map are lands wherever they 
have, or are in reach of attributes essential to industrial activities, and where they will not present 
unmanageable conflicts with other land uses, and have rail and water borne transportation access; 
isolation from high density residential and commercial uses; large acreages for outside storage 
and maneuvering of trucks and rail equipment. Heavy Industrial lands are designated in the 
south county, in the south Finley area, north of Prosser, and on the Hanford Site. The county's 
supply of Industrial designated lands is augmented by similar designations within cities in the 
county. 

Furthermore, in Chapter 11.34 of the County Zoning Code under the Heavy Industrial (HI) 
district, Section 11.34.05 Uses Requiring a Conditional Use Permit, allows for a hazardous waste 
treatment and/or hazardous waste storage facility treating waste not generated on the same or a 
contiguous parcel; provided that such facility complies with Washington State siting criteria set 
forth in RCW 70.105.210, and if a conditional use pennit is issued by the Board of Adjustment 
after notice and public hearing. 

Exhibit 7-6. Hazardous Waste Transporters 
. .· 

ComPl!llY ·. · .. . .. ··. .. 

Able Cleanup Technologies 

Adar Construction, Inc. 

Advanced Waste Services 

ARCOM Oil 

BELFOR Environmental, Inc. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 

.. ,'','_: ",_':','_,_: 
. . . .·· . L()t;Jfj~ll 

Spokane 

Spanaway 

West Allis 

Tacoma 

Portland 

. . 

7-6 

173



Chapter 7 Moderate Risk Waste 

Exhibit 7-6. Hazardous Waste Transporters 
~ ·. .• •' .. ,.. .·· .. ··, .. '.': :c: 

Com!>lll1Y . •' .. . . IJ,)clltiOn 

Big Sky Industrial Spokane 

Bulk Service Transport Spokane 

CCS (a division of PNE Corp.) Longview 

Certified Cleaning Services Tacoma 

Chemical Waste Management Arlington 

Chem-Safe Environmental Kittitas 

Clean Harbors SeaTac 

Coeur d'Alene Dredging Valleyford 

Emerald Services Seattle 

EQ (Environmental Quality Company) Wayne 

FBN Enterprises Bellevue 

HAZCO Environmental Services Richmond 

lnnovac Edmonds 

Marine Vacuum Service Seattle 

Phoenix Environmental Services Tacoma 

PSC Environmental Services Washougal 

Regional Disposal (RABANCO) Seattle 

Safety Kleen North Highlands 

SQG Specialists Salem 

TW Services Madison 

U.S. Ecology Grand View 

Univar USA Redmond 

Veolia Environmental Services (formerly Onyx) Phoenix 

Waste Management of Auburn Auburn 

WasteXpress Environmental Services Portland 

7.5 Legal Authority for Program 

Local governments are required by the Washington State Hazardous Waste Management Act (HWMA, 
Chapter 70. l 05 RCW) to address moderate risk waste management in their jurisdictions. Moderate risk 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 7-7 

174



Chapter 7 Moderate Risk Waste 

wastes are hazardous wastes produced by households, and by businesses and institutions in small 
quantities. Commercial and institutional generators of hazardous waste are conditionally exempt from 
full regulation under the HWMA, provided that they do not produce or accumulate hazardous waste 
above specified quantities defined by Ecology (quantity exclusion limits). These "small quantity 
generators" produce hazardous wastes in quantities that do not exceed the following State regulatory 
limits: 

• 220 pounds ( 100 kg) of dangerous waste per month or per batch. 
• 2.2 pounds (1 kg) of acute or extremely hazardous waste per month or per batch. 

Jn addition, to maintain its status as a small quantity generator, a business or institution may not 
accumulate more than 2,200 pounds of dangerous waste or more than 2.2 pounds of acute or extremely 
hazardous waste at one time. 

Businesses or institutions producing or accumulating hazardous waste above the quantity exclusion limits 
are required to meet a stringent set of regulations when storing, handling, and disposing of their hazardous 
wastes. Jn addition, these fully regulated hazardous waste generators must comply with extensive waste 
tracking and repo11ing requirements. Small-quantity generators must meet certain requirements for 
identifying and managing their hazardous wastes, but are exempt from portions of the waste tracking and 
reporting requirements. 

Jn 1991, RCW 70.951.020 was added requiring local governments to amend their local hazardous waste 
plans to include the Used Oil Recycling Act, for the management of used oil as pmi ofMRW 
management. 

The Beyond Waste Plan, published in 2004, establishes five initiatives as starting points for reducing 
wastes and toxic substances in Washington. Initiative #2 is Reducing Small-Volume hazardous materials 
and wastes. The goal of this initiative" ... is to accelerate progress toward eliminating the risks associated 
with products containing hazardous substances." Specifically, the initiative encompasses products and 
suhstances commonly used in households and in relative small quantities by businesses. 

In 2009, Ecology updated the MRW Planning Guidelines, and in 2010 Ecology updated the Guidelines 
for the Preparation of Solid Waste Management Plans. Included in the new guidelines are new 
requirements for a combined Solid Waste and MRW Plan. This section has been prepared to meet the 
requirements for a combined Solid Waste and MRW Plan. 

7.6 Financing 

Benton County's MRW program is funded from a number of sources, including revenue from garbage 
excise fees, matching monies from Cities, and grant funding. Costs for the program include labor and 
operations. The 2010 costs and revenue for the Benton County MR W program are presented in Exhibit 
7-7. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 20 J 4 7-8 

175



Chapter 7 Moderate Risk Waste 

Exhibit 7-7. MRW Program Costs and Revenne (2010) 

Costs (includes contractor costs, wages, permits, etc.) $280,000 

Revenue (includes grants) $280,000 

7.7 Governance 

The legal authority for decisions regarding the implementation of the MR W plan is the 
responsibility of the Benton County Board of County Commissioners. 

7.8 Program Philosophy 

The following are the goals and objectives of the Benton County MRW program: 

• Protect natural resources and public health by eliminating the discharge of moderate risk waste 
into solid waste systems, wastewater treatment system, and into the environment though 
indiscriminate disposal; 

• Manage moderate risk wastes in a manner that promotes, in order of priority: waste reduction, 
recycling, physical, chemical, and biological treatment, incineration, solidification and 
stabilization, and landfilling; 

• Increase public awareness of available alternatives and the importance of proper disposal of 
moderate risk wastes; 

• Improve opportunities for the safe disposal of moderate risk wastes by citizens and businesses 
within Benton County; 

• Improve disposal options available to farmers and ranchers for agricultural chemical waste; 

• Reduce health risks for workers coming in contact with moderate risk wastes that may be 
disposed of in the solid waste stream or in wastewater treatment systems; 

• Coordinate moderate risk waste management programs with existing and planned systems for 
waste reduction, recycling, and other programs for solid waste management; 

• Encourage cooperation and coordination among all levels of government, citizens, and the private 
sector in 1nanaging 1noderate risk wastes; 

• Emphasize local responsibility for solving problems associated with moderate risk waste, rather 
than relaying on the state or federal government to provide solutions; and 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 7-9 

176



Chapter 7 Moderate Risk Waste 

• Comply with the requirements of the Washington State Hazardous Waste Management Act 
(RCW 70. l 05.220) directing each local government to prepare a local hazardous waste 
1nanage1nent plan. 

The County's overall vision is to reduce the generation ofMRW, and to eliminate the improper 
disposal ofMRW. Through education and outreach, the County envisions a change in behavior 
and habits that will accomplish these goals and objectives. 

7.9 Program Services 

The County is considering a number of options for household hazardous waste collection, public 
education, and business technical assistance, as described below: 

7.9.1. Household Hazardous Waste Collection 
The Benton County MRW facility, located at the Horn Rapids Landfill, was lost due to a fire in 
20 I 0. Jn 2011, a feasibility study was initiated to identify the optimum approach for MR W 
management in the county, and the funding mechanisms to develop and operate the selected 
system. The analysis looked at four potential operating scenarios, including: 

l) Permanent facility similar to the previous operations at the Horn Rapids Landfill 
2) Permanent facility similar to the previous operations at an alternate location 
3) Permanent facility with increased operations, including satellite facilities with an 

expanded list of materials for collection. 
4) Joint Benton-Franklin counties facility 
Based on feedback from City MRW staff, provisions for the following MRW activities were also 
considered in the evaluation and conceptual design of a new facility: 

• MRW processing including can crushing, material bulking, and fluorescent tube crushing 

• Enclosed facility for weather protection and staff comfo1t 

• Provisions for use and storage of forklift 

• Covered customer unloading area for weather protection 

• Facility located on industrial zoned site (or easily changed to industrial) 

• Access and layout to allow for maneuvering of semi-truck for material loadout 

• Consideration for administrative area 

Jncluded in the study was an analysis of the potential level of service to be provided, such as 
targeted materials, projected customer types, operating days and hours, and staffing. Projected 
MRW quantities through the year 2030 are provided in Exhibit 7-7. The projections are based 
on average material quantities received in 2008 and 2009 (prior to interruption of fixed MR W 
facility operation), an average of95% of materials received from HHW customers and 5% of 
materials received from SQG, and population projections per the Washington State Office of 
Financial Management's High Series. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 20 14 7-10 

177



Chapter 7 Moderate Risk Waste 

Exhibit 7-7: Projected MRW Quantities 
(pounds) 

. 

Y¢lir IIIJW SQ(;'.. TO'l'~ 

2015 347,256 l 8,277 365,533 

2020 373,058 l 9,635 392,693 

2025 398,866 20,993 419,859 

2030 423,312 22,280 445,592 

The MRW facility feasibility study also identified potential locations to site an MRW facility and 
conceptual facility layouts were developed and evaluated to determine the most efficient MR W 
operations. Based on the siting analysis, further evaluation of three of the identified potential 

sites was recommended: the City of Richland shop (or adjacent parcel), Benton County Road 
Maintenance Shop, and T-82/Badger Road sites. The Horn Rapids Landfill remains a viable site 
for the MRW facility if the no growth scenario is determined to be the optimal operational 
model. 

Capital and annual O&M cost estimates for the various operating scenarios, as well as a 
discussion of possible funding sources for the various operating scenarios were also developed as 

part of the study. The study will conclude with an evaluation matrix for determining an optimal 
MRW facility and operating scenario, based on identified level of service criteria, operational 
models, preferred sites, conceptual layouts, capital and O&M costs, and funding mechanisms. 
The complete study is included in Appendix E. 

7.9.2. Public Education 

Household hazardous waste outreach efforts will be continued and may be increased, including 
distribution of flyers to households, businesses, at County facilities, and on the County websites. 
These efforts will be continued on an ongoing basis to reach new residents. The County will 

utilize flyers/handouts available from Ecology and the Washington Toxics Coalition to distribute 
information to residents and businesses on MR W generation and disposal 

7.9.3. Small Business Technical Assistance 

The County could provide free technical assistance to businesses wanting to learn how to reduce 

and manage hazardous waste. The program would include a set of outreach, education, and 
assistance components integrated with other waste reduction programs. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 7-11 

178



Chapter 7 Moderate Risk Waste 

7.9.4. Small Business Collection Assistance 
The County would continue the existing program of offering small businesses the opportunity to 
bring their wastes to the MR W facility for proper handling and disposal. 

7.10 Process for Updating Implementation Plan 

The County and SWAC will review the Plan on a regular basis to identify any necessary changes 
to the goals. objectives, and implementation plan. Changes may be deemed necessary due to 
changes in State law, conditions in the County, budgets, and/or others issues. lf changes are 
identified, the County and SW AC will work together to develop the changes, for review and 
approval by the County and local jurisdictions. 

7.11 Implementation Plan 

The following constitutes the Jmplementation Plan for the Benton County Solid Waste Management and 
Moderate Risk Waste Management Plan. 

The SW AC is continuing to study the purchase of property suitable to siting a new Moderate Risk Waste 
Facility. Once suitable property has been procured, plans will be developed for permitting, construction 
and/or retrofitting for a facility, and for operation of the facility. 

7 .12 Annual Budget 

The County's budget for the implementation of the Plan is included in Exhibit 7-8. Actual budgets to 
carry out the Plan will vary from year to year as specific programs are defined, and will depend upon 
availability of grant funding and the budget approved by participating local governments. 

Exhibit 7-8. MRW Plan Implementation Bndget and Schedule 

I . Jl'll#i.ling l\t~ll!J.nis... ·· 11.;~1~~iii~ti~~ I 
lr~blic~:~~!o~ 1 Pr~J~~~c:;:oool <Ti1>C:::::;c~:1i::;ersJ I ~~~; · 1 
-----··-··-··-·--.. ·-·-··--·-·- ··----·-·-·---·-·--·--~-- -----+-- --------·--.... ,_ ____ ,, __ ·-··""1; 

Business Technical 
$10,000 Grants, excise fees 2012 j Assistance 

-------------------------------- ________ ,,_. _____________ ]_ _________ ,,_,,_., 

l~M1~R~~W1lt~~~illit;.~ ---······j_ -··-·-···-------·--------- l------·---·---··--·--------+----
___________ S'.a_pi_t~!S'.<J~!s $890,000 - $1,500,000 Grants, Joans, excise fees i 2016 

____ operating costs $395~ooo~-$51&:ooo/~;[··a~~,t;:~;~~~X"~~:==-=t=--202~ -=J 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 7-12 

179



Chapter 8 

Administration and 
Enforcement 

180



~ 
~ 

181



Chapter 8 Administration and Enforce1nent 

8.0 Administration and Enforcement 

8.1 Administration 

The Washington State Solid Waste Management Act, RCW 70.95, assigns local government the 

primary responsibility for managing solid waste. This chapter describes the administrative 
structure for solid waste management planning and permitting in Benton County. 

Administrative responsibility for solid waste management in Benton County is divided among 
several agencies and jurisdictions. The administrative responsibilities of each organization are 
described below. 

8.1.1 Solid Waste Advisory Committee 
The State requires that counties establish a Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SWAC) to assist 
in the development of programs and policies concerning solid waste handling and disposal 
(RCW 70.95). The Benton County SWAC is an advisory board to the Board of Benton County 

Commissioners and makes recommendations to the Commissioners on matters relative to the 
development of solid waste handling programs and policies. One of its main functions is to 
provide a forum within the community for the expression of opinions regarding solid waste 
handling and disposal plans, ordinances, resolutions, and programs prior to adoption. SWAC 
members represent citizens, public interest groups, business, the waste management industry, 

and local government. The SW AC has a significant role in developing and updating Benton 
County's Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Plan. 

8.1.2 Benton County Public Works Department Solid Waste Program 
RCW 36.58 authorizes Benton County to develop, own, and operate solid waste handling 

facilities in unincorporated areas of the county, or to accomplish these activities by contracting 
with private firms. The County also has the authority and responsibility to prepare 
comprehensive solid waste management plans for unincorporated areas and for jurisdictions that 
agree to participate with the County in the planning process. 

The County has entered into inter local agreements with all of the incorporated cities within the 

county for the purpose of solid waste management planning and implementation. Jnterlocal 
Agreements are developed in accordance with Chapter 39.34 RCW, lnterlocal Cooperation Act, 
for the purpose of permitting local governments to cooperate with one another in the 

performance of tasks, thus achieving economies of scale and reducing duplication of effort. An 
lnterlocal Agreement is signed by the authorized officials of the local governments involved, and 

specifies the services and/or facilities to be provided and any compensation between the local 
governments for such services and/or facilities. The lnterlocal Agreements between Benton 
County and the incorporated cities will remain in effect through December 2013, and will be 
negotiated for renewal for 2014-2016. A copy is included in Appendix C. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 8-1 

182



Chapter 8 Ad111inistration and Enforcement 

Benton County exercises its solid waste responsibilities through the Benton County Public 
Works Department, and specifically through the Solid Waste program. The Solid Waste 
program has the responsibility for developing and implementing the solid waste management 
plan, formulating interlocal agreements, administering public education programs, and providing 

staff support for the SW AC. 

8.1.3 Incorporated Cities 
RCW 35.21.152 allows cities to develop, own, and operate solid waste handling systems and to 

provide for solid waste collection services within their jurisdictions. There are five incorporated 
cities and towns in Benton County. The City of Richland operates its own residential garbage 

collection system and the remaining four cities contract with private haulers. 

8.1.4 Benton-Franklin Health District 

The Environmental Health Division within the Benton-Franklin Health District provides much of 
the regulatory oversight in Benton County. The agency is the responsible local authority (per 
RCW 70.95.160) for issuing permits for solid waste facilities. The agency also is responsible for 
assessing compliance with permit conditions and has the responsibility for maintaining 

compliance through enforcement activities. The Health District's responsibilities extend to the 
following areas for solid waste management: 

Solid Waste Facilities: The Health District issues operating permits for waste handling facilities, 

including landfills, transfer stations, and recycling facilities. 

Special Wastes: The Health District issues permits for limited purpose landfills and facilities for 
managing septic and street wastes. 

The specific permit requirements for solid waste disposal facilities are defined in WAC 173-351 
and WAC 173-350. Health District responsibilities for processing and evaluating these permits 
are defined in RCW 70.95.180. These state regulations require jurisdictional health departments 

to evaluate solid waste permit applications for their compliance with all existing laws and 
regulations and their conformance with the Solid Waste Management Plan and all zoning 
requirements. The Department of Ecology's review and appeal process for a permit issued by 

the Health District is explained in RCW 70.95.185. 

8.1.5 Benton Clean Air Authority 
The Benton Clean Air Authority is responsible for controlling the emission of air contaminants 

from sources in the Benton County with authority derived from federal and Washington State 
Clean Air Acts. Relevant laws are the Code of Federal Regulations (40 CFR) and RCW 70.94, 
respectively. In addition, there are a limited number of local regulations in the Benton Clean Air 
Authority Regulation 1. The WAC 173-400 series of the administrative code is the principal 

source of regulatory implementation of Washington State air pollution laws. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 8-2 

183



Chapter 8 Administration and Enforcement 

ln terms of solid waste management, the issue is principally one of media transfer in which 

potential air pollutants are not allowed to be released into ambient air under compliance and 
enforcement responsibilities of the BCAA. Consequently, some materials, such as vegetative 
matter that was previously burned legally, can no longer be burned, and specific prohibited 
materials that could never have been burned legally are being diverted to the solid waste stream. 
Outdoor burning is currently restricted to permitted residential, land clearing, and agricultural 
burning plus a certain exempted burning of vegetative materials, principally outside Urban 

Growth Boundaries. No outdoor burning is allowed within Urban Growth Boundaries except 
agricultural burning and specifically exempted burning. 

Another specifically regulated material that is solid waste is asbestos containing material for 

which the BCAA requires proper removal, handling, transport, and landfill disposal. The BCAA 
is also responsible for regulating odor and any hazardous or toxic emissions from any material of 
biological or non-biological origin. A specific example of the latter is composting facilities. fn 
so far as these materials are involved with a diversionary activity or recycling, the requirements 

for compliance with air regulations may affect the feasibility of such efforts, operation of 
relevant materials handling facilities, and whether these materials may be in or out of the solid 
waste stream. 

Some specific compliance and enforcement responsibilities of the BCAA are permitting for 
composting facilities, landfills, and wastewater treatment plants. Nuisance odor and fugitive 
dust are among the regulated events. 

8.1.6 Washington State Department of Ecology 
Ecology has the primary authority for solid waste at the state level. Ecology assists local 

governments in the planning process by reviewing, providing comments, and approving 
preliminary and final drafts of solid waste management plans. This review is to ensure that local 
plans conform to applicable state laws and regulations. In its Guidelines for the Development of 

Local Solid Waste Management Plans and Plan Revisions, Ecology offers recommendations on 
the preparation of solid waste management plans. Ecology also makes recommendations and 
comments on reviews of solid waste handling and disposal permits to ensure that the proposed 

site or facility conforms to applicable laws and regulations. 

8.1.7 Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission--
The Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC) regulates solid waste 
collection activities under RCW 81.77, through the issuance of certificates entitling private 

companies to provide solid waste collection services within specified geographic areas of the 
state. RCW 70.95.096 also grants the WUTC the authority to review solid waste management 

plans to assess solid waste collection cost impacts on rates charged by collection companies 
regulated under RCW 81.77 and to advise the County and Ecology of the probable effects of the 
Plan's recommendations on those rates. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 8-3 

184



Chapter 8 Administration and Enforcement 

8.2 Enforcement 

A number of different entities are responsible for enforcing solid waste management regulations 
and requirements within Benton County: the Benton-Franklin Health District, the Benton Clean 

Air Authority, the Benton County Sheriff's Office, the Washington State Department of 
Ecology, the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission, and the incorporated cities. 
The enforcement responsibilities of these entities are discussed below. 

8.2.1 Benton-Franklin Health District--

The Benton-Franklin Health District (BFHD) carries the responsibility for enforcing many solid 
waste regulations and programs within Benton County. State law gives local health departments 
responsibility for: 

"ordinances governing solid waste handling implementing the comprehensive solid waste 
management plan covering storage, collection, transportation, treatment, utilization, processing 
and final disposal including but not limited to the issuance of permits and establishment of 
minimum levels and types of service for any aspect of solid waste handling." (RCW 70.95.160) 

In addition, RCW 70.95.160 states that: 

"such ... ordinances shall assure that solid waste storage and disposal facilities are located, 
maintained, and operated in a manner so as properly to protect the public health, prevent air and 
water pollution, are consistent with the priorities established in RCW 70.95.010 and avoid the 
creation of nuisances." 

Falling under the definition of"solid waste handling facilities" are landfills, wood and tire piles, 

construction and demolition debris sites, compost facilities, transfer stations, and landfills. 

The BFHD's enforcement responsibilities extend to the following areas of solid waste 
management: 

Illegal dumping: BFHD receives and investigates public health related complaints resulting from 
illegal dumping, improper storage, and littering. If, after notification from BFHD, the property 

has not been cleaned up, the information is forwarded to the Benton County Prosecuting 
Attorney's Office for legal action. It also issues clean-up orders. 

Solid waste facilities: BFHD issues and renews permits, and makes periodic inspections of solid 
waste handling facilities. Inspections ensure that these facilities do not create public health 

problems, nuisances, or environmental contamination. All solid waste facilities accepting solid 
waste are inspected at a minimum of every 2 months. Facilities, such as closed facilities or 
facilities with active permits that are not currently accepting waste, are inspected two times per 

year. The Horn Rapids Landfill is inspected at least quarterly by the Health District for 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 8-4 

185



Chapter 8 Adininistration and Enforcen1ent 

compliance with State Criteria for Municipal Solid Waste Landfills and Benton-Franklin Health 
District regulations. 

8.2.2 Benton Clean Air Authority--

The Benton Clean Air Authority has the responsibility of monitoring the emission of air 
contaminants from sources in Benton County and is responsible for enforcement of emissions 
standards. The Authority also regulates asbestos handling and open burning in the County. 

8.2.3 Benton County Sheriffs Office--

Complaints against illegal dumping are handled by the Sheriffs Office in Benton County. 

Offenders are fined approximately $150 for each day the garbage remains at the illegal dumpsite. 
Few offenders are apprehended. 

8.2.4 Washington State Department of Ecology--

Although primary enforcement for solid waste management is through jurisdictional health 

departments, Ecology has a range of enforcement authorities under various statutes to address 
existing or potential sources of pollution, including those which result from improper solid waste 
handling and management. For instance, Ecology has broad authority to take enforcement 
actions under the State Water Pollution Control Act, the Hazardous Waste Management Act, and 
the Model Toxics Control Act. Collectively, these laws allow Ecology to issue orders and 

impose penalties for noncompliance. Under some circumstances, Ecology may also take direct 
action to remedy threats to public health and the environment, and seek to recover costs from 
potentially liable parties. 

Tn some instances, Ecology may assume the duties and responsibilities of jurisdictional health 

departments. RCW 70.95.163 authorizes local health departments to enter into an agreement 
with Ecology to assume some, or all, of their solid waste regulatory responsibilities and 
authorities, such as biosolid and septic permitting and enforcement. 

8.2.5 Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission 

The Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC) regulates the collection of 
solid waste in unincorporated areas of the County. The WUTC's enforcement mechanisms 
include fines and revocation of the right of private collectors to collect solid waste. The WUTC 

also enforces against companies that illegally collect solid waste without a certificate. 

8.2.6 Incorporated Cities 

Cities and counties have the authority to establish solid waste programs, pass ordinances, and 
provide resources to monitor compliance and take corrective action where necessary. For 

instance, within the City of Richland's Public Works Department, the Solid Waste Department is 
responsible for enforcing compliance with refuse collection regulations. The Department 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 8-5 

186



Chapter 8 Ad1ninistration and Enforcement 

monitors compliance of daily operations at the landfill. The Department also works with the 
Health District to enforce litter control and illegal dumping programs. The cities are also 
responsible for enforcing local ordinances covering zoning, land use, illegal dumping, and 

littering. 

8.3 Options 

Responsibilities for implementing the Solid Waste Management Plan are assigned to various 
local agencies. Since responsibilities for specific tasks are assigned to more than one agency, 
each of the jurisdictions needs to recognize the importance of carrying out all tasks in a manner 
that ensures efficient use of resources (by avoiding duplication of effort), avoids gaps in program 
activities, and avoids conflicts or inconsistencies. This can be accomplished by holding regular 

coordination meetings, sharing informational materials, and briefing the Solid Waste Advisory 
Committee. Participating jurisdictions should track progress as they implement each of the 
recommendations contained in the Plan as a means to determine the effectiveness of each 
element of the Plan and the need for adjustments or revisions. As programs are implemented, 

participating agencies should also solicit comments and suggestions from citizens and 
paiticipating businesses, regarding the programs' adequacy and effectiveness. The SWAC and 
the Central Regional Office of the Department of Ecology should receive progress reports on the 
Plan's implementation. The SW AC should be asked to review and recommend any necessary 

adjustments or revisions to planned activities. 

Enforcement activities within Benton County generally are focused on compliance with permit 
conditions and regulatory standards, littering, and illegal dumping. Response often comes from 

Jaw enforcement agencies for littering. Code Enforcement and the BFHD are responsible for 
enforcement of illegal dumping/improper disposal. One key issue is to ensure adequate staffing 
and funding for the agencies responsible for enforcement. 

A second key enforcement issue pertains to illegal dumping. Washington's Model Litter Control 

and Recycling Act (RCW 70.93) prohibits the deposit of garbage on any prope1ty not properly 
designated as a disposal site. Revisions (RCW 70.93.060) provide stiffer penalties for littering 
and illegal dumping in rural areas including classification as a misdemeanor, punishable by 

specific penalties. Illegal dumping can be addressed through enhanced enforcement activities 

and education. 

The following options address administration and enforcement of solid waste issues in Benton 

County: 

1. F'acilitate lnteragency cooperation 

The large number of different agencies and jurisdictions responsible for solid waste management 
in Benton County makes interagency cooperation essential. This can be achieved through 
commitments on the part of each entity to participate on the advisory committee(s), and 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 8-6 

187



Chapter 8 Administration and EnfOrcement 

coordinating committee meetings between the counties and municipalities to facilitate the 

exchange of information. Jn addition, coordination can be achieved ifteclmical staff work 

closely with their counterparts in the other jurisdictions performing similar or related functions. 

A cooperative approach to program evaluation is also essential to ensure that the goals and 

objectives of solid waste management are being met, and to monitor changes that take place in 

solid waste generation and disposal. Once Benton County and the municipalities have adopted 

the Plan, mechanisms will need to be developed to ensure that the Plan is effectively 

implemented. One method for evaluating programs is to continue to utilize the Planning 

Committee of the SWAC to review the success of individual program components and the Plan 

as a whole. Methods of review could include tracking waste quantities, participation rates, 

expenses, income, and implementation problems. Reviews could occur periodically to make 

necessary adjustments once the Plan is implemented. 

2. c~oordinate en.force1nent activities to attain maxin1um in1pact without duplication. 

Complex environmental issues, increased emphasis on recycling and waste reduction programs, more 
complicated operational requirements at sanitary landfills, and the need to coordinate all aspects of the 
solid waste system, including hazardous waste, have drawn attention to enforcement. Jurisdictions must 
take the time and effort, not only to understand the laws, but they must also examine their organizations 
and staffing levels to adequately address the requirements of the laws. Because the majority of solid 
waste problems are regional, each jurisdiction needs to establish appropriate means of interacting with 
other jurisdictions. 

3. Improve coordination among County agencies, cities, and other relevant public agencies 
responsible for illegal dumping cleanup, education, and prevention programs. 

Several Washington communities have addressed illegal dumping concerns by convening a task force to 
evaluate the roles of the county, cities, and other relevant public agencies responsible for illegal dumping 
cleanup, education, and prevention programs. Such an effort can lead to better coordination, reduced 
overlap of responsibilities, and reduced gaps in coverage. This can also lead to uniform enforcement 
capabilities and quicker response to halt illegal activities. 

4. Develop a coordinated public outreach and education program. 

Education is an important aspect of addressing illegal dumping and related problems. The purpose of a 
preventive action program is to raise public awareness about illegal dumping. Each jurisdiction could 
pool their efforts for coordinated outreach. Emphasis could be placed on encouraging citizens to report 
illegal dumping sites by establishing a "hotline," so that dump sites may be cleaned up before they 
become a larger problem. 

8.4 Recommendations 

The Solid Waste Advisory Committee reviewed the option discussed above and has recommended the 

following options: 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 8-7 

188



Chapter 8 Administration and Enforcement 

l. Facilitate Interagency cooperation; 

2. Coordinate enforcement activities to attain maximum impact without duplication; 

3. Improve coordination among County agencies, cities, and other relevant public agencies 

responsible for illegal dumping cleanup, education, and prevention programs; 

4. Develop a coordinated public outreach and education program. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 

January 2014 8-8 

189



~I 
~ 

Chapter 9 

Implementation 

190



191



Chapter 9 Implementation 

9.1 INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of this chapter is to outline the actions and budget necessary to implement the 
recommendations contained in this plan. 

9.2 SIX-YEAR CAPITAL AND OPERATING FINANCING 

The RCW (Section 70.95.10 I (3)(c) requires the solid waste management plan to contain a 6-year 
construction and capital acquisition program for public solid waste handling facilities, including 
development and construction or purchase of publicly financed solid waste management facilities. 
The legislation further requires plans to contain a means for financing both capital costs and 
operations expenditures of the proposed solid waste management system. Any recommendation for 
the development, construction, and/or purchase of public solid waste management and recycling 
facilities or equipment should be included in this discussion. Financing operation expenditures 
should also be added to this section of the plan. 

Capital and operating expenses to implement the Plan recommendations over the next 6 years are 
summarized in Exhibit 9-1. Actual budgets to carry out the recommendations will vary rrom year to 
year as specific programs are defined, and will depend upon availability of grant funding and budget 
approved by local governments. It is important to note that because Benton County relies on the 
private sector for the majority of solid waste management activities, very few capital costs are 
projected for the paiticipatingjurisdictions for the first 3-4 years. The major funding source has 
always been, and still remains, grant funding from the Department of Ecology. Benton County 
bases its Solid Waste Program on these grants, and budgets accordingly. Matching monies are 
raised in Benton County by way of a garbage excise fee assessed on the gross revenues generated 
by garbage services provided in unincorporated Benton County. The Cities fund their matching 
monies through utility fees, which are funded I 00% by customer rates. In the future, as additional 
operational and capital costs become necessary, and as the availability of grant funding decreases, it 
may be necessary to raise these fees, charge for services heretofore provided for free (i.e. HHW 
collection), and/or to seek out loans or partnerships with businesses. 

9.3 IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE 

The implementation of the recommendations contained in this Plan will begin upon approval of the 
Plan by the jurisdictions and Ecology. The schedule for implementation is included as Exhibit 9-2. 
The schedule may be revised as the Plan is updated, and as the objective and needs of the County 
and jurisdictions change. As indicated, for some recommendations, the programs have been or will 
be implemented within a few months, for other recommendations implementation will span many 
years. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 

9-l 

192



Chapter 9 Implementation 

Exhibit 9-1 . 
Cost 

CHAPTER Recommendation Year 1 Year3 Year Expense 
6 tvne 

1. Update Website $600 $700 $800 Labor 

3. Outreach and Education 2. Provide Technical Assistance to Schools and $200 $1,200 $400 Labor 

Businesses 

3. Arranae Recvclina Facilitv Tours/Interactive Education $50 $100 $150 Labor 

1. Support Product Stewardship and Extended Producer $50 $50 $50 Labor 

Responsibilitv Policies 

2. Promote Environmentally Preferable Products $50 $50 $50 Labor 

Preference and Purchasina 

3. Promo_te Waste Reduction Practices in County and City $50 $50 $50 Labor 

3. Waste Reduction 
operations 

4. Promote Use of Online Materials Exchanqes $50 $50 $50 Labor 

5. Encouraqe Use of Reuse Stores and oraanizations $50 $50 $50 Labor 

6. Consider Implementing Waste Reduction Requirements $50 $50 $50 Labor 

for New Develooments 

7. Monitor Progress and Efficacy of Waste Management $250 $400 $600 Labor 

and Reduction Measures 

1. Evaluate Need for Additional Materials and New $50 $50 $50 Labor 

Locations for Droo-Box Pronram 

2. Consider Implementing a Rewards Program for $50 $5,000 (if $6,00 Labor 

Residential Recyclers imp le- 0 (if Cash or 

3. Recycling 
mented) imple Merch for 

- Awards 
ment 
ed) 

3. Provide Commercial Waste Assistance as Needed $50 $400 $600 Labor 

4. Evaluate Recvcling Opportunities Related to the Wine $200 $300 $400 Labor 

p n County Solid Waste and "MRW Plan 
Janumy 2014 9-2 

193



Chapter 9 Implementation 

Exhibit 9-1. I 1tation C 

CHAPTER Recommendation 

Industry 

1. Expand Yard Waste Chipping Program as Funding and 
Markets Become Available 

2. Encourage Curbside Green Waste Collection for 
Commercial Customers 

3. Organics 

3. Evaluate Diversion Opportunities for Organic Waste 
from Wine Industry 

1. Consider Mandatory Collection in Unincorporated Areas. 

4. Collection Systems 2. Further Evaluation of Recycling Service Level Changes 
for County Unincorporated Area 

1. The County will monitor, and where appropriate and 

5. Transfer and Disposal feasible, provide input into the City of Richland's process 
evaluating the feasibility of expanding Horn Rapids 
Landfill. 

6. Agricultural waste 
1 . Continue to Work Cooperatively with Port of Benton and 

Regional Agencies to Identify Opportunities for 
Beneficial Use of Organic Residuals from Aariculture 

1. Encourage BCAA to Increase Enforcement of Asbestos 

6. Asbestos Waste Disposal Activities 

2. Provide Education to Homeowners on Proper Handling 
and Disposal 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 

Cost 

Year1 Year3 Year Expense 
6 rupe 

$1,600 $0 (assuming Labor, 
program become Equip-men! 

self-sufficient) Rental 

$1,200 $0 (assuming Labor, 
market for green Equipment 

waste becomes Costs for 

available or paid Hauling 

for through 
increased 
qarbaqe fees) 

$50 $50 $50 Labor 

Minimal costs assuming 
aarbaae fees would cover cost 
$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$300 $300 $300 Labor 

$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$50 $50 $50 Labor, 
copying 

9-3 

194



Chapter 9 Implementation 

Exhibit 9-1. Implementation Costs 

CHAPTER Recommendation 

1. Provide educational materials for correct management 
of medical waste qenerated bv residents. 

6. Biomedical Waste 
2. Evaluate feasibility of sharps and outdated 

pharmaceuticals collection at household hazardous 
waste collection sites. 

1. Provide waste reduction, green building and debris 
manaaement information to contractors 

2. Evaluate establishing C&D and Inert Waste Diversion 
Specifications for orivate Proiects. 

6. Construction and 3. Evaluate establishing C&D and inert waste diversion 
Demolition Debris specifications for public lcitv and countv) oroiects 

4. Develop a Disaster Management Plan for Benton 
Countv. 

5. Provide additional Oversight of Small Inert Waste Fill 
Proiects 

6. Petroleum Contaminated 1. Maintain Existing System 
Waste 

6. Street Wastes 1 . Evaluate Potential Reuse of Street Wastes 

1 . Develop a Plan for Management of Tires accumulated 
on individual properties. 

6. Tires 2. Evaluate implementation of County and City Purchasing 
Proorams for Recvcled Tire Products. 

3. Implement Programs to Reduce Tire Waste. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 

Cost 

Year 1 Year3 Year Expense 
6 tvoe 

$50 $50 $50 Labor, 
copying 

$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$300 $300 $300 Labor 

$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$3,200 $200 $200 Labor 

$300 $300 $300 Labor 

$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$1,200 $0 (assuming Labor 
fees for tire Equipment 

collection would Rental 

cover costs) 
$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$2,000 $2,500 $3,000 Labor 
Increased 
costs for tire 

9-4 

195



Chapter 9 Implementation 

Exhibit 9-1. Implementation Costs 

CHAPTER Recommendation 

4. Initiate Public Education Programs. 

1. Monitor E-cycle program effectiveness and submit 
annual satisfaction report when feasible 

6. Electronic Waste 2. Provide E-cvcle information on website 

3. Update website with e-waste collection and recycling 
information. 

1. Household Hazardous Waste Collection- Develop New 

MRW Facility 

Land purchase 

Permits, site plans, retrofitting for miminal collection only 

7. Moderate Risk Waste 

Construction of larger facility to allow for processing and 

storage; operation & labor expenses 

2. Continue, and expand as possible, public outreach and 

education efforts. 

3. Provide technical assistance, as possible, to small 

business 

4. Provide opportunities for small business to dispose of 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 

Cost 

Year1 I Year 3 I Y~ar Expense 
tvoe 

purchases 
$300 $500 $600 Labor, 

Printing 
Costs 

$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$0 $300,000 Land 
purchase 

$600,000 Permitting, 
retrofitting, 
consultant 
costs 

1.6M Constructio 
n, 
Operations 

$50 $50 $50 Labor 

--
$400 $500 $600 Labor 

$0 (Assuming that fees for 

9-5 

196



Chapter 9 l1nplementation 

Exhibit 9-1. Implementation Costs 

CHAPTER Recommendation 

small quantities of waste at future facility. 

5. Contact business to sponsor collection events 

1. Facilitate interagency relationships on issues related to 
solid waste management. 

2. The various agencies in the county involved in solid 

waste management will work together to coordinate 

enforcement activities. 

8. Administration and 3. The county, cities, and other relevant public agencies, to 

Enforcement the extent practicable, will coordinate programs 

regarding illegal dumping cleanup, education, and 
prevention. 

4. Implement a coordinated public outreach and education 
program addressing illegal dumping and related 

problems 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 

Cost 

Year1 Year3 Year Expense 
6 tvoe 

collection and disposal would 
cover costs) 
$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$50 $50 $50 Labor 

$200 $300 $400 Labor 

$200 $300 $400 Labor 

9-6 

197



<:hapter 9 Implementation 

CHAPTER 

3. Outreach and 
Education 

3. Waste Reduction 

3. Recycling 

Exhibit 9-2. Implementation Schedule 

OPTION 

1. Update Website 

2. Provide Technical Assistance to Schools and 
Businesses 

3. Arranoe Solid Waste Facilitv Tours/Interactive Education 

1. Support Product Stewardship and Extended Producer 
Responsibilitv Policies 

2. Promote Environmentally Preferable Products 
Preference and Purchasin 

3. Promote Waste Reduction Practices in County and City 
operations 

4. Promote Use of Online Materials Exchanaes 

5. Encouraoe Use of Reuse Stores and oraanizations 

6. Consider Implementing Waste Reduction Requirements 
for New Developments 

7. Monitor Progress and Efficacy of Waste Management 
and Reduction Measures 

1. Evaluate Need for New Materials and Locations for 
Drop-Box Proaram 

2. Consider Implementing a Rewards Program for 
Residential Recvclers 

3. Provide Commercial Waste Assistance as Needed 

4. Evaluate Recycling Opportunities Related to Wine 
lndustr 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 

IMPLEMENTATON YEAR 

9-7 

198



Chapter 9 Implementation 

CHAPTER 

3. Organics 

4. Collection Systems 

5. Transfer and Disposal 

6. Agricultural waste 

6. Asbestos 

6. Biomedical Waste 

Exhibit 9-2. Implementation Schedule 

OPTION 

1. Expand Yard Waste Chipping Program as Funding and 
Markets Become Available 

2. Encourage Curbside Green Waste Collection for 
Commercial Customers 

3. Evaluate Diversion Opportunities for Organic Waste 
from Wine lndust 

1. Consider Mandatorv Collection in Unincoroorated Areas. 
2. Further Evaluation of Recycling Service Level Changes 

for County Unincorporated Area 

1. The County will monitor, and where appropriate and 
feasible, provide input into the City of Richland's process 
evaluating the feasibility of expanding Horn Rapids 
Landfill. 

1. Continue to Work Cooperatively with Port of Benton and 
Regional Agencies to Identify Opportunities for 
Beneficial Use of Oraanic Residuals from Aariculture 

1. Encourage BCAA to Increase Enforcement of Asbestos 
Waste Disposal Activities 

2. Provide Education to Homeowners on Proper Handling 
and Disposal 

3. Provide educational materials for correct management 
of medical waste aenerated bv residents. 

4. Evaluate feasibility of sharps and outdated 
pharmaceuticals collection at household hazardous 
waste collection sites. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 

IMPLEMENTATON YEAR 

9-8 

199



Chapter 9 [mplementation 

CHAPTER 

6. Construction and 
Demolition Debris 

6. Petroleum 
Contaminated Waste 

6. Street Wastes 

6. Tires 

6. Electronic Waste 

Exhibit 9-2. Implementation Schedule 

OPTION 

1. Provide waste reduction, green building and debris 
manaqement information to contractors 

2. Evaluate establishing C&D and Inert Waste Diversion 
Soecifications for private Proiects. 

3. Evaluate establishing C&D and inert waste diversion 
soecifications for public(city ancj county) ~roiects 

4. Develop a Disaster Management Plan for Benton 
Countv. 

5. Provide additional Oversight of Small Inert Waste Fill 
Proiects 

1 . Maintain Existing System 

1. Evaluate Potential Reuse of Street Wastes 

1. Develop a Plan for Management of Tires accumulated 
on individual properties. 

2. Evaluate implementation of County and City Purchasing 
Promams for Recycled Tire Products. 

3. Implement Proqrams to Reduce Tire Waste. 

4. Initiate Public Education Proqrams. 

4. Monitor E-cycle program effectiveness and submit 
annual satisfaction reoort when feasible 

5. Provide E-cvcle information on website 

6. Update website with e-waste collection and recycling 
information. 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 

IMPLEMENT A TON YEAR 

2013 2014 2016 2011 I 201s 

9-9 

200



Chapter 9 I1nple1nentation 

CHAPTER 

7. Moderate Risk Waste 

8. Administration and 
Enforcement 

Exhibit 9-2. Implementation Schedule 

OPTION 

1. Household Hazardous Waste Collection- Develop New 

M RW Facility 

6. Continue, and expand as possible, public outreach and 
education efforts. 

7. Provide technical assistance, as possible, to small 

business 

8. Provide opportunities for small business to dispose of 

small quantities of waste at future facility. 

9. Contact businesses to sponsor collection events 

5. Facilitate interagency relationships on issues related to 

solid waste management. 

6. The various agencies in the county involved in solid 

waste management will work together to coordinate 

enforcement activities. 

7. The county, cities, and other relevant public agencies, to 
the extent practicable, will coordinate programs 

regarding illegal dumping cleanup, education, and 
prevention. 

8. Implement a coordinated public outreach and education 

program addressing illegal dumping and related 

problems 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 20 14 

IMPLEMENTATON YEAR 

9-10 

201



APPENOIXA 
WASTE COMPOSITION DATA 

Material Percent 

Paper Packaging 10.4% 
Newspaper Packaging 0.0% 
Cardboard/Kraft Paper Packaging 5.3% 
Other Groundwood Paper Packaging 0.2% 
Mixed/Low Grade Paper Packaging 3.2% 
Compostable Paper Packaging 0.9% 
R/C Paper Packaging 0.8% 

Paper Products 8.2% 

Newspaper 1.2% 

Cardboard/Kraft Paper Products 0.0% 

Magazines 0.6% 

High-Grade Paper Products 0.6% 

Other Groundwood Paper Products 0.2% 

Mixed Low Grade Paper Products 1.9% 

Compostable Paper Products 2.9% 

Paper Processing Sludge 0.0% 

RIC Paoer Products 0.8% 

Plastic Packaging 6.7% 

#1 PETE Plastic Bottles 1.0% 

#1 PETE Plastic Non-bottles 0.3% 

#2 HOPE Plastic Natural Bottles 0.4% 

#2 HOPE Plastic Colored Bottles 0.3% 

#2 HOPE Plastic Jars & Tubs 0.2% 

#3 PVC Plastic Packaging 0.0% 

#4 LOPE Plastic Packaging 0.0% 

#5 PP Plastic Packaging 0.3% 

#6 PS Plastic Packaging 0.6% 

#7 Other Plast1 c Packaging 0.7% 

PLA Packaging 0.0% 

Plastic Merchandise Bags 0.5% 

Non-industrial Packaging Film Plastic 1.5% 

Industrial Packaging Film Plastic 0.8% 

R/C Plastic Products 0.1% 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 

Estimated Benton 
Countv Tons 

19,649 

0 

10,013 

378 

6,046 

1,700 

1,511 

15,492 

2,267 

0 

1, 134 

1,134 

378 

3,590 

5,479 

0 

1,511 

12,658 

1,889 

567 

756 

567 

378 

0 

0 

567 

1,134 

1,323 

0 

945 

2,834 

1,511 

189 

202



APPENDIX A 
WASTE COMPOSITION DATA 

Material Percent 

Plastic Products 4.8% 

#1 PETE Plastic Products 0.0% 

# 2 HOPE Plastic Products 0.0% 

#3 PVC Plastic Products 0.1% 

#4 LOPE Plastic Products 0.0% 

#5 PP Plastic Products 0.0% 

# 6 PS Plastic Products 0.0% 

#7 Other Plastic Products 1.2% 

PLA Products 0.0% 

Plastic Garbage Bags 1.2% 

Plastic Film Products 0.4% 

R/C Plastic Products 1.9% 

Glass 3.5% 

Clear Glass Containers 1.4% 

Green Glass Containers 0.3% 

Brown Glass Containers 0.9% 

Plate Glass 0.2% 

Stoneware/Kitchen Ceramics/Glassware 0.1% 

R/C Glass 0.6% 

Metal 6.2% 

Aluminum Beverage Cans 0.6% 

Aluminum Foil/Containers 0.1% 

Other Aluminum 0.2% 

Other Nonferrous 0.1% 

Food Cans Tinned 0.7% 

Food Cans Coated 0.1% 

White Goods 0.0% 

Other Ferrous Metal 1.9% 

R/C Metals 2.5% 

Organics 26.2% 

Food ·Vegetative 9.2% 

Food · Non-vegetative 3.1% 

Leaves & Grass 8.8% 

Prunings 1.1% 

Animal Manure 1.2% 

Animal Carcasses 0.0% 

Crop Residues 0.0% 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 

Estimated Benton 
Count Tons 

9,069 

0 

0 

189 

0 

0 

0 

2,267 

0 

2,267 

756 

3,590 

6,613 

2,645 

567 

1,700 

378 

189 

1, 134 

11,714 

1, 134 

189 

378 

189 

1,323 

189 

0 

3,590 

4,723 

49,500 

17,382 

5,857 

16,626 

2,078 

2,267 

0 

0 

203



APPENDIX A 
WASTE COMPOSITION DATA 

Material Percent 

Fruit Waste 1.4% 

RIC OrQanics 1.4% 

Wood Debris 9.9% 

Treated Wood 1.4% 

Painted Wood 2.9% 

Dimensional Lumber 1.2% 

Engineered Wood 1.0% 

Pallets & Crates 1.9% 

Other Untreated Wood 0.2% 

Wood By-Products 0.0% 

R/C Wood Wastes 1.3% 

Construction Materials 11.1% 

Natural Wood 0.0% 

Insulation 1.0% 

Asphalt Paving 0.3% 

Concrete 0.2% 

Drywall 1.0% 

Carpet 2.1% 

Carpet Padding 0.6% 

Soil, Rocks, Sand 1.4% 

Asphalt Roofing 1.6% 

Plastic Flooring 0.2% 

Ceramics & Brick 0.2% 

R/C Construction Materials 2.5% 

Consumer Products 8.5% 

Televisions - CRT 0.7% 

Televisions - LCD 0.0% 

VCRs , DVDs, DVRs 0.0% 

Computer Monitors - CRT 0.1% 

Computer Monitors - LCD 0.0% 

Computers 0.0% 

Computer Peripherals 0.1% 

Audio Equipment 0.1% 

Gaming Equipment 0.0% 

Other Consumer Electronics 0.3% 

Textiles· Organic 2.1% 

Textiles - Synthetic 1.2% 

Shoes. Purses. Belts 0.3% 

Tires & Rubber 0.5% 
Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 

Estimated Benton 
County Tons 

2,645 

2,645 

18,704 

2,645 

5,479 

2,267 

1,889 

3,590 

378 

0 

2,456 

20,971 

0 

1,889 

567 

378 

1,889 

3,968 

1,134 

2,645 

3,023 

378 

378 

4,723 

16,059 

1,323 

0 

0 

189 

0 

0 

189 

189 

0 

567 

3,968 

2,267 

567 

945 

204



APPENDIX A 
WASTE COMPOSITION DATA 

Material Percent 

Furniture 2.1% 

Mattresses 0.4% 

RIC Consumer Products 0.6% 

Hazardous/Special Wastes 3.2% 

Pesticides/Herbicides 0.0% 

Mercury Vapor Lighting 0.0% 

Compact Fluorescent Lights 0.0% 

Fluorescent Tubes 0.0% 

Asbestos 0.0% 

Latex Paint 0.1% 

Solvent-based Glues 0.0% 

Latex -based Glues 0.0% 

Oil-based Paint & Solvent 0.0% 

Caustic Cleaners 0.0% 

Dry-cell Batteries 0.0% 

Wet-cell Batteries 0.0% 

Gasoline Kerosene 0.0% 

Motor Oil 0.0% 

Antifreeze 0.0% 

Other Vehicle Fluids 0.0% 

Oil Filters 0.0% 

Explosives 0.0% 

Med1ca I Wastes 1.1% 

Pharmaceuticals Vitamins 0.0% 

Disposable Diapers 1.9% 

Other Cleaners and Soaps 0.1% 

Other Hazardous 0.0% 

Other Non-hazardous 0.0% 

Residues 1.2% 

Ash 0.1% 

Dust 0.0% 

Fines 1.1% 

Sludae/Soecial I industrial 0.0% 

Total 99.9% 

Final Draft 2013 Update Benton County Solid Waste and MRW Plan 
January 2014 

Estimated Benton 
Countv Tons 

3,968 

756 

1, 134 

6,046 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

189 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

2,078 

0 

3,590 

189 

0 

0 

2,267 

189 

0 

2,078 

0 

188,742 

205



ONE COMPANY 
Many SolutionlM MRW Facility 

Final Sitinq Memo 
To: Pete Rogalsky, PE; City of Richland 

Donna Holmes, Benton County 

From Nona Diediker, HDR Project Manager Project Benton County- Moderate Risk Waste 

(MRW) Facility Site Identification 

CC: 

Date: June 27, 2013 JobNo: 174159 

This is the final siting memo in a series of memos related to a site search for a MRW facility. All 
preceding memos are summarized within. HDR was tasked by Benton County (County) to identify a list 
of three to six potential sites that are currently available for sale that meet the criteria for a new 
regional MRW facility. The search was broken into five distinct phases with screening criteria for each 
phase as summarized below. All phases of the research are now complete and a final list of potential 
sites is provided. 

Phase 1: Fatal Flaw Search Criteria 

The fatal flaw search criteria utilized the most critical criteria established in the initial siting study 
conducted by HDR, and applied to all Benton County properties to eliminate sites that did not meet the 
minimum requirements for a candidate site. These criteria included: 

1. Land use/zoning - Current land use or zoning of "industrial" and properties vacant or 
unimproved. 

2. Proximity to residential zoning - At least 1,000 feet from any property with a current land use or 
zoning of 11residential". 

3. Floodplain - Located outside of the 100-year floodplain area. 

Phase 2: Primary Search Criteria 

The base line search criteria were applied to all candidate sites that were not eliminated under the fatal 
flaw analysis. This search utilized the remaining criteria established in the initial siting study conducted 
by HDR, and was applied in the order listed below. These criteria were used to refine the list of 
candidate properties to at least six preferred sites, and included: 

1. Proximity to major population base - Within the municipal boundaries of the Cities of Richland 
or Kennewick. 

2. Property Size - one-acre minimum for all properties; up to five-acre maximum for privately 
owned properties. 

3. Easy access from highway or major roadway- Within three miles of a highway or arterial road. 
4. Site Ownership - First preference given to sites owned by the City of Richland, City of Kennewick, 

or County of Benton. Local government-owned property is preferred. Alternate municipal 
ownership or site lease also considered. 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

1

2805 Saint Andrews loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

I 
Phone (509) 546-2040 
Fax (509) 546-2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

I Page 1of21 

206



5. Cultural Sites - Must not contain culturally significant archeological or historical sites; based on 
available data. This research was limited to readily available information found on the 
Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation (DAHP) website, 
http://www.dahp.wa.gov/, of known cultural and historic sites. Sites that have not been 
previously disturbed may require additional review for cultural finds potential. Additional 
review could include tasks such as literature review, informal consultation with DAHP, a 
pedestrian survey of the site, and subsurface sampling by a professional archaeologist. 

6. Contamination - Must not contain any known contaminated sites, based on readily-available 
data. This research was limited to what was found on the Department of Ecology's website, 
https://fortress.wa.gov. A Phase I Environmental Site Assessment is recommended prior to 
purchase of selected property or for a limited shortlist of properties. 

7. Terrain - Must be on relatively flat terrain; not in a steep canyon, valley, or hillside. This research 
was limited to map views and preliminary site visits to some parcels. 

Phase 3: Secondary Search Criteria 

The secondary site review criteria was applied to the preferred sites and used for establishing a ranked 
list of sites in order to identify a final list of recommended sites. As part of the criteria, if there were not 
enough sites that were available for sale, the parameters of the primary search criteria would be 
expanded to increase the pool of preferred sites. These criteria were also be applied to the top three 
sites identified during the original site study conduced by HDR. 

1. Estimated Cost to Purchase. 

2. Available for Sale. 

3. Soundness of Title. 

4. Availability of utilities (water and power) to site assuming storm water and sewer will be 

managed on site. 

5. Estimated property purchase/agreement schedule. 

The initial Phase 1 and Phase 2 research resulted in a raw data list of over 300 parcels. The Phase 1 
research criteria was ultimately refined to only include industrial zoned properties, after zoning research 
indicated that industrial zoning and public use properties were likely the only property use types to 
support the MRW facility without extensive rezoning. Improved properties were also excluded from the 
Phase 1 search criteria and the Phase 2 search criteria was modified to only identify properties within 
the Cities of Richland and Kennewick. These noted changes in criteria resulted in a more reasonable and 
manageable list of 135 candidate sites which was then further refined to the non-city owned (Table 1) 
and city-owned sites (Table 2). 

Table 1. Non City Owned Sites 

Parcel 10 Owner 

127083000022000 MEH!C DULE 

127083000023000 
MEHIC DULE & 
ALMA 

134082000007000 
LAMB-WESTON 
INC 

127084000005000 
BRESINA WILLIAM 
L 

127083000002000 PORT OF BENTON 

HDR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

Location Address Acres Land Use Richland 
oesciiQtion Zoriina 

UNKNOWN,R!CHLAND,WA,99352, 1.0 
Industrial: Medium 
Vacant land Industrial 

UNKNOWN,RICHLAND,WA,99352 1.0 
Industrial: Medium 
Vacant land Industrial 

UNDETERM!NED,WA,USA 1.15 Industrial: Medium 
Vacant land Industrial 

UNDETERMINED,WA,USA 1.53 
Industrial: Medium 
Vacant land Industrial 
Undeveloped 

Medium UNDETERMJNED,WA,USA 2.08 HBU 
Industrial Commercial 

I 
2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

I 
Phone ( 509) 546-2040 
Fax (509) 546-2090 
www.hdrinc.com I 

Kennewick 
Zonina 

I Page 2 of21 

207



I 

l'arcel ID Owner 

134081000022000 
DKSMITH 
PROPERTIES LLC 

134082000005000 
LAMB-WESTON 
INC 

134082000016000 
HENNINGSEN 
ENTERPRISES INC 

134082000001002 
GARTIN WILLIAM J 
& JOAN R 

134082000014000 
LAMB-WESTON 
INC 

134081000026000 GILBERT PAUL A 

134081000003000 CHAPMAN JOHN H 

134082000004000 
LAMB-WESTON 
INC 
WALIGURA 

127083000003005 TRUSTEE 
NICHOLAS C 

134082000006000 
LAMB-WESTON 
INC 

134082000012000 PORT OF BENTON 

127083000014000 PORT OF BENTON 

T!MBERL!NE 
121081012558001 PROCESS & 

CONTROLS IA 
PACIFIC 

122082000001000 ECOSOLUTIONS 
INC 

131904010146002 
NORTH PACIFIC 
GRAIN GROWERS 

13\904000003000 
NORTH PACIFIC 
GRAIN GROWERS 

132994013084002 
PORT OF 
KENNEWICK 

132994013084003 
PORT OF 
KENNEWICK 
KELLER 

132994000001003 KENNEWICK 
PARTNERSHIP 

106801020025001 
PUBLIC UTILITY 
DISTRICT #1 
FALCON VIDEO 

132994020003009 COMMUNICATIONS 
LPA 

132994012775001 
KADINGER JESSE 
C & YVONNE M 

132994000018000 
MUSSER SCOTT S 
& TERESA L 

132994013084001 
SAGE BAY 
COMPANY LLC 
BECKER CO 

106801020026001 
TRUSTEES 
DONALD L & 

PAMALA 

132994020003015 
PORT OF 
KENNEWICK 

106802000002000 
CURTIS- CERVO 
TRUSTEE FREEDA 
KENNEWICK 

132993000006007 IRRIGATION 
DISTRICT 

132993000009002 
PORT OF 
KENNEWICK 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

Location Address Acres Land Use Richland 
Description Zoning 

2004 SAINT 
2.1 

Business Medlum 
ST,RICHLAND,WA,99354, services Industrial 

UNDETERM!NED,WA,USA 2.1 
Industrial· Medium 
Vacant land Industrial 

TO BE 
2.12 

Industrial: Medium 
ASSIGNED,RICHLAND,WA,99352, Vacant land Industrial 

UNDETERMINED,WA,USA 2.77 Industrial: Medium 
Vacant land Industrial 

UNDETERMINED,WA,USA 2.78 
Industrial Medium 
Vacant land Industrial 

UNDETERMINEO,WA,USA 2.8 
Industrial: Medium 
Vacant land Industrial 

UNDETERMINED,WA,USA 3.28 
Commercial Medium 
Retail Land Industrial 

UNDETERMJNED,WA,USA 3,38 
Industrial: Medium 
Vacant land Industrial 

ROBERTSON Industrial: Medium 
DR,RICHLAND,WA,99354, 3.53 Vacant land Industrial 

UNDETERM!NED,WA,USA 4.13 
Industrial: Medium 
Vacant land Industrial 

UNDETERMINED,WA,USA 4.67 Industrial: Medium 
Vacant land Industrial 

UNKNOWN,R!CHLAND,WA,99352, 4.82 
Industrial: Medium 
Vacant land Industrial 

2680 BATTELLE Industrial Heavy 
1.96 BLVD,RICHLAND,WA,99352, Vacant land Manufacturing 

1991 BATTELLE Industrial: Heavy 
5 

BL VD,RlCHLAN D,WA,99352,USA Vacant land Manufacturing 

UNDETERM!NED,WA,USA 1,386 Food & kindred 
products 

UNDETERMINED,WA,USA 2.69 
!ndustrial grain 
elevators 

6504 W HOOD 
1. 11 

Industrial: 
PL,KENNEWICK,WA,99336, Vacant land 
6416 W HOOD 1.25 

Industrial: 
PL,KENNEWICK,WA,99336, Vacant land 

Industrial: W DESCHUTES,WA,USA 1.27 Vacant land 

UNKNOWN,KENNEWICK,WA,99337, 1.32 
Industrial: 
Vacant land 

JOHN DAY,WA,USA 1.34 Industrial: 
Vacant land 

6517 W HOOD 
1.352 

Industrial: 
PL,KENNEWICK,WA,99336, Vacant land 

UNKNOWN,,,,,USA 1.56 
Industrial: 
Vacant land 

6512 W HOOD 
1.61 

Industrial: 
PL,KENNEWICK,WA,99336, Vacant land 

UNKNOWN,KENNEWICK,WA,99337, 2.44 Repair services 

JOHN DAY,WA,USA 2.91 
Industrial: 
Vacant land 

512 E COLUMBIA 
3.07 

Commercial 
DR,KENNEW!CK,WA,99336, Retail Land 

Industrial: UNKNOWN,KENNEW!CK,WA,99336, 3.08 
Vacant land 

6951 W GRANDRIDGE 
1.83 

Commercial 
BLVD,KENNEWICK,WA,9933 Retail Land 

2805 Sairit Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

Phorie (509) 546-2040 
Fax {509) 546-2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

Kennel/Vick 
Zoning 

Industrial, 
Heavv 

Industrial, 
Heavv 

Industrial, 
Lio ht 

Industrial, 
LiQht 

Industrial, 
Light 

Industrial, 
Lia ht 

' lndustrial, 
Light 

Industrial, 
Light 

Industrial, 
Lia ht 

Industrial, 
LiQht 

Industrial, 
Light 

Industrial, 
LiQh! 

Industrial: 
Lia ht 

Industrial, 
Light 

Public 
Facilities 

I Pege 3 of21 

208



Table 2. City of Richland and City of Kennewick Properties 

Parcel ID 
.. 

12708300001800 
0 
12708300002400 
0 
12708300001900 
0 
12708300001500 
0 
12708400000600 
0 
12108101255800 
2 
12108101255800 
3 

10680103000300 
1 

10680102001000 
0 

10680102001700 
0 

10680102000800 
0 

70189100000201 
6 

10680102001800 
1 

10680102000300 
2 

10680102001600 
0 

10680102002400 
0 

10680102001900 
0 

10680102002700 
0 

10680102002000 
0 

10680102002300 
0 

10680102001500 
0 

10680102000600 
0 

10680102000100 
0 

10680102001100 
0 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

.. 

Owner 
C!TY OF 
RICHLAND 
CITY OF 
RICHLAND 
CITY OF 
RICHLAND 
CITY OF 
RICHLAND 
CITY OF 
RICHLAND 
CITY OF 
RICHLAND 
C!TYOF 
RICHLAND 
CITY OF 
KENNEWIC 
K 
CITY OF 
KENNEW!C 
K 
CITY OF 
KENNEW!C 
K 
CITY OF 
KENNEWIC 
K 
CITY OF 
KENNEW!C 
K 
CITY OF 
KENNEW!C 
K 
CITY OF 
KENNEWIC 
K 
CJTYOF 
KENNEWIC 
K 
CITY OF 
KENNEWIC 
K 
CITY OF 
KENNEWIC 
K 
C!TYOF 
KENNEWIC 
K 
C!TYOF 
KENNEW!C 
K 
CITY OF 
KENNEW!C 
K 
CITY OF 
KENNEWIC 
K 
CITY OF 
KENNEWJC 
K 
CITY OF 
KENNEWIC 
K 
CITY OF 
KENNEWIC 
K 

. 
~ndU~e Lbcatlon Add~llll Acres . D!IS~lption 

2277 ROBERTSON 
1.17 Industrial: 

DR,R!CHLAND,WA,99354, Vacant !and 

UNKNOWN,RICHLAND,WA,99352, 1.23 
Industrial· 
Vacant land 

2235 ROBERTSON 1.99 Industrial: 
DR,RICHLAND,WA,99354, Vacant land 

UNKNOWN,RICHLAND,WA,99352, 2.72 
Industrial: 
Vacant land 

UNKNOWN,RICHLAND,WA,99352, 2.87 Industrial: 
Vacant land 

2650 BATTELLE 
1.39 Industrial: 

BLVD.RICHLAND,WA.99352, Vacant land 
2630 BA TTELLE 

1.41 
Industrial: 

BLVD,R!CHLAND,WA,99352, Vacant land 

416 N 
1.04 Utilities KINGWOOD,KENNEWICK,WA.99337 

Industrial: UNDETERMINED,WA,USA 1.94 
Vacant land 

Industrial: UNDETERMINED,WA,USA 2 
Vacant land 

Industrial: 
UNDETERMINED,WA,USA 2.56 

Vacant land 

UNDETERMINED,KENNEWICK,WA,9 Office I Retail 1.54 
9336, Condo 

Industrial: UNKNOWN,KENNEWICK,WA,99337, 3.13 
Vacant !and 

UNDETERMINED.WA,USA 1.31 Utilities 

UNDETERMINED,WA,USA 2.3 Utilities 

UNDETERM!NED,WA,USA 2.32 Uti!itles 

UNDETERMINED,WA,USA 2.34 Utilities 

UNDETERMINED,WA,USA 2.34 Utilities 

UNDETERMINED.WA.USA 2.5 Utilities 

UNDETERMINED,WA,USA 2.5 Utilities 

UNDETERMINEO,WA,USA 2.5 Utilities 

UNDETERM!NED,WA,USA 2.64 Utilities 

UNDETERMINED.WA.USA 2.9 Utilities 

UNDETERMINED,WA,USA 4.84 Utilities 

2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

Richland 
Zonlna 
Medium 

Industrial 
Medium 

Industrial 
Medium 

Industrial 
Medium 

Industrial 
Medium 

Industrial 
Heavy 

Manufacturing 
Heavy 

Manufacturing 

Phone (509) 546-2040 
Fax ( 509) 54& 2090 
wv·N1.hdrinc.com 

Kennewick 
Z!lnlna 

Industrial, 
Heavy 

Industrial, 
Heavy 

Industrial, 
Heavy 

Industrial, 
Heavy 

Industrial, Light 

Industrial, Light 

Public Facilities 

Public Facilities 

Public Facilities 

Public Facilities 

Public Facilities 

Public Facilities 

Public Facilities 

Public Facilities 

Public Facilities 

Public Facilities 

Public Facilities 

I Page 4 of21 

209



The non City Owned Sites were cross referenced against current commercial properties listed for sale on 
the Commercial Brokers Association (CBA} web site and one site from that list was identified as on the 
market. That site is owned by DK Smith Properties LLC and is shown in Table 3. 

To further expand the list of properties currently available for sale, we reviewed all available properties 
on the CBA site using a slightly more relaxed criterion (commercial properties were accepted) which 
resulted in the list of properties noted in Table 3. 

Table 3. Phase 3 Sites Meeting Baseline Criteria 

100011 Witllin Within 
Land from Outside Richland - 1·5 3miof 

Area Pareel!D Owner Use/ Res 100yr KenneWick Ac IJwyor SF Comments 
Zoning Property floodplain City Limits arterial 

road 
Within 

KENNEWICK commercial 

PUBLIC 
shopping and 

132993013280005 
HOSPITAL 

Com Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 78,408 office bldgs, 

DISTA 
adjacent to 
medical 
offices/hosoital 
Within 

KENNEWICK 
commercial 

PUBLIC shopping and 
132993013280003 

HOSPITAL 
Com Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 50,530 office bldgs, 

DISTA 
adjacent to 
medical 
offices/hosoital 
Adjacent to 

DKSMITH industrial 
134081000022000 PROPERTIES Ind Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 91,476 property use 

LLC and warehouse 
!voe activities 

BJAZEVICH About 3.3 miles 
103891011524005 ANDREW& Com No Yes Yes Yes Yes 77,101 inside 1000 ft 

DALENE res buffer 

KENNEWICK About 60ft of 

132993013280006 
PUBLIC Com No Yes Yes Yes Yes 78,408 

property is 
HOSPITAL within 1000 ft 
DISTA res buffer 

CCH BUSINESS 
About 300ft 

131991012977001 
PARK LLC 

Com No Yes Yes Yes Yes 109,335 inside 1000 ft 
res buffer 

I 131994013034008 
GRANDR!DGE About 600ft 
INVESTORS Com No Yes Yes Yes Yes 44,431 inside 1000 ft 
LLC res buffer 

The original three preferred site alternatives identified in the Draft MRW Conceptual Layouts and 
Preliminary Siting Evaluation Memo completed by HDR on March 26, 2012, were also reviewed using the 
above-noted criteria. The results of this analysis are presented in Table 4. 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

I 2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A 
) Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

I 
Phone (509) 546-2040 
Fax (509) 546-2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

I Page 5of21 

210



Table 4. Original Sites subjected to Phase 3 Criteria 
outside Witl>in Within 

Land 10001! 100yr Richland 1·5 3mlof 
Parcel 10 Owner llsel from.Res Kennewic hwy or AteaSF Com·ments 

Zoning Property floodplai kCiiy Ac arterial n . Limits road 
About900ft 

11698402000200 City of lod No Yes Yes No Yes 1,300,26 inside 1 OOOft 
2 Rlchland 6 res buffer; 

29.85 ac. 
Benton 

11189202004600 County About 3 miles 

2 
Road PF No Yes Yes Yes Yes 111,078 inside 1000 fl 
Maintenanc res buffer 
e Shop 
Clarence T About 320ft 

11188400000100 Bumgardner Com No Yes Yes No Yes 841,144 inside 1000 ft 
0 et al)!- res buffer; 

82/Badoer 19.31 ac. 

The research in this memo and the March 2012 memo has resulted in a prospective site list of ten 
private properties with six individual owners and two public properties owned by Benton County and 
the City of Richland. Phase 3 analyses of these properties used the criteria below with interim results 
shown in Table 5. An overview map of the Phase 3 sites is presented in Exhibit 1. 

1. Estimated Cost to Purchase. 

2. Available for Sale. 

3. Soundness of Title. 

4. Availability of utilities (water and power) to site assuming storm water and sewer will be 

managed on site. 

5. Estimated property purchase/agreement schedule. 

Table S. Phase 3 Evaluation of Sites 

Parcel ID 

132993013280005 

132993013280003 

134081000022000 

103891011524005 

132993013280006 

131991012977001 

131994013034008 

116984020002002 

111892020046002 

111884000001000 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

Owner 

KENNEWICK PUBLIC 
HOSPITAL D!STA 

KENNEWICK PUBUC 
HOSPITAL DISTA 

DKSM!TH 
PROPERTIES LLC 

BJAZEVICH ANDREW 
& DALENE 

KENNEWICK PUBLIC 
HOSPITAL DISTA 

CCH BUSINESS PARK 
LLC 

GRANDRIDGE 
INVESTORS LLC 

City of Richland 

Benton County Road 
Ma"intenance Shop 

1-82/Badger (Clarence T 
Bumgardner et al) 

Estimated 
Cost 

$430, 046 
listing 

$278, 152 listing 

$175,000 listing 

$50,000 listing 

$461,963 listing 

$792,680 listing 

$339,879 listing 

$2,703,180 
estimate 

$259, 090 
estimate 

$772.400 
estimate 

Available Soundness 
For Sale ofTitle 

Yes To be completed 

Yes To be completed 

Yes To be completed 

Yes To be completed 

Yes To be completed 

Yes To be completed 

Yes To be completed 

No To be completed 

No To be completed 

Yes? To be completed 

1

2805 Sam! Andrews Loop, Srnte A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

Utilities Purchase 

to Site Closing 
Sc!ledule 

Yes 3-4 months 

Yes 3-4 months 

Yes 3-4 months 

TBD 3-4 months 

TBD 3-4 months 

TBD 3-4 months 

TBD 3-4 months 

TBD 6-9 months 

TBD 6-9 months 

TBD 3-4 months 

I 
Phone (509) 546-2040 
Fax (509) 546-2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

I Page 6 0121 

211



Exhibit 1. Overview Map of Phase 3 Sites 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Serv'1ces 

2805 Saini Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

I 

Phone (509) 546-2040 
Fax {509) 546-2090 
W\o'IW.hdrinc.com 

I Page ?of 21 

212



Kennewick Public Hospital 

DK Smith Properties 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

Phone {509) 546-2040 
Fax ( 509) 546- 2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

I Page Bol21 

213



Andrew & Darlene Bjazevich 

CCH Business Park LLC 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

I 
2805SaintAndrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

I 
Phone (509) 546-2040 
Fax (509) 546-2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

I Paoe9of21 

214



Grandridge Investors LLC 

City of Richland 

HDR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

I 
Phone (509) 546-2040 
Fax (509) 546-2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

215



Benton County 

Lawrence Bumgardner 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Serv'1ces 

2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

Phone (509} 546-2040 
Fax (509) 546-2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

I Pa;ie 11of21 

216



Phase 4: Expanded Search Criteria for Areas of Interest 

A meeting was held on December 12, 2012 with representatives from the County and cities of Richland, 
West Richland, and Kennewick to discuss the results of Phase 3 and provide guidance on the next phase 
of the project. 

During the above-noted meeting, the following sites were determined to be non compatible sites. 

Site Location 
Kennewick Public Hospital 
(multiple sites) 

Andrew & Dalene 
Bjazevich 

CCH Business Park LLC 

Grandridge Investors LLC 

Reason For Deletion 
Not compatible with future development plans; 
adjacency to Vista Field and entertainment district 

Incompatible Land Use; immediately adjacent to 
hotel, restaurant, high-density residential, and 
retail/commercial 

Incompatible Land Use; adjacent properties consist of 
offices, restaurants, hotels, professional services 
(e.g., dental, medical, and law offices) 

Incompatible Land Use; adjacent properties consist of 
offices, restaurants, hotels, professional services 
(e.g., dental, medical, and law offices) 

Based on the above-noted results, three potential "areas of interest" from the sites identified in Table 5 
were identified: City of Richland; 1-182/Badger; and Benton County sites. Additional research was 
requested for areas within the vicinity of the noted sites and for properties owned by the Kennewick 
Irrigation District (KID). A third tier list of sites was produced based on the search criteria indicated 
below. The Phase 4 list of sites {Table 6) was generated with the intent of further review and 
refinement in order to add to the preferred site list generated in Phase 3. Maps of the three areas of 
interest and associated Phase 4 sites are provided in Exhibit 2. 

Third Tier Parcel List Research Criteria 

1. Selected the City of Richland, 1-182/Badger, and Benton County sites and created a 1,000 ft 
buffer around them. 

2. Selected all parcels that intersect this 1,000 ft buffer (182 parcels). 
3. Selected all parcels from previous selection that were between one to five acres in size (56 

parcels). 
4. Selected all parcels from previous selection that had their centroid in the likeable zoning layer 

(26 parcels). *This count includes the Benton County and 1-182/Badger sites that were buffered 
by 1,000ft. 

5. Created a new layer that included all KID parcels that were near the three parcels needing 
additional research (15 parcels). 

6. Selected only those records that were between one to five acres in size (four parcels) for KID. 
7. This resulted in identification of four KID parcels, two of which were removed from the list 

because they are not zoned for Business Commerce. 
8. Combined the three areas of interest list and the KID list to produce the Phase 4 list of sites. 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Serv·1ces 

1

2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

I 
PhorIB (509) 546-2040 
Fax ( 509) 546-. 2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

I Page 12 of21 

217



Table 6. Phase 4 Sites 

.. 

P<lrcel!D owner 
KENNEWICK 
IRRIGATION 

116983BP4176001 DISTRICT 

KENNEWICK 
IRRIGATION 

121981000002018 DISTRICT 

BB 
QUEENSGATE 

116984013070002 LLC 

BB 
QUEENSGATE 

116984013070003 LLC 

BOC RICHLAND 
116984013096001 LLC 

CITY OF 
116984020002004 RICHLAND 

FIRST RICHLAND 
116984000002012 L.P. 

FIRST RICHLAND 
116984013161003 L.P. 

FIRST RICHLAND 
116984013161004 LP. 

FIRST RICHLAND 
116984013162001 LP. 

FIRST RICHLAND 
116984013162002 LP. 

FIRST RICHLAND 
116984013162003 L.P. 

FIRST RICHLAND 
116984013162004 LP. 

FIRST RICHLAND 
116984013163001 LP. 

FIRST RICHLAND 
116984013163003 L.P. 

FIRST RICHLAND 
116984013163004 LP. 

116984012471001 RABER LLC 

116984012471002 RABER LLC 

116984012471003 RABER LLC 

116984020002005 STARWEED LLC 

HOR Engineering. Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

. 
. . 

. 
L!;lca.tion 
#1.ddress 
3771 KENNEDY 
RD, RICHLAND, 
WA99352 

UNKNOWN, 

RICHLAND, WA 
99352 
2560 
QUEENSGATE DR, 
RlCHlAND, WA 
99352 
2530 
QUEENSGATE DR, 
RICHLAND, WA 
99352 

2762 DUPORTAIL 
ST, RICHLAND, 
WA 99352 
3000 
QUEENSGATE DR, 
WA 

UNDETERMINED, 
RICHLAND, WA 
99352 

27S1 DUPORTAIL 
ST,R!CHLAND, WA 
99352 

2725 DUPORTAIL 
ST, RICHLAND, 
WA99352 

2935 DUPORTAIL 
ST, RICHLAND, 
WA 99352 

2927 DUPORTAIL 
ST, RICHLAND, 
WA99352 

2921 DUPORTAIL 
ST, RICHLAND, 
WA 99352 

2917 DUPORTAIL 
ST, RICHLAND, 
WA 99352 
2701 
QUEENSGATE DR, 
RICHLAND, WA 
99352 

2651 DUPORTAIL 
ST, RICHLAND, 
WA99352 
2947 
QUEENSGATE DR, 
RICHLAND, WA 
99352 

686TRUMAN 
AVE, RICHLAND, 
WA 99352 

670TRUMAN 
AVE, RICHLAND, 
WA99352 

654 TRUMAN 
AVE, RICHLAND, 
WA99352 
3050 
QUEENSGATE DR, 
RICHLAND, WA 
99352 

Acr¢s 

1.51 

1.02 

1.17 

2.54 

1.69 

1.00 

2.63 

1.11 

1.87 

1.00 

1.46 

2.68 

2.38 

1.74 

2.00 

1.71 

1.30 

1.30 

1.51 

1.39 

a.entcm 
l.andUse Col.ll'lty 
Pes<0riptj9n zoning 

Commercial Retail 
Land 

Commercial Retail 
land 

RT General 
Merchandise 

Commercial Retail 

Land 

Commercial Retail 

l<md 

Industrial: vacant 
Land 

Commercial Retail 
Laod 

RT Eating and 
Drinking 

RT General 
Merchandise 

RTGenernl 
Merchandise 

RT General 
Merchandise 

Commercial Retail 
Land 

Commercial Retail 
Land 

Finance Insur Real 
Estate 

RT General 
Merchandise 

Commercial Retail 
Land 

Misc Manufacturing 

Business Services 

Contract 
Construction 
Services 

Business Services 

2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco. WA 99301·6121 

Kennewkk Rithliind 
Zoning Zoning 

Business 

Commerce 

Business 
Commerce 

Genera! 

Business 

General 
Business 

General 
Business 

Genera! 
Business 

General 
Business 

General 
Business 

General 
Business 

General 
Business 

General 
Business 

General 
Business 

General 
Business 

General 
Business 

General 
Business 

General 
Business 

General 
Business 

General 
Business 

General 
Business 

General 
Business 

Phone (509) 546·2040 
Fax (509) 546"2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

Within 
tOobftof 
.Residential 

Ye; 

Ye; 

Ye; 

Ye; 

y,, 

No 

y,, 

Ye; 

No 

y,, 

Ye; 

Ye; 

Ye; 

Ye; 

y,, 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

I Page 13 of21 

218



Parcel ID· owner 
BENTON 

111892020046002 COUNTY 

BENTON 
110891000024000 COUNTY PUD 

BENTON 
111892010477001 COUNTY PUD 

C!TY OF 
111892020047003 KENNEWICK 

PUBLJC UTILITY 
111892020015006 DISTRICT #1 

COTIONWOOD 
COMMERCIAL 

111881020000011 PLAZA LLCA 

COTTONWOOD 
COMMERCIAL 

111881020000012 PLAZA LLCA 

COTTONWOOD 
COMMERCIAL 

111881020000013 PLAZA LLCA 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

Location 
Address A~res 
UNDETERMINED, 
WA 2.55 

UNDETERMINED, 
WA 1.04 

UNDETERMINED, 
WA 2.68 

1811SELYST, 
KENNEWICK, WA 
99337 4.22 

UNDETERMINED, 
KENNEWICK, WA 
99337 3.16 

UNDETERMINED, 
KENNEWICK, WA 

99338 1.38 

UNDETERMINED, 
KENNEWICK, WA 
99338 1.47 

UNDETERMINED, 
KENNEWICK, WA 
99338 2.07 

Benton 
land Use County 
Description ZQning 
Governmental 
Services 

Utilities 

Utilities 

Governmental 
Services 

Utilities 

Commercial Retail INTERCHANGE 
Land COMMERCIAL 

Commercial Retail INTERCHANGE 
Land COMMERCIAL 

Commercial Retail INTERCHANGE 
Land COMMERCIAL 

2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco. WA 99301-6121 

Kennewick Richland 
Zoning Zoning 

Public Facilities 

Public Facilities 

Public Facilities 

Public Facilities 

Public Facilities 

Phone ( 509) 546-2040 
Fax (509) 546-2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

Within 
lOOOftof 
Resid.entia.I 

Ye; 

Ye; 

Ye; 

Ye; 

"' 

No 

No 

No 

I Page 14 of21 

219



Exhibit 2. Phase 4 Areas of Interest and Sites 

City of Richland Rese<1rch Area 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

0 0.075 0.15 0.3 
- Miles 

2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

I 
Phone (5D9) 546-2040 
Fax (509) 546-2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

I Page 15 of21 

220



1~2/Badger Research Area 

CJ100lnll<-00R<wo~..0PM*1s 
·; F"''"n.,-e.~~• 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Serv'1ces 

0 0.06 0.1 0.2 - ""'---·M~es 

2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

Phone (509) 546-2040 
Fax (500) 546-2000 
www.hdrinc.com 

I Paga 16 af21 

221



I MRW Potential Sites 
Benton County Road Shep Research Area 

O•ooo.""""""n'""""'~~"'t' 
-'.-""';f"""'"'""-

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

Phone {509) 546-2040 
Fax (509) 546-2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

I Page 17 of21 

222



Phase 5: Final Site list 
Following review and input regarding the Phase 4 information, the Phase 4 site list was refined. The goal 
was to identify 2-3 preferred sites to add to the Phase 3 sites (for a total of 6 sites), and review the list 
using the following criteria: 

1. Estimated cost to purchase 
2. Available for sale 
3. Soundness of title 
4. Availability of utilities (water and power) to site assuming storm water and sewer will be 

managed on site 
5. Estimated property purchase/agreement schedule. 

The process began with the three original preferred sites (City of Richland City Shops, Benton County 
Road Maintenance Shop, and Bumgardner property) and continued parcel by parcel from the three 
research areas until a total of six sites were identified (3 preferred, 3 new). Per direction from the SWAC 
at the March 13, 2013 meeting, the site search was to begin in the 1-82/Badger research area and 
progress to the City of Richland research area, and end with the Benton County Road Shop research area 
until three new viable sites were identified. However, subsequent to the meeting, the County withdrew 
the three Cottonwood sites from the 1-82/Badger research area due to their proximity to an elementary 
school. Therefore, the search began with the Richland City Shops research area. 

The tasks included in this process were as follows: 

1. Complete a detailed site review including site visits by one project staff if site access is feasible, 
review readily available property sales listing data, order and review of title, and prepare a 
preliminary cost estimate to acquire the properties based on available public data of the sites on 
the preferred list along with the three sites identified in the preliminary siting process. 

2. Compile final results into a brief MRW Site Identification Technical Memo. Potential issues 
were identified through review of readily available public information sources (e.g., 
comprehensive plans, sensitive areas ordinances, agency websites, and aerial photos) and onsite 
observations if site access is feasible. 

Table 7 presents the list of sites that were eliminated from further consideration and reason for 
dismissal. Table 8 presents the final sites meeting all the MRW site criteria. Photos of 3 of the 4 
final sites are provided in Exhibit 3. 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

1

2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301·6121 

I 
Phone (509) 546-2040 
Fax (509) 546-2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

I Page18of21 

223



Table 7. Sites Dismissed from Further Study 

Parcel ID . Owner Location Addre.ss Re.ason for Dismissal 
111892020047003 CITY OF KENNEWICK 1811 S ELY ST, KENNEWICK, City not interested in selling 

WA 99337 

111881020000011 COTTONWOOD UNDETERMINED, lncompatible land use; 
COMMERCIAL PLAZA LLCA KENNEWICK, WA 99338 adjacent to elementary school 

111881020000012 COTTONWOOD UNDETERMINED, Incompatible land use; 
COMMERCIAL PLAZA LLCA KENNEWICK, WA 99338 adjacent to elen1entary school 

111881020000013 COTTONWOOD UNDETERMINED, Incompatible land use; 
COMMERCIAL PLAZA LLCA KENNEWICK, WA 99338 adjacent to elen1entary school 

116984012471001 RABER,LLC 686 Truman Ave Owner not interested in selling 
Richland, WA 99352 any of the 3 oarcels 

116984020002005 STARWEED, LLC 3050 Queensgate Drive Owner not interested in 
RICHLAND, WA 99353 selling; mini-storage facility 

11189202004003 CITY OF KENNEWICK 1811 S.ELYSt. City of Kennewick City Fire 
KENNEW!CK,W A 99337 Training Facility 

111892010477001 BENTON CO. PUD 524 S AUBURN ST PUD STORAGE FACILITY 
KENNEWICK.WA 99336 

111891000024000 BENTON CO. PUD 524 S AUBURN ST PUD STORAGE FACILITY 
KENNEWICK, WA 99336 & SHOPS 

Table 8. Sites Still Under Consideration 

Parcel ID . Owner Location Address £stimated cost' . Available . SEPA: Issues' Comments 
. for Sall! . 

116983BP4176001 KENNEWICK IRRIGATION 3771 KENNEDY RD, $270,000 OR Yes None identified; Awaiting appraisal 
DISTRICT RICHLAND, WA $4.00/SF transportation impact requested by KID's 

99352 analysis consideration Property Mgr. 

111884000001000 C. L. BAUMGARTNER X'ing ofl-82 & $772,400 OR Yes None identified Unable to reach 
Badger Rd. $0.90/SF property owner by 

phone 
1169840200022800 City of Richland 2800 Queensgate $2,703,180 or Not listed None identified; Currently City of 

$2.07/SF transportation impact Richland shops and 
analysis consideration storage yard 

111892020046002 Benton County East side of S. Ely $313,160 or Not Listed None identified Road Shop & 
next to Kennewick $6.91/SF equipment storage 
Fire Training facility 

Assessed value as of May 8, 2013 
2 Based on readily available data including review ofDAHP and Ecology websites for known cultural or contaminated sites respectively. 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

Page19of21 

224



Exhibit 3 - Site Photos 

Kennewick Irrigation District 

Baumgartner 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

2805 Saint Andrews Loop, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301·6121 

I 
Phone (509) 546·2040 
Fax (509) 546-2090 
www.hdrinc.com 

I Pege 20 0121 

225



City of Richland - Queensgate 

HOR Engineering, Inc. 
Real Estate Services 

2805 Saint Andrews Loop. Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6121 

Phone (509) 546-2040 
Fax (509) 546-2090 
www.hdriric.com 

I Page 21 of 21 

226



INTER-LOCAL AGREEMENT 
REGARDING SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 

BENTON COUNTY 

This Agreement addresses City-County joint participation in the countywide Solid 
Waste Plan and joins public agencies to exercise their powers, thereby maximizing their 
ability to provide services and facilities which will best fulfill the needs of the community 
as a whole, and is made and entered into effective the first day of January 2012, by and 
between Benton County, a political subdivision of the State of Washington, hereafter 
referred to as the Lead Agency, and 1he cities of Benton City, Kennewick, Richland, 
Prosser, and West Richland, political subdivisions of the State of Washington, and 
hereafter referred to as Participating Jurisdictions. The Participating Jurisdictions and 
Lead Agency may be referred to herein collectively as the Parties, also referred to as the 
Solid Waste Advisory Co111111ittee (SWAC). 

L RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto recognize the requirement to prepare and 
implement solid and hazardous waste plans under RCW Chapter 70.95 and RCW Chapter 
70.105, and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto recognize the requirement to conduct a public 
review process to develop mid review the Benton County Comprehensive Solid Waste 
Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto recognize the adopted Benton County 
Comprehensive Solid Waste Plan fulfills their jurisdictional requirements under RCW 
Chapter 70.95 and RCW Chapter 70-105; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto wish to enter into a cooperative effort to 
administer, plan, and implement the recommendations contained within the adopted 
Benton County Comprehensive Solid Waste Plan; and 

WF!EREAS, each Pmiicipating Jurisdiction and Lead Agency shall have one 
equal vote with regards to policies and decisions made pursuant to all matters of policy 
and finance; And 

Interlocal Agreement 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

-1-

227



WHEREAS, the Lead Agency will manage, track and provide custody for this 
Agreement, and 

WHEREAS, the undersigned signatories of this Agreement are duly authorized to 
enter into the same by properly adopted resolutions, 

NOW THERFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual 
agreements and covenants herein contained, the parties agree as follows: 

!I. AGREEMENTS 

A. AUTHORITIES 

The parties to this Agreement have and possess, both jointly and severally, the 
primary responsibility for effective solid and hazardous waste management, planning and 
implementation under RCW Chapters 70.95 and 70.l 05. Under RCW Chapter 39.34, the 
Inter-local Cooperation Act, local governments are authorized to cooperate to provide 
themselves with services of the nature herein agreed to. 

B. PURPOSE 

This Agreement is entered into pmsuant to RCW Chapter 39.34 for the purpose of 
cooperative management of solid waste within Benton County. It is the intent of the 
parties to work cooperatively in developing a comprehensive solid waste management 
plan pursuant of RCW Chapters 70.95 and 70.l 05 that is viable and economically 
responsible to their citizens. Specifically, this Agreement will provide for the 
administration, planning and operations of the adopted Benton County Comprehensive 
Solid Waste Management Program. 

C. DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of this Agreement, the following definitions shall apply: 

'Fair Share' - the amount owed by each of the Parties based upon current 
population figures supplied by the Washington State Office of Financial Management 
(OFM), and the corresponding population percentage applied to the Solid Waste Program 
Budget. 

'Solid Waste Advisory Committee' (SWAC) - a committee comprised of a 
representative of each of the Parties. Each Party shall designate its representative to the 
SWAC to the Lead Agency. The SWAC shall review Solid Waste Program budget and 
activities and make recommendations to the Benton County Commissioners. 

'Lead Agency' - Benton County, a political subdivision of the State of 
Washington. The Lead Agency, will administer, plan and implement the Plan and Solid 
Waste Program. 

lnterlocal Agreement 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

-2-

228



'Participating Jurisdictions' - any City who has entered into the County-wide 
Solid Waste Inter-local Agreement with the Lead Agency and who has agreed to 
mutually suppmt and financially contribute to the administration, planning and 
implementation of the Plan. 

'Parties' or 'Solid Waste Advisory Committee' - the collective term for all 
Pa1ticipating Jurisdictions and Lead Agency. 

'Plan' - the Benton County Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Plan, as the 
same exists now or may hereafter be amended. 

'Routine Operating Agreement' (ROA) - an agreement that is established for the 
purpose of accomplishing a task set forth by the Parties and is funded within the Solid 
Waste Program Budget. 

'Solid Waste Advisory Committee Members Bylaws' - the bylaws the same as 
now exist or may hereafter be amended. 

'Solid Waste Program Budget' - the annual Countywide Solid Waste Budget, as 
prepared by Benton County and accepted by the SW AC, that appropriates fonds to 
Routine Operating Agreements and administrative functions that meet specific 
requirements in RCW 70.95 and/or accomplishes goals as set fourth in lhe Plan. 

'Task' - a project, program, activity, etc., that is annually funded from the Solid 
Waste Program Budget. All tasks are approved by the SWAC as needed and shall meet 
the recommendations set forth in the Plan. 

'Task Manager' is designated to lead and manage a Task per the ROA. 

D. LOCAL ADOPTION OF PLAN 

Under the authority of RCW 70.95.080 each Participating Jurisdiction has elected 
to enter into this agreement with the County pursuant to which those jurisdictions shall 
pmticipate in preparing a joint City-Cmmty Plan. Prior to the Plan's "Final Draft" phase, 
when it goes to Ecology for review, each Participating Jurisdiction is required to adopt 
the Plan. If any Participating Jurisdiction elects not to adopt the Plan, the Lead Agency 
will call for a SW AC vote. If a supermajority vote (i.e. 5 of 6) is reached in favor of 
adopting, the opposing jurisdiction will have to choose between developing a Plan alone, 
or adopting the favored Plan. If two or more jurisdictions oppose adopting the Plan, then 
the Parties will revert back to the phase of "Revising the Preliminary Draft Plan" during 
whieh a draft Plan revision will be made to satisfy a supermajority vote. The Plan will be 
adopted by at least the "in favor" supcnnajority and submitted to Ecology for final 
approval. 

E PLAN IMPLEMENTATION 

Interlocal Agreement 
Benton County Solid Waste Mm1agement 

-3-

229



Pursuant to RCW 70.95.080 and RCW 70.105.220, the Participating Jurisdictions 
and Lead Agency will jointly prepare a Plan in accordance with "Gnidelines for the 
Development of Local Solid Waste Plans and Plan Revisions" (i.e. Deparbnent of 
Ecology (WDoE) Publication No. 90-11) and implement the Plan's recommendations. 
Pursuant to RCW 70.95.094, the "Final Draft Plan" shall be deemed approved, if the 
VvDoE does not disapprove it within forty-five ( 45) days of receipt. 

F. BENTON COUNTY SOLID WASTE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

The Parties hereto recognize and support the SW AC as an advisory board created 
under authority ofRCW 70.95.165. The SWAC is an ongoing advisory connnittee. The 
SW AC is the focal point of the public involvement effort used in the planning, 
development and implementation of the Plan. The SW AC also provides advice to the 
Paiiies on solid and hazardous waste issues and assists the Parties in developing solid 
waste ordinances, rules, guidelines and policies prior to their adoption. 

G. REGIONAL PLANNING AREA 

The Paiiies hereto recognize the geographical planning area covered by this 
Agreement to be the incorporated areas of the Paiticipating Jurisdictions and the 
unincorporated area of Benton County. The Hm1ford Nuclear Reservation is exempted 
from the Plan and this Inter-local Agreement. 

H. ROUTINE OPERAfING AGREEMENT IMPLEMENTATION 

Prior to the annual Solid Waste Program Bndget workshop, all task managers are 
required to submit their ROA. As a minimum, an ROA will include: !) Task 
Introduction Statement; 2) Task Scope of Work; 3) Task Responsibilities; 4) Annual Task 
Cost; and 5) Quality Control. Eligibility of m1 ROA request is based on task cost and 
meeting recommendations set fo1th in the Plan. The SW AC will approve tasks based on 
a supermajority (i.e. 5 of 6) in-favor vote. 

I. SOLID WASTE PROGRAM BUDGET 

The Parties agree to mutually and financially suppo1i the administration, plam:Ling 
and operations of the Plan recommendations or as specified in RCW 70.95. The Lead 
Agency shall prepare a Solid Waste Program Budget each yeai· for tl1e upcoming budget 
year. The budget will also include Routine Operating Agreements that provide 
information on projects fonded by the annual budget. 

J. FAIR SHARE 

The Pmiies agree to pay a Fair Share of the administration, planning and 
operation of the Solid Waste Program, as determined and voted-on by the SW AC and 
approved by the Benton County Commissioners. Said Fair Share shall be a percentage of 

Interlocal Agreement 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

-4-

230



all program costs that are not covered by Coordinated Prevention Grant Ftmds, share 
percentages to be updated each January of the Agreement, being based on the most recent 
population figures as supplied by the Washington State OFM. The Parties agree to 
remit their fee to the Lead Agency within sixty (60) days of receiving an invoice from the 
Lead Agency. TI1e Lead Agency's fair share shall be based on the population for the 
unincorporated areas of the County. 

K. DISBURSElvIENT OF ASSETS AND DEBTS 

If this Agreement is terminated, all Parties to this Agreement shall determine the 
disbursement of any outstanding debts and the allocation of any assets. If the Parties 
cannot agree to the disbursement of any outstanding debts and the allocation of any 
assets, the issues are to be submitted for arbitration, pursuant to state law, RCW 7.04 et 
seq. The Lead Agency and the contesting jurisdiction agree that such arbitration shall be 
conducted before one (1) disinterested arbitrator. 

L. DURATION 

This Agreement shall commence on the date set forth above and will continue in 
effect for two (2) years, or until superseded hy another lnterlocal Agreement. As 
stipulated within RCW 70.95.110(1), each Plan shall be maintained in a current condition 
and reviewed and revised periodically as may be required by the WDoE. Upon each 
review such plans shall he extended to show long-range needs for solid waste handling 
facilities for twenty (20) years in the future, and a revised implementation schedule and 
implementation budget for six ( 6) years in the future. 

M. REVIEW AND RENEGOTIATION 

Any Party may request a review and/or renegotiations on any provision of the 
Agreement during the six-month period immediately preceding the ending date for the 
Agreement. Such request must be made in writing to the Lead Agency and must specify 
the provision(s) of the Agreement for which review/renegotiation(s) are requested. 
Review and/or renegotiation(s) pursuant to such a written request shall be immediately 
referred to the SW AC for their review and recommendation. Notwithstanding any olher 
provisions in this paragraph to the contrary, the Paiiies may, pursuant to the procedure 
outlined within the Solid Waste Advisory Committee Members Bylaws, modify or amend 
ar1y provision(s) of this Agreement at ai1y time during the term of this Agreement. 

N. TEKM1NATION 

This Agreement may be terminated hy any Paiiicipating Jurisdiction, by written 
notice to the Lead Agency no less than tlu·ee hundred sixty five (365) days immediately 
preceding the implementation date of the next Solid Waste Program Budget This 
Agreement may be terminated by the Lead Agency by VvTitten notice to each Participating 
Jurisdiction no less thm1 three hundred sixty five (365) days immediately preceding the 
implementation date of the next Solid Waste Program Budget The Parties agree: (1) that 

Interlocal Agreement 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

-5-

231



the termination will not absolve a terminating Party of any financial responsibility to the 
extent a financial responsibility continues to exist pursuant to the provisions of this 
Agreement; and (2) that prior to termination, a withdrawing City shall submit to the 
SWAC how it intends on meeting its planning obligation under RCW 70.95.080. 

0. WAIVER 

No waiver by any of the Parties of any term or condition of this Agreement shall 
be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of any other term or condition or of any 
subsequent breach whether of the same or a difterent provision of this Agreement. 

P. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, including the recitals and all subsequent attachments and 
addenclums, constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties and shall be governed 
by the laws of the State of Washington. There are no other oral or written agreements or 
understanding between the Parties as to the subject matter contained herein. The venue 
for any action of law, suit in equity and judicial proceeding for the enforcement of this 
Agreement shall be instituted and maintained only in the courts of competent jurisdiction 
in Benton County, Washington. 

Q. SEVERABILITY 

Any provisions of this Agreement that is determined to be illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable for any reason shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition without 
invalidating the remainder of this Agreement. 

Interlocal Agreement 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

-6-

232



FOR BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON. 

Shon 
Board of County Commissioners 

Attest: 

Approved as to Form: 

_1Ht~1 __ _ 
Depu~cuting Attorney 

!/r/ 
J: certify that on this day of ;11/ttu A , 20 l_3, before me, 

the undersigned Notary Publis;,. in an for the State of Washington, dnly commissioned and 
.,,.,..._:5#1;;;~ ~l"rt<i<:..A: ..... JJ . • 

sworn, personally appeared~, to me !mown to be the Charrman of the Board of 
Commissioners for Benton County, Washington, the corporation that executed the foregoing 
instrument s11d acknowledged said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said 
municipal corporation for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that they 
are authorized to execute said instrument and that the seal affixed is the corporate seal of 
Benton County. 

Witness my hand m1d official seal hereto affixed the day illd year first above written. 

Interlocal Agreement 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

J\1w· jJL, ~:r~yljj_) 
Notary Public in and for State of 
Washington residing at-'"-'-~·.,.;.-"''!::-"""'!· 
My commission expires: .. _ .. _L'J._::.~;{:::£;~ 

Signature Page - Benton County 

233



FOR THE CITY OF BENTON CITY, WASHlNGTON. 

°l/~/19'_ 
Date 

Attest: 

Date 1 

Approved as to Form: 

Date 

1 t'.[;z, o .. r · 
I ce1iify that on this ·· ' day of .)f;t.'/M.t:17·1· /-·..-:,,___, 2012, before me, 

the undersigned Notary Public in an for the State of ashington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared Lloyd Carnahan and Stephanie Haug, to me known to be the 
Mayor and City Clerk-Treasurer, respectively, of the City of Benton City, Washington, the 
corporation that executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged said instrument to be the 
free and voluntary act and deed of said municipal corporation for the uses and purposes therein 
mentioned, and on oath stated that they are auth01ized to execute said instrument and that the 
seal affixed is the corporate seal of the City of Benton City. 

Witness my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above written. 

)1 ,., 

//~Lvf /(J.-J ... 
NOtary Publi;;-·i41i,_a_n_d_f<_o_r "th_e_S_t-at_e_o_f __ 

Washington residing at f?,cy, f,,, c_,,, 
My commission expires: fc,.f,.,, h1JJ•t., 

r r 

Interlocal Agreement Signature Page - City of Benton City 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

234



Date 

Attest: 

/;/Lt: i~. n·~; 
Linda C. Spier, Dep~k_k ____ _ 'Date 

Approved as to form: 

Lisa Beaton, City Attorney 
1J.-!_1t(r2/ 

Date 

l certify that on this /8th day of ~.f!.JJ~O/V , 2012, before me, 
the undersigned Notary Public in an for the State of Was "i{gton, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared Steve C. Young and Linda C. Spier, to me known to be the Mayor 
and Deputy City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Kennewick, Washington, the corporation 
tllJl.t executed the foregoing instrnm.ent and acknowledged said instrnm.ent to be the free and 
voluntary act and deed of said municipal coiporation for the uses and purposes therein 
mentioned, and on oath stated that they are authorized to execute said instrnm.ent and that the 
seal affixed is the corporate seal of the City of Kennewick. 

C1 Du.Gno. ~c~rn 
Notary Public in andthe S<; of 
Washington residing at Kennewick 
My commission expires:_L@j9j,;;;);z)1 o 

lnterlocal Agreen1ent Signature Page - City of Kennewick 
Benton Co!llllty Solid Waste Management 

235



FOR THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON. 

Date 

Attest: 

Date 

Approved as to Form: 

Howard Saxton, City Attorney 

l certify that on this 2 'ij•hl day of n 0{11€,\111\)l)O/' '2012, before me, 
the undersigned Notary Public in an for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared Paul Warden and Rachel Shaw, to me known to be the Mayor and 
City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Prosser, Washington, the corporation that executed the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and 
deed of said municipal corporation for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath 
slated that they are authorized to execute said instrument a.nd that the seal affixed is the 
corporate seal of the City of Prosser. 

Witness my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above written. 

Notary Public in and fo, he State of VvA 
Washington residing at ~<;s ev .. \NA 
My conunission expires: \ c)\~1 \ 2_() \ S 

Signature Page - City of Prosser 

236



FOR THE CITY OF RICHLAND, WASHINGTON. 

/ \ J --~ 

I ic~ /vvv·----. .,; 
Cindy Jolm~· ity Manager Date 

Approved as to Form: 

_!!!/;z 7 It 2_--
Date 

I certify that on this j I day of 46·-w;r , 2012, before me, 
the undersigned Notary Public in an for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared Cindy Johnson and Marsha Hopkins, to me knovvn to be the City 
Manager and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Richland, Washington, the corporation 
that executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged said instrument to be the free and 
voluntary act and deed of said municipal corporation for the uses and purposes therein 
mentioned, and on oath stated that they are authoiized to execute said instrument and that the 
seal affixed is the corporate seal of the City of Richland. 

Witness my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above written . 

lnterlocal Agreement 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

. ~e'3zc C tff<JL:-. __ ·· __ 
Notary Public in and for the State of 
Washington residing at tSGc!FSrJ C'.o,w.JJvl 
My cmmnission expires:_LIJl~lL:~---

Signature Page - City of Richland 

237



FOR THE CITY OF WEST RJCHLAND, WASHINGTON. 

Attest: 

-~~ ~11 lrc().. ~.;(,1 "~ 
Juli&chardson, City. Clerk Date 

Approved as to Fom1: 

Bronson Brown, City Attorney Date 

·~ . ' /} ··:;·.(··/-. f: I certify that on this day of ( ./) J {.ii! ). ( _.. , 2012, be,ore me, 
the nmlersigned Notary Public in an for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and 
sworn, personally appeared Donna Noski and Julie Richardson, to me known to be the Mayor 
and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of West Richland, Washington, the corporation that 
executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged said instrument to be the free and 
voluntary act and deed of said municipal corporation for the uses and purposes therein 
mentioned, and on oath stated that they are authorized to execute said instrument and that the 
seal affixed is the corporate seal of the City of West Richland. 

Inter!ocal Agreement 
Benton County Solid Waste Management 

~)_ 1 
j d//) C/J'7 ri::JLJ~/r>~l /{/_~-.._·· ----

NotarfPnbJiC in and for the State of 
Washington residing at{/1 UJVI! .Ycl· 
My commission expires:: ', · N - i .d 

Signature Page - City of West Richland 

238



APPENDIXD 

WUTC 
COST ASSESSMENT QUESTIONNAIRE 

Please provide the information requested below: 

PLAN PREPARED FOR THE COUNTY OF: BENTON 

PLAN PREPARED FOR THE CITY OF: NIA 

PREPARED BY: HDR Engineering, Inc.; Michelle Leonard, Project Manager 

CONTACT TELEPHONE: 509.546.2041 DATE: 4/16/2013 

DEFINITIONS 

Please provide these definitions as used in the Solid Waste Management Plan and the Cost 
Assessment Questionnaire. 

Throughout this document: 
YR. I shall refer to 2013. 
YR.3 shall refer to 2015. 
YR.6 shall refer to 2018. 

Year refers to (circle one) calendar (Jan 01 - Dec 31) 

Appendix D 

239



I. DEMOGRAPHICS: To assess the generation, recycling and disposal rates of an area, it is 
necessary to have population data. This information is available from many sources (e.g., the 
State Data Book, County Business Patterns, or the State Office of Finance and Management). 

1.1 Population 

I .1.1 What is the total population of your County/City? 

YR. I 197,954 YR.3 203,736 YR.6 209,836 

1.1.2 For counties, what is the population of the area nuder your jurisdiction? (Exclude 
cities choosing to develop their own solid waste management system.) 

YR. I 45,528 YR.3 46,859 YR.6 48,262 

1.2 References and Assumptions 
Population projections using OFM High Growth Management Series, which is anticipates 

growth over the next 20 years by approximately 7-8% every 5 years. 

2. WASTE STREAM GENERATION: The following questions ask for total tons recycled 
and total tons disposed. Total tons disposed are those tons disposed of at a landfill, 
incinerator, transfer station or any other form of disposal you may be using. If other, please 
identify. 

2.1 Tonnage Recycled 

2.1.1 Please provide the total tonnage recycled in the base year, and projections for years 
three and six. 

YR. I 88,243 YR.3 113,352 YR.6 129,196 

2.2 Tonnage Disposed 

2.2.1 Please provide the total tonnage disposed in the base year, and projections for years 
three and six. 

YR.1 177,979 YR.3 171,089 YR.6 163,761 

2.3 References and Assumptions 
Disposal and diversion data from Ecology and County records. Diversion estimates 

assumes County will increase diversion approximately 2% per year, to 50% by 2020, as outlined 
in Chapter I, Plan Goals and objectives section 1.2. 

2 
Appendix D 

240



3. SYSTEM COMPONENT COSTS: This section asks questions specifically related to the 
types of programs currently in use and those recommended to be started. For each 
component (i.e., waste reduction, landfill, composting, etc.) please describe the anticipated 
costs of the program(s), the assumptions used in estimating the costs and the funding 
mechanisms to be used to pay for it. The heart of deriving a rate impact is to know what 
programs will be passed through to the collection rates, as opposed to being paid for through 
grants, bonds, taxes and the like. 

3.1 Waste Reduction Programs 

3.1.1 Please list the solid waste programs which have been implemented and those programs 
which are proposed. If these programs are defined in the SWM plan please provide the 
page number. (Attach additional sheets as necessary.) 
Refer to sections 3.1.1 and 3.2.1 for existing programs. 

IMPLEMENTED 

Public Education aud outreach 
Donations to non-profits 

PROPOSED 

EPR Support and guidelines 
Technical assistance to schools aud business 
Promotion of reuse opportunities 
Promotion of online waste exchanges 
Requirements for new developments 
Measuring of waste reduction 

3 .1.2 What are the costs, capital costs and operating costs for waste reduction programs 
implemented and proposed? 

IMPLEMENTED 

YR.I $150,000 YR.3 $ 160.000 YR.6 $170,000 

PROPOSED 

YR.I $180 000 YR.3 $200.000 YR.6 $200,000 

3.1.3 Please describe the funding mechanism(s) that will pay the cost of the programs in 3.1.2. 

IMPLEMENTED 

YR.l Grant YR.3 Grant YR.6 Grant 

PROPOSED 

YR.I Grant YR.3 Grant YR.6 Grant 

3 
Appendix D 

241



3.2 Recycling Programs 

3.2. I Please list the proposed or implemented recycling program(s) and, their costs, and 
proposed fonding mechanism or provide the page number in the draft plan on which it is 
discussed (attach additional sheets as necessary). 

IMPLEMENTED 

PROGRAM 
Drop boxes 

PROPOSED 

PROGRAM 
Expand drop boxes 
Technical assistance 

COST 
$ 20.000 

COST 
$50,000 
$20,000 

3.3 Solid Waste Collection Programs 

3.3.1 Regulated Solid Waste Collection Programs 

FUNDING 
Grants; revenue from recyclables 

FUNDING 
Grants; revenue from recyclables 
Grants; revenue from recyclables 

Fill in the table below for each WUTC regulated solid waste collection entity in your 
jurisdiction. (Make additional copies of this section as necessary to record all such entities in 
your jurisdiction.) 

WUTC Regulated Hauler Name: Basin Disposal, Inc. 
G-Permit # 118 

RESIDENTIAL YR.I YR.3 
- # of Customers 1,005 1,035 
- Tonnage Collected 1,333 1,373 
COMMERCIAL 
- # of Customers 155 160 
- Tonnage Collected 6,205 6,391 

WUTC Regulated Hauler Name: Ed's Disposal, Inc. 
G-permit #l l 0 

RESIDENTIAL YR. l YR3. 
- # of Customers 3,131 3,224 
- Tonnage Collected 4,947 5,095 
COMMERCIAL 
- #of Customers 136 140 
- Tonnage Collected 719 741 

4 
Appendix D 

YR.6 
1,066 
1,414 

164 
6,582 

YR.6 
3,321 
5,248 

144 
763 

242



WUTC Regulated Hauler Name: Waste Management of Kennewick 
G-permit #237 

RESIDENTIAL YR!. YR3. YR.6 
- # of Customers 5,372 5,533 5,699 
- Tonnage Collected 6,196 6,382 6,573 

COMMERCIAL 
- # of Customers 519 535 551 
- Tonnage Collected 5,205 5,361 5,522 

WUTC Regulated Hauler Name: Sanitaa Dis[!osal, Inc. 
G-permit #173 

RESIDENTIAL YR.1. YR3. YR.6 
- # of Customers 176 181 187 
- Tonnage Collected 587 605 623 

COMMERCIAL 
- # of Customers 36 37 38 
- Tonnage Collected 1,774 1,827 1,882 

Waste collection projections based on population projectionsfor county, OFM, high series. 

3.3.2 Other (non-regulated) Solid Waste Collection Programs Fill in the table below for other 
solid waste collection entities in your jurisdiction. (Make additional copies of this section as 
necessary to record all such entities in your jurisdiction.) 

Hauler Name: City of Richland 

# of Customers 
Tonnage Collected 

YR. I 
16,845 
37,000 

YR.3 
17,800 
39,000 

YR.6 
18,900 
41,000 

3.4 Energy Recovery & Incineration (ER&I) Programs 
(If you have more than one facility of this type, please copy this section to report them.) 

3 .4.1 Complete the following for each facility: 
Name: NIA 
Location: 
Owner: 

5 
Appendix D 

243



Operator: 

3.4.2 What is the permitted capacity (tons/day) for the facility? NIA 

3.4.3 lfthe facility is not operating at capacity, what is the average daily throughput? 

YR.I NIA YR.3 NIA YR.6 NIA 

3.4.4 What quantity is estimated to be land filled which is either ash or cannot be processed. 

YR.I NIA YR.3 NIA YR.6NIA 

3.4.5 What are the expected capital costs and operating costs, for ER&l programs (not including 
ash disposal expense)? 

YR.I NIA YR.3 NIA 

3.4.6 What are the expected costs of ash disposal? 

YR.I NIA YR.3 NIA 

3.4.7 ls ash disposal to be: NIA on-site? 
in county? 

__ long-haul? 

YR.6N/A 

YR.6NIA 

3.4.8 Please describe the funding mechanism(s) that will fund the costs of this component. 
NIA 

3.5 Land Disposal Program 
(Jfyou have more than one facility of this type, please copy this section to rep011 them.) 

3.5. l Provide the following information for each land disposal facility in your jurisdiction 
which receives garbage or refuse generated in the county. 

Landfill Name: 
Owner: 
Operator: 

Horn Rapids Landfill 
City of Richland 
City of Richland 

3.5.2 Estimate the approximate tonnage disposed at the landfill by WUTC regulated 
haulers. If you do not have a scale and are unable to estimate tonnages, estimate using 
cubic yards, and indicate whether they are compacted or loose.' 

YR.I NIA YR.3 NIA YR.6 NIA 

' Compacted cubic yards will be converted at a standard 600 pounds per yard. Loose cubic 
yards will be converted at a standard 300 pounds per cubic yard. Please specify an alternative 
conversion ratio if one is presently in use in your jurisdiction. 

6 
Appendix D 

244



All waste collected by WUTC regulated haulers is disposed outside the County. 

3.5.3 Using the same conversion factors applied in 3.5.2, please estimate the approximate 
tonnage disposed at the landfill by other contributors. 

YR.I 54,359 YR.3 55,446 YR.6 56,555 

This includes City of Richland and self-haulers at Horn Rapids Landfill 

3.5.4 Provide the cost of operating (including capital acquisitions) each landfill in your 
jurisdiction. For any facility that is privately owned and operated, skip these questions. 

YR.I NIA YR.3 NIA YR.6N/A 
The Horn Rapids Landfill is owned and operated by the City of Richland. 

3.5.5 Please describe the funding mechanism(s) that will defray the cost of this component. 
NIA 

3.6 Administration Program 

3.6. l What is the budgeted cost for administering the solid waste and recycling 
programs and what are the major funding sources. 

Budgeted Cost 

YR. I $80,000 YR.3 $100.000 YR.6 $ 120,000 

Funding Source 

YR. I Grants/County and Inter-local contributions YR.3 Same YR.6 Same 

3.6.2 Which cost components are included in these estimates? 

Expenses included in the estimate are as follows: salaries and wages, personnel benefits, 
supplies, permits, other services and charges, and capital expenditures. 

3.6.3 Please describe the funding mechanism(s) that will recover the cost of each component. 

Funding mechanisms include grants. The Benton Governance Technical Advisory Committee, 
Solid Waste Advisory Committee and County Commissioners target grants for specific programs 
as determined. 

3.7 Other Programs 

7 
Appendix D 

245



For each program in effect or planned which does not readily fall into one of the previously 
described categories please answer the following questions. (Make additional copies of this 
section as necessary.) 

3.7. l Describe the program, or provide a page number reference to the plan. 

NA 

3. 7 .2 Owner/Operator 

3.7.3 ls WUTC Regulation Involved? lfso, please explain the extent of involvement in section 
3.8. 
NA 

3.7.4 Please estimate the anticipated costs for this program, including capital and operating 
expenses. 

YR. I $NA YR.3 $NA YR.6 $NA 
3.7.5 Please describe the funding mechanism(s) that will recover the cost of this component. 

NA 

3.7 References and Assumptions (attach additional sheets as necessary) 

4. FUNDING MECHANISMS: This section relates specifically to the funding mechanisms 
currently in use and the ones, which will be implemented to incorporate the recommended 
programs in the draft plan. Because the way a program is funded directly relates to the 
costs a resident or commercial customer will have to pay, this section is crucial to the cost 
assessment process. Please fill in each of the following tables as completely as possible. 

8 
Appendix D 

246



Table 4.1.1 Facility Inventory 

Facility Name Type of Tip Transfer Transfer Station Final Disposal Total Tons Total Revenue Generated 
Facility Fee Cost** Location Location Disposed (Tip Fee x Tons) 

per 
Ton 

NONE 

Table 4.1.2 Tip Fee Components 

Tip Fee by Facility Surcharge City Tax County Transportation Operational Cost Administration Closure Costs 
Tax Cost Cost 

NONE 

9 
AppendixD 

247



Table 4.1.3 Funding Mechanism 

Name of Program Bond Total Bond Bond Due Grant Name Grant Amount Tip Fee Taxes Other Surcharge 
Funding Mechanism Name Bond Rate Date 

will defray costs Debt 

Outreach and CPG $20,000 
Education; waste 
reduction 
Yard Waste Chipping ATB $14,000 
Promam 
Recycling Drop Box CPG $20,000 
Program 
HHW Collection Events CPG $180,000 
MRW Facility CPG $N/A 

Table 4.1.4 Tip Fee Forecast 

Tip Fee per Ton by Facility Year Year Year Three Year Four Year Five Year Six 
One Two 

10 
AppendixD 

248



4.2 Funding Mechanisms summary by percentage: In the following tables, please summarize 
the way programs will be funded in the key years. For each component, provide the 
expected percentage of the total cost met by each funding mechanism (e.g., Waste 
Reduction may rely on tip fees, grants, and collection rates for funding). You would 
provide the estimated responsibility in the table as follows: Tip fees= J 0%; Grants= 50%; 
Collection Rates= 40%. The mechanisms must total 100%. If components can be 
classified as "other," please note the programs and their appropriate mechanisms. Provide 
attachments as necessary. 

Table 4.2.1 Funding Mechanism by Percentage 
Year One 

Component Tip Fee% Grant% Bond% Collection Tax Other% Total 
Rates% 

Education and 75 25 100 
Outreach; waste 
reduction 
Yard waste chipping 75 25 100 
program 
Recycling Drop Box 75 25 100 
Proa ram 
HHW Collection 75 25 100 
Events 
MRW Facility 75 25 100 
Development 

Table 4.2.2 Funding Mechanism by Percentage 
Year Three 

Component Tip Fee% Grant% Bond% Collection Tax Other% Total 
Rates% 

Small business 100 100 
hazardous waste 
disposal at MRW 
facility 
MRW Facility 25 25 25 25 100 
Development 
Education and 75 25 100 
0 utreach; waste 
reduction 
Yard waste chipping 75 25 100 
proaram 
Recycling Drop Box 75 25 100 
Proqram 

11 
Appendix D 

249



Table 4.2.3 Funding Mechanism by Percentage 
Year Six 

Component Tip Fee% Grant% Bond% Collection Tax Other% Total 
Rates% 

MRW Facility 25 25 50 100 
Operations 
Education and 75 25 100 
Outreach; waste 
reduction 
Yard Waste chipping 75 25 100 
program 

Recycling Drop Box 100 100 
Proqram 

4.3 References and Assumptions 
Please provide any support for the information you have provided. An annual budget or similar 
document would be helpful. 

4.4 Surplus Funds 
Please provide information about any surplus or saved funds that may supp011 your operations. 

12 
Appendix D 

250



I CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON I 

~nda Title: Review Ordina~~ ~N D~e~} ~=: · --------1 
____ Amending the 2014 Budget for Fund April 8, 2014 I 
606, Library Memorial Fund. Regular Meeting 

1

1 

I Department: j Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: . 
~Administration , Paul Warden Paul Warden (509) 786-8216 

' C-o-st_o_f_P_r_o_p_o_s_a_I:--~------ -~-----------+1-A_c_c_o_u_n_t~N~u-m~b_e_r_: ----+I 
$12,500 1· .1' 

, n/a 

I Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
Library Memorial I $0 

'j Fund (606) 

I Reviewed by Finance Depa~?:-

! Attachments to Agenda-Packe-t~l-te_m_: ___________ _ 

1. Ordinance 14-----

isummarv Statement: 
I 

Mid Columbia Library has presented to Council that they would like to make 
improvements to the library facility owned by the City of Prosser. In a separate action 

, tonight the Council will consider an agreement for these improvements. 

This proposed ordinance amends the 2014 Budget allows for the expenditure of 
remaining Library Memorial Fund cash as contributions to this project and 

, improvements. 

RCW 35A34. 150 requires that amendments of this type be introduced at least five days 
. before the City Council can take action. Therefore, this item will be brought back before 
I the Council on April 22"d as part of the agenda for potential adoption. RCW 35A33.090 
1 requires that an emergency be declared in order to increase the appropriations in the . 

budget for any fund. The word emergency, in this context, simply means that '[ 
appropriations, that could not reasonable be foreseen at the time the budget was 

! adopted in 2013, are necessary in order to meet anticipated expenditures in 2014. I 
I I 

Below is an answer to a frequently asked question copied from the MRSC website that I 
explains the process to amend a budget and when the City Council must declare an j 

emergency: 

-------·-------___ j 

251



I Question: 

I When are budget amendments required and by what vote must they be passed? 

j Answer: 

I Cities 

ii' Budget amendments are required for cities only when the appropriation level in a fund is 
being changed. The statutes give four different examples. 

I 
1. RCW 35.33.081, RCW 35.34.140, RCW 35A.33.140, and RCW 35A.34.140 

discuss "nondebatable" emergencies, such as natural disasters and wars, and 
I say that the council may approve expenditures incident to these events with the 
. vote of a majority of the entire council plus one, without notice ora hearing. 
I. 2. RCW 35.33.091, RCW 35.34.150, RCW 35A.33.090, and RCW 35A.34.150 all 
' deal with "emergencies" of a lesser sort. The city finds it needs or wants to make 

some expenditures that were not foreseen at the time the budget was adopted. 
Because this will require increasing the appropriation level in one or more funds, 
an amendment is needed. The statutes stipulate that the budget-amending 
ordinance must be introduced five days before being voted on, that citizens must 
be heard, and that the vote be by a majority of the entire council plus one. 

3. RCW 35 .. 33.121(4). RCW 35.34.20Qill(Q), RCW 35A.33.120(4), and RCW 
35A.34.200(1 )(d) discuss the situation where a city receives more revenue 
during the year (or biennium for biennial budgets) than anticipated in the budget. 
If the city council chooses, it may spend the money during the year (biennium). 
However, since theappropriation level in a fund is being changed, a budget 
amendment is required. Only a simple majority vote is needed, presumably 
because spending unanticipated revenue requires less scrutiny than, for 
example, spending reserves under RCW 35.33.091, RCW 35.34.150, RCW 
35A.33.090, or RCW 35A.34.150. 
Note that a city need not pass a budget amendment to recognize unanticipated 
revenue unless it wishes to spend it during the current year (biennium). If 
"ignored," it will simply "drop down" into ending fund balance and will be available 
for appropriation in the next year (biennium). 

4. If a council wishes to decrease the appropriation levels in any fund during the 
year (biennium), it may do so by a vote of a majority of the entire council plus 
one. It is not completely clear why this level of approval is required, but since a 
council sometimes reduces the appropriation level in one fund and transfers it to 
another fund, perhaps the legislature thought this higher level of approval to be 
necessary. See final paragraph in RCW 35.33.121 and RCW 35A.33.120; and 
RCW 35.34.200(3) and RCW 35A.34.200(3). 

RCW 35.33.121 (5) and RCW 35.34.200(2) address the situation where the appropriation 
1 level in the fund is not changed. They state: 
I 
I Transfers between indiv"1dual appropr"1ations with.in any one fund may be made during the '1 

, current fiscal year by order of the city's or town's chief administrative officer subject to i 

252



such regulations, if. any,.as may be imposed by the city or town legislative body. 1 
Notwithstanding the provisions of RCW 43.09210 or of any statute to the contrary, ' 
transfers, as herein authorized, may be made within the same fund regardless of the 
various offices, departments or divisions of the city or town which may be affected. 

I There is similar language in RCW 35A.33.120(5) and RCW 35A.34.2DD(2). Except when 
I restricted from doing so by the council, the chief administrative officer may make 

1 

! transfers within a fund without a budget amendment. j 

I Consistent with or Comparison to: 
I 

I 

L~XISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

I Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: ·-·11. 

I
. Review Ordinance 14 ·--···Amending the 2014 Budget for Fund 606, Library 

Memorial Fund. i 

! ate: tf-3- ('-4 j_[),<i!.~ _ · [)at~:!f ~ 3- { 4 I 
j Today's Date: 

1 

Revision Numbe Date: 1File Name and Path: 1 
I April 3, 2014 I . 
L_ .... 

253



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET ADOPTED BY 
ORDINANCE 13-2859 AND AS AlVlENDED BY ORDINANCE 14-2871 
AND 14-__ ; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY EXISTS IN RELATION 
TO THE 2014 BUDGET, AS AMENDED, RELATIVE TO FUND 606, THE 
LIBRARY MEMORIAL FUND, AND APPROPRIATING $12,500 IN SUCH 
FUND FOR EXPENDITURE IN 2014. THE ORDINANCE AMENDS THE 
2014 BUDGET FOR FUND 606. THE ORDINANCE ALSO AUTHORIZES 
THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO MAKE ALL ADJUSTMENTS TO THE 
2014 BUDGET NECESSARY TO ACCOMPLISH THE PURPOSE OF 
THIS ORDINANCE. THE ORDINANCE ALSO DECLARES THAT THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE 
ANOTHER AND SETS FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE 
ORDINANCE AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 35A.33.090, a public emergency exists which could not 
have been reasonably foreseen at the time of the filing of the 2014 Budget which requires the 
receipt and expenditure of money not provided for in the annual budget and is not one of the 
emergencies specifically enumerated in RCW 35A.33.080; and 

WHEREAS, the facts constituting an emergency are enumerated as follows: 

1. The adopted 2014 budget was an estimate of revenues and expenditures; and 
2. Aetna\ revenues and expenditures for the library remodel project will exceed what 

was budgeted in the General Fund (001) by approximately $12,500; and 
3. Prudent fiscal management requires immediate amendment of the budget; and 
4. The funds need to be available to pay for the library project by approximately 

August of 2014; and 
5. It is in the best iuterest of the city of Prosser to amend the budget as provided in 

this ordinance for fuud number 606; and 

WHEREAS, there are sufficient unappropriated funds m Fund 606 to cover the 
additional costs for the library project; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to use the funds contained in fund 606 to partially pay for 
the library project; and 

WHEREAS, an emergency exists; and 

WHEREAS, this Ordimmce was first introduced to the City Couucil on April 8, 2014; 
and 

WHEREAS, the public was given an opportunity to comment for or against this 
emergency budget amendment; and 

254



WHEREAS, expenses and revenues will occur in 2014 that could not have been foreseen 
at the time of the preparation of the 2014 budget; 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City appropriates $12,500 to the Library Memorial Fund (606) at the Fund 
level for expenditure in 2014. 

Section 2. The 2014 Budget Adopted by Ordinance Number 13-2859, and amended by 
Ordinance Number 14-2871 and Ordinance Number 14-__ is hereby amended for fund 606 
as follows: 

FUND NO. FUND REVENUE EXPENDITURE 

606 Library M.emorial Fund $12,500 $12,500 

Section 3. The Finance Director is hereby authorized to make all adjustments to the 
City's Budget to accomplish the purposes of this Ordinance in accordance with RCW Chapter 
35A.33. 

Section 4. An emergency is declared to exist and the recitals set forth above are hereby 
adopted as findings in support of such emergency. 

Section 5. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to 
be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clanse, or phrase of this ordinance or its 
application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, 
the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
or phrase be held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 6. Since this budget amendment is being approved in accordance with RCW 
35A.33.090, its passage requires the affim1ative vote of 5 Council Members. This ordinance 
shall take effect five (5) days after passage and publication of an approved summary thereof 
consisting of the title. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this 
'2014. ------

___ day of 

-----------------
MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 

255



ATTEST: 

----"" 
CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

Approved~"" 
C::::::. ~-

CITY ATTORNEY, HOWARD SAXTON 

Date of Publication: ---

256



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the __ day of. , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed Ordinance No. 
A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the title, provides as 

follows: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET ADOPTED BY ORDINANCE 13-
2859 AND AS AMENDED BY ORDINANCE 14-2871 AND 14-__ ; DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY EXISTS IN RELATION TO THE 2014 BUDGET, AS AMENDED, 
RELATIVE TO FUND 606, THE LIBRARY MEMORIAL FUND, AND 
APPROPRIATING $12,500 IN SUCH FUND FOR EXPENDITURE IN 2014. THE 
ORDINANCE AMENDS THE 2014 BUDGET FOR FUND 606. THE ORDINANCE 
ALSO AUTHORIZES THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO MAKE ALL ADJUSTMENTS 
TO THE 2014 BUDGET NECESSARY TO ACCOMPLISH THE PURPOSE OF THIS 
ORDINANCE. THJi; ORDINANCE ALSO DECLARES THAT THE PROVISIONS OF 
THE ORDINANCE ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND SETS FORTH 
THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE AND PROVIDING FOR 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this __ day of _____ ,2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

257



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Adopt Ordinance 14 -__ [ Meeting Date: 
Amending the 2014 Budget for Fun=-td 001, April 8, 2014 
General Fund Regular Meeting 

Department: I Director: I pontact Person: I Phone Number: 
I (509) 786-8216 Admin1strat1on Paul Warden laul Warden 

I Cost of Proposal: 
I $22.750 

I Account Number: 

1 n/a 

I Name and Fund# 
General Fund (001) 

'] 1. 2014 Budget Request - Part-Time Office Clerk 
1 2. Ordinance 14- ___ _ 

f--------i Summary Statement: 

I 
' The attached ordinance amends the budget for the following reason: 

001 General Fund (001) $22,7_50: 
This funding will allow for the hire of a part-time office clerk to accept payments, answer 
phones, and provide general customer service and administrative support to all . 
departments. Funding for this expenditure can be derived from ongoing, unbudgeted 
investment interest returns, possible funding from Law & Justice Sales tax when the 
individual is working on PD items and the higher cash balance totals that the City 
consistently realizes due to conservative (but prudent) revenue forecasting. The need 
for an additional permanent part-time position goes way beyond the lunch closure that 
Admin and Council wants to change. There is a bonaflde need for additional staffing in 
City Hall, especially an individual that can cover multiple functions. Also many times the 
Building Official, City Planner, City Clerk and Mayor, are in occasional need of admin 
support but our clerical staff is usually occupied with their own duties so we do without ·1 

Also our Administrative Assistant has taken on by default our non Boys & Girls Club 
recreation programs (little league, softball etc.) in addition to her normal duties and could i 
really use extra help late spring through summer. I 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

258



Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Adopt Ordinance 14 - -----~Amending the 2014 Budget for Fund 001, General Fund 

Reviewed by Department Re_viewed by City Attorney: 

ID(;)U~~ 
~_<i_te: -3-"/~ Date: ~J/1_ 
I Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: 

! April 2, 2014 , 

L___----~· 

1;;:;v;;~ 
I 1t..11 
I Date: lf-) - ! I 
I File Name and Path: 

! 

259



CITY OF PROSSER 
DEPARTMENT BUDGET REQUEST 

YEAR 2014 

Requesting Department Finance Date 

Level of Need: Urgent 0 Essential 0 Necessary 0 Desirable 0 
Request for Additional Personnel: Request Other Than Personnel: 
Position Title Office Clerk 
Sa'lary Range & s'--t'-'-e"'p-"--='-''--n~la _____ _ 

Description 

Full-time 0 
Part-time 0Hours Per Year 800 Fund Name: General Fund 

81812013 

(FINANCE DEPT WILL COMPLETE) Account Name: Finance • Wages and Benefits 
10 Salaries $10,032 
20 Personal Benefits 12,695 Account# 001-514-23 (10 & 20) 

Estimated Cost: $22,727 

Total Personnel Cost $22,727 

Justification: 

Office Clerk with provide coverage during lunch hours for front desk staff. 

Requester's Name: 

Department Head Approval: 

City Manager Recommendation: 

Approved 

Denied 

Comments 

2014 R Dept Budget Request 

Regina Mauras 

Date 

8116/2013 7:34AM 

260



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 13-2859 AND ORDINANCE 
14-2871; AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL FUND 
(001) IN THE AMOUNT OF $22,750 FOR UNANTICIPATED REVENUE 
AND ALSO PROVIDE FOR EXPENDITURE OF THOSE FUNDS. THE 
ORDINANCE AMENDS THE 2014 BUDGET FOR THE ABOVE FUND 
AT THE FUND LEVEL AND FINDS THAT AMENDMENTS TO THE 
2014 BUDGET ARE IN THE BEST INTEREST OF THE CITY. THE 
ORDINANCE ALSO AUTHORIZES THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO 
MAKE ALL ADJUSTMENTS TO THE 2014 BUDGET NECESSARY TO 
ACCOMPLISH THE PURPOSE OF THIS ORDINANCE. THE 
ORDINANCE ALSO DECLARES THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
ORDINANCE ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND SETS 
FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE AND 
PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

WHEREAS, THE City wishes hire a part-time office clerk and it is necessary to amend 
the General Fund (001) to accommodate wages and benefit costs. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON, DO 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section l. The City wishes to appropriate revenue in the amount $22, 750, and it desires 
to appropriate for expenditme to the General Fund (001) at the Fund level. 

Section 2. The City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City of Prosser, 
Washington to amend the 2014 City Budget to appropriate the additional revenues and to provide 
for the expenditure of those revenues or appropriations at the fund level as set forth in Section 3 
below. 

Section 3. The 2014 Budget Adopted by Ordinance Number 13-2859, and Ordinance 
Number 14-2871 are hereby amended for the following fnnds in the foilowing amounts: 

. --,--;:;-·--------~-------~ 

Fund# i Fund · Revenue ------+'t'_Expenditure 
001 . I Gen,e,i:.al Fun~ ____________ J,_$'-4-'-,5_9_6-'-,6_8_2 _____ _,_ . ..c.$_4'-,5_7_2'-,2_2_8_ ---~ 

Section 4. The Finance Director is hereby authorized to make all adjustments to the 
City's Bndget to accomplish the purposes of this Ordinance in accordance with RCW Chapter 
35A.33. 

Section 5, SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to 
be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance or its 
application to any person or circumstance is for ahy reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, 

261



the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
or phrase be held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 6. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after passage and publication 
of an approved summary thereof consisting of the title. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this ____ day of 
, 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

Approved as to form: . 

? <::::::: :::;::::::::~ 

crrfirroRMfy, HOWARD SAXTON 

Date of Publication: -------

262



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the ____ day of , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed Ordinance No . 

----. A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the title, provides as 
follows: 

AN ORDINANCE Al'vlENDING ORDINANCE 13-2859 AND ORDINA.t'!CE 
14-2871; AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL FUND (001) 
JN THE AMOUNT OF $22,750 FOR UNANTICIPATED REVENUE AND 
ALSO PROVIDE FOR EXPENDITURE OF THOSE FUNDS. THE 
ORDINANCE Alv1ENDS THE 2014 BUDGET FOR THE ABOVE FUND AT 
THE FUND LEVEL ANTI FINDS THAT AMENDMENTS TO THE 2014 
BUDGET ARE JN THE BEST INTEREST OF THE CITY. THE ORDINANCE 
ALSO AUTHORIZES THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO MAKE ALL 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE 2014 BUDGET NECESSARY TO ACCOMPLISH 
THE PURPOSE OF THIS ORDINAlNCE. THE ORDINANCE ALSO 
DECLARES THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE ARE 
SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND SETS FORTH THE EFFECTIVE 
DATE OF THE ORDJNAl~CE AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION BY 
SUMMARY. 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this day of ----- '2014 

CITY CLERIC, RACHEL SHAW 

263



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenga Title: Adopt Ordinance No. 14-
-- amending PMC 2.16 changing City 
Hall Office Hours . 

I Meeting Dat§>: 
I April 8, 2014 
I Regular Meeting 

. -i ---·-------,=c-c--------+'-=---~----~~-~------! 
· Department: ·1 Director: II Contact Person: Phone Number: 

Administration . Paul Warden Paul Warden (509) 786-8216 
I 

Cost of Proposal: n/a I Account Number: 
I 

Amount Budgeted: n/a I Name and Fund# 

Reviewed by Finance Department: 

. ,!)~ 
~-~---~-

Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: ·--1 
1'. Strike-through version of PMC 2.16 
2. Ordinance No. 14-

Summary Statement: 

The attached ordinance amends the City Hall office hours to remove the lunch closure 
from 11 a.m. to 12 p.m. (noon). The need for an additional permanent part-time position 
goes way beyond the lunch closure that Admin and Council wants to change. There is a 
bonafide need for additional staffing in City Hall, especially an individual that can cover 
multiple functions. Primary training will be in cash receipting to cover lunch hour foot 
traffic and answer phones. From there cross training in all front office functions will 
ensue. Also many times Building Official, City Planner, City Clerk and Mayor, are in 
occasional need of admin support but our clerical staff is always occupied with their own 

, duties so we do without. Also our Administrative Assistant has taken on by default our 

, 

I 

non Boys and Girls Club recreation programs (little league, softball etc.) in addition to her I 
normal duties and could really use extra help late spring through summer. 

, 
' Consistent with or C9.ll!R<!D§.t:lD to: 

i. EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Adopt Ordinance No. 14- -·--amending PMC 2.16 changing City Hall Office Hours. 

i,-·R~viewed b. y Department i Reviewed by City. Attorney: ~. Mby Mayor: i· 
1mJ~1~ {!M,u~-
1 Date: 'f .-:: ~=£~L __ LDate: t:1 gi__ __ J Date: 'f - J -i1J 

264



Sections: 

2.16.010 Established. 

Chapter 2.16 
OFFICE HOURS* 

• For statutory provisions requiring all city offices to be kept open during such days and hours as the 

legislative body of the city shall by ordinance prescribe, see RCW 35A.12.020. 

In accordance with RCW 35A.21.070, the city council of the city of Prosser hereby establishes the office hours 

for all city offices, except the police department, to be from eight a.m. to five p.m. Monday through Friday of 

each week, except for legal holidays. City of Prosser offices will-also be closed frorn eleven a.rn. lo l\velve p.rn. 

tooef\}f&l'~. The police department shall be open for business twenty-four hours a day, seven days 

a week. (Ord. 2708 § 1, 2010: Ord. 2608 § 1, 2008: Ord. 2540 § 1, 2006: Ord. 2290 § 1, 2001: Ord. 2206 § 1, 

2001: Ord. 1873 § 1, 1996: Ord. 599 § 1, 1957). 

265



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PROSSER MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 
2.16.010 AND AMENDING SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE 2708, SECTION 
l OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2608, SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 2540, SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2290, SECTION 
1 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2206, SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE 1873 
AND SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE 599 TO ESTABLISH NEW OFFICE 
HOURS FOR CITY OFFICES. THE ORDINANCE ALSO SETS FORTH 
THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE AND PROVIDES THAT · 
ITS PROVISIONS ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND 
PROVIDES FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON, DO 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Prosser Municipal Code Section 2.16.010 and ,Section 1 of Ordinance 2708, 
Section 1 of Ordinance Nnmber 2608, Section 1 of Ordinance '.\fumber 2540, Section 1 of 
Ordinance Number 2290, Section I of Ordinance Number 2206, Section 1 of Ordinance 1873 
and Section 1 of Ordinance 599 are hereby amended to read as follows: 

2.16.010 Established 

In accordance with R.C.W. 35A.21.070, the City Council of the City of Prosser hereby 
establishes the office hours for all City Offices, except the Police Department, to be from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday of each week, except for legal holidays. The Police 
Department shall be open for business twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week. 

Section 2. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to 
be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance or its 
application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or tmconstitntional, 
the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
or phrase be held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 3. This Ordinance shall become effective June 1, 2014, provided said date is at 
least five days after passage and publication of an approved summary thereof consisting of its 
title. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor, this __ day of 
---' 2014. 

MAYOR 

266



ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

APPR~D AS 1:_? 
CITY ATTORNEY 

267



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the __ day of ______ , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed 
Ordinance No. ·--· A sunnnary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the 
title, provides as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE A!\1ENDING PROSSER MlJNICIP AL CODE SECTION 
2.16.010 AND AMENDING SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE 2708, SECTION I 
OF ORD.INANCE NUMBER 2608, SECTION I OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 
2540, SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2290, SECTION 1 OF 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2206, SECTION I OF ORDINANCE 1873 AND 
SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE 599 TO ESTABLISH NEW OFFICE HOURS 
FOR CITY OFFICES. THE ORDINANCE ALSO SETS FORTH THE 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE AND PROVIDES THAT ITS 
PROVISIONS ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDES 
FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

The foll text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon reqnest. 

DATED this __ day of. '2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

268



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
I Agenda Title: Adopt Ordinance 14 - __ 

Amending Section 5 of Ordinance No. 14-
2876, to Correct a Scriveners Error. 

I 
Meeting Date: 
April 8, 2014 
Regular Meeting 

!-=-------~·--------+~--~---~~--~~--~ 
.

1 

Department: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
. Admin I Paul Warden I Paul Warden (509) 786-8216 

'I Cost of Proposal: Account Number: 
w ~ 

I Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 

~ ----------------~n-/a ____ _____j.I 
] fulviewed by Finance Department I 

I (\uc-- _ ____ J 
! Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

j 1. Proposed Ordinance 14 -__ 
, 2. Ordinance 14-2876 

I Summary Statement: 

I At the March 25, 2014, City Council meeting, Council adopted Ordinance 14-2876 
1 allowing WA TVs on public streets within City limits. There was 1 atypo in section 5 of the 
I ordinance which adopted PMC Section 10.60.050. That code section is being revised 
' as follows (siril~eihrough language is deleted and underlined language is being added to 

: 

the section): 

10.60.050 Registration requirements of a wheeled all-terrain 
vehicle. 

A wheeled all-terrain vehicle operated on a city street must comply 
with all the registration requirements of chapter 49,.QB 46.09 RCW. 

Attached is the revised Ordinance correcting the Scriveners error. 

[Consistent with or Comparison to: 

I EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREv1ous PLANS, Pouc1Es OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE cou_N_c_1L __ __, 

1 Recommended City CounciJ Action/Suggested Motion: 

I Adopt Ordinance 14 - __ Amending Section 5 of Ordinance No. 14-2876, to Correct a 
I Scriveners Error. 

269



\ Reviewed by Department , Reviewed by City Attorney: 

7Jv~1~~ 
Date: 'f-j-{ f-r 1 Date: 3 0 
Today's Date: [ Revision Num er/Date-: 

Date: '- _.,,. :f - f L{ 
File Name and Path: 

March 20, 2014 

270



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 5 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 
14-2876 TO CORRECT A SCRIVENERS ERROR. THE ORDINANCE 
ALSO SETS FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE 
AND PROVIDES THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE SEVERABLE FROM 
ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDES FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN 
AS FOLLOWS: 

Section I. Section 5 of Ordinance Number 14-2876 and PMC 10.60.050 are hereby 
amended and reenacted to read as follows: 

10.60.050 Registration requirements of a wheeled all-terrain vehicle. 

A wheeled all-terrain vehicle operated on a city street must comply with all the 
registration requirements of chapter 46.09 RCW. 

Section 2. SI£VERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared 
to be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance or its 
application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, 
the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said section, sentence, clause, or phrase be 
held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after passage and publication of 
an approved summary thereof consisting of the title. 

PASSED by the City Conncil and APPROVED by the Mayor, this __ day of 

-------' 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

Date of Publication: -------

271



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the __ day of , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed 
Ordinance No. A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the 
title, provides as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE Al\i[ENDING SECTION 5 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 14-2876 TO 
CORRECT A SCRIVENERS ERROR. THE ORDIN~l\iCE ALSO SETS FORTH THE 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE Al'\1) PROVIDES THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE 
SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDES FOR PlJBLICATION BY 
SUMMARY. 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this __ day of ------·' 2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

272



CITY OF PROSSER, W ASHlNGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-2876 

AN ORDINANCE ALLOWING DRIVERS 21 YEARS AND OLDER TO 
OPERATE WHEELED ALL-TERRAIN VEHICLES ON CITY STREETS 
WITH A SPKED LIMIT OF 35 MIL1'~S PER HOUR OR LESS BY 
ENACTING CHAPTER 10.60 OF THE CITY OF PROSSER MUNICIPAL 
CODE. THE ORDINA::-.ICE ALSO SETS FORTH THE EFFECTIVE 
DATE OF THE ORDINANCE AND PROVIDES THAT ITS P~OVISJONS 
ARE SEVERABLJ<; FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDES FOR 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

'WHEREAS, RCW 35A.11.020 and RCW 35A.12.190 authorize the City Council to 
adopt ordinances of all kinds to regulate its municipal affairs and appropriate to the good 
government of the City; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Prosser ("City") is a non-charter code City duly incorporated 
and operating under the laws of the Slate of Washington; and; and 

WHEREAS, On June 28, 2013, the Washington House of Representatives passed ES!-!B 
1632 by a vote of81-l l; and 

WHJ<'.REAS, On June 29, 2013, the Washington Senate passed ESHB 1632 by a vote of 
39-5; and 

WHEREAS, On July 3, 2013, Washington's Governor signed ESHB 1632; and 

WHEREAS, On July 28, 2013, ESHB became effective law; and 

WHEREAS, in passing ESHB 1632, the legislature intend to: (a) Increase opportnnitics 
for safe, legal, and environmentally acceptable motorized recreation; (b) decrease the amount of 
unlawful or environmentally harmful motorized recreation; ( c) generate funds for use in 
maintenance, signage, education, and enforcement of motorized recreation opportnnities; (d) 
advance a culture of self-policing and abuse intolerance among motorized recreationists; (e) 
canse no change in the policies of any governmental agency with respect to pnblic land; (t) not 
change any current ORV usage routes; (g) stimulate rural economies by opening certain 
roadways to use by motorized recreationists which will in tum stimulate economic activity 
through expenditures on gasoline, lodging, food and drink, and other entertainment purposes; 
at1d (h) require ail wheeled all-terrain vehicles to obtain a metal tag; and 

WHEREAS, To be consistent with the legislative intent to ESHB, the City Council of 
Prosser ("City Council") finds that it is in the best interests of the City and its citizens to allow 
licensed drivers who have attained the age of twenty-one years to operate wheeled all-terrain 
vehicles on all City streets with speed limits of 35 miles per hour or less; 

273



NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section J. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.010 to read as 
follows. 

10.60.010 Dd'initions. 

When used in this chapter, the city defines the words and phrases listed below as 
follows 

"City" means the City of Prosser, its elected officials, its employees, and its 
agents. 

"City street" means every way, lane, road, street, boulevard, and every way or 
place in the City open as a matter of right to public vehicular traffic inside the city 
limits. 

"Motorcycle helmet" has the same meaning as provided in RCW 46.37.530. 
"Sidewalk" means that property between the curb lines or the lateral lines of a city 

street and the adjacent property, set aside and intended for the use of pedestrians or 
such portion of private property parallel and in proximity to a city street and 
dedicated to use by pedestrians. 

"Rules of the road" means all the rules that apply to vehicle or pedestrian traffic 
as set forth in state statute, rule or regulation. 

"Wheeled all-terrain vehicle" means (a) any motorized nonhighway vehicle with 
handlebars tlrnt is 50 inches or Jess in width, has a seat height of at least 20 inches, 
weighs Jess than 1,500 pounds, and has four tires having a diameter of 30 inches or 
less, or (b) a utiiity-type vehicle designed for and capable of travel over designated 
roads that travels on four or more low-pressure tires of 20 psi or less, has a maximum 
width Jess than 74 inches, has a maximum weight less than two thousand pounds, has 
a wheelbase of 110 inches or less, and satisfies at least one of the following: (i) !-las a 
minimum width of 50 inches; (ii) has a minimum weight of at least nine hundred 
pounds; or (iii) has a wheelbase of over 61 inches. A wheeled all-terrain vehicle is an 
ofi~road vehicle for the purposes of chapter 4.24 RCW. 

Section 2. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section l 0.60.020 to read as 
follows. 

10.60,020 Use of wheeled all-terrain vehicle on city streets. 

Subject the restrictions and requirements set forth i.n this Chapter, a person who 
has attained the age of twenty one years and who has a valid driver's license issued 
by the state of the person's residence may operate a wheeled all-terrain vehicle upon a 
city street having a speed limit of 3 5 miles per hour or less. 

274



Section 3. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.030 to read as 
follows. 

10.60.030 Restrictions on use of wheeled all-terrain vehicle on city streets. 

A. A person who operates a wbeeled all-terrain vebicle must wear a securely 
fastened motorcycle helmet while tbe vehicle is in motion. 

B. A person may not operate a wbceled all-terrain vehicle upon state route 
number 22; however, a person may cross state route number 22 at a controlled 
intersection if the crossing begins and ends on a city street with a speed limit of 35 
miles per hour or less and occurs at an intersection of approximately 90 degrees; 

C. A person may not operate a wheeled all-terrain veh.icle upon a city street with a 
speed limit in excess of 35 miles per hour; however, a person may cross a city street 
with a speed limit in excess of 35 miles per hour at a controlled intersection if the 
crossing begins and ends on a city street with a speed limit of 35 miles per hour or 
less and occurs at an intersection of approximately 90 degrees; 

D. A person may operate a wheeled all-terrain vehicle upon any city street while 
being used under the authority or direction of an appropriate agency that engages in 
ernergency management, as defined in RCW 46.09.310, or search and rescue, as 
defined in RCW 38.52.010, or a law enforcement agency, as defined in RCW 
16.52.01 l, within the scope of the agency's official duties; and 

E. Wheeled all-tenain vehicles are subject to chapter 46.55 RCW. 

Section 4. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.010 to read as 
follows. 

10.60.040 Equipment requirements of a wheeled all-terrain vehicle. 

A wheeled all-terrain vehicle operated on a city street must comply with the 
following equipment requirements: 

A. IIeadlights meeting the requirements of RCW 46.37.030 and 46.37.040 and 
used at all times when the vehicle is in motion; 

B. One tail iamp meeting the requirements of RCW 46.37.525 and used at all 
times when the vehicle is in motion upon a city street; however, a utility-type vehicle, 
as described under RCW 46.09.310, must have two tail lamps meeting the 
requirements ofRCW 46.37.070(1) a11d to be used at all times when the vehicle is in 
motion upon a city street; 

C. A stop lamp meeting the requirements of RCW 46.37.200; 

D. Retlectors meeting the requirements ofRCW 46.37.060; 

E. During hours of darkness, as defined in RCW 46.04.200, turn signals meeting 
the requirements ofRCW 46.37.200; 

275



F. Outside of hours of darkness, the operator must comply with RCW 46.37.200 
or46.6l.310; 

G. A mirror attached to either the right or left handlebar, which must be located to 
give the operator a complete view of the city street for a distance of at least two 
hundred feet to the rear of the vehicle; however, a utility-type vehicle, as described 
under RCW 46.09.310(19), must have two mirrors meeting the requirements of RCW 
46.37.400; 

H. A windshield meeting the requirements ofRCW 46.37.430, unless the operator 
wears glasses, goggles, or a face shield while operating the vehicle, of a type 
conforming to rules adopted by the Washington state patrol; 

l. A horn or warning device meeting the requirements of RCW 46.37.380; 

J. Brakes in working order; 

K. A spark arrester and muffling device meeting the requirements of RCW 
46 .09 .470; al1l1 

L. For utility-type vehicles, as described under RCW 46.09.31O(l9), seatbelts 
meeting the requirements ofRCW 46.37.510. 

M. Must have an individual seat for each occupant designed to scat a person. 

Section 5. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section l 0.60.050 to read as 
follows. 

I 0.60.050 Registration requirements of a wheeled all-terrain vehicle. 

A wheeled all-terrain vehicle operated on a city street must comply with all the 
registration requirements of chapter 49.06 RCW. 

Section 6. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.060 to read as 
follows. 

10.60.060 Duty to obey trnffic-control devices and rules of the road. 

Unless a police officer directs otherwise, a person operating a wheeled all-terrain 
vehicle must obey all rules of the road that apply to vehicle or pedestrian traffic and 
must obey the instructions of official traffic-control signals, signs and other control 
devices applicable to vehicles. A person operating a wheeled all-terrain vehicle upon 
a city street is subject to all of the duties that Chapter 46.61 RCW et seq. imposes on 
an operator of a vehicle, except as to those provisions thereof which by their nature 
can have no application. 

276



Section 7. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section J 0.60.070 to read as 
follows. 

10.60.070 Prohihited Uses. 

A. No person may operate or ride a wheeled all-terrain vehicle in a negligent or 
unsafe manner, but must operate it with reasonable regard for his or her own safety 
and for the safety of others. 

B. No person may occupy a wheeled all-terrain vehicle unless that person is 
seated in a seat designed to carry a person. No person may tow any devices or persons 
behind a wheeled all-terrain vehicle. 

C. No person may operate a wheeled all-terrain vehicle side-by-side in a single 
lane of traffic. 

Section 8. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.080 to read as 
follows. 

I 0.60.080 Prohibited areas. 

A. It is unlawful to operate a wheeled all-terrain vehicle on a sidewalk or other 
area where it is unlawful to operate a motor vehicle. 

B. It is tmlawful to operate a wheeled al.l-terrain vehicle in a park, except on a 
park drive or in a designated parking lot. 

C. It is unlawful to operate a wheeled all-terrain vehicle on any bicycle trail or 
walking path or in any bicycle lane. 

Section 9. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.090 10 read as 
follows. 

10.60.090 Violation - Penalty. 

A person who violates a provision of this chapter is guilty of a traffic infraction 
and will be pw1ished by the imposition of a monetary penalty not to exceed $250.00, 
exclusive of statutory assessments; provided, that conduct that constitutes a criminal 
offense may be charged as such and is subject to the maximum penalties allowed for 
such offenses. 

Section LO. The City Council enacts Prosser Municipal Code section 10.60.990 to read 
as follows. 

277



10.60.990 Severability. 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, paragraph, phrase, or word of this chapter 
should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality thereof shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any 
other section, subsection, sentence, clause, paragraph, phrase or word of this chapter. 

Section 11. SEVER.ABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared 
to be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of tl1is ordinance or its 
application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, 
the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said section, sentence, clause, or phrase be 
held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 12. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after passage and publication of 
an approved summary thereof consisting of the title. 

n .. PASS ED by the City Council and 
__ LV\rvck:'-. ____ , 2014. 

ATTEST• 

/\ 11 . /)(\,/- C) __ 
'•:j~\_(Jh_~·l ('{{!;A.'\_) 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

Approved as to form• 

CITY ATTORNEY, HOW ARD SAXTON 

Date of Publication L~/,J--/ ;:J-Q\"~ 

!''\ 
APPROVED by the Mayor, this _____ day of 

~~~iif'~-

278



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-2876 

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

~·-~-----

On the 25"', day of March, 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed 
Ordinance No. 14-2876. A snmmary of the content of said ordirnmce, consisting of the title, 
provides as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE ALLOWING DRIVERS 21 YEARS AND OLDER TO 
OPERA TE WHEELED ALL-TERRAIN VEHICLES ON CITY STREETS 
WITH A SPEED LIMIT OF 35 MILES PER H.OUR OR LESS BY ENACTING 
CHAPTER 10.60 OF THE CITY OF PROSSER MUNICIPAL CODE. THE 
ORDINANCE ALSO SETS FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE 
ORDINANCE AND PROVIDES THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE SEVERABLE 
FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDES FOR PUBLICATION BY 
SUMMARY. 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this ;jt.o~'~ay orJ.\Cttt1f U\:\ _, 2014 

279


	4-8-2014 Regular City Council Mtg Packet
	Consent Agenda 6a
	Consent Agenda 6b
	Consent Agenda 6c
	Consent Agenda 6d
	Consent Agenda 6e
	Consent Agenda 6f
	Consent Agenda 6g
	Consent Agenda 6h
	Consent Agenda 6i
	Consent Agenda 6j
	Action Item 7a
	Action Item 7b
	Action Item 7c
	Action Item 7d
	Action Item 7e
	Action Item 7f
	Action Item 7g



